Public Document Pack

Overview and Scrutiny
Management Committee

Wednesday 11 February 2015 at 10.00 am

To be held at the Town Hall, Pinstone
Street, Sheffield, S1 2HH

The Press and Public are Welcome to Attend

Membership

Councillors Chris Weldon (Chair), Sue Alston, lan Auckland, Steve Ayris,
Denise Fox, Terry Fox, Gill Furniss, Alan Law, George Lindars-Hammond,

Bryan Lodge, Cate McDonald, Pat Midgley, Mick Rooney, Sarah Jane Smalley and
Cliff Woodcraft

Substitute Members

In accordance with the Constitution, Substitute Members may be provided for the
above Committee Members as and when required.

Sheffield

City Council




PUBLIC ACCESS TO THE MEETING

The Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee comprises the Chairs and
Deputy Chairs of the four Scrutiny Committees. Councillor Chris Weldon Chairs this
Committee.

Remit of the Committee

Effective use of internal and external resources

Performance against Corporate Plan Priorities

Risk management

Budget monitoring

Strategic management and development of the scrutiny programme and process
Identifying and co-ordinating cross scrutiny issues

A copy of the agenda and reports is available on the Council's website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk. You can also see the reports to be discussed at the meeting if
you call at the First Point Reception, Town Hall, Pinstone Street entrance. The
Reception is open between 9.00 am and 5.00 pm, Monday to Thursday and between
9.00 am and 4.45 pm. on Friday. You may not be allowed to see some reports
because they contain confidential information. These items are usually marked * on
the agenda.

Members of the public have the right to ask questions or submit petitions to Scrutiny
Committee meetings and recording is allowed under the direction of the Chair.
Please see the website or contact Democratic Services for further information
regarding public questions and petitions and details of the Council’'s protocol on
audio/visual recording and photography at council meetings.

Scrutiny Committee meetings are normally open to the public but sometimes the
Committee may have to discuss an item in private. If this happens, you will be asked
to leave. Any private items are normally left until last. If you would like to attend the
meeting please report to the First Point Reception desk where you will be directed to
the meeting room.

If you require any further information about this Scrutiny Committee, please contact
Emily Standbrook-Shaw, Policy and Improvement Officer, on 0114 27 35065 or
email emily.standbrook-shaw@sheffield.gov.uk.

FACILITIES

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the
Town Hall. Induction loop facilities are available in meeting rooms.

Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the
side to the main Town Hall entrance.



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY MANAGEMENT COMMITTEE AGENDA
11 FEBRUARY 2015

Order of Business

Welcome and Housekeeping Arrangements
Apologies for Absence

Exclusion of Public and Press
To identify items where resolutions may be moved to exclude the press
and public

Declarations of Interest
Members to declare any interests they have in the business to be
considered at the meeting

Public Questions and Petitions
To receive any questions or petitions from members of the public

Capital Programme and Revenue Budget Approval 2015/16
To consider the following reports which are to be considered by the
Cabinet on 11" February, 2015:-

(a) Report of the Interim Executive Director, Resources, on the Capital
Programme Budget Approval 2015/16; and

(b) Joint report of the Chief Executive and the Interim Executive
Director, Resources, on the Revenue Budget Approval 2015/16

Date of Next Meeting
The next meeting of the Committee will be held on a date to be arranged



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS AT MEETINGS

If you are present at a meeting of the Council, of its executive or any committee of
the executive, or of any committee, sub-committee, joint committee, or joint sub-
committee of the authority, and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest (DPI)
relating to any business that will be considered at the meeting, you must not:

. participate in any discussion of the business at the meeting, or if you become
aware of your Disclosable Pecuniary Interest during the meeting, participate
further in any discussion of the business, or

o participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the meeting.

These prohibitions apply to any form of participation, including speaking as a
member of the public.

You must:

J leave the room (in accordance with the Members’ Code of Conduct)

. make a verbal declaration of the existence and nature of any DPI at any
meeting at which you are present at which an item of business which affects or
relates to the subject matter of that interest is under consideration, at or before
the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest becomes
apparent.

. declare it to the meeting and notify the Council’'s Monitoring Officer within 28
days, if the DPI is not already registered.

If you have any of the following pecuniary interests, they are your disclosable
pecuniary interests under the new national rules. You have a pecuniary interest if
you, or your spouse or civil partner, have a pecuniary interest.

e Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain,
which you, or your spouse or civil partner undertakes.

¢ Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from your
council or authority) made or provided within the relevant period* in respect of
any expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards
your election expenses. This includes any payment or financial benefit from a
trade union within the meaning of the Trade Union and Labour Relations
(Consolidation) Act 1992.

*The relevant period is the 12 months ending on the day when you tell the
Monitoring Officer about your disclosable pecuniary interests.

e Any contract which is made between you, or your spouse or your civil partner (or
a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a beneficial
interest) and your council or authority —

under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be

executed; and
which has not been fully discharged.

Page 1 1



¢ Any benéeficial interest in land which you, or your spouse or your civil partner,
have and which is within the area of your council or authority.

¢ Any licence (alone or jointly with others) which you, or your spouse or your civil
partner, holds to occupy land in the area of your council or authority for a month
or longer.

e Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) —
the landlord is your council or authority; and
the tenant is a body in which you, or your spouse or your civil partner, has a
beneficial interest.

¢ Any beneficial interest which you, or your spouse or your civil partner has in
securities of a body where -

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of
your council or authority; and

(b) either -
- the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body; or
if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal
value of the shares of any one class in which you, or your spouse or your
civil partner, has a beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total
issued share capital of that class.

If you attend a meeting at which any item of business is to be considered and you
are aware that you have a personal interest in the matter which does not amount to
a DPI, you must make verbal declaration of the existence and nature of that interest
at or before the consideration of the item of business or as soon as the interest
becomes apparent. You should leave the room if your continued presence is
incompatible with the 7 Principles of Public Life (selflessness; integrity; objectivity;
accountability; openness; honesty; and leadership).

You have a personal interest where —

e adecision in relation to that business might reasonably be regarded as affecting
the well-being or financial standing (including interests in land and easements
over land) of you or a member of your family or a person or an organisation with
whom you have a close association to a greater extent than it would affect the
majority of the Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of the ward or
electoral area for which you have been elected or otherwise of the Authority’s
administrative area, or

e itrelates to oris likely to affect any of the interests that are defined as DPIs but

are in respect of a member of your family (other than a partner) or a person with
whom you have a close association.

Page 2 2



Guidance on declarations of interest, incorporating regulations published by the
Government in relation to Disclosable Pecuniary Interests, has been circulated to
you previously.

You should identify any potential interest you may have relating to business to be
considered at the meeting. This will help you and anyone that you ask for advice to
fully consider all the circumstances before deciding what action you should take.

In certain circumstances the Council may grant a dispensation to permit a Member
to take part in the business of the Authority even if the member has a Disclosable
Pecuniary Interest relating to that business.

To obtain a dispensation, you must write to the Monitoring Officer at least 48 hours
before the meeting in question, explaining why a dispensation is sought and
desirable, and specifying the period of time for which it is sought. The Monitoring
Officer may consult with the Independent Person or the Council’'s Standards
Committee in relation to a request for dispensation.

Further advice can be obtained from Gillian Duckworth, Director of Legal and
Governance on 0114 2734018 or email gillian.duckworth@sheffield.gov.uk.

Page 3 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 4



Agenda Item 6

Sggg}%d Report to Overview & Scrutiny
: | Management Committee
February 11™" 2015

Subject: Revenue Budget & Capital Programme 2015/16

Purpose of report:

The attached report sets out the proposed Revenue Budget & Capital
Programme 2015/16, and will be considered by Cabinet at its meeting on the
11" February 2015.

The report is attached for the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee’s
consideration and comment.

The Scrutiny Committee is being asked to:

Consider and comment on the Revenue Budget and Capital Programme
2015/16

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Sheffield SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

City Council Cabinet
: Report
Report of: Interim Executive Director Resources
Date: 11™ February 2015
Subject: 2015 - 16 Capital Programme
Author of Report: Eugene Walker 0114 273 5167

Summary:

The report sets out the proposed Capital Programme from 2015 —16 onwards
describing the programmes to be undertaken, lists the projects to be delivered
and sets out the context in which it has been compiled.

Reasons for Recommendations:

Implementing the proposed programme in this report offers a means of
furthering the Corporate Plan objectives.

Recommendations:

The report makes a number of recommendations. It is recommended that
Members:

1. Note the specific projects included in the years 2014-15 to 2019-20
programmes at Appendix 9. Block allocations are included within the
programme for noting at this stage and detailed proposals will be brought
back for separate Member approval as part of the monthly monitoring
procedures.

2. Note the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2019/20 as per
Appendix 9.

Page 7



3. Approve the Corporate Resource Pool policy outlined in Appendix 4 such
that the commitment from the CRP is limited to one year and no CRP
supported schemes are approved beyond 2015-16 unless explicitly stated.
(If substantial capital receipts are realised within 2014-15 or 2015-16 a

further report will be brought to Members as part of the monthly approval
process).

Background Papers: 2015 -16 Revenue Budget Report

Category of Report: OPEN

Page 8



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial Implications

YES/NO Cleared by: E. Walker

Legal Implications

¥ES/NO Cleared by:

Equality of Opportunity Implications

¥ES/NO Cleared by:

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications

¥ES/NO

Human rights Implications

¥ES/NO:

Environmental and Sustainability implications

¥ES/NO

Economic impact

¥ES/NO

Community safety implications

¥ES/NO

Human resources implications

¥ES/NO

Property implications

¥ES/NO

Area(s) affected
City Wide

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Leader
Cabinet Member for Finance ClIr. Ben Curran

Relevant Scrutiny and Policy Development Committee if decision called in

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

YES/NO

Press release

YESING

Page 9




Page 10



2014-15 Capital Programme
TABLE OF CONTENTS

Section Detail

Page Number

Executive Summary

Capital Programme Summary 7
Key Elements of the Capital Programme 9
Sources of Programme Funding 15
Recommendations 19
List of Appendices 21
Appendix 1 — Summary of Capital Programme 22
Appendix 2 — Breakdown of Capital Programme Funding 23
Appendix 3 — Monitoring Report for the 8 months ended

30 November 2014 24
Appendix 4 — Corporate Resource Pool (CRP) 27
Appendix 5 — Glossary of terms 31
Appendix 6 — Housing Investment Programme 33
Appendix 7 — Transport Capital Programme 58
Appendix 8 — Regeneration Capital Programme 64
Appendix 9 — List of All Projects in Capital Programme by

Portfolio 67
Appendix 10 — List of All Projects in Capital Programme

by Strategic Outcome 87

Page 11




2015/16 Capital Programme

CAPITAL PROGRAMME EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.

Capital spending pays for buildings, roads and council housing and for major
repairs to them. It does not pay for the day-to-day running costs of council
services.

The Council’'s Corporate Capital Strategy is shaped by a number of central
Government policies:

e the self-financing regime for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) has
provided for a relatively well funded programme of investment in existing and
even new Council housing stock;

e the Streets Ahead programme is providing massive investment in the City’s
roads and street lighting over the next few years, funded via the Private
Finance Initiative (PFI). Some of the cost is outside the capital programme;

e the Government austerity programme, has had a major impact on the rest of
the non-housing programme, which has not only led to less capital funding but
is also reducing revenue budget funding and the scope for contributions to the
capital budget;

e the education policy mandating that all new schools should be academies
which transfers maintenance responsibilities away from the Council’s Local
Education Authority (LEA) role and will subsequently reduce central grant
funding which is formula driven based on pupil numbers;

e the shift towards capital funding to economic regeneration projects which
generate a financial return to repay the initial investment and create a
revolving fund,;

e the devolvement of capital funding to City Region authorities and the
involvement of the Local Enterprise Partnerships (LEP) in capital allocation
decisions.

As a result of the above, the Housing investment programme therefore now
accounts for almost 60% of the Capital Programme.

The impact of these policies will result in the Capital Programme principally
supporting the Great Place to Live (GP2L) and Competitive City strategic
outcome objectives. This is discussed further in paragraphs 59-67.

In GP2L, the delivery of the Council’s Affordable Housing policy will be
increasingly through council housing investment and, for private sector affordable
housing, local housing associations or the Sheffield Housing Company initiative
where the Council is working in partnership with a private sector developer to
increase the number of affordable homes and regenerate housing estates.

Page 12



In the Competitive City outcome, the focus will be on creating the necessary
infrastructure to support economic regeneration.

6. Inthe Health and Well-being outcome investment will be directed to adapt homes
so that people can live independently.

7.  The Successful Young People outcome will continue to invest in schools to meet
the increasing demand for pupil places.

8.  The declining central government support will place increased reliance on the
Council’'s Asset Enhancement programme to generate capital receipts to use on
its own priorities.

9.  The graph below illustrates the change in activity in the Capital Programme from
2010/11 to 2018/9.

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2010 - 2019
300.0
250.0 -
200.0 -
& 1500 1

100.0

50.0 1

2010/11 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018
Onwards

0.0 -

Year

Capital Investment Plans

10. So, looking forward, the current Approved Capital Programme from 2014-15 is

11.

projected at £872m.

2012/13 saw the introduction of the Streets Ahead Programme (a Highways
Private Finance Initiative (PFI)). The programme will result in loss of the Local
Transport Plan (LTP) Maintenance Grant of approximately £6m per year, but the
PFI funding of £1.2bn should deliver substantial improvements to the Highways
network through capital investment over a 30 year period concentrated in the first
five years of the Core Investment Period of the project. Where economically
advantageous, the Council will invest further sums if this can generate revenue

Page 13



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

budget savings because it can raise finance cheaper than its commercial
partners.

The Housing Revenue Account HRA Self Financing project delivers to local
authorities’ greater autonomy in the management of their housing stock and
writes off substantial amounts of accumulated debt. This will allow the authority
to plan contributions to the capital programme from the Housing Revenue
Account with greater certainty over a longer term period, and the Authority has
developed a 30 year business plan which will inject into the Housing Programme
£70.5m in 2015-16 and £214m thereafter over the next three years.

School building works will be financed mainly by Department for Education
formula calculated central grants supplemented by occasional specific grants to
deal with building condition or population growth.

The proposed programme illustrated by the graph in paragraph 9 above does not
include a number of major projects worth potentially £100m+ which are currently
the subject of funding bids or approvals as detailed below.

Flood Defence Schemes (£35 m): Cabinet has already approved a £18m
scheme to provide enhanced flood defences over a five mile stretch of the River
Don between the city centre and Meadowhall which would protect homes and
businesses against a 100 year flood event. The Environment Agency has invited
the Council to apply for a further £35m of funding to undertake works across the
city in the Upper Don valley, on the River Sheaf, Blackburn Brook and Car Brook.

City Centre Development: it is a Council priority to regenerate the city centre.
The Council is reviewing different partnership options for taking this project
forward. This may involve the Council undertaking infrastructure works to prime
the development.

Central Library: the objective will be to provide a refurbished and improved
central library and gallery facility to meet modern requirements, while maintaining
the heritage value of the existing building. The project is the subject of feasibility
work to ascertain the best use of the Council’s city centre buildings. The scale of
the work could be very significant requiring external funding support. Approvals
will be sought once a funded proposal has been developed.

Castlegate Redevelopment: the Council is seeking external funding to develop
the former Castle Market site potentially as a visitor attraction if there are
sufficient remains of the former castle which can be uncovered.

Pressures on the Capital Programme

19.

This summary details the pressures on the Capital Programme and the
consequences for its funding.

Page 14



Schools

School Places

20.

21.

Homes

22.

23.

Roads

24.

The Council has a significant duty to provide sufficient and suitable school
places. The rising birth rate means that the primary population (which eventually
becomes the secondary group from 2015/16) has risen significantly and two new
schools have been delivered in 2014. This need will continue for the foreseeable
future as the responsibility to build new schools remains with the Council and
does not transfer to academies.

The proposals in this report are based on the current education funding
arrangements and do not include any attempt to forecast the impact of additional
schools converting to academy status. This development is expected to reduce
the level of funding from today but the demands on the Authority’s capital funds
will reduce too as the commensurate responsibility for the upkeep of the school
infrastructure transfers to the Academies. However the demands relating to the
condition of the primary estate are still significant. For the whole school estate,
the backlog maintenance bill has been estimated at £100m.

The Housing Programme has suffered twin pressures caused by reductions in
nationally funded programmes and reducing capital receipts as a result of the
economic climate and changes to the Right to Buy legislation. The introduction of
the Self-Funded Business Model has created greater freedom for the Council to
invest in its housing stock through contributions from the Housing Revenue
account.

Having conducted an assessment of the housing market, the Council estimates
that at least 725 affordable homes are required each year. The Council aims to
deliver these through a combination of initiatives including building homes itself
using the Sheffield Housing Company, releasing land to Housing Associations,
bringing long term empty properties back into use as well as private sector
developments.

The Streets Ahead programme is well underway renewing the fabric of the City’s
highway infrastructure. The new contract creates greater budgetary discipline
than before in that the future maintenance costs of changes to the network have
to be identified at the point of construction. This is done by calculating the future
costs as a “commuted sum” which is usually funded out of the existing revenue
budget. As the austerity programme reduces local authority budgets, there may

Page 15



25.

come a point where new works are unable to progress because the Council
cannot meet the future maintenance obligations.

The final position on the Inner Relief Road (IRR) scheme is dependent on the
disposal of a small number of residual sites. Balancing this project relies on
realising the sales to match any shortfall otherwise funding will have to be taken
from the Corporate Resource Pool (CRP).

Maintaining the Existing Fabric of the Property Estate

26.

27.

28.

29.

The Council has traditionally allocated several million pounds each year to fund
building renovations and machinery replacement. Cabinet has approved a £4.4m
programme to maintain the rolling programme and deliver savings to the
Revenue Budget by engaging in capital spend to address the fundamental
problems rather than “patch and mend”. However, the size and age of the estate
produces a significant demand on the Council’s funds.

In order to mitigate this pressure, the Capital & Major Projects service is currently
reviewing the estate to identify underutilised or high cost buildings where the
facility can be provided from existing or new premises. This project, the
Community Investment Plan, will run in conjunction with the Accommodation
Efficiency Strategy which will reduce the Council’s office space needs enabling it
to leave rented property.

The Community Investment Plan (CIP) and Asset Enhancement programmes are
underway and receipts should arise in the next two years. The first call on the
receipts is to repay the investment in these initiatives. The CIP will progress on
cash neutral basis with minimal funding whereby future schemes will be financed
from capital receipts or revenue savings from completed projects.

There is also a substantial programme of remedial works in schools. A small
proportion of this can be met by specific grants from the Department for
Education (DfE) but the maijority of works will require either significantly more
grant from the DfE and/or alternative financing.

Developing the Local Economy and Infrastructure

30.

Despite the downturn in the property market, the Council will be presented with
opportunities to acquire strategic land sites which will help the city recover as the
economic upturn gathers pace or provide sites for housing development.
Investing in the city’s people is also a key priority. In 2012-13 the Council
acquired land to facilitate the construction of the University Technology College in
the city centre and is supporting a second venture on the site of the former Don
Valley Stadium where building will commence in 2015-16. This is not part of the
Council’'s programme being directly funded by the Education Funding Agency. In
2013-14 the Council completed the building of the new Moor Indoor Market as
part of joint private-public sector initiative to regenerate the Moor. £2m has been

Page 16



invested in building workshops to assist new small businesses to develop and
provide employment.

31. The Capital programme funding strategy needs to be flexible enough to respond
to such opportunities.

The Consequences for funding the Capital Programme

32. The impact of the national expenditure reductions, the uncertainties of the
weakened property market and the need to manage the risks and contain the
pressures within the non-housing programme combine such that the authority
becomes increasingly reliant on capital receipts. Looking beyond this source,
there are opportunities within the capital programme and new funding streams
which have been combined to create funding pools such as the Local Growth
Fund. Other initiatives such as the Tax Increment Financing Scheme (TIF) are
now in operation and the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) should come into
force in January 2015. These sources are discussed more fully at paragraphs [82
- 93]

The Capital Resource Pool (CRP)

33. Historically the Capital Resource Pool (CRP) has been used to fund investment
needs not met by Government funding, which is principally targeted at housing,
schools and roads. The CRP is therefore used to improve the authority’s building
estate, deal with backlog maintenance demands and unplanned failures of
structures or other property losses caused by natural disasters such as the floods
in 2007. The authority needs to retain a prudent level of reserve to cover such
risks.

34.CRP is also a key resource for funding those projects which are not supported by
specific central government grants for homes, schools or roads. It can also be
used to demolish empty properties to redevelop land for sale. This can bring
benefits to the Revenue Budget by reducing the costs of safeguarding vacant
property as well as replenishing the CRP.

35.The success of the Asset Enhancement programme is key to replenishing this
reservoir of funding.

36.Appendix 4 discusses the position on the CRP in further detail but the key point
to note is that this report, as for the past two years, recommends that no
schemes funded from this source be approved beyond one year (2015-16)
because of the uncertainty around future capital receipts.

Page 17



THE CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2014 — 18

37.The capital programme over the 5 years 2014-18 shows a broadly balanced
position with proposed expenditure totalling £872m as per Appendix 1.

38.Wherever possible, attempts are made to match the timing of the receipt of
resources and the incurrence of expenditure to protect the Council’s cash flow
position. Where the levels of expenditure are significant, then individual
management arrangements are put in place to mitigate the impact as far as
possible. These are overseen by the Director of Finance, in conjunction with the
respective Head of Service.

39.The funding of the programme comes from a diverse range of resources, such as
government grants, other grants and contributions from other public bodies or
third parties, capital receipts, prudential borrowing and revenue contributions to
capital. The majority falls within either prudential borrowing or contributions from
the revenue account to the capital programme, which together represents
£727.8m (71 %) of the overall programme value.

40.The 2014-15 programme was set on the 7" March 2014 and at the time totalled
£101.3m for 2014-15. This has been revised as additional resources have been
secured, and to reflect the impact of newly approved schemes, together with the
net effect of the 2013/14 Outturn slippage and actions taken below, resulting in a
revised current approved programme of £192.4m as per appendix 1.

Slippage within the Capital Programme

41.For the last five years there has always been an underspend against the
approved capital programme. Subject to Cabinet approval, funds are rolled
forward into the next year in order to complete projects. Slippage reflects delays
in physical progress of a project and in most cases the work is delivered in the
next financial year. The risk of slippage is present in all capital programmes and
has been experienced in previous years.

42.However, the current reporting system has provided greater transparency and
identified instances where money appears to be repeatedly carried forward from
earlier years. This allows members to test if the funding is really needed and
could be reallocated to other priorities. It also shows the delivery performance on
the capital programme.

43.Considerable work has been undertaken in 2014-15 to identify the cause of
slippage and improve capital delivery. This work has compared Sheffield’'s
approach to that of other organisations with significant capital programmes. This
has concluded that project management needs to be strengthened and that

Page 18



delivery plans need independent scrutiny. The main improvement areas are
being addressed as part of the recovery plan:

e The need for an independent review and challenge of project timelines which
tend to be optimistic and do not allow sufficient time for key procedures such
as approval, procurement and consultation with no contingency if things go
wrong;

e Submitting investment bids before the whole project has been scoped in order
to obtain capital funding; and

e Weak project governance with inadequate supervision of project managers by
project and programme boards. In some cases the supervising group is
managing the project.

44.The value of slippage approved to date totals £23.6m. A breakdown of this by
portfolio is listed in the table below.

Portfolio Slippage | Accelerated Net 2013/14
Spend Slippage | Comparable
(Em) Figure [1]
(Em) (Em)

Housing 11.0 0.2 10.8 24.2

Other Place 2.7 0.0 2.7 1.9

Resources 4.1 0.0 41 1.9

Highways 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3

Communities 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.8

CYPF 6.0 0.0 6.0 0.0

TOTAL 23.8 0.2 23.6 30.2

[1] Represents the level of slippage approved at the equivalent period

last year.

Page 19



KEY ELEMENTS of the CAPITAL PROGRAMME

45.The overall Capital programme position for the 5 years from 2014/15 to 2018/19,
amounts to £872m. Although the programme is made up of numerous capital
projects the majority of its value falls within the Housing programme, which
represents around £488.5m (56%) of the total programme.

2014/15 Approved Programme
Annual Profile
£m

2014/15 1924
2015/16 232.7
2016/17 156.3
2017/18 127.9
Beyond 2017/18 163.0

872.2

46.When represented graphically the peak of the programme is in 2015-16. As
discussed at paragraph 14, it is expected that further projects will come forward
for approval and add to the programme.

Annual Capital Expenditure 2014/15 to 2018/19
250
200
150
£
«
100
50
0 T T T T
2014/15 2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 Beyond 2017/18

Page 20



47.The Housing programme becomes the single largest element (56%) of the
Capital Programme with significant amounts being invested in roads,
regeneration, schools and leisure facilities.

Capital Programme - Expenditure 2014/15 to 2018/19

Other
14.9m Schools

£79.8m

y

£
Sport & Leisure
£36.4m

Regeneration
£91.9m
Transport &
Highways
£34.7m
Streets Ahead
£126.0m

Housing
£488.5m

CAPITAL PROGRAMME
2014/15 to 2018/19

£fm %
Schools 79.8 9%
Housing 488.5 56%
Streets Ahead 126.0 14%
Transport & Highways 34.7 4%
Regeneration 91.9 11%
Sport & Leisure 36.4 4%
Other 14.9 2%
Overall Total 872.2 100%

Comments on the main elements are shown below. Further detail can be found in
Appendices 6 to 8.

Page 21



School Places and Capital Maintenance Programme for Schools

48.The need to meet the demand for additional school places created by an

expanding population is a priority for the council. Two new schools in the
Waterthorpe and Skinnerthorpe areas will produce new places in two areas with
increasing pupil numbers. The Council will design and procure the new schools,
which will be academies under government rules. An external sponsor will then
maintain them.

49. Capital investment in maintaining the primary estate (including primary schools)

utilises the approximately £6m annual grant from the DfE together with the
Devolved Formula grant from the schools themselves (£1.3m annually). Good
prioritisation utilising our asset management plans means that the Council can
target resources at the most needy schools throughout the city. This includes the
ability to combine programmes at schools where it produces better value for
money. The critical programmes to follow are, heating and electrical, fire risk
assessment measures, structural, roofs, windows and mobile replacements.

Housing Programme

The proposed programme is aligned to the three main themes in the Council’s
Housing Strategy. The programme is summarised below and described in detail
in Appendix 6.

50.Increasing the Supply of New Homes in the City (£100.1m) through

51.

supporting the Sheffield Housing Company and other registered homes providers
to build new properties. Local Growth Fund money will be used to clear
undeveloped sites to prime construction work. For the first time in many years
the Council will build its own houses putting substantial funds from the HRA and
Affordable Housing payments from developers.

Making the best use of the City’s existing housing stock (£319.4m) by
continuing to renovate and refurbish the Council’s housing stock. The Decent
Homes Programme will complete in 2013-14 (£27m) having invested over £700m
into improving homes. Going forward, £198.8m of funding has been identified
within the Housing Revenue Account to maintain the standards reached today.
On top of this over £42m will be invested in heating and insulation schemes
improving the energy efficiency of homes reducing fuel costs and meeting the
Council’s environmental objectives. More money is also being invested in roofing
including the fitting of solar panels.

52.Helping Younger, Older and Vulnerable people live independently (£23.1m)

through the provision of grants to help adapt private sector houses to their needs
as well as adapting the Council’s own stock.

Page 22

1"



Other Projects and Programmes

53.Regeneration (£91.7m) is a key programme and objective within the Place
portfolio. These works are seen as essential to promote economic growth and
jobs which will increase footfall and spending in the city. More businesses, less
vacant office and shop space should also increase the Council’s business rate
income which will help offset the loss of central government funding. Most of the
money is allocated to the New Development District in the city centre which will
incorporate the New Retail Quarter. A further £8m is being invested in the West
Bar to Castlegate axis through the demolition of the former Castle Market and
removal of 500m of redundant highway along West Bar replacing it with
landscaped verge (the Grey-to-Green project).

54.Over £36m has been included in the programme to implement the Council’s
leisure facilities strategy. This will deliver new centres in the North and South of
the city complementing those at Ponds Forge in the city centre. The plans include
£7m to build a new centre in the north of the city of which £2.5m will come from
the Council and the remainder from external funders. The Council has assumed
responsibility for the delivery of a £15m development replacing the existing
facilities at Graves to serve the south of the city. The new sports centres will also
include medical evaluation facilities to test the impact of exercise on health. A
further £1.2m will be invested in a new venture with the Football Association to
transform the quality of both adult and junior pitches across the city with Sheffield
being the pilot for the national scheme.

55.£8.6m investment in Office Accommodation to implement modern IT systems
and working practices which will reduce the overall floor space requirement and
generate Revenue Budget savings. A further £4.8m is to be spent to make the
long term building estate fit for purpose and compliant with the latest Health &
Safety and accessibility legislation. The rolling repairs and refurbishment budget
for the estate is another £2.3m.

56.£18m is included for the feasibility, design and construction of flood defences to
protect the Lower Don Valley which should raise business confidence and assist
the regeneration of the area. This has increased by £11m from last year following
the successful bid for additional funds from the Environment Agency.

57.Asset Enhancement Programme. £3.2m will be invested in surplus council land
to prepare it for development increasing its attractiveness so that it can be sold to
generate a future stream of capital receipts to fund the Capital Programme. This
programme will also assist other Council priorities such as developing new
homes.

58.£2.8m investment in Parks projects including £750k to convert some areas of
parks to natural meadow or woodland reducing revenue budget maintenance

Page 23

12



costs, and, £0.8m on building two cycle paths to link Norfolk Park with Park
Square.

Strategic Outcomes

59.0ver the past two years the Council has adopted an alternative Revenue Budget
compilation strategy considering the total investment across all service delivery
portfolios in a particular area of performance (called a strategic outcome) which is
linked to the medium-term plan priorities. As stated in the Executive Summary,
the current disposition of central government and external funding opportunities
result in the Capital programme principally supports the Great place to Live and
Competitive City outcomes.

60. The graph below shows the allocation of investment by Strategic Outcome.
Individual projects are listed under each strategic outcome at Appendix 10.

Capital Programme - Strategic Outcomes
2014/15 to 2018/19

Tackling Poverty/

Safe & Secure
Communities

£0.3m Increasing Social
Successful Justice
Children & Young £5.2m _ Better Health &
People Wellbeing
£81.8m £25.5m

Competitive City
£93.0m

Infrastructure

£17.2m \

A Great Place To
Live
£649.2m

61.Successful Young People primarily reflects the investment in schools to give
children the opportunity of a good start in life. The School Places Expansion and
Maintenance Programmes are the main components of this outcome.

Page 24

13



62.Great Place to Live includes not just the Housing Programme but also
investment in sports and leisure facilities, parks, fit for purpose transport systems
and road safety measures. These works are predominantly undertaken by the
housing and Place Portfolio programmes. Explained in greater detail in
Appendices 6 to 8.

63. Competitive City — Schemes contributing to this outcome include the City centre
regeneration schemes (New development district and public realm
improvements) plus some energy efficiency schemes such as the insulation of
homes which contributes to the Council’s environmental objectives.

64.Health and Well Being outcome will see investment in information systems and
ICT to improve customer service and reduce operating costs, plus Housing
programme schemes that help people to live independent lives in their own
homes.

65.Infrastructure comprises mainly schemes associated with the life extension of,
improving or rationalising the Council’s building estate e.g. the Office
Accommodation Efficiency Strategy, Asset Enhancement and Community
Investment Plan.

66.Tackling Poverty and Increasing Social Justice — a £5.8m scheme to improve
the local district heating system including the installation of meters in individual
dwellings to give people the opportunity to control their energy usage and cost.

67.Safe and Secure Communities investment will provide local facilities like
resource centres to develop more sustainable and cohesive communities.

The Programme in 2015-16

68.The year on year change in CYPF, from £38.0m in 2013-14 to £20.8m in 2014-15
shows a reducing level of BSF investment as that programme comes to an end.
The schools programme is now focussed on the creation of new school places
and primary school refurbishment using the Government’s Basic Need and
Capital Maintenance grants. A new school for Tinsley is planned plus
completions of expansions at Rowan and Oughtibridge and the new Through
school at Don Valley. In total £18.1m will be spent on school expansions. £9.2m
is budgeted to be spent on school refurbishments. Aside from schools, the
portfolio plans to spend £0.8m to complete accommodation improvements at
Thornbridge Outdoor centre and £0.5m of grants to assist early learning for
children.

Page 25

14



69.Housing programme increases by £40.7m from £51.5 to £92.2m. There will be
significant investment of £20m in increasing the Council’s housing stock through
new build and acquiring suitable properties on the market. The existing stock will
also receive substantial investment funded from the Housing Revenue Account
with £23.7m going into replacing roofs and a further £3.7m fitting photo-voltaic
cells, £10.9m for replacement heating systems, £7.2m to be spent on the
refurbishment of doors, windows, kitchens, bathroom and electrical wiring, £4.8m
into Communal areas and £2.9 for Fire and other safety compliance work.

70.The Place portfolio programme increases from £49.8m to £72.3m with the
majority of the money being invested in regeneration projects including £37m
acquiring land and developing the vision for the NDD/NRQ plus £6.3m
demolishing the former Castle Market building and removing redundant highway
in preparation for the redevelopment of the West Bar to Castlegate area. £19.4m
is to be invested in sports, culture and leisure facilities using significant
contributions from the Football Association, Sport England and the Arts Council.
Finally, just under £9m is to be spent upgrading flood defences in the Lower Don
Valley.

71.Highways programme decrease from £29.3m to £4.7m as the Bus Rapid Transit
North scheme moves towards completion and the 2015-16 Local transport
Programme is yet to be agreed and added to the budget.

72.The Resources portfolio programme will fall from £6m in 2014-15 to £4.6m in
2015-16 as the Office Accommodation Efficiency and Fire Safety projects are
largely complete.

73.The Communities portfolio programme is forecast to be £1m in 2014-15 as the
significant investment in the ICT Infrastructure scheme is completed.

SOURCES OF PROGRAMME FUNDING

74.The programme details at scheme level, both the proposed expenditure and
expected funding on an annual basis. The funding of the programme comes from
a diverse range of resources and Appendix 2 gives a breakdown of how the
overall Capital Programme is currently funded.

75.The majority of the programme is funded via revenue contributions to capital
mainly from the Housing Revenue Account, which amount to £381.7m (43%).
Grants fund 15% of the programme, prudential borrowing funds 28% and capital
receipts represent a further 8% and it is this element of funding that is the most
uncertain. Any projects in the Capital Programme funded by capital receipts can
only be undertaken if the receipts are realised.

Page 26

15



Sources of Programme Funding 2014/15 to 2018/19

Other
£44.1m

£135.9m

Capital Receipts

£71.8m
Revenue
Contributions
£381.9m
Prudential
Borrowing
£245.9m

Sources of Programme Funding 2014/15 to 2018/19
Funding Percentage

Scheme £m %
Grants 135.9 15%
Capital Receipts 71.8 8%
Prudential Borrowing 245.9 28%
Revenue Contributions 381.9 43%
Other 441 5%
Total 879.7 100%

76.Grants funding is mainly used for the schools capital programmes and highways.

77.Prudential borrowing is used where no external funding is available and to fund
schemes which will generate a Revenue Budget saving which then repays the
principal and interest. The council can often borrow funds cheaper than its
commercial sector partners because of its perceived higher credit rating. It makes
sense therefore to inject such capital where there is a potential economic benefit.

Capital Receipts Funding

78.The receipts from the sale of surplus assets are used to fund a Corporate
Resource Pool (CRP) which allows Members at their discretion to undertake
projects for which there is no external funding. It is also used by the authority as a

Page 27

16



strategic reserve to cover to emergencies such as the total loss of a key piece of
infrastructure e.g. as occurred in the 2007 Floods. As external funding sources
are reduced because of austerity cut backs, the CRP assumes an even greater
significance in funding the Capital Programme.

79.Appendix 4 gives a detailed review of the potential receipts and demands on the
CRP over the next five years in order to form a view on the level of commitment
which can be prudently made.

80.Whilst the Asset Enhancement and Community Investment programmes should
deliver a steady stream of surplus properties, the uncertainty in the market
suggests that the receipts may not be realised within five years. Moreover, the
receipts from the CIP will be re-invested in the programme so that it does not
require specific support from the Council.

81.Given the need to maintain a prudent level of reserve to mitigate infrastructure
failures, grant claw back, or project overspends, the conclusion is that there is
insufficient confidence to be able to recommend to Members that any CRP
funded projects are approved beyond 2015-16.

Other forms of Funding

Prudential Borrowing

82.Under the rules of the Prudential Code, the Council has the power to finance
Capital schemes using Prudential Borrowing (borrowing that does not attract
financial support from the Government, which is also known as unsupported
borrowing). The principles for entering into such borrowing were approved by
Cabinet on 22 September 2004, and generally relates to ‘Invest to Save’
schemes, including Land Assembly and funding for major capital projects.

83.1t remains the Council’s view that its best overall financial interest is served by
substituting Prudential Borrowing for Leasing. It is considered that borrowing in
lieu of leasing can be undertaken as an element of ‘Invest to Save’ (where it is
considered to be more cost effective over the whole life of the asset when
compared to Leasing), and can be contained within an overall annual limit
established for such borrowing.

84. Included within the 2015/16 Capital Programme are the following amounts of

prudential borrowing for projects funded in whole or part from prudential
borrowing:

Page 28

17



Total
. Project
Project Value
£000s
Street Ahead Capital Contribution 125,982
New Retail Quarter 62,509
Housing Schemes 38,461
Office Accommodation Strategy 9,370
Graves Leisure 4,922
Asset Rationalisation 1,789
Thorncliffe Leisure 1,200
Fosters Carers Housing Enhancement 1,200
Vehicle & Plant Efficiency 451
New Sheffield Indoor Market 23
Total 245,908

85.Any amendments to these limits will be approved by Full Council and undertaken
in line with the Prudential Code. There are other commitments outside of the
capital programme and these are described in the Revenue Budget report.

86. Prudential Borrowing does not receive any government support and therefore if
the Council enters into any prudential borrowing then it will incur additional
Capital financing costs. Prudential Borrowing will only be entered into where it
can be demonstrated that funding is available within the overall Council budget to
meet the ongoing borrowing costs.

New Homes Bonus Fund (formerly known as the Local Growth Fund)

87.This fund which has been created out of two government incentive payments for
building new homes (the New Homes Bonus) and reducing the number of long
term empty properties. It is available for projects which improve the local housing
or neighbourhood environment. Approval of such projects is given by local
elected members following recommendations from Council officers.

88.The fund is being used to provide infrastructure or clear derelict buildings to kick
start developments at sites which have been unattractive to developers. Often
this improves the neighbourhood through removing opportunities for anti-social
behaviour as well providing new homes.

Tax Increment Financing (TIF)

89. This initiative was announced in September 2010. The principle is to allow the
authority to borrow funds to undertake capital improvements in an area. The
money would be repaid from increased tax revenues (i.e. business rates) in the
area as land values rise as a result of the capital investment. This scheme has

Page 29

18



been used successfully in the United States over the last fifty years, often for
major transport, infrastructure or regeneration projects.

90. A scheme to develop infrastructure required for the New Development District
(also known as the New Retail Quarter) has been approved by H.M. Treasury.
The borrowing will be repaid out of the anticipated additional rates revenue
generated by the redevelopment of the city centre. The Council had previously
been developing the NDD using a preferred developer but has agreed, by mutual
consent, to dissolve the partnership. The Council is currently reviewing options
for taking forward this important scheme.

Community Infrastructure Levy

91.This will supplement the current Section106 (Town & Country Planning Act 1990)
arrangements which fund many of the local neighbourhood facility improvements
especially in Parks & Countryside as well as City Development Division. CIL
allows local authorities in England and Wales to raise funds from developers
undertaking new building projects in their area. The money can be used to fund
a wide range of infrastructure that is needed as a result of development. This
includes new or safer road schemes, flood defences, schools, hospitals and other
health and social care facilities, park improvements, green spaces and leisure
centres.

92.The Council intends to use CIL to develop strategic infrastructure projects such
as roads and schools e.g. £2.2m will be used in the development of the BRT link.

93.The Council has developed its rating tariff and intends to introduce the scheme
from July 2015.

RECOMMENDATIONS

94.1t is recommended that Members note the specific projects included in the years
2014-15 to 2019-20 programmes at Appendix 9. Block allocations are included
within the programme for noting at this stage and detailed proposals will be
brought back for separate Member approval as part of the monthly monitoring
procedures.

95.Note the proposed Capital Programme for the 5 years to 2019/20 as per
Appendix 9.

96. Approve the Corporate Resource Pool policy outlined in Appendix 4 such that the
commitment from the CRP is limited to one year and no CRP supported schemes

Page 30

19



are approved beyond 2015-16 unless explicitly stated. (If substantial capital
receipts are realised within 2014-15 or 2015-16 a further report will be brought to
Members as part of the monthly approval process).

Finance

February 2015

Page 31

20



List of Appendices

Appendix 1 — Summary of Capital Programme

Appendix 2 — Breakdown of Capital Programme Funding

Appendix 3 — Monitoring Report for the 8 months ended 30 November 2014
Appendix 4 — Corporate Resource Pool (CRP)

Appendix 5 — Glossary of terms

Appendix 6 — Housing Investment Programme

Appendix 7 — Local Transport Plan (LTP)

Appendix 8 — Regeneration Capital Programme

Appendix 9 — List of All Projects in Capital Programme by Portfolio

Appendix 10 — List of All Projects in Capital Programme by Strategic Outcome

Page 32

21



[44

00l | L0228 | O 86691 | 001 | 816221 | €8 | 122961 | 88 £69°2€T €8 09¢‘Z61 |ejol [[e49A0
L | 286'6Zl | 0 0 0¢ | 06€'8E | ZL | £08°92 r4} 6.2 Ll £88°Z¢ peayy sjeans
L 6ES0L | 0 0 0 0 0|0 r4 695V € 696°G $92IN0S9Yy
G/ | 296°L59 | 00L | 866291 | 0L | 00¥'68 | LL|SESOLL | €L 861691 29 698'6LL
9G | 115’88y | 00L | 866'C9L | 02 | L¥0'68 |99 | 296°c0L | O¥ G91'Z6 1z ov.ov BuisnoH
0 6. 0 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 0 6. plelays eAlesd
14 zer'oe |0 0 0 0 0 |99 8 0LL'6L 6 15991 JuswuolIAUT g 8INYND
. 01529 |0 0 0 0 0 |00l 9l L22'9€ €l 6£9'GZ Japenp [lelay MaN
L L0S‘9 0 0 0 iz4 0 |zt L Zre's 14 Z16'C sjoeloid Jolepy g |eyde)
0 6.€ 0 0 0 L 0|0 0 0Ll 0 892 seolAIeg JuswdojeAsq J8yl0
€ €¥8'ze | 0 0 0 (0}% A EAYA) G Gse'zl 4 9eT'y juswdojereq AN
14 162Le | 0 0 0 G61 0 |89% 14 90.'v vl LZ¥'oz Jay10 - shemybiy
0 1162 0 0 0 0 0|0 0 0 Z 1162 (d17) ueld Hodsuel] 007 - skemybiH
:Jo Bunsisuod
aoe|d
0 £68°L 0 0 0 0 0 |0 0 0 L €68°L saIUNWWo9
6 9z8‘18 |0 0 0 891 ZL | ££6'8L €l 086°0€ Ll Sh.LE
0 9502 0 0 0 0 0 ]o 0 09/ L 962°L Jay10
6 0/2'6. |0 0 0 891 ZL | €£6'8L €l 022'0¢ 9l 6¥1'0€ swuwelbold s|ooyos
:Jo Bunsisuod
(4ddA9D) soiiwe @ sjdoad Buno, uaipiiyd
% A3 % A3 % A3 % A3 % A3 % A3 JDIAY3S / OIN041d0d
lejol ainjng 81/2102 21/9102 91/5102 SLIYL0T )

b

xipuaddy

ANNVHOO0™d TV1IdVO

TIONNOD ALID @3Id43HS

Page 33



€¢

001 L'6.8 001 0°€9l 00l 6°.2l 001 g9l 00l LG22 00} 8°661 [ejol ||eldAQ
1994 6°18¢ 72 0ecl €9 979 ¢} 2’68 €e ev. 14 6'L¢C suolnNqLIUoY dNUAASY
8 8L 8 L'el 9 8. 9 Lol L Az4 8 8'Gl syd19oay |ejided
14 G'6€ 0 co 0 €0 l L'l 9 8¢ClL cl S've suojnqLiuod
Gl 6°'GEl c 6'¢ 4 €¢ 44 €6e 8l Ly lC €'es sjuero
8¢ 6'G¥¢ 14 z'ee 6¢ 6'6¥ 9l 6'9¢ ce L'el L€ 8¢l Buimouiog [enuapnid
) 9y - R - - - - - - z oYy Buimo.iog
payuoddng Juswuianog

% w3z % w3 % w3y % w3z % w3z % w3z
lejol aining 8L/.10C 119102 9L/510¢ Slivioc ONIANN4 40 334N0S

Z xipuaddy

ONIANNd FNANVYOO0Yd TV1IdVO

Page 34



Appendix 3

CAPITAL PROGRAMME MONITORING AS AT 30th NOVEMBER
2014

Summary

At the end of November 2014, the end of year position forecasts a variance of
£15.7m (8%) below the approved Capital Programme. Project managers are
forecasting to deliver a capital programme of £189.4m. This has been reduced
by £12.5m from the previous forecast of £201.9m. The main reductions are in
the Housing Programme (£7.0m), Resources (£2.6m) and CYPF (£2.4m). The
reasons for these changes are discussed below.

The current forecast is predicated on an increase in the rate of spend - £109m
to be spent in the last four months of the year compared to £80m in the first
eight — and is dependent on key projects such as NRQ, Grey-to-Green,
Leisure and sport facilities, Don Valley School and site remediation delivering
to budget.

The Year to Date position shows spending to be £18.8m below the approved
programme profile. The programme has fallen less than £200k further behind
the budget in the month — the smallest variance seen to date. The level of
spend was in line with previous months and this may indicate that project
managers have at last forecast a robust monthly budget which mirrors the
planned physical delivery .

The year to date position and the forecast position are beginning to converge
(year to date spend at the end of November is £18.8m below budget and the
year-end forecast has increased to £15.7m below budget a difference of £3.1m
— the smallest to date.

The Finance report last month predicted an Outturn of around £175m and the
November results reinforce that view and that future forecasts will reflect the
actual physical delivery position.

Much of the change this month reflects work done by the Finance and Capital
Delivery Services to challenge forecast and remove optimistic assessments of
progress generally and on block allocations in particular.

Slippage in the programme is still present but this is less due to poor profiling
and more due to proactive work to manage costs. For example:

Page 35

24



(i) part of the underspend in the CYPF programme is due to challenging the
tender prices from the contractor. This has been made before building work
commences thus avoiding costly standing charges, re-works and variations
payable once the contractor starts on site; and

(i) reductions in the Housing programme reflect a conscious review of
potential projects awaiting development. This helps to inform the HRA of the
likely timing and scope of the call on resources.

This reflects how there is an improved understanding of the programme which
is starting to pay dividends.

The main changes in the Housing programme are £3.8 m re-profiling of
schemes to increase the stock of Council Housing, £1.8m re-profiling of HRA
funded block allocations and £0.7m lower applications for Housing Grants from
authorities outside the Sheffield City Council boundary.

Resources forecast has decreased by £2.6m primarily as a result of re-
evaluating the work that can be accomplished this year in the essential work to
make the Council’s buildings compliant with legislation and current building
standards.

The £2.4m reduction in the CYPF programme reflects delays in delivering
schemes at Norfolk Park School (£1.2m), additional pupil places at Tapton
School (£0.6m) and Grace Owen nursery at Park Hill (£0.4m). These
schemes will now slip into 2015-16.

Financials 2014/15

Portfolio Spend | Budget | Variance | Full Full Full Change | Change
to to Date | to date Year Year Year on last | on last
date forecast | Budget | Variance | Month | Forecast

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000

CYPF 15,173 | 18,193 (3,020) [ 30,183 | 35,415 (5,232) | (1,111) (2,417)

Place 14,438 | 21,581 (7,143) | 48,937 | 49,974 (1,037) 46 (365)

Housing 13,678 | 18,304 (4,626) [ 40,363 | 49,102 (8,739) | (6,722) (7,029)

Highways 13,765 | 16,682 (2,917) | 29,438 | 29,642 (204) (202) (202)

Communities | 1,144 1,514 (370) 1,840 1,893 (53) 296 66

Resources 2,467 3,142 (675) 5,757 6,187 (430) 1,334 (2,567)

Corporate 19,728 | 19,728 - 32,883 | 32,883 - - -

Grand Total | 80,392 | 99,144 | (18,751) | 189,402 | 205,096 | (15,694) | (6,358) | (12,515)

Page 36

25




Capital Programme 2014-15 2015-16 Future  Total

£m £m £m £m

Month 7 Approved

Budget 211.3 210.3 326.2 7478
Additions 0.6 1.0 0.0 1.6
Variations -1.7 -6.0 -14.8  -22.5
Slippage & Acceleration -5.0 5.0 0.0

Month 8 Approved

Budget

205.1 210.3 3115 726.9

The five year capital programme has decreased by a net £20.9m almost wholly due
to a re-appraisal of management charges on the Housing programme.

The key issues being:

The overspend on the BRT North due to the discovery of contaminated
land and an unchartered sewer. Officers are working with South Yorkshire
Passenger Transport Executive on a variety of alternative funding sources
which will mitigate the overspend ;

Despite being behind schedule at the end of November both Norfolk Park
School rebuild and the Additional Secondary School Places will deliver the
required capacity in time for the relevant academic years;

The acquisition of additional council housing stock is behind schedule due
to delays in identifying suitable properties, conveyancing process delays
and cheaper purchases but is expected to recover and spend the full
amount through buying more properties out of the underspend; and

Letting of the contracts for the remediation of the site of the former Don
Valley stadium as part of the plan to regenerate Attercliffe and Lower Don
valley.

Finance
November 2014

Page 37

26



Appendix 4

CAPITAL PROGRAMME: CORPORATE RESOURCE POOL

Overview

1.

The Council’'s Corporate Resource Pool (CRP) provides a flexible capital
resource pool to address key Member and Corporate capital priorities. Funding
comes mainly from capital receipts arising from the sale of Council land and
buildings plus other unrestricted capital income. The national programme of
expenditure reductions has increased the importance of this facility as central
government support has decreased.

In recent years officers have recommended that Members approve capital
expenditure commitments for no more than one year in advance because the
weak property market, and consequent low levels of capital receipts, put
considerable constraints on the CRP creating a net reduction in the level of the
pool year—on-year. Prior year commitments exceed the current annual level of
receipts leading to a year-on-year reduction of the value of the reserve.
Previously, CRP allocations had been set for three years forward to enable
services to plan capital investment on a medium term basis.

Capital Programme Group (CPG) has reviewed the current position and
recommends retaining the current policy in the face of the:

¢ declining level of the CRP;
¢ irregular flow of receipts from the disposals programme;

e need to maintain the Council’s infrastructure and provide for other
capital contingencies such as structural failures or uninsured losses
caused by natural disasters such as the 2007 floods.

The CRP is used to address funding issues that are not covered by mainstream
capital resources. There is still central government funding for some types of
capital projects and there are sources of external funding through grants e.g.

e Department of Education funding for educational buildings through
Capital Maintenance or Basic Needs Provision;

e Department of Health funding for social care;
e Department of Transport funding for transport infrastructure through

Local Transport Plan (LTP), Better Buses Funding initiative or The
Local Sustainable Transport Fund; and

Page 38

27



5.

6.

e The Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which funds a substantial part of
the housing programme and already accounts for almost 60% of the
current capital programme.

Investment Rules for use of the Capital Resource Pool
Capital Programme Group has developed a series of principles to test the
eligibility for CRP support for projects and these are set out below:

The project has no other available funding sources i.e. not from central
government, internal investment funds e.g. HRA, or other grant funding
bodies; and

is in line with corporate priorities; and

the project is necessary to make an asset compliant with legislation; or

the project has a robust business case which delivers financial savings or
significant improvements in performance; or

is a strategic project which requires cash flow support until a funding package
can be arranged. Funding for this type of project will be on an exceptional
basis taking into account the current level of unallocated cash within the CRP.
The project must be viable and capable of repaying the CRP within a
reasonable time, for example, by generating asset sales. If the project does
not proceed, any abortive project costs would have to be financed from the
sponsoring portfolio’s Revenue Budget.

Key Issues for the CRP

In managing the CRP, the Council faces a number of key issues in respect of
the demands placed upon the CRP and the likely level of future receipts:

e Declining level of Central government support as the period of austerity
continues which may require the authority to use its own resources to
fund essential infrastructure

e The need to maintain sufficient funds to match, at short notice, those
available from external funders like the European Union, Heritage
Lottery Fund, Sport England etc. in order to lever in funding to replace
that lost from Central Government

The Strategy for Managing the CRP

7.

The funding of the capital programme is managed by the Capital Programme
Group (CPG) comprising senior officers from the Council’s services. It makes
recommendations to Members through the monthly Finance Budget Monitoring
report.

Services are asked to propose projects which might use CRP funding. CPG
then reviews those projects against criteria such as the economic social benefit

Page 39

28



10.

of the project, the opportunity to use the CRP as “match” investment to win
additional external funding, and ease of delivering the project and its risk
profile. for

Following this financial planning exercise, CPG will make recommendations to
Members about those projects which offer best value and the extent and speed
to which they can be funded. Those projects will then be developed and come
forward for approval as part of the Council’s capital approval process.

The rate of approvals can be regulated so that funds are then released to
projects as capital receipts come in.

Demands on the CRP

11.

12.

In the exercise referred to above at paragraph 8, the requests from services for
CRP funding totalled just under £29m over the next five years. Given the
existing level of CRP funded commitments and the outlook on receipts, CPG
recommends allocating a further £6.6m to future projects.

This allocation is used for financial planning purposes only and members are
not required to approve any of the projected schemes outside the Capital
Approval process.

Receipts

13.

14.

The next three years should see a considerable inflow of capital receipts as the
Council’'s Asset Enhancement and Accommodation Efficiency programmes are
completed. Many of these sales will deliver receipts worth over £2.5m per site.
The precise timing of these receipts is difficult to predict being influenced by
local market and national macro-economic conditions. This uncertainty is on
top of the inherent risk in all property sales of buyers pulling out, procedural
difficulties, ground contamination, searches etc. Further reports will be
prepared for members as negotiations proceed.

The final value realised will also depend on the application of the Council’s
Affordable Housing policy. Experience to date has shown that this can lead to a
significant reduction in the forecast receipt.

Risks in the Programme

15.

Most of the specific risks arise from former capital schemes including:
e Uncompleted land transactions on the Inner Relief Road

e Unrealised land receipts on transactions related to regenerating the
Manor estate;

e Uncertainty over realising the projected receipts from the asset
enhancement and Accommodation Efficiency Strategy which are
dependent on a sustained economic recovery in the property market;
and

Page 40

29



e Potential delayed development of Broad Street development which will
fund a small part of the new Indoor Market cost.

16. Moreover there is a general risk of any approved project within the programme
overspending. Given the pressures on the Revenue Budget, the CRP will be
the last resort for covering overspends.

17. There are also a number of legacy issues relating to European funded projects
where the Council has been adjudged to be non-compliant with grant conditions
and suffered clawback.

Conclusion on the Funding of the CRP

18. Recognising the uncertainty over the future stream of capital receipts, officers
believe there is no argument to recommend to Members that the current policy
of approving CRP funds for the capital programme only 12 months ahead is
changed.

19. There is some improvement in the property market which should start to move
sites but the rate and scope of asset realisation is likely to be determined more
by the Council’s own policies and performance.

Page 41

30



Appendix 5

GLOSSARY OF TERMS and ABBREVIATIONS

Term Name Description
BBAF Better Buses Area | A fund to support the development of an improved bus
Fund service network.
BID Business A scheme in which Non Domestic ratepayers pay a
Improvement levy on the rateable values of their properties to fund
District additional services.
BRT Bus Rapid Transit | A major project to deliver dedicated road lanes for
North North buses between Sheffield and Rotherham.
CIL Community A levy on new development. The purpose of the CIL is
Infrastructure to contribute to the cost of infrastructure (roads,
Levy schools etc.) needed to support commercial and
residential development.
CPG Capital The management group within the Council which
Programme develops and recommends to Cabinet the Capital
Group Strategy for the Authority.
CPO Compulsory A statutory power to enable local authorities to
Purchase Order purchase land in order to facilitate developments.
DfE Department for The central government department administering the
Education national education policy.
DfT Department for The central government department administering the
Transport national transport policy.
ERDF | European European Community Funds available to finance key
Regional projects.
Development
Fund
HRA Housing Revenue | The specific Council fund where costs and income
Account associated with the provision of council housing are
collected. The fund provides a substantial contribution
to the refurbishment of council owned properties.
LEP Local Enterprise A body comprising Local Authority and local business
Partnership representatives which allocate capital funds to major
economic and infrastructure projects.
LSTF Local Sustainable | Introduced by Government to promote sustainable

Page 42

31




Transport Fund

transport interventions that support economic growth
whilst reducing carbon emissions.

LTP Local Transport The capital programme to develop and improve
Plan transport links across the county. Funded from central
government grant.
SCR Sheffield City A combination of local authorities (Barnsley,
Region Bassetlaw, Bolsover, Chesterfield, Derbyshire Dales,
Doncaster, North East Derbyshire, Rotherham and
Sheffield) which jointly develop strategic infrastructure
projects and economic policy within their combined
geographic boundaries.
SYITA | South Yorkshire Established in 2009 to take the lead in developing
Integrated transport policy across the county.
Transport
Authority
SYPTE | South Yorkshire The organisation that takes the lead to develop the
Passenger region’s transport network and operates some
Transport transport facilities.
Executive
TIF Tax Increment A scheme by which local authorities are given powers
Financing to borrow money to finance large scale infrastructure
projects. The interest charge and borrowed sum are
repaid using the additional local taxes created by the
increased economic activity.
uTC University Academies for 14 — 19 year olds offering vocational

Technical College

training and education.

Page 43

32




Appendix 6

The Housing Investment Programme 2015/16 - 2019/2020

1 Background

This report sets out the Council’s proposed investment in homes and
neighbourhoods across the city. This investment plays an important role in
contributing towards the delivery of the Council’s Corporate Plan priorities.

The investment within this report represents Housing and Neighbourhoods activity
within the city and is complemented by other investment and delivery activity,
detailed below.

The Housing Investment Programme helps to underpin and deliver some specific
elements contained within the Council’'s 10 year Housing Strategy and other related
strategies. This establishes three key objectives for housing in the City over the
period 2013 - 23. These are:

. Increase the supply of new homes in the city;
. Make best use of the city’s existing stock;
. Help younger, older and vulnerable people to live independently.

The activities contained within the appendices follow this format in order to clearly
set out how the Housing Investment Programme is contributing towards the
achievement of these objectives. As noted above, there are other investment
activities that are being delivered both by the Council and by other partners that will
deliver additional outcomes. Some of these sit outside the scope of this report.

This year’s proposed Housing Investment Programme totals £87.332m. The majority
of this investment (£82.159m) will be invested in council housing, as part of the self-
financing Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan 2015 — 16. This now

Page 44

33



includes a commitment to deliver 1,000 new council homes through new build and

acquisition by 2019/20.

Table 1 Split of Investment

The remaining £5.163m will be invested in
non-HRA activity, as detailed within this
report. The non-HRA activity remains a at
level which is small by comparison to the
overall programme and has not significantly
reduced from 2014/15 it remains low
compared with activity five years ago.(Table
2) A priority continues to be exploring

HRA / Non HRA Investment
2015/16 £91.165m
£5.163,
6%

B HRA
B Non HRA

£82.159
, 94%

alternative options for funding or service delivery within these areas.

Table 2: 2010 — 2016 HRA / Non Investment

Investment Split 2010/11 - 2015/16

120 e

100

80

£m

60
40
20

0

2010/11

2011/12

2012/13

2013/14

2014/15

2015/16

B Non HRA

34.362

6.438

5.374

3.891

7.495

5.163

B HRA

76.679

29.030

48.630

55.895

44.492

82.159

Page 45

34




Presently work is been done on the development of the Housing Delivery Investment
Plan. This plan sets the strategic framework and approach to how the council can
accelerate housing delivery across Sheffield on private and public owned sites. It is
supported by a detailed Delivery Plan, which will identify a variety of sites and will
inform the development of an Investment Prospectus aimed at the development
sector. In tandem with an ‘account management approach’ it will present a clear
offer to developers and investors and demonstrate that Sheffield is serious in its
ambition to delivery more homes.

Investment contained within this report such as the new build council homes
programme will assist in delivering new homes and contribute towards the delivery of
this plan.

Other elements of the plan will be brought forward for approval in 2015 — 16, and will
include New Homes Bonus revenue as well as capital approvals.

When the Housing Delivery Investment Plan has been developed individual projects
will be subject to the relevant approvals.

Page 46

35



2 Review of what has been achieved in 2014/15

Increase the supply of new homes in the city

Non HRA activity

e 26 properties completed at Park Hill by March 2015, a combination of 13
social rent, and 13 private rent
e Improvements at 4 district/local centres at Spital Hill, Darnall and Attercliffe

and Manor Top.

At Spital Hill the works to the Ellesmere Green were completed and an
opening event including a market was held to celebrate. The
community are hoping to organise another market for December.
Following the success of the shop front improvement scheme in
Darnall, another scheme has been developed for Spital which includes
80 properties. Work started on site in November and aims to complete
by May 2015.

In Darnall a pilot scheme was delivered for Shop front improvement
which included 67 properties, and plans were scoped for some public
realm improvements,

In Attercliffe, the Town Team which the Council helped set up, has
gone from strength to strength and is starting to organise and deliver its
own events including a Market as part of the Tour de France
celebrations and a Christmas market.

Manor Top has not as yet had improvements as this District Centre will
be subject to a far wider plan of which Centres work will be part. A
programme mandate has been approved by Great Place to Live
Programme Board to ensure a co-ordinated and joined up approach to
deliver major transformation.

e Outline planning application approved for around 100 new homes at
Abbeydale/Bannerdale site.

e Registered Providers delivered 550 new affordable homes in the city

e The Council has been named as the only authority in the region to have been
awarded “Vanguard” status for the Right to Build pilot scheme .The Council

Page 47

36



has identified 19 sites which are potentially suitable a number of sites that it
will be marketing for custom build in early 2015.

The Sheffield Housing Company passed the half way mark on the 305 homes
to be built in Phase 1 with 155 completed by November 2014.

The development at Norfolk Park will build 116 homes and the Parson Cross
development 142 homes by 2016. Development of the third site, a series of
infill plots in Shirecliffe, will see 47 homes built, which will be completed in
2015.

The Sheffield Housing Company has designed a further 6 sites that constitute
Phase 2 which will be submitted for planning approval early 2015. This work
will result in a doubling of the development activity by 2015

HRA activity

A contractor will be appointed and planning permission gained for the first 51
new build council houses.

225 long term empties were brought back into use between October 2013 and
October 2014.

Contract signed for the sale of the former King Ecgbert site, for new housing

HRA and Non HRA activity

8 households at Park Hill have been rehoused since January 2014.
150 residents have been rehoused from Arbourthorne Fields.
30 homes have been acquired as part of the Long Term Empty Purchase and

Repair Scheme. 1 general acquisition has been completed and 24 viable
acquisitions are being processed.

Making the best use of the city’s existing housing stock

HRA Activity

Over 2,300 council homes fitted with new efficient central heating systems.
Procurement of 5 contracts to deliver the future heating programme.

Page 48

37



e Carrying out essential Health & Safety improvements such as lift
maintenance, electrical upgrades and asbestos management.

e Continuation of the programme of fire safety improvements to low rise flats &
maisonettes to 3,962 homes.

e Start the programme to install fire sprinkler systems to “Ranch” type
properties.

e Continued on the programme to install individually metered communal heating
systems to a further 1,600 homes.

e Installed adaptations to over 400 homes to support people to continue to live
independently in their home. A new contract has also been procured for this
work.

e Completion of the refurbishment of Balfour House sheltered scheme.

e Procurement of work contracts to deliver the roofing programme. Flat roofing
began in October 2014 and Pitched roofing will start in the January 2015.

e Communal Area Investment consultation and approval of scope of works and
contract procurement

e (Garage audit and strategy produced to inform the future decisions and
investment.

e Scoping of the future priorities & programmes for kitchens, bathrooms,
windows & doors and a start on the contract procurement.

e Acquisition and refurbishment of 30 long term empty properties to be
transformed into council properties

Helping younger, older and vulnerable people live independently

Non HRA Activity
e 43 low income home owners assisted to improve their homes
HRA Activity

e Improved public access arrangements to meeting rooms to meet
requirements under the Equalities Act 2010 ( previously referred to as
DDA Act)

HRA and Non HRA Activity

o 891 homes both the council and private sector received adaptations to
enable people to remain in their homes, (388 Disabled Facility Grants and
503 Adaptations).

Page 49

38



3

The key targets for 2015/16

Increase the supply of new homes in the city £22.341m

Non HRA Activity

Complete Shop Front Improvement Scheme at Spital Hill

Assist Registered Provider, (RP), partners to deliver 225 new homes

Work with RP partners in the city to agree further bids to the AHP2
programme 2015/18.

Continuation of the Sheffield Housing Company developments at Norfolk
Park, Parson Cross and Shirecliffe.

Continue site preparation work on seven Sheffield Housing Company sites
across the city. This work will continue throughout 2014/15 which will result in
a doubling of the development activity by 2015.

HRA Activity

Rehouse 50 residents at Arbourthorne Fields Redevelopment Scheme.

Build 51 new council houses.

Market the Manor 8 site.

As the freeholder, work with developer to agree a new planning application at
Fox Hill and acquire 23 new homes

HRA & Non HRA Activity

Work is progressing on the development of the 10 year Housing Delivery
Investment Plan
Complete the rehousing of the remaining 6 residents at Park Hill

Page 50

39



Making the best use of the city’s existing housing stock £60.491m

HRA Activity

Installation of over 3,100 new central heating systems in Council homes
The delivery of over 8,000 new roofs.

Continue the installation of new heat meters.

Continue the programme of work to install fire safety improvements to low
raise flats and maisonettes.

Complete the final works included in the Environmental Programme
including Door Entry work.

Start the Low Rise Communal Area Programme.

Start of the future kitchen, bathrooms, windows & doors programme.
Complete adaptations work at homes that are identified as requiring work.
Refurbishment of community heating plant rooms and pipework.
Continuation of the demolition of houses on Arbourthorne & SWaN
estates.

Acquire 45 long term empty homes in the private sector over 3 years and
bring them into use as council houses at an affordable rent

Helping younger, older and vulnerable people live independently

£4.490m

Non HRA Activity

Implement improvement identified through the Right to Control pilot for the
Disabled Facilities Grants programme.

125 low income homes owners assisted to improve their homes.

Engage 10 GP practises in the case finding and referral of tenants who are
living in poor quality private rented homes that are impacting on their
health.

Reduce the exposure to hazards in the homes of 50 health vulnerable
(people with long term health conditions) living in private rented homes.
Make private sector homes safer by taking action including carrying out
works in default to deal with category 1 hazards or conditions prejudicial to
health in 450 homes.

Reduce the impact on neighbourhoods of empty homes by carrying out
enforcement works to repair or improving the appearance of 30 empty
homes.

Bring 8 long term empty homes back in to use by taking enforcement
action or using the threat of enforcement action

Page 51

40



4 The 2015/16 Housing Investment Programme

In total the council expects to invest £91.165m, (including slippage), through this
programme in 2015/16 as set out in Appendix 6b and 6¢. The source of these funds
is set out in Appendix 6a. This sum will increase as some projects will carry over
both funds and work commitments from 2014/15 into 2015/16; the level of slippage is
currently forecast to be in the region of £4.843m

Investment has been prioritised in line with the three key objectives outlined below
(Table 3):

Increase the supply of new homes in the city £22.341m
Making the best use of the city’s existing housing stock £60.491m

Helping younger, older and vulnerable people live independently £ 4.490m

TOTAL £87.322m

Table 3: Three Key Objectives

2015/16 Housing Investment Programme
£m

£4.490
£22.341

H Increase the supply of new
homes in the city

B Making the best use of the citys
existing housing stock

 Helping younger, older and
vulnerable people live
£60.491 indipendently

Page 52

41



As set out in last year’s Housing Investment Programme Cabinet

Report, there has been a significant reduction in the funding available for
regeneration and private sector housing interventions.

This limits the scope of activities that the council can undertake and has required a
change in the way the council operates, to see greater emphasis on working closely
with our partners to influence their investment decisions and deliver change and
investment. We are also utilising New Homes Bonus to deliver regeneration
outcomes and to increase the delivery of new homes.

It is therefore still necessary to make difficult choices about which activities will
continue to be funded with the reduced funds available, which activities will have to
be scaled back, and which can no longer be afforded.

5 Increase the supply of new homes in the city £22.234m

Introduction setting out HDIP and provision of new Council Homes

Housing regeneration and housing supply

The New Homes Bonus Scheme is now entering its fifth year, by the end of March
2015 the council will have received £16.316m of income of both capital and revenue
in the first four years, (the revenue element of New Homes Bonus is subject to
separate approval process). The scale of the income expected from this scheme can
only be estimated, as it depends on the numbers of new homes built, the number of
empty homes in the city and the number of properties demolished. The current
estimate, which is being reviewed and updated regularly, is a total of £33.335m
income over next five year period of the New Homes Bonus scheme.

The schemes which are funded / part funded from New Homes Bonus are spanning
various services and directorates and cover the following activities:-

e Chaucer Public Realm
e Successful Centres Programme
e Darnall Shop Frontages

Page 53

42



Spital Hill Shop Fronts

Grace Owen Nursery

Spital Hill Regeneration (Public Realm)
Spital Hill Regeneration (Public Art)
Spital Hill Ellesmere Green

Clay Wood Green Links

Park Hill Green Links

Green Spaces & Links unapplied balance (Castle College)
Castlegate SYPTE

Norton Aerodrome Purchase

Norfolk Park Land Acquisition
Arbourthorne RAL's

LTE Purchase and Repair

The council has approved the use of these resources for projects aimed at boosting
housing and economic growth. A strategy with a schedule of projects aimed at
delivering economic growth, bringing long-term vacant homes back into use,
supporting wider regeneration to improve the quality of life for residents in our
neighbourhoods and encourage private investment in building new homes is now in
place. So far £28.718m has been identified to a range of projects.

It should be noted that this report only contains £0.540m of New Homes Bonus, as
the remaining element is considered to be revenue and governed through a separate
process, approved by Cabinet.

At some point in the future, funds set aside for the New Homes Bonus by the
government will be fully committed. At this point the Government has said that it will
finance future NHB payments by top slicing council’s formula grant (General Fund).
Close scrutiny will be maintained to establish when any impact might be felt and to
prepare the council’s response in terms of priorities for investment at that time.

Furthermore the New Homes Bonus income is not guaranteed long term, and it
could be reviewed if there was to be a change of government in the next elections.

Page 54

43



The Sheffield Housing Company

The Sheffield Housing Company’s Phase 1 development which comprises 305 new
homes spread across three neighbourhoods is over 50% complete. The new homes
in Parson Cross, Shirecliffe and Norfolk Park are all selling well and the company
has supported 22 apprentices to date in addition to working with many local
businesses as part of their supply chain. Phase 1 is planned to be completed in
2016. By the end of 2014/15 the company will have submitted a further 5 planning
applications for approximately 550 new homes on 5 more sites across the city. This
will be Phase 2 and will see the company start to develop housing in Manor and Fir
Vale during the year.

In 2015/16 the council will continue to support the Sheffield Housing Company to
deliver homes and maximise its impact on the regeneration and economic growth of
the areas of the city in which it operates.

Investment in new affordable homes

The Homes and Communities Agency (HCA) provides funding for new affordable
housing through the Affordable Homes Programme (AHP) and the Affordable Homes
Guarantees Programme (AHGP).

Following the completion of the 2011/15 AHP, which delivered 640 new affordable
homes in the city, local Registered Providers (RPs) have secured approximately
£5.5m HCA grant funding from the first tranche of the 2015/18 Programme. This
should deliver 305 new homes and, together with RPs’ private funding, represents
approximately £37m of investment. Most of these schemes are expected to start on
site in 2015/16 and include:

Regeneration Schemes in Arbourthorne, Darnall, Manor and Manor Park
Sheffield Housing Company sites

Older persons’ housing at Shiregreen

Affordable housing in Beighton

Page 55

44



The City Council has secured £0.9m from the 2015/18 AHP to continue the existing
programme of purchase and repair of Long Term Empty Properties. The funding is
for 45 acquisitions, with 15 expected in 2015/16.

Local RPs also secured £7m funding from the AHGP 2014/17, which together with
RPs’ private funding represents approximately £27m of investment. This should see
223 new affordable homes completed in 2015/16. The schemes include:

e Regeneration schemes at Burngreave, Darnall and Wybourn
e Housing for older people at Jordanthorpe and Wisewood

The remaining funding from the 2015/18 AHP (approximately 50% of the total) is
now available to bid for through the HCA’s Continuous Market Engagement process.
Local RPs are formulating bids to take advantage of this funding including two for
Extra Care schemes — at Manor and Parson Cross.

Capital for Housing Improvement and Regeneration

The projects below are in the approved capital investment programme:

HRA Regeneration £1.257m

Park Hill

This enabled phase five, the final phase within Park Hill, to be declared. The
remaining tenants will be re-housed and the phase will be made secure. Phase’s
two to four will also continue to be made secure until the units are redeveloped.

Sweeny House

The Sweeney House Sheltered scheme is also programmed for demolition during
2015/16

Page 56

45



Arbourthorne Fields

The Arbourthorne Fields Project comprises a number of elements which include:

e The phased demolition of 246 non-traditional (“5M” type) properties

e The delivery of a cleared site to facilitate a more diverse housing tenure

¢ New build homes for affordable sale and rent through Sanctuary Housing
Association.

Tenants affected by demolition proposals did have first access to the new build
bungalow and flats and will have priority for the family homes, and all council and
housing association properties within Norfolk Park and Arbourthorne.

Programme Management £0.498m

The staffing and professional support services costs incurred in the planning,
management and delivery of the programme and fees payable to KAPs.

Essential Health and Safety £0.046m

This includes a budget for emergency demolition of houses and garages

Regeneration
£20.540m

Council Housing New Build

The council has set out its ambitions to deliver 1,000 new council houses over the
next 6 years. There will be a mix of acquisitions and new build funded by 30% RTB 1
for 1 receipts and 70% match funding, (predominantly HRA resources).Initially this

Page 57

46



will see the number of new build council homes rise from 90 to 120, but with the
intention of adding to this as more sites are identified.

Of the 120, 30 new Council Houses have been secured through the Sheffield
Housing Company with the remainder expected to be delivered in 2014 — 16. The
programme will allow the council to retain any additional receipts generated as a
result of the government’s ‘reinvigoration’ of the Right to Buy policy to increase the
stock in the city.

6 Making the best use of the city’s

existing housing stock £60.491m

The review of the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan

The Housing Investment Programme contained within this report sets-out the
investment in council homes over the coming year, as part of the 30 year self-
financing business plan. A separate report updating the HRA Business Plan for
2015/16 was agreed by Cabinet on 14™ January 2015. The plan incorporates
anticipated income and projected expenditure for 30 years and sets the long term
direction for council housing investment and services in Sheffield.

It is anticipated that by this date 93% of the council housing stock will continue to
meet the government decent homes standard. The future investment in the housing
stock will be undertaken on an elemental basis.

Area Investment Environmentals Programme £1.595m

This programme in 2015 /2016 will complete the environmental work agreed with
local communities that started as part of the Decent Homes programme in 2007/08.
The final work comprises the provision of door security systems to increase security
on estates and also the provision of 2 parking schemes.

Page 58

47



Heating & Insulation £9.276m

There are around 4,000 boilers remaining across the city that are classified as
obsolete and need replacing. The backlog of obsolete heating has been tackled
systematically since 2009 and 2015/16 should see the completion of the original
Obsolete Heating Programme. In 2015/16 £7.6m will be invested in renewing
Obsolete Heating systems. This will reduce the cost of responsive repair
breakdowns and benefit tenants by providing affordable warmth and tackling fuel
poverty. During 15/16 2,300 homes will benefit from the planned boiler replacement.
Following the completion of the Obsolete Programme the priority will be to ensure
that all heating systems that are older than 15 years are renewed and that this cycle
of replacement is maintained.

The breakdown element of the project includes renewal work to the social housing
stock for which the landlord has an obligation. The project will provide a responsive
service to customers who experience a boiler breakdown. This is more likely to be
on boilers that are old and obsolete but as this is on a responsive basis address lists
cannot be determined. The number of boiler breakdowns has reduced over the
previous year as a result of the planned Obsolete Programme therefore the budget
for 2015/16 has been reduced to £0.455m.

The metering element of this programme will provide approximately 6,000 homes in
the city who receive their heating through either the Veolia District Heating network
or through grouped heating / estate boiler plants with heat metering equipment. This
will allow tenants, leaseholders and freeholders with the opportunity to only pay for
the heat they use. This will be a big change for many households and a linked
programme of support and advice is being planned.

This programme follows major investments in the efficiency of the boiler plant rooms
and internal heating controls. As part of the future Green Deal/ ECO obligation there
may be an opportunity to lever in additional funding that could reduce the cost of the
meters to the Housing Investment programme.

Page 59

48



Community Heating £1.451m

A review of the underground District Heating and Community Heating distribution
system has taken place to assess its condition. This budget will be used to replace
underground distribution pipe-work that has reached the end of its useful life and
should avoid repeat breakdowns and revenue repairs costs whilst addressing
inefficient plant in boiler rooms. This budget will complement the heat metering
improvements mentioned above.

Essential Investment Work (Health & Safety) £3.528m

Minimising fire risk in blocks of flats, this has become a regular item of expenditure
following the fire at Lakanal House, Camberwell in London in July 2009. Risk
assessments for all archetypes in the city were carried out and a programme has

been underway for a number of years on low rise flats to deal with all identified risks

as part of an agreed plan with the South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Service. All
future improvements will be tackled based on level of risk. Other Health and Safety
work includes lift maintenance and replacement, electrical rewires, asbestos
management, and fire sprinkler systems, in a 5 year programme.

Page 60

49



Elementals Programme £35.296m

The following activity is included within the Elemental Programme:-

Kitchens, Bathrooms, Windows & Doors

This programme of work will start to address the backlog of homes that did not have
all elements of decent homes works or only had partial works completed. These
elemental programmes will be delivered separately and will be delivered in two
stages. The first stage will complete work to approximately 1,600 homes that had no
work carried out during the Decent Homes Programme. Stage 2 will complete
elemental work those homes that only had partial work completed during the Decent
Homes programme.

Communal Areas Investment

A programme of communal area refurbishment for low rise flats will commence on
site in 2015/16. This work is intended to complement the decent homes work in the
city and help improve the sustainability of blocks. We will do this by refurbishing all
blocks in the city to a consistent standard. Each block will where practicable have a
secure communal door or door entry system, double glazed windows in the
communal area, provide a well-lit communal area and floor finishes that are safe and
can be easily cleaned. The extent of work in each block will be determined through
site surveys in conjunction with local priorities. The project will make a start in
2014/15 but take a number of years to complete.

Electrics

Work is underway to develop the future strategy and approach for electrical
installations in the Council Housing stock. Many upgrades of systems were carried
out as part of the Decent Homes programme particularly around the
kitchen/bathrooms work however electrical installations to blocks and remaining
parts of properties have not been invested in. A programme needs to be brought
forward to deal with this backlog of work.

Roofs and Externals

This work includes replacement of flat and pitched roofs, rainwater goods and
external fascia’s/soffits in order to protect the substantial investment in the internal

Page 61

50



fabric that the Council has made in the stock since 2004/2005; it will also enhance
the appearance of neighbourhoods. Investment in the external fabric also provides
an opportunity to generate savings to the revenue repairs budget by a planned
programme of replacement rather than carrying out expensive individual responsive
repairs and external painting which involves the use of scaffolding equipment and
working at height. Work will begin in 2014/15 but the programme will be delivered
over 5 years.

Waste/Waste Management Improvements £1.023m

This project will include completing recycling facilities provision to blocks of flats in
the city which require specific facilities. It is also anticipated that some bin chute
closure work will be undertaken alongside this on some maisonette blocks and will
provide a complete waste disposal solution.

Photovoltaics £3.684m

Work will begin to install photovoltaic (PV) panels on around 4,000 council dwellings
as part of the roofing contract from 2015/16. This will reduce energy bills for these
homes by around £200 / year.

Garages £1.144m

Investment work will begin on garages and garage sites from 2015/16. Investment
of almost £4m is proposed over a 4 year period in 3402 garages. 1291 garages and
garages sites are not sustainable and it is proposed that these garages are
demolished. This will secure the viability of garages for the long term and may offer
sites for new council house development.

Programme Management& Capital Management Fee £3.373m

The staffing and professional support services costs incurred in the planning,
management and delivery of the programme.

Page 62

51



Empty Properties £0.120m

This project aims to get owners to bring their privately owned empty properties back
into use. This work is separate from but will complement the works carried out under
the New Homes Bonus outlined in section 6. The project aims to utilise all
enforcement tools available in order to deal with the negative aspects of empty
properties.

7 Helping younger, older and vulnerable people live
independently. £4.490m

The projects below are in the approved capital investment programme

Disabled Facilities Grants for Owner Occupiers £2.000m

This will be funded by £1.950m capital grant from Government through the Better
Care Fund. In previous years the council has contributed £0.500m of its own
resources. Due to the low level of capital receipts and other calls on this resource the
match funding the council has previously provided is no longer available at this level
but £0.050m has been identified as match funding. However this lower level of match
funding may result in households waiting longer for adaptations in their homes and a
waiting list may develop towards the latter part of the year. It could also have knock
on effect on increasing the financial pressure on local health services and adult
social care budgets — it is predicted that 370 disabled facility grants will be approved
in the 2014/15 period and that 60% (220) of these will be prioritised as urgent. Cases
are deemed urgent to avoid hospital admission. A small proportion of the total will be
approvals issued for people awaiting discharge from hospital. Failure to find
additional funding may see increased pressure on hospital and care services,
therefore the capital receipt position will be reviewed regularly to see if it becomes
possible to increase this budget during 2015/16.

Minor Works Grants £0.250m

This project helps the vulnerable elderly owner occupiers to remain safe, secure and
healthy in their homes by funding up to £2K of minor repairs per grant.
Approximately 125 homes will benefit for each year of £0.250m investment, relieving
pressure on home care services, hospitals and care homes

Page 63

52



Category 1 Hazards £0.050m

Work has commenced to integrate private rented standards into the referral
pathways of health and social care partners with the primary focus to address
Category 1 and 2 hazards in privately rented housing which is having a negative
impact on health. We are continuing to introduce a new level of risk stratification
linked to occupiers/tenants health in determining level of intervention and will target
action to address hazards impacting on health need and dependencies. Options for
direct referrals from GP practices are being explored to improve early intervention
from PHS where a patients’ health condition can be attributable to poor house
condition. This is an improved way of working and as such will not require a capital
budget to support its initiation. However, enhanced level of case referrals together
with statutory requirements for landlords to address Cat 1 and Cat 2 hazards may
lead to increased enforcement activity. Budget will need to be allocated to support
any default action required to address non-compliance. This budget is £0.050m.

Works In Default £0.080m

The Council is under a statutory duty to take action to deal with private rented
properties where there is a Cat 1 hazard or a statuary nuisance. We work with
landlords to seek compliance thorough cooperation however where necessary we do
have to resort to the service of enforcement notice. Where such notices have not
been complied with the Council needs to be in a position to enforce the terms of the
notice to protect the health and welfare of the tenants. The powers available to the
Council include the ability to carry out work in default or prosecute landlords or do
both. A capital budget is required in order to enable the carrying out of work in
default. The legislation provides for the cost to be recoverable from landlords and
the debt is registered as a local land charge until recovered.

Homes and Loans £0.247m

This service was set up by Sheffield during 2004 to offer affordable loans instead of
grants to financially vulnerable home owners living in non-decent accommodation. It
continues to provide this service to all local authorities in Yorkshire and the Humber
as well as Sheffield. Such loans require no monthly repayments and only become
due when the property changes hands. In addition, the service administers
Relocation and Empty Property loans using various funding sources, and also
provides Foster Care loans (conditionally non repayable) specifically for

Sheffield. The service continues to be funded entirely from non-council resources.

Page 64

53



Adaptations £1.863m

Since the start of the Decent Homes programme significant investment in Council
housing has taken place to address any household who are in need of adaptations to
allow independent living. The demand for adaptations is expected to increase given
the age profile of council tenancies across the city. The Decent Homes investment
does mean that many of the new bathrooms and adaptations will be able to help
supress costs and a number of initiatives to recycle stair lifts and ramps have been
implemented to reduce costs. The budget will meet the demand of new requests
and also refurbishment of older adaptions in 2015/16.

Page 65

54



Neighbourhoods Investment Programme 2015/16 to 2019/20

Appendix 6A

£000's £000's £000's £000's £000's
Resources for Investment in Council Housing 2015/16 2016/17 2017118 2018/19 2019/20
Major Repairs Reserve/Capital 70,159 87,393 68,207 58,800 63,810
Additional Borrowing 0 0 11,700 15,600 13,200
Other Capital Contribution 2,300 1,500 1,000 200 400
HRA RTB Receipts (LA Share) 9,700 9,700 5,300 3,300 2,100
[Sub Total HRA | 82,159 | 98,593 | 86,207 | 77,900 | 79,510 |
HRA Slippage 3,969 0 0 0 0
[Total HRA Resources [ 86,128 | 98,593 | 86,207 | 77,900 | 79,510 |
Resources for Other Investment

Sub-regional Loan Contributions 247 434 100 0 0
New Homes Bonus 540 499 0 0 0
Disabled Facilities Grants (Better Care Fund) 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,950 1,950
Capital Receipts 1,633 1,232 0 0 0
Capital Receipts - RTB Preserved 476 350 350 350 300
Capital Receipts - Land 118 214 214 200 396
Capital Receipts - RTB Preserved 200 200 200 126 295
Corporate Resource Pool 0 20 20 20 0
[Sub Total General Resources 5,164 | 4,899 | 2,834 | 2,646 | 2,941 |
Non HRA Slippage 873 75 0 0 0
[Total General Resources [ 6,037 | 4,974 | 2,834 | 2,646 | 2,941 |
| Grand Total Resources | 92165 103567| 89,041| 80546| 82,451]
Programme Total 92,165 103,567 89,041 80,546 82,451
Check Total 0 0 0 0 0

NB The Capital funding figures, including borrowing, are indicative at this stage. During 2015/16 the debt management
strategy will seek to maximise savings on interest rates which will be used to benefit the HRA funding and borrowing positions.

Page 66

55



99

0 0 0 0 0
[L6t'28 [ors'08 [170'68 [295°€01) [591°26
[LGv'28 [orS'08 [L70'68 [295°€0) [591°26

0 0 0 G/ £r8'y
[L6v'28 [9¥5'08 [170'68 [267°€01 |2ze .8
861°09 L€1'8S L¥Z'99 L0L'eL 16%'09
€19'/1 v6L L1 8618l ¥26'vC Ive'ce

085y GL9'y 965y 1987 06

02/6102 61/8102 81/L102 L1/9102 91/5102
$,0003 $,0003 $,0003 $,0003 S,0003

g9 xipuaddy

aoueuep
spuny
[ejol pueis
abeddys

lejol qng

)}203)s Buisnoy Bunsixa
s,A)19 3y} Jo asn 3saq ayen

Ao ayy ui
sawoy mau jo Ajddns ay} aseasou|

Appuapuadapui aal| 0} 9jdoad
a|gelaujnA pue Japjo ‘1abunoA BuidjaH

Buipuadg

02/610Z ©3 91/510Z dwweiBboid Juswysaau] spooyinoqybiaN

Page 67



1S

0 0 0 0 0
[te¥zs [ovso8 [L1¥0'68 [295°€0L [s91z6
[Lsves [ovs 08 [L¥0'68 [295°€01 [so1z6
0 0 0 (Y] €r8t
[Lsves [ovS 08 [1¥0'68 [z6v'c0L [zze28
0662 69G°'€ 695 695 128'€
0 0 z80°L 890°L vZ0°L
8v9' /L zse9l 9G6°LL oeL'€e 0¥5°02
00s‘2 00s°2 0092 €62 YA I
990t zev'y 0.8 8LZ'y ¥89°'
0 0 0 zs6 152°1L
000°8 §52'9 9809 220°LL 9/2'6
0 0 zoz'L zLLL PrLL
€9 9gL 0€s‘L 9.2 v.G'e
oLz'er 198t 886°L1 6.€61 962'5E
00Z°L 0 Zro'L 0z6 LGP L
0 0 0 0 S6S°L
00z'z sez'e aLL'e 102 €98°L

0z/6L02
S.0003

09 xipuaddy

61/8L02
S.0003

8L/LL02
S.0003

L1/9102
S.0003

91/S5102
S.0003

@oueuep
spung
lejol pueis
abeddls

lejol qns

juswabeuep swweiboad oul si1ayjo
|Jesodsiq a@)sepn

uoneiauabay

10309g IjeALd

solejjonoloyd

uoneiduabay ViH

BuneaH

sabeieg

fyayeg g yjyeoaH |enuassy
s|ejuawialgx

BunesaH AJUunwwon
S|EJUBWIUOIIAUT JUSWISIAU| BaIY

SS920Yy pue suonejdepy

Buipuadg

02/610Z 03 91/G10Z swweiBoid Juswisaau| spooyinoqybiaN

Page 68



Appendix 7
Transport Capital Programme 2015/16

The National Context

1. The LTP is a statutory document that sets out how transport will
help support the development of the Sheffield City Region (SCR) over the
next 15 years. It comprises a 15 year strategy document covering the
Sheffield City Region (2011-2026), together with a series of annual capital
programmes for South Yorkshire.

2. The LSTF programme will complete on 31 March 2015 and has assisted
economic growth by identifying the places where transport issues are causing
concerns; to facilitate travel to work in these places, where currently
connectivity is poor; and to increase the attractiveness and awareness of
more sustainable modes. It has targeted people as they make key life choices
(for example moving house, changing job, obtaining employment or training).
Guidance required the bid to be developed in partnership in order to have a
sustainable impact and to have partners from the public, private and voluntary
sectors.

3. The Better Buses Area Fund (BBAF) programme sets out specifically how
public transport will help support the economic development of South
Yorkshire over the next two years. The programme has three core elements -
Smart Ticketing; Smart Infrastructure; and Smart Management.

4, The BB2 capital programme is a five year national pilot initiative, and is at
various stages of development and delivery. The core elements are similar to
other LTP, LSTF and BBAF funded work, investing in improved infrastructure
to increase efficiency and reduce the cost of bus operations on a number of
key corridors (thereby reducing the need for Government direct grant
assistance to operators).

The Local Agenda

5. The funding streams combine to form the Council’s overall transport
programme. This programme will help deliver our “Vision for Excellent
Transport in Sheffield”, enabling people to make informed choices about the

Page 69

58



way they travel and helping transport contribute to the social, economic and
environmental improvements we want to happen in the city.

The transport programme will reinforce the “Excellent Transport” vision by
ensuring that transport contributes to achieving many of the outcomes in the
Council’'s Corporate Plan, and will help deliver the specific transport objectives
in the Corporate Plan, namely:

e Thriving neighbourhoods
e Sustainable and Safe transport
e Reducing carbon emissions

The transport programme also makes a significant contribution to the
Council’s new Public Health role, and links to ongoing “Olympic Legacy” work
via Sheffield’s National Centre for Sport and Exercise Medicine, by promoting
“Active Travel” (walking and cycling). During 2014, this element was boosted
by the successful staging of one of the stages of the Tour de France in
Sheffield.

Overview of the Programme

Each year, the Council delivers a programme of transport projects, funded by
external funds made available nationally. The Local Transport Plan (LTP) is
the main process used historically by Government and the Department for
Transport (DfT) for local authorities to set out their transport strategy and for
the nationwide allocation of funds for projects. Sheffield is part of the South
Yorkshire Local Transport Partnership, led by the South Yorkshire Integrated
Transport Authority (SYITA). Sheffield’s share of the LTP in 2015/16 is
expected to be around £2.6m

In recent years the Government has also provided other dedicated

funding streams for transport initiatives for authorities to bid for according to
specific guidelines. Local Sustainable Transport Fund (LSTF), Better Buses
Area Fund (BBAF) and Better Bus Area (BB2) resources are now both
available to the South Yorkshire Partnership following successful bids. “Pinch
Point” funding has been awarded to Sheffield City Council for improvements
to Penistone Road. Additional future funding opportunities include an
extension to LSTF, “Green / Cleaner” Buses and Cycling initiatives.10.

Page 70

59



10.

The “Better Buses Area Fund” completed in March 2014. A second “Better

Bus Area” fund (BB2) was awarded to the Sheffield Bus

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

Partnership in February 2013 in recognition of the ground-breaking Voluntary
Agreement between the principal bus operators, SYPTE and the City Council
that was launched in October 2012. This programme totals £18.3m spanning
a five year period - £6.7m revenue activities (coordinated by SYPTE) and
£11.6m capital investment. The Council is again responsible for leading on the
delivery of these capital projects on behalf of the Sheffield Bus Partnership.

“Pinch Point” funds are another government initiative aimed at tackling
congestion nationally. Sheffield submitted a bid for Pinch Point funding for
improvements to Penistone Road, based on previous work aimed at improving
access to employment sites along the Upper Don Valley. In May 2013, DfT
awarded £3.013m for this scheme, to be used by 31% March 2015.

The Council's formal Capital Approval process requires full Cabinet sign-

off for each funding stream programme as outlined above, and each scheme
within these. The lower flexibility of some of these funding streams, and their
mixed capital/revenue nature has created further complexity for delivery. This
paper therefore sets out current priorities for funding allocations prior to the
Council’s overall budgets being agreed early in the New Year. Once
developed the full programme will be taken through the Strategic Outcome
Board for approval to ensure that the proposed work delivers benefits which
are consistent with the Council’'s Corporate Plan.

As described above, the funding streams have different timescales of
availability. This means there is a need to ensure complete spend of BBAF
resources, followed by the great majority of LSTF funds, with the LTP
programme forming a “balance” for other funding (because we have more
local flexibility with this). The Pinch Point funds similarly must be expended by
the end of March 2015, requiring good progress on design this year. Several
schemes such as the Upper Don Valley cycle route involve a combination of
(for example) LSTF and LTP funds, and in these cases it is important to fully
use the LSTF funds first. The “use it or lose it” nature of other funds inevitably
raises the risk of LTP underspend whilst prioritising other funds. This is
currently the case with the 14/15 LTP programme.

The Council will work with the South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority
to make best use of the available funds.

Another very significant influence on timing is the Streets Ahead
programme. The Council’s contractor Amey is progressing an initial five-
year “core investment period” and most roads and footways in the city
will be improved during this time, the works being spread across 108
“zones” to facilitate this. Maximising opportunities to dovetail funding
(and therefore value for money) whilst minimising disruption is therefore
now central to the priorities for the Council’s overall transport capital

Page 71

60



16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

programme over the next five years.

Sheffield City region Investment Fund Programme (SCRIF)

The Council has agreed a deal with Central Government to devolve up to
£500m of investment funds previously controlled by central government.
Some of this will be available for transport schemes and can be used by the
city region to create significant infrastructure projects to improve connectivity
across South Yorkshire, North Derbyshire and North Nottinghamshire. The
bidding process for these funds is via the City Region.

The “Better Bus Area” (BB2) Programme

This is a similar programme to BBAF, except that it is specific to the Sheffield
District as “reward” for the launch of the ground-breaking Sheffield Bus
Partnership. It comprises a new five year capital and revenue programme, the
capital element of which increases year-on-year with revenue decreasing. The
capital programme will be to focus on further infrastructure projects that
improve the reliability, punctuality and cost-effectiveness of bus services,
hence contributing to passenger growth. The programme is coordinated by
the PTE but delivery of most of the infrastructure projects rests with SCC

The current proposals for next year would see £2.9m invested and indicative
allocations are given below:

Infrastructure investment again needs to tie into the Streets Ahead
programme to minimise disruption and maximise value-for money. Further
refinement of the programme will need to be agreed through the Bus
Agreement Partners initially and will then be reported to the Cabinet Member
and to SYITA as appropriate.

Penistone Road Pinch Point project

This is a specific project designed to tackle congestion problems at four key
junctions along Penistone Road, thereby improving access to key
employment and regeneration sites along the Upper Don Valley. In response
to the Council’s bid for funds, the DfT awarded £3.013m to be spent by March
2015. The project significantly overlaps the “BB2” Penistone Road proposals
and both are being designed to closely align with Streets Ahead core
maintenance work planned for 2015/16.

Page 72

61



21.

Proposed 2015/16 Local Transport Plan Programme

In the coming year, there will be a number of commitments for continuing
existing initiatives. These include:

o Accident reduction schemes - additional funding for more schemes to
improve road safety, from existing lists of known problem sites.

o 20mph speed limits outside schools and in residential areas —
implementing an agreed programme of 20mph areas where needed
across the city, plus associated parking restrictions such as zig-zags
outside school gates. The key priority remains on reducing child
casualties.

o The citywide programme of projects under the banner of “Enhancements
to the Streets Ahead Programme”, including pedestrian crossings, refuge
islands, school entrance schemes - focussed on the twenty zones where
Amey are programmed to be working next year;

o Another city-wide programme, again linked to Streets Ahead, of smaller
scale opportunities such as provision of dropped crossings, guard rails,
removal of old street clutter etc. — identified jointly with Amey for each
zone and with input from ward Councillors;

o Another city-wide programme, again linked to Streets Ahead, of small
scale cycling opportunities;

o Cycle Routes - continued progress on a programme of on-street facilities
and off-road “Green Routes”, encouraging more people to try different
ways of travelling to work and adopt healthier lifestyles whilst avoiding
congestion. The LTP investment also enables development work for
future bids for DfT funding such as “Cycle Ambition Grant”; “Cycling
Cities” etc.

o Sheffield Bus Agreement Work —the Council’s contribution to the Bus
Partnership focuses on dealing with bus hotspots and developing Key Bus
Routes to help prevent buses getting stuck in congestion and hence
improve reliability and increase patronage.

Page 73

62



o Traffic Management schemes — including small scale traffic signal
enhancements and camera enforcement schemes

o Public Rights of Way improvements — a rolling annual programme to
maintain local footpaths

Details of these schemes can be found in Appendices 9 and 10.

22.  Arising from the above and recognising the overall imperative to align the
Capital Programme as much possible with Amey’s “core” programme, the
following Programme Blocks are proposed:

Draft 2015/16 LTP Programme by Block Allocation £ million
Road Safety schemes 0.790
Action linked to “Streets Ahead” Programme 0.800
Action for Cyclists 0.450
Traffic management schemes 0.100
Public Transport measures 0.350
Public Rights of Way 0.120
Total (£2.6m provisionally available) 2.610

Detail project proposals will be brought forward for member approval via the
Programme Boards as part of the Council’s capital approval process.

Page 74



Appendix 8

Regeneration Programme

The National Context

1.

Over the last five years, central government policy on capital funding for
economic stimulation projects has changed. There has been a move towards
investments in projects which repay the original capital either through a direct
repayment of the loan or grant from the profits of the project, or higher business
rates for local authorities like the TIF schemes (see paragraph 89).

The government has sought to create regional funds (like the Local Growth
Fund) where cash allocations are made through the Local Enterprise
Partnerships (LEPs). The BRT North project has obtained a £2.3m loan to cash
flow the project until local building developments generate CIL earnings to repay
the loan.

In the future, government policy may further devolve funding for skills, transport
and regeneration projects to the local level.

The Local Agenda

4.

5.

6.

7.

In practice this means that there is a substantial fund known as the Sheffield City
Region Investment Fund (SCRIF) which is available to the leaders of the
Sheffield City Region (SCR) to allocate and transform the infrastructure and
economy of the SCR.

The Council has succeeded in securing [£2.3m] from SCRIF for the Grey-to-
Green project to improve the public realm in the West Bar area. Further bids will
be made for projects to develop a high quality campus around the University of
Sheffield, Fitzallan Square, Moorfoot and Castlegate.

The biggest scheme under the development is the New Retail Quarter (also
known as the new Development District). For the moment this is being wholly
funded by the Council as it acquires the necessary parcels of land and develops
the blue print for the scheme. This work will be completed to enable the process
for selecting the development partner of land. The options for structuring the
property deal are being finalised and will be presented to Cabinet. The potential
for the Council to work up the project to create an investment grade opportunity
and either seek a forward sale with interim funding or fund the scheme directly
are also being considered.

These schemes support the Council’s strategy to create a revitalised city centre
which will drive footfall and business creating jobs and grow the economy of the
city.

Page 75

64



8. The regeneration of the city extends beyond the city centre. In the Lower Don
Valley the Council has a number of initiatives aimed at regenerating the area.
This strategy is based upon securing the future of the established businesses
through better flood defences, creating new businesses by remediating the site
of the former Don Valley Stadium for use as an Advanced Well-being and
Research centre, and creating new homes and schools in the area to support the
growth of the community.

9. Other joint initiatives with Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council over
Sheffield — Rotherham Economic Corridor and national investment like the Tram-
Train project should further strengthen the development of the area.

10. Plans are also being drawn up to regenerate the Upper Don Valley and these will
be brought forward in due course.

The Capital Programme 2015-16

11. The key components of the 2015/16 Capital Programme include NRQ (£66m),
Grey to Green, demolition of Castle Market (£4m), DVS Remediation (£6.6m)
and £18m for the construction of the Lower Don Valley Flood defences.

12. These schemes have a relatively long time frame for delivery. Some benefits will
be seen immediately in 2015/16 but other schemes will continue to the end of
the decade.

The Expected Benefits
13. Through these works the Council aims to promote more economic activity,
create a better public realm and the lift overall national standing of the city.

Page 76

65



99

MNVYI9 1437 ATTVNOILNTLNI SI 39Vd SIHL

Page 77



19

286'Gel - 05€°8€ €08'92 9v6°L2 €88°CE ajelodio)
80.V€ - G61 891 90.LV 8€€'6e shemybiH :90e|d
11G'88¥ 86629l l¥0'68 195°€0l G91°C6 ov.L'0¥ awweiboid BuisnoH :eoe|d
A TAN - 79l 10G‘9 182°C. 6.6V 9%e|d
€681 - - - - €68°) salIuNWWon
9z8‘L8 - 891 €€6'8l 086°0¢ Sv.L'lLE 4dAD
6€5°01 - - - 695 696G $82IN0SdY
uInpnO
[ejoL -8L0¢ 810¢-210¢ £102-9102 910¢-G10¢ BN S000.3 Ul senjepA
aun)

6 Xipuaddy

Ol[0J110d Aq §399101d [eNdED 91/5 L0 JO Aewung

Page 78



89

8cl
80¢
€99
2474
Sly

Sy
144

8l

8G/L

0621

08¥y
00§’k

0S0°L
GL6°L

lejoL

2/\ 9bed

-8102

8102-2102

£102-9102

8yl

6

44
144

9102-5102

9
6
161

1%

26

680°L

L9¥
118

0L0'}
323

§102-¥102

el
09

L€G
62¢
S8l

999

104

€l
€86
oy
¥S2'L

y102-

BAIJOY - panolddy
VY - parosddy
QA - panolddy
QAIJOY - panolddy
BAIJOY - panolddy

pajsenbay |eaociddy
BAIJOY - panolddy

pajsenbay [eaoiddy

BAIOY - panolddy

pajsenbay |erociddy

QAOY - panoiddy
BAIJOY - panolddy
VY - paroiddy
QA0 - panolddy

snjejs [eaosddy

102 NOP
9102 dVIN
S10C 4V
S10C IV
9102 IV

SLoZ NNr
9102 IV

S10Z UV

§10C IV

§10Z VN

§10C IV
S102 IV
S102 IV
S102 VN

puz
108l01d

2102 AVIN
0102 ddv
010C ddv
€10C d4dv
€10C NP

SG10C Nvr
0102 ddv

7102 NN

1102 ddv

€102 NVI

€10C ddv
€102 ddv
1102 d3s
0102 ddv

Hels
108l01d

Jebpng :adA |

6102-G1.0z swweibolid [eyden seoinosay

SONIATING TTIN SISNOHTIIN - 65776
(€20000) INNVHOOH LNIFNSSISSY MSIHIMIS - ZLiv6
J1OAD 3417 AHITIVO WNINI TN - 95€26
OI4NOO3d ISNOH AGHOS - 52006
NOILVH1SIOIH AYV.LNNTOA - 02006
Y3H1Ov
(900000) YAA L33¥LS IAOT - #9006
SS300V a3149vSId 40 NOISIAO¥d - 900000
$S300V a3navsiav
(120000) ©a18 ALINNWINOD IJHOHLNIMOVH - 9106
SNOILYINO3Y TVLNIWNOYIANTv
JNIHIS TVLIdVI W48dv
JINIHOS TVLIdVO Nd®dv
AWIHIS TVLdVI N48dv
d3d AINOSVIA 8 400d TTVH NMOL - 10106
TIVH NMOLv
NOILYAOWWOJJV JIAIOv
NOILYAOWWNODJV JIAIDv
NOILYAOWWOJIV JIAIDv
OVNVIN S3ILITIOVH ANV ALY3dO¥dv
-€1 AON3IDI443 INVd '® ITOIHIA - 8€106
SADIAYIS LHOdSNVH Ly
S3JIAYIS LYOdSNVHLy
S3DINYIS LYOdSNVHLY
1YOdSNVHL
1HOdSNViL
SNVIHLSHIOM LI - L¥106
S1S0J AY3AITIA 1O3r0dd - 07106
AD3ILVYHLS WNODDV 3SNOH NIAMOH - €€1L06
1OO44O0N - 02106
ONITALSMHEOMY
S3IDN3IDI443 NODIV JDI440v
S3IDNIIDI443 WOIIV 3DI440v
NOILYAQOWINODJV 331440v
SNT0S OdNI ® 3ONVHD ssaNIsngd

$32¥N0S3Y

$000.3 ul senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluueld Josloid O} :obels

SUOISIS/\ [BA0IddY Pajsenbay 10 paAoiddy  :SNjelS [eAoiddy
IV :108l01d / Wun sseuisng

IV, ebeuepy

IV

IV«

IV«

IV«

IV :®dIMBS

S304NOS3Y :8jelopalig

IV, wwelbold

TDNNOD ALID @T3I443HS L0000 -Auedwod
‘Peso| :sneys  ‘pu3 YUOW L AON 3J9AD 18bpng - OvL :819AD

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 79



69

692'C 692C - SAIOY - panolddy | 910z ¥VIN| 2L0Z 03a FONVITdNOD ALI4VS B HLTVIH - €20000
JONVITdINOD AL3HVS B HLTVIH
JONVITdNOD AL3HVS B HLIVIH
JONVITdNOD AL34VS B HLIVIH

JONVITdNOD AL34VS B HLIVIH
051 0s1 - SAIOY - panoiddy | 9102 HVYIN| LLOZ ¥dY S3IWIHOS SOLS34ASY - 050000
S3INIHOS sols3asv
S3AWIHOS sOLs3asv
S3ANIHOS sOls3asv
S3IWIHOS sols3gasv
4 4 - SAIOY - panoiddy | 9102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdY AYVHEIT TVYLNID - 01,0000
00l 00l 0 SAIOY - panoiddy | L0z 03d| 2L0Z NV AdVHalT TIHNOOYY - ¢9¢v6
sV
s3AFvAdly
€ee [7k4 3} SAIOY - panoiddy | §L0Z HYIN| ZLOZ ¥dY 9078 ALINNNWOD YNVEOONIM 180 - L¥6.6
V3l Sa79 ALINNNINOD
V31 sa79 ALINNNINOD
o 62 9l 8Oy - panolddy| L0z NNI| €102 HdY (200000) ¥i-€1 DOYd LWLSIANI LNIWNLOTIV - #2006
ANIWLSIANI INFNLOTIVY
0s¢e 0s¢e SAIOY - panolddy | §L0Z ¥VIN| ¥L0Z O03a (€20000) V448 J00Y ® Y10 IYINSI T3 - 29006
001} 8901 [4 SAIOY - panoiddy | §L0Z LOO| €102 03a (€20000) SMHOM VH4 TIYNYVA-HLYOLINVLS - L2006
L9¢ 9€ L€€ SAIOY - panolddy | GL0Z HVIN| €L0Z NV SHHOM ADILVHLS 3dI4 - L1006
LNIWIOVNVIN ALIVS Fdldv
06¢ 06¢ SAIOY - panoiddy | GL0Z YVYIN| #L02 03A|  (12000D) TYMINIY J00H WNOD/AYYHEIT MYV - S¥106
Lee €ee 14 8oy - panoiddy| ¥L0z 03d| €102 03A (€00000) 43Q LONYLS-NYH NI 3TVvaAIEaY - v¥L06
oglL 9l 14 V - peroiddy | L0z O3A| ¥10Z NV (€20000) 400Y AYILINID AVOYH ALID - €7L06
881 L L1 2Oy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VYIN| €102 d3S (1L00000) 400¥ ISNOH A1II4AIEEY - Z¥L06
o€l 9 cL dAIOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 AVIN (€20000) 4004 WNISNIN ANVISI WVYHTIM - 6EL06
IVMANIY 400dv
0sv 14 - SAIOY - panoiddy | 9102 HVYIN| ZLOZ ¥dY a6po Alsuue ] /asnoypoon 180 - $90000
L9y 00C 99¢ pajsanbay [eaoiddy| 5102 YYIN| 0102 HdY (£00000) INNVHOOH ONIOVIENSTY HLVd - 66826
puz Heis
IejoL -810¢ 8102-2102 £10¢-910¢ 910¢-510C SlL0c-vL0C v10¢- sniejs [eroiddy 109l0id 109l01d|S000.3 Ul senieA

2/ 9bed 6102-G10z swweiboid [eyde) saoinosay

Page 80



0L

916G
1ze'0g
¥S0°'8L
avL'L
ve9'L

000°}L
988'L
0s0'8

1zL's
609'S

81§

62€'9L

0S0°}

62€9L

066
999°'L
0002

ol
0ce

e

L6e'z
00e'z

00l

916G
12€'0€
¥S0°'8L
avL'L
¥e9'L

ose'e
60€'c

8Ly

BAIJOY - panolddy
Ay - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
BAIJOY - panolddy
QAOY - panoiddy

BAIJOY - panolddy
pajsenbay |eaociddy
pajsanbay [eAciddy

QAOY - panoiddy

BAIJOY - panolddy

QA0 - panolddy

pajsenbay |eaociddy

pajsenbay |erociddy

L10C IV
€10¢ 03a
0L0¢ 100
0L0Z AON
010Z AON

9102 IV
9102 IV
910¢ 03a
S102 dVIN
G102 IV
¥102 034

§G10C IV

12102 IV

600¢ LOO
600C NP
800¢C Nvr
800¢ Nvr
8002 NvI

§G10C IV
102 NOP
102 NOP
€102 AON
2102 AON
2102 AON

800¢C Nvr

1102 ddv

HNHVd HLdId - 11906
SHHYOLS HOIH - L0906
SANVIMIA - S0906
FTIVAHIATIS - Y0906
390Idd d13I4MaAN - €0906
aAN4Tdv
aand3dv
I IAVMv
L1INN AY3AITEA TVLIdVYOv
dsav
(1L90000) NOISNILXT IOAIMEILHONO - 89206
(190000) NOISNVdX3 NVMOY - £9206
(190000) AMVINIYA ATTSNIL - 29206
(190000) (€) LSV HLHYON AMVINIYd M3N - 87206
(190000) AVIWHILYM - ANd M3N - €206
(190000) IJHOHLYINNIMS - AWd M3IN - LELO6
1N3INdOT3A3aAv
LN3INdOT3IAIAv
JNNVIO0Ud TVLIdVIv
JNNVIO0™d INITNIVINY
NOIS3A B ALITIAISY3 - 8,906
NOISN3LX3v
NOISN3LX3v
C HLMO¥9 NOILVINdOd AYVNIEdv
2 sUd - ymol udod - paaN oised - 190000
NOISN3LX3v
NOISN3LX3v
HLMO¥O NOLLVINdOd AdVINIMdv
L1INN AY3AITEA TVLIdVOv
NOISIAO¥d @33N JIsvav
adAd

lejoL

g/| abed

-8102

8102-2102

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

y102-

6102-G10Z dwweiboid [ended 4dAD

snjejs [eaosddy

puz
108l01d

Hels
108l01d

jobpng :edA |

$000.3 ul senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluueld Josloid O} :obels

SUOISIS/\ [BA0IddY Pajsenbay 10 paAoiddy  :SNjelS [eAoiddy

IV 1398l01d /)un ssauisng

IV, :iebeuepy

IV« ‘¥ 838G Jo uoisINg

IV, € 82IAISS Jo uoIsiAIg

IV T ®IINIBS JO UoISING

IV 1} ®DIAIBS JO UoISINg

IV, :®0INIBS

adAD :ejelopaig

IV, :dwuweiboid

TIONNOD ALID @13I1443HS 10000 ‘Auedwod

‘PeSOID 1SMEIS  ‘PU3 YIUO L AON BJ9AD 18bpNg - 0L :8[0AD

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 81



G/z abed

6102-G10Z dwweiboid [ended 4dAD

0L - 0L QAIOY - parouddy| |L0Z NNF| 0L0Z NVI SMOAVIN JLVOTIOH - LE£906
cLl - el QAOY - parolddy| 210z HVIN| 0L0Z NVI MHVd IOVLIYIH - 9€906
[4a4N" - [4a4N" BAOY - parolddy| 2102 YVIN| L1L0Z YdVY ai3I4LS3IM - G€906
¥52°C - ¥52°C Aoy - panoiddy| €102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z HdVY NOLdV.L - #€906
€Ge°L - €GE°L Aoy - panoiddy| ZLoz ¥VIN| LL0Z NN Av3IHMOAV3IN - £€906
€511 - €511 Aoy - panoiddy| €102 ¥VIN| LLOZ NNP (MO7) SaYVYMA3 ONIM - 26906
zeL'L - zeL'L aAoY - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| 0L0Z NN 1439903 ONIM - LE906
LU - LU aAjoY - panoiddy| 010z O3A| 0L0Z NN 3SNOH 3ANIH - 0£906
200} - £00°} SNV - panoiddy| €102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdVY 101 3TVA HI4 - 62906
z€e'e - z€e'e QAIOY - parolddy| €102 HVIN| 0102 HdV adi314S37003 - 82906
10Iv
10Iv
00T 143 989°C Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 01L0Z HdVY a1314avyd - 12906
oLL'6z - oLL'6z Aoy - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| 0L0Z NI IAOUO SHIAN - L1906
a’ing M3aNv
al1ng MaNv
181y 05k (o145 6% 8Lzl olo‘e AAOY - panoiddy| 8L0Z ¥dV| 8002 NVI M - SLSOO LOVHLNOD J0S - 6£906
888l 8L vz 14 8€C 65} SNV - panoiddy| 8102 HVIN| 0102 HVIN M - NV1d SSANISNG 437 - #1906
66L'¢ bLL 889'¢ SNV - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 0L0Z NI M - SLSOO "©0dd TYNYILNI O3S - £1906
S33dv
S33dv
€98'C 152 109 SAIY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 1102 YVYIN (AYVYANOD3S)S3I0OVd TidNd 1.aayV - 22906
Sov'El - Sov'El Aoy - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| LLOZ HVIN JNVA FHLON - 92906
291°SL Sl 2SL'SL aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z LOO JIONVYEO HLHOMSANVH - 52906
8.L'6L 6¢ 6€L'6L aAOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z AVIN A3TdI9 - Y2906
8€Z'6L - 8€Z'6L AAjOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥dV| 0102 HdY 39AIYgSMO0LS - £2906
209'€e - 209'€e AAJOY - panoiddy| #L0Z ¥VIN| 01L0Z HdY ALID - 22906
996'61 18 G886l QAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdV (dn) Sa¥vYMa3 ONIM - 02906
€6.'6L - €G/'6L QAOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 0102 HdV AOOMMYVd - 61906
9/9'v - 9/9'v BAOY - parolddy| 17102 VI 0L0Z DNV NOISNVdX3 FTVA dId - 81906
2/8'GL - 2/8'GL SNV - panoiddy| €102 HVIN| 01L0Z NI SLINIVS TV - 91906
Lr9'elL - Lr9'elL Aoy - panoiddy| 102 AVIN| 6002 AON NIFYO SIN3IF - 51906
gun43dv
IEENEER
¥ INVMv
€59°) - €59°L QAOY - panoiddy| 1102 43S | 8002 NI 101 - 4S89 - £5€06
10lv
10lv
9819 - 9819 BAOY - paroiddy| 110z 43S| 6002 LOO 3937700 LHO0ddNS ¥SM - 0L906
969°€L - 969°€L Aoy - panoiddy| |10z O3d| 0L0Z NI HLYON N3S - 80906
(472 - (472 AAoY - panoiddy| 0L0Z LOO| 800Z NVI HLNOS N3S - 90906
aling M3aNv
aling MaNv
[42:] - [42:] AAOY - panoiddy| LL0Z ¥VIN| 8002 NVI LM - S1SOJ LOVHLINOD O3S - 8€906
pASS - 1€ aAIoY - panoiddy| 0L0Z AON| 6002 1Nr LM - NV1d SSANISNE d37 - 20906
3 - 3 SNV - panoiddy| 0L0Z d3S| 6002 NI LM - S1SOD '90¥d TYNYILNI OIS - L0906
S33dv
S33dv
pu3z Hels
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 9102-6102 S102-¥102 7102~ snjejs |eroiddy 109l01d 109/01d|$000.3 Ul SaneA
ainjipuadx3y ainjipuadx3y

Page 82



¢l

Page 83

00€ 0S 0SZ aAjoY - panoiddy| G1L0Z 43S | 7102 ONY (090000) AYVINIMd Q¥VAAT IONIYd - #9206
S3IWIHOS VLAV dAD
S3INIHOS ¥3HLO dADv
SAWIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
SIWIHIS TVLIdVI dAD
S0S°L 00k SOVl Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z HdVY JAILVILINI SSTOJV STOOHOS - 8506
AN3INdINDAv
S3IWIHOS YIHLO dADv
SA33N TVYNOILYONA3 TVIO3dSv
YIANOISSININOD SNINATIHOv
L€z oL 44 SAIPRY - panoiddy| GLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z HdVY NOILVLNIWNITdI LSOd - 6706
EEDEEN M
g3N438v
JNNVYOO0YUd ANITINIVAv
6€L°C [ 199 Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z H¥VIN| 6002 HdVY dOd MOOYg ¥3TMO - 0£106
NOISNILX3v
NOISN3LX3v
JNNVHO0Ud TV.LIAVOI AUVININdY
1INN AY3AIT3A TVLIdYOv
060°} (€1) €0L'L SNV - panoiddy| L0z INF| ZL0Z NI (090000) INOHEAVYHLS- ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - LOYY6
o144 o144 - pajsenbay |eroiddy | GL0Z ONY| GLOZ NV (090000) ONILVIH - ANd AVIHNOITY - 99206
€9 €19 QAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 7102 UdV (090000) TVOINVHOIN - SINVANI ILVYOAAT - 85206
6.0'L G.S €05 QAOY - parolddy| 9102 HVIN| 7102 HdV (090000) SL/vL - ANNVHOOHD SHHOM V4 - L5206
004 004 OAIY - panoiddy| GLOZ NVI| 7102 YVYIN (090000) FBINH AN ATTHTVM - dINOd - 95206
602 861 L v - panoiddy | 5102 YVYIN| €102 AON (090000) OV1d3Y ¥4I TI09 AYVINIYd AT3IHYVO - ¥5206
LLL (r1) 981 aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 AVIN (090000) ONILYIH ALINNIWWOD M1O4HON - 05206
6. 8zy 19€ Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 HdVY (090000) INWVHOOH SYHOM V¥4 - €706
£6Y o i AAJOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 HdY (090000) AT3I4SdNIT - 0313 LNIVIN AN - Zv206
§G€ 9€ 61€ AAJOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 HdY (090000) AOOM3ISIM - 2373 LNIVIN AN - L7206
00¢ oL 062 QAIOY - parolddy| 1.0z O3A| 8002 NVl (090000) FHOWITTIIHL-LONYLS LNIVIN ANd - 0%206
829 T4 108 QAIOY - parolddy| 10z d3S| €102 UdV (090000) FHOWITIIHA-ONILY3H "LNIVIN ANd - 6€206
602 20l 109 V - panouddy | GLOZ UVIN| €102 ¥dVY (090000) AOOMMNYE - ONILYIH "LNIVIN ANd - 8€206
0S €€ YA SNV - paroiddy| 102 ¥dV| Z10Z d3S NOILOVYH1X3 NOAVd - LNIVIN dVO - 0206
128 (r1) L¥S Aoy - panoiddy| GLozZ ¥VIN| ZL0Z NP (090000) AWd WYTIVH - 0373 LNIVIN ANd - §2206
a4 4 LGy Vv - panoiddy | §L0Z HVYIN| €102 HVIN (090000) f L40¥O90A- ONILYIH LNIVIN AINd - 2206
€6 8 926 Aoy - panoiddy| GLOZ ¥VIN| ZL0Z NP (090000) INVT AIEEV- IRNH LNIVIN ANd - €2206
¥A4 °14 i V - paroiddy | $L0Z d3S| 2L0Z ¥dY (090000) SOM - "LNIVIN AWd - 22206
414 8z ey QAJOY - panoiddy| 1L0Z ¥VIN| ZL0Z HdY (090000) ©0¥d MOANIM - "LNIVIN ANd - 61206
886 (0) 886 SAIRY - panoiddy| ¥L0Z d3S| 2L0Z HdVY (090000) 1 3LYOAAT- ONILYIH "LNIVIN ANd - L1206
059 €Sl 16¥% OAIDY - paroiddy| GL0Z HVIN| L10Z AON (090000) NOIS3A 3B N'H - 60,06
eS| 19 L9%°) BAOY - parolddy| 102 UV LLOZ NP (090000) LOW NOILIANOD LNIVIN ANd - 26906
00t 14 74 Aoy - panoiddy| §Loz NNF| LLOZ NP (090000) SHHOM AONIODHINIT "LNIVIN AWNd - 16906
*i44 3 {344 Aoy - panoiddy| L0z NNF| LL0Z DNV (090000) SINOLSAIYD- OF 1T LNIVIN AN - 06906
€96 0 295 Vv - paroiddy | ¥10Z NNP| LLOZ ONY (090000) ¥ AVMATVH- ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - 68906
cey 0 34 Aoy - panoiddy| L0z NNF| LL0Z ONY (090000) NOLHOIFE- ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - 28906
qun43d8v
quN43dv
90¥d NOILVSILINOINd AYVININdY
JNIHOS TVLIdVO N48dv
JONVNILNIVIN TVLIdVOv
pu3z Hels
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 9102-6102 S102-¥102 7102~ snjejs |eroiddy 109l01d 109/01d|$000.3 Ul SaneA
ainjipuadx3y ainjipuadx3y

/¢ ebed 6102-5102 dwweiboid [eyded 4dAD



€L

20v'LL

LE0'Y

002’}

181°C

006

9leL

00v'L

0S5°}

092

2911

vse

8L0°}

€L

L0c

ovl

9LE"L

68z,

€82'¢

(447

985°C

pajsenbay [eaoiddy

Ay - panolddy

BAIOY - panolddy

palsenbay |eaociddy

pajsenbay |eaociddy

BAIOY - panolddy

pajsenbay |erociddy

Ay - panolddy

2102 ¥V

§10C dVIN

S102 ¥ddv

§10c 934

§G10C IV

S10Z ¥VIN

9102 IV

¥10¢ LOO

1102 ddVv

800¢C Nvr

1102 43S

SG10C Nvr

SG10C Nvr

0102 ¥dv

Loz anr

102 Nvr

¢1-1102 VLIdvO A3ATOA3A 4S - 81106
SIWIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
SIAWIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
FNNVIO0Ud INITNIVINY
L1INN AY3AIT3A TVLIdVOv
V1IdVO VINIWYEO4 a3ATOA3Av
FINLONYLSYHNI - L Hd 4S8 - 1906
FANLONYLSVHLNIv
SINIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
JANNVIO0Ud INITNIVIlY
L1INN AY3AIT3A TVLIdYOv
1dI303y VLIdVIv
JONVHNI ONISNOH ¥3dVv0 ¥31S04 - 0,06
JAVS OL LS3ANIv
JAVS OL 1S3ANIv
NOISN3LX3 - ISNOH 3INIATY - 02206
SHHOM AHANNS - ISNOH IANIATY - 69206
Y3HLOv
Y3IHLOv
SINIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
YINOISSININOD SNIHUATIHOV
AFTIVA 39H04 - SAVMHOIH - 25€06
FHNLONYLSVHANIv
SINIHOS ¥3HLO dADv
JNNVIO0Ud INIINIVINY
L1INN AY¥3AIT3A TVLIdVYOv
SANIHOS dAD ¥3HLOv
1INN 319ISS300V IOAI4ENHOHL - 57206
OaHV
SINIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
SINIHOS HIHLO dADv
HINOISSININOD SNIHATIHOv
NIHATIHO ¥O0d SMvVIHE LYOHSv
(SLNV4NI AO¥d WSH- NOISNVAX3 - §5206
N3HOLIMv
SINIHOS ¥3HLO dADv
SIINIHOS ¥IHLO dADv
AD31VYLS SSANISNgGv
SN3HOLIM TO0HOS

el

-810¢

810¢-210¢

£10¢-910¢

910¢-G10¢

S10¢-v10C

v10¢-

snjejs [eaoiddy

puz
108l01d

vels
108l01d

ainjpuadx3y

ainjipuadx3y

/v abed

6102-G10Z dwweiboid [ended 4dAD

S000.3 ul senjep

Page 84



17

Geo'L 86 145} 29 Aoy - panoiddy| 910z ¥VIN| €102 d3S (520000) VLAV 134 - 1206
¥3HLOv
SINIHOS ¥3HLO dADv
SAWIHIS ¥3HLO dADv
568 L€8 - 85 pajsanbay [eaoiddy| 9102 ¥dV | 2L0Z HVIN Ad3SHNN NIMO 3OVHO - 91206
$103rodd dNNd HLMO¥9 1vI01
a’ing MaNv
STOOHOS A3AN3LX3v
YU3INOISSININOD SNIHUATIHOvV
AY3ANIT3A VOOV

002'91 €EV'8 6018 651 SAIOY - panoiddy | GL0Z dIS| ¥L0Z NV (190000) TOOHOS AITIVA NOQ - L9206
cly SOy L SAIOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| ¥1L0Z NV (190000) N1X3 WOOHSSV10 OML - AFTONOT - €5206
8€C {414 9 V - panoiddy| GLOZ YYIN| ¥LOZ NV (090000) JOVIdIY ITNFON - NIIHO HIHLIN - 25206
6.€ 29¢ Ll SAIOY - panoiddy | ¥1.0Z AON| ¥L0Z NV (090000) 3OV1d3IY ITFON - IDAIYISHOOLS - 15206
098 A} € SAIOY - panoiddy | ¥1L0Z d3S| €102 AON (190000) NOISNVdX3 NYNOFAM - 67206
oLo'e 0ze'T 289 8 pajsanbay [eAoiddy| 9102 YVIN| €L0Z AON (190000) NOILYHNOIANODIY WY TIVH - L1206
GeL'e 20.'T Ley S 8Oy - panolddy| 9102 HVYIN| €102 AON (L90000) NOISNVdX3 SANOLSATHO - 91206
00€'2 iyl 879 6€C pajsenbay |eroiddy| 5LOZ ONV| €102 NN (190000) ATNEIY - AYVINIYd SSITAVITO - L£L06
169 8l €.5 SAIOY - panoiddy | ¥10Z INF| €102 AVIN (090000) FOV1d3™ ITNFON - ¥ve SYILNNH - 9€206
09y LEL°) TL9T 4 pajsanbay [enoiddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 HdY LNIWIOVIdII AW MHVd MTOJHON - ¥€206
[4°14 0 192 SAIOY - panoiddy | §L0Z ¥VIN| 2L0Z O3a 3OV1d3d NGO - ANd IMVLNI - €€L06
1424 6l S6¢€ V - panoiddy| GL0Z YYIN| €102 AVIN (190000) ANd 3DAMNEILHONO - 29dd - 51206
Lyy 09¢ 18 AAIOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| LL0Z O3a (190000) AWd TTIH SIHOY - 29dd - #1206
LN3IWdOT3AIAv
1N3INdOT3AIAv
JANNVIOO¥d TVLIdVIv

JNNVIOOYd INITNIVAY
INdOT3A3A ® ONINNVd ‘ALIOVdVIv

puz Heis
IejoL -8102 8102-2102 £10¢-910¢ 9102-5102 SlL0c-vL0C v10¢- sniejs [eroiddy 109l0id 109l01d|S000.3 Ul senieA

/g ebed 6102-5102 dwweiboid [eyded 4dAD

Page 85



72

§9€

8SY
80v'L
£V2'T

443

Ve
¥S0°'L
cLl

SLl
¥5€
0£0°C

QA0 - panolddy

QAOY - panoiddy
QAOY - panoiddy
QA0 - panolddy

SL0Z °VIN| €102 DNV

¥10c d3s| €loz Inr
S10Z dVIN| €102 AVIN
§10Z °VIN| 600C NVl

NOISNILX3 MIIA Q1FI4TINH - 15026

(€10000) LO3ro¥d dvS - 57026
(€10000) SNOILNTOS ONIMHOM FTFON - ¥0.6
(€10000) IUNLONYLSYYHANI LOI - LE0L6

S3INIHOS TVLIdVI 20
LNIWIOVNVIN INNVHOOUdv
SANIHOS TVLIdVO ¥3HLOv
S3ANIHOS TVLIdVI 20
S3IINIHOS TVLIdVO O0v

S30¥NOSIY ? IONVINHOSHId
S30UNOSTY ® IONVINHOSUAdv
S32UNOSIY B IONVINHOSHIdv
1¥0ddNs ? 38VIv
180ddNs ANV 3dvO

S3AILINNWNOD

lejoL

1/} ebed

-8102

8102-2102

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

y102-

6102-51.02 swweiboid [eyded sapunwiwiod

snjejs [eaosddy

pu3g Hels

woloid|  109[0id|S000,3 Ul SONjEA

|esodsiq 06 - buluue|d 108l0id 0} :abeis

SUOISIB/\ [BAOIddY Pa}sanbay Jo paAoiddy :Sniels [eAolddy
IV :108l01d / Wun sseuisng

IV, :lebeuepy

IV« ¥ ®JIAISS JO UOISINIQ

IV, € 9DIAISS JO UOIS|

IV, :Z ®9IAIBS JO UOIS|

IV} BOIAISS JO UO

IV 90198

SIILINNWNOD  :e1eI0aiQ

IV, dwuwelbold

TONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwod

jebpng :adAl  ‘paeso|] :snjelS  ‘pu3l YO L AON 8|9AD 18bpng - 0L :819AD

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 86



9/

20y

9611

00S

052

z8

e

Sl

[7A4

Wl's

898°'C

16
yee'e

0€6'8

oLl

291°)

344

ole
[4%
95y
19
9€6'C
00¢
0S

8

8ve

19¢

0cL

G86

Sl
[44c}

625'C

9Ly

26€

19

QA0 - panolddy

BAIJOY - panolddy

BAIJOY - paAolddy
pajsenbay [eaoiddy
BAIOY - panolddy
QA - panolddy
Y - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
BANDY - paroiddy

BAIOY - panolddy

BAIOY - panolddy

QA0 - panolddy

9102 10O

¥10C NOP

S102 IV
1102 03a
9102 °VIN
¥10C ¥dv
6102 IV
§G10C Nvr
¥10C NP

9102 03a

9102 IV

7102 dVIN

€102 Nvr

2L0C dvIN

6002 NVI
7102 ddv
¥10Z d3s
€Locnr
€Locnr
102 Nvr
6002 NVI

2L0Z Nvr

€102 ddv

1102 AON

SLIMUVIN HOONv
ONINOISSININOD3A LIMIVIN 3TLSVD - 21006
SNOILITON3Av
SNOLLITOW3Av
SNOILITON3Aav

JWIHIS TVLdVI N48dv
S103rodd dOrvia 8 v.Lldvo

N3O FH3NSITT T1IH VLIS - L00V6
$103rodd dNNd HLMO¥O V201
13341S advMa3 - 926
INIOSLITHLS 79 F44170H3LLY - 61076
NI3HO OL AFHO - €106
AQNLS AOOT4 MO0Hd ¥3.1¥0d - ¢L0v6
SMYOM 3ON3430 A0014 AQT - 0L0Y6
SHIOM TVIAIWIH MOOHE 431H0d - 6006
¢ ASYHd W1V3d JI7dNd HOOWN - #0076
S3AW3HIOS Add ¥3HLOv
S3WNIHOS Aad ¥3HLOv
1N3IWdOT3A3A aadv
NOILISINDJY ILdAS FLVOTTLSVYO - 80076
S123rodd aNNd HLMO¥O TvI01
S3WIHOS AAD ¥3HLOv
S3N3HOS AAD ¥3HLOv

LN3IWdOTIAIA ALIDv

JNOHAOHIY NOLHON H3NWHOAL - 8¥¥26
$103rodd aNNd HLMO¥O 1vI01
SANIHOS ONINNVd ¥3HLOv
SINIHOS ONINNV1d ¥3H1Ov
1dv 211and T1IH TVLIdS - 9516
SINIHOS ONINNV1d ¥IHLOv
SAWIHOS ONINNVd ¥3HL1Ov
JINIHOS ONINNVId TVLINIWNOHIANIv

ONINNVIdv
3S LNIWdOT3A3A ? NOILVHIANIOI Y

30Vd

lejoL

€/} abed

-8102

8102-2102

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

y102-

6102-G10z swweibold |eyde) ade|d

snjejs [eaosddy

puz
108l01d

Hels
108l01d

Jebpng :adA |

$000.3 ul senjep

|esodsiq 06 - buiuue|d 198loid 0| :8beis

SuOIsIa/\ [eAoiddy pajsenbay Jo paaoiddy  :sniels [erolddy
IV 1398l01d /)un ssauisng

IV, :labeuepy

IV«

IV«

IV«

IV«

IV :®dIMBS

30Vd :sjelopallg

IV, wwelbold

TDNNOD ALID @T3I443HS L0000 -Auedwod
‘Peso| :sneys  ‘pu3 YUOW L AON 3J9AD 18bpng - OvL :819AD

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 87



L1

€/z 9bed

6102-G10Z swwelboid [eyde) aoe|d

JANLTINDv
¥8L°C oll'z Y. aAoY - panoiddy| 910z ¥VIN| ¥10Z 03A (344ITONYOHL) HOLId V4 - 0LLY6
261’ olv'e z8 aAjoY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| ¥10Z 03a (S3AVYHD) HOLId V4 - 60116
0042 0zs'y €85 12 SAIRY - paroiddy| 9102 NVI| £L02 AON 103rodd HLYON 3AILOV - ¥OL Y6
SYe 6% 962 SAIPRY - panoiddy| ¥10Z ONY| 6002 NI (500000) NYNOEAOOM 40 ONINIJO-3H - 20Lv6
SYOLVHIdO ¥IHLIOv
619 059°¢ £¥5'C BAOY - paroiddy| 9102 YVIN| €102 O03d (S00000) NOILYIAQIWIY SAQ - L0L¥6
zee zee Aoy - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| €102 AON (500000) LNIWIONVHNI L3ISSV SAQ - 90L¥6
0007} 0009 000°8 Aoy - panoiddy| 910z ¥VIN| ¥1L0Z HdVY (500000) 1O3ro¥d WASON SIAVYHO - S0Lv6
€8 6 € Aoy - panoiddy| L0z NNI| €L0Z HdVY (500000) NOILITOW3A SAQ - LOLY6
S3AILIIOVH AISv
ADILVYHLS 1¥0dSv
S3ILIAILOY 3¥NSITTv
S1SNYL TVINLIND/LYOdS 40 WOIv
Z8 i} px4 BAIOY - parolddy| 10z d3S| 1102 LOO 7331S 40 NIWOM - LSvi6
00S g9 G8¢ oSt 9AOY - paroiddy| 210z d3S| 102 YVIN 103rodd 14V OIndnd AVMALYO LN - 0ZLy6
Y3HLOv
YIHLOv
Y3HLOv
LNINIOVNVIN IHLNID ALID
LNIWNONMIANT ® IHNLTINDV
681 45 or 4% [44% (¥4} SNV - panoiddy| 8L0Z HVIN| ¥L0Z HdVY S1S09 I0YNOS3Y - 2€006
00l 4 0§ yx4 QAIOY - parolddy| 9102 HVIN| 7102 UdV NOIS3A ® ALITEISY3L dIO - LE006
140ddNs ® L9Nv
NOILVSITVNOILVY L3SSVv
NOILVSITVNOILVY L3SSVv
SNV1d LNJWIOVNVIN LISSVv
LLL'9€ LLL'9E - aAOY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| ¥L0Z NI OuN - 820000
2SL'S 00k 0SYy 20z's Aoy - panoiddy| 91,0z 03A| L10Z HdVY OdO ¥3LYVYNO TIVLIY M3IN - 6€VY6
621'se 681'sc (474 AAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 LOO Z ¥3LYVYNO TIVLIY M3IN - 05076
{ILYVYNO VLI MIN
YILHVYNO 1VLIY M3IN
DuNv
YILHVND TVLIY MIAN
00¢ €L pxal SAIRY - panoiddy| G102 AVIN| €102 03a NOILVYOOT13d IOINYIS FTVAYINNYE - 62006
NOILVSITVNOILYY LISSVv
S3ION3IDI443 WOIIV JJ1440v
S3IONI1D1443 WOJIV ID1440v
NOILLVAOWIOOJV 301440v
g€l g€l aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| ¥LOZ NP AINIWNIONVHNI LISSV OSIN - 0£006
€L2') 0€ee 85/ 981 SAIRY - paroiddy| G102 LOO| 210z 03a JONVHNILISSY ITVAYIANNYE - 61006
51474 0S¢ 66 QAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| €102 NVI ININIONVHNI LISSY IdHOHLTMO - 91006
9/¢ 9/1 00} BAOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| €102 NVl INIWNIONVHNI LISSY AT13I4LS3IM - 51006
8 8 aAIoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| ¥1L0Z DNV (020000) LNIWIONVHNI SILIS WHVL - #1006
0.2 8¢ [44 Aoy - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| 2L0Z d3S|  (020000) FONVHNILISSY ITVAYINNVE-ATEEY - L1006
NOILVSITVNOILYY L3SSVv
NOLLVSITVNOILVY L3SSVv
NOILVSITVNOLLVY L3SSVv
1NINIONVHNI 13SSVv
26L'LL Lz VL) SAIRY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2102 HVIN ININDOTIAIA LIMEVIN M3IN - 20VP6
oL clb 86/ QAIOY - parolddy| G102 VN L10Z d3S AYUVA FOINE3S LIMHVIN HOOW - 92106
13INUVIN HOONv
SLINYVIN JOONv
puz Hels
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 9102-G102 §102-¥102 102~ snjejs |eroiddy 108l01d 10901 $000.3 U! SanjeA
ainjipuadx3y ainjipuadx3y

Page 88



8.

S56 6. 9/8 Aoy - panoiddy| €10z 03d| LL0Z 03a (12000D) IAOHO SNNV - 81106
1937
1937v
1931
1937
QT3I443HS IAILVIYD
509 8l 90S 18 QAIY - panoiddy| 9102 HVIN| 21L0Z d3S SHUNIT NIFHO AOOM AVIO - €9776
€6¢ oL [4:14 4] Aoy - panoiddy| L0z 03d| 2L0Z AON SYNITNIIHO TIH MHVd - L6€16
S123rodd aNNd HLMOYD V20T
[44 [44 Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 7102 AVIN 102 AYINIHOVIN SHIVd - Lv16
6l 6l aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| Y102 HVIN ONILHOIT d7314 SY39yVE - €276
[S14 92 V - panoiddy | GLOZ HVYIN| ¥L0Z d3S V3¥V NIIL NMOLT3dVHO - 2Lhv6
19 19 aAoY - panoiddy| 102 AON| €102 LOO Z ASVHd T1IH YNVEOONIM - 69176
[44 [44 V - panouddy| y10Z ONY| €102 d3S SINIWINOHdINI MHVd VISTIHO - 89¥16
44 44 8Oy - panoiddy| ¥1L02 AON| €L0Z NP 901S SANVTAOOM - 9916
Lol 4 00k QAIRY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVYIN| 0LOZ NP HA SAdig 404 LWOW ANV1dOOM - L6EYE
374 bl 6L V - panoiddy| GLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z 1Nr N3 SAyig Y04 LIWOW ANV1dOOM - 06€76
05 3 3 6 6¢ Aoy - panoiddy| 2102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z NI L ASVHd TTIH MNVEOONIM - LZL¥6
S9 29 € v - panoiddy | GLOZ HdV| €102 AON 3AvI9 LSV - Lve6
19 S€ 43 Aoy - panoiddy| L0z O3A| 6002 NI SMYVd AITIVA SIMO0YD - ZLve6
6¢ 6¢ Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z NNIF| 2L0Z DNV SLININIAOHANI MYV MNVE WVHONY - 0L¥E6
8¢ 4 9€ aAjoY - panoiddy| GLOZ ONV| €L0Z 1N HNOMYVd 3441T0AN3 - 80VE6
1¥8 4 S¥8 QAJOY - panoiddy| #L0Z ¥VIN| 8002 HdY ININIOVNVIN 331 - 89516
Jd0Iv
42 14 oLl OAIPRY - panoiddy| €102 LOO| LLOZ HdVY MOVHL FT1OAD SONIIdS AOOMMYHVd - 97616
V. 6¢ Se V - panoiddy| 9102 ¥dV| GL0Z 934 VYONIN ANNOYO N.OFH MOONYVHO - /8716
74 191 80¢ Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z 43S| ¥L0Z NP TTI4ANYT A3SOTO NOLHOIFE - S.¥6
[°14 14 Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 AON avod sv19N0a - LLv16
[o[*72 68¢€ 0€e L€ aAoY - panoiddy| 6102 ¥dV| €102 LOO SV IYNLYN NVEdN - 04176
8 0 8 pajsenbay |eroiddy| 710z O3A| LLOZ d3S V3™V LNOGVYMOIM SAT3I4 HONVI - €516
671 14 6 44 pajsenbay |eroiddy| GL0Z ¥dV| L10Z DNV AV1d ¥370A0L SA1314 HONVIA - 08€Y6
100°} 68 [4%) pajsenbay |eroiddy| 1,02 O3A| 6002 NI 1S HLNOS / MYVd AITIVA 4VIHS - 8.E¥6
€51 051 € SAIRY - paroiddy| 6002 O3A| 6002 NI 114 O¥d @1314MOT - 20¥E6
1N3INdOT3IAIAV
S123royd SMuVd ¥43HLOv
S103rodd SMYVd ¥3HLOv
962 L S8¢ Aoy - panoiddy| 102 TNF| ZL0Z HdVY ¥IATNIAVId AFTIVA NITIAIY - 266€6
JH0Iv
ZA ¥3ATINGAVY1dv
¥3IATNNGAVIdv
JAISAYLNNOD B SHAUVdv
005 005 SAIDY - panoiddy| GLOZ HVYIN| ¥L0Z HdVY LNIWHSIEYNSTY TVLIAVO WNIOAT - €0LY6
1SNYL STYLVIHL 43HSv
fer4% G6 0g ANV - paroiddy| £10Z NNF| +L0Z 1N SINIWAOHAINI AYITIVO LIS - 80L¥6
Y3HLOv
pu3g Hels
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 91025102 S102-¥102 102~ snjejs |eroiddy 108l01d 10901 $000.3 U! SanjeA

¢/¢ abed 6102-G102 swweiboid [eyded aoeid

Page 89



6.

8eY
20k
891°0L
0ee

00€
€229

9812l

e
[44c}
ze6'L
6lc
€5€'8Z
1€5°C

08

cee

o

0ol
09l
ove

000y

005

8l

0C

0s
08
ocl

000°C

0S¢

8l

0C

LeL'L

0s
08
ocl

000°C

0S¢

8l

0s
0s

L18°L

0s
08
(Yk4

000°C

0S¢

08¢
7k4
[4*1:44

€6
LL
Ly
0ol
189°'L
(44

6.

0g

1oL
€98'6

le
695

209'0L

14
YEL'L
6Ll
zL9'oL

868

pajsanbay |eroiddy
BAIOY - panoiddy
BAIJOY - panoiddy
pajsanbay |eroiddy
pajsanbay [eAoiddy

Aoy - panoiddy
Aoy - panoiddy

QAIJOY - panoiddy

pajsanbay |eroiddy
pajsanbay |eroiddy
pajsanbay |[eroiddy

BAIOY - panoiddy
pajsanbay |eroiddy
pajsanbay |eroiddy

Aoy - panoiddy

0€0¢ O03d| 600¢ Nvr
102 ONv| ¢€Loz Inr
910C dVIAN| 800Z NVl
G10C dVIN| 600 NVl
9102 dVIN| €L0C AON

G102 °VIN| ¥10C JVIN
8102 dVIN| €102 ddV

6102 dVIN| 800Z NvI

020C dVIN| ¥10C ddVY
020C dVIAl| 0L0C ddY
020C dVIANl| 800Z NVl
G10C dVIN| 600C ddY
020C dVIANl| 800Z NVl
020C dVIAN| 800Z NVl

7102 dVIN| 2102 LOO

JONVNILNIVIN IHVYNOS ¥IONVHO - 9€1.06
HL¥ONv
MHOM ONITEYNI ISNOH SSONO - ¥E7.6
S31IS a3¥VITO A3SITVELNID - LEL6
(HLS) T1IH M¥vd - 28226
3AIM ALIDv
SLNO¥YH dOHS TTIH TVLIdS - LEV.6
SLNOYH dOHS TIYNYVA - €€726
SIS INYOHLYNOGYY - 05€.6
S193royd aNN4 HLMO¥9 Tv¥201
NOILVHINIOTYY
49 S1S00 INIFWIDVYNYIN INNVHOOUd - 1Z€L6
S1S09 LNIWIOVNVIN INNVEOOHdv
LNIWIOVNVIN INNVIDONdv
LN3IdOT3A3A ® NOILVHIANIOIAv
IVLIdYO LNFNJOTIAIA B NIOTv
SAYVZVH 1O HSd - 880000
17NV43a NI SYHOM HSd - 06£26
S31143d0Yd ALJNT HSd - 222.6
AJAYNS NOILIANOD ISNOH - 00226
ANNVHEOO0Nd HSd AT3I44THS
SAYVANV.LS ONISNOH JLVAINdv
SINVYO g319vSIa - vEEL6
140ddNS ® 3V ALINNIWINODv
SINVHO MHOM HONIWN - €€€26
ANNVEOO0U HSd AT3I44THS
IVH @T131443HS - 82726
7VH SANNH A3ON34 ONIYy

1SAdv

LNINJOTIAIA ® NOILVHINIOTHv
LNIWLSIANI TVLIdVI HSdv
FNNVIO0Yd TVLIdVI ONISNOHv

30Vid

|ejoL

/1 obed

-810¢

810¢-L10C

£102-910C

910¢-G10C

§10¢-¥10C

¥10¢-

snjejs [enosddy

pu3 uels
joafoid 109[01d|S000,3 Ul SeNjeA

6102-G10Z awweiboid |eyde) BuisnoH

|lesodsiq 06 - Buluue|d 108foid Q) :ebeig

suoIsIa/\ [eaoiddy pajsanbay Jo panosddy :sniejs [eaosddy
IV, 308f01d / Jun ssauisng

IV, ebeuepy

IV, ¥ ©3IASS JO uoIsINg

IV, € ©2IAISS JO UoISINg

IV 1T ®IIAIBS Jo UOISINg

IV ) ®IAIBS Jo UoISINg

INNVHO0N TVLIdVO ONISNOHy @IAeS

30V1d :erelosuq

IV, owweliboid

TIONNOD ALID dT13I443HS 10000 Auedwod

‘pesolD snjeIS  ‘puz YIUOW ¥ AON 8|20 186png - Ol :810AD

L Jauige) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

19bpng :adA |

Page 90



08

Iz obed

6102-G10Z awweiboid |eyde) BuisnoH

MHOM LNIWLSIANI TVILNISSIv
z9e'e 00Z'L Tro'L 255 895 - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0Z0Z YVIN| +10Z ¥dVY (SHO) ONILY3H ALINNWNOD - 620000
1€9 sz 715 86 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 9102 YVIN| €L0Z AVIN (690000) SIWOOY LNVd - O1H WNOD - LL¥.6
805} 89¢ 8.6 174} 8¢ pajsenbay [eAouddy | £10Z ¥VIN| €102 ¥dV| (690000) TVMIANTY MHOMIdId - OLH WINOD - 91¥26
INNVEOO0Nd ONILYIHY
ONILV3H ALINNNINODv
LY'S Yov'e $95°) 111 90z pajsenbay [erouddy | 210z ¥VIN| LLOZ NN (570000) ONIYILIN - HA - L9626
z6v S0l 18¢ aAoY - panolddy | 8L0Z ¥VIN| 2102 ¥dY (690000) SNOILYTIVLSNI ONILYIH M3N - 90126
618'9 zev'y 0.2'L 026 6 0l 65 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| 2102 ¥dY (690000) (DSH TONNOD) NOILYINSNI - G016
0€¥'9 6Ly 6Ly 6Ly 6Ly 1911 €65'€ anoy - panolddy | 6102 ¥VIN| Z2L0Z ¥dY (690000) SNMOAMYIHE ONILYIH - ¥0v26
0£6'2S S0v'6 86€'Y vee'L yee'L 08L's 10561 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HVIN| 0L0Z UdV ONILY3H 31370S90 - /2126
JNNVYO0¥d ONILVIHY
NOILVINSNI '8 ONILVIHv
SIDIAYIS ONISNOHv
6SY'y €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ 52 anjoY - panoiddy | 6L0Z HVIN| 8002 NVI LINIWIOVNVIN INNVHOOHd VHH - 8Y€L6
S1S09D LNIWIDVNVIN INNVIOOUdv
ANIWIOVNVIN INAVEOONdy
ov¥'s8 82C've 816'LL 669'LC G6S'LL - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 6102 YVIN| 102 ¥dVY (SHD) ISVIHONI MOOLS - 280000
SLY'L 29z €269 062 anjoy - panoiddy| 910z ¥dV| ¥L0Z LOO| (290000) L ISVH OSH TIONNOD AiNg M3IN - 25526
616'€ 96.°L fordir4 pajsanbay [eAoiddy | 9102 ¥VIN| ¥10Z ¥dV| (L90000) D0¥d SNOILISINDIY OSH TIONNOD - 15526
005'€ 0L0°} 0EY'e pajsenbay [eAoiddy | GLOZ YVIN| €102 ¥dVY SNOILISINDOV SINOH M3N - OHS - 05526
3AIM ALIDv
8/€'C G 80} L1€ pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 YVIN| €102 ¥dVY HIVd3Y B ISYHOUNd S.3LT - 62126
S193royd aNnd HLMO¥S V201
ANWNVEOO0U FSVIHONI ¥OOLSv
AN3INJOTIAIA B NOILVHINIDTHY
ONISNOH TI9NNODv
ozl ozl anoY - panolddy | 910z ¥VIN| 102 ¥dY SONIT LSV3 HLYON d3 WINOD - G056
26 Lt St aAoY - panolddy | 910z ¥VIN| 102 UdY MHOA SNVOTd3 - ¥05.26
18 SL €2 €€ pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 UVIN| €102 ¥dV ONIT LSV3 HLYON d3 - 20526
002 SL 0S €5 [44 pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 2102 ¥VIN| €102 ¥dV TINH SNVYO1 d3 - L0G26
SNVO1 ALY3dO¥d ALdINTv
6zv 00} 0$ a2 9ez pajsanbay [eroiddy | £L0Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z UdV IVH NOID3Y 8NS AM - G¥04Aavyg - 55626
SNVO1 gHY 48 JUIHSHYOA LSTIMv
19 vez 052 002 126°} pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 8L0Z HUVIN| 800Z NVI IVH SNYO1 gHY - 05126
SNVO1 gHYv
00€ 0oL 00l 0oL - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 8L0Z YVIN| +10Z ¥dV (2)IvH SANN4 48 SIFTHAIM - 02526
9€9 09 661 118 pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z H¥dVY TVH NOID3Y €NS - SONIT AN - S6€.6
S8e'L 0sz 86€ 161 pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 UVIN| 800Z NVI IVH NOIDIYH 8NS ¥IFNNH - TINH - ¥6£L6
65 4% Ll anjoy - panoiddy | 910z ¥VIN| 0102 ¥dVY TVH NOIDIY NS AN - MHOA - €226
7IVH SANN4 @3ON34 SNy
SNVO1 8 SIWNOH
819 feieo €92 anjoy - panolddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| 8002 NVI Iv3A NIFYO - INAVHOOHd ADHINT - ZEVL6
HLNYVM 318Va¥044Vy
oLe Yrad €8 anoY - panolddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| ZL0Z AVIN FHIHSHHOA (HLNOS) NI d399N1d - 220€6
VILINI TYLNIWONNIANT ® ADYINIv
A9¥3N3 ITQVNIVLSNSy
ve 62 S anoY - panolddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| 0102 ¥dY ILINI SAILINNNINOD MHVd MTO4HON - G9€26
9/5'8 1€ 19¢ (7%} pajsenbay [eroiddy| GL0Z NOP| 8002 NVI NYMS - 0v€.6
HLNOSv
74 sz pajsenbay [eAoiddy | GLOZ UVIN| GLOZ NVI I4d IYLNIO TIVYNYVA - LLOY6
pu3 Ml
lejoL -810Z 8102-L102 1102-9102 9102-G102 GL0z-7102 102" snjejs [eaouddy|  josloid 108f01d|$000,3 Ul senfep
ainypuadx3y ainyipuadx3y

Page 91



/€ obed

6102-G10Z awweiboid |eyde) BuisnoH

veL'y Sv8 198°L ¥v0°L 89¢ pajsenbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z YVIN| €102 ¥dVY (690000) gYNATY SIS ANYOHLINOGHY - #1726
v6€ L Sl ¥9 pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 ¥VIN| 2L0Z NNP (690000) ANIIMS - €116
192 15/ ¥ anoy - panolddy | GLOZ YVIN| 2102 ¥dY (690000) ¥NO4TVE - 2L¥.6
06€'€ 201 913 98 9z8°c pejsanbay [eroiddy | £L0Z HVIN| 8002 HdV (HLS) WHS NOILITOW3Ad TIIHMYVd - #6226
v6Z'y 9€L 118 182'c pajsenbay [eroiddy | G102 LOO| 800Z NVI Q3ANOISSINNOD NVMS - 12226
HLNOSv
NOILYHINID Iy
1€5'92 086'G 066'C 066'C 0662 - 18G°LL pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| |10Z ¥dY Q3NOISSINNOD S334 LNOW H S - 8Y126
S$334 LINIWIDVNVIN HSv
ANIWIOVNVIN IWAVEOONdy
28Y'92 ovy'sL 025's 009'% 44 - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0202 ¥VIN| 102 ¥dVY (SHO) SO1¥.L0313 - 180000
SOI¥LOT 1Ay
ERIEREM
196'L€ z68'cl 08v'8 €22'6 1v€'9 sz pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| ¥L0Z ¥dV| SHOOd '8 SMOANIM'SINYHLYE ‘SNIHOLIM - 980000
SMOGNIM ‘SINOOYHLYE ‘SNIHOLMv
SMOGANIM ‘SNOOYHLYE ‘SNIHOLMv
896'2C 029'8 008'% 80L'Y S8y sz pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0Z0Z YVIN| 7102 AON S1V14 IS MOT-SVYIHY TYNNWNOD - L6
AINIWLSIANI VIHV TYNNININODv
LINIWLSIANI VIHV TYNNININODv
LG zee 1z 8L pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 9102 YVIN| €102 ONY SHO g¥N43Y ANV SHIVdIY S.3171- GEv/6
HLNOSv
ANNVEOO0U ISVIHONI ¥OOLSv
vLL'E 280°L 890°} ¥20°L - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 6102 YVIN| 102 ¥dY (SHO) LNIWIOVYNVIN FLSYM - £80000
(0] 9 - (37 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 9102 ¥VIN| ZL0Z d3S (690000) LNO-T10Y ONITOADTY - 60126
ANIWIOVNVIN TLSVMv
LNIWIADVYNVIN ILSVMv
819’y 0SZ'y 89¢ - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| +10Z ¥dY (SHO) SLNIW3T3 A3NNY1d ¥3HLO - 680000
STV.LNIINIT3 GINNVId ¥3HLOv
STVLNIWIT3 QINNVId ¥IHLOv
0£2'02 8618 0/8'¢ 8Iz'y ¥89'€ - pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0202 HVIN| §L0Z ¥dVY (SHO) SOIVLIOAOLOHd - 160000
SOIVLI1OAOLOHdv
502'2e G65'0C ozy'L ovL'y 0S - pajsenbay [eaoiddy | 0202 ¥VIN| 102 ¥dVY (SHO) STYNYILXT ® SH400Y - 080000
098'ZL [ Sl 196'¢ 106y 776'e €C BAY - panoddy| 6102 YVYIN| €102 ¥dVY (690000) ONIHO0Y LV - 61126
289'06 892'1C vSL'he 6.£'2C §5Z'8L 100'y 9z pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| €L0Z NP (690000) INIT400Y B ONIJO0Y AIHOLId - 8L¥.26
STVNYILXT B SH00¥v
STVNYILXT B S400¥v
68L°LS vee'y ze6'L €98'L €98°L 520 782'6€ pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 0Z0Z YVIN| 0L0Z ¥dV SNOILYLdVaAV - L¥L.6
SNOILVLdVAVy
z19 9L feloie] anjoy - panoiddy | £10Z ¥VIN| 800Z NVI TIVLSNI M3N S1417 Q3YILTFHS - LLEL6
vey'L [A%4 8L 8l ov 708 pajsenbay [eAoiddy | 6102 YVIN| 0L0Z ¥dVY NOOY 91N OL SSIOIV ONIAOYHNI - L9226
1¥0ddNS ® 3¥VO ALINNIWINODv
SS30IV B SNOILY.LAVAVy
¥8G°L €08 69/ 4} BAIY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| €L0Z TNr (690000) ALIAVS FdI4 - SHIINIYAS - 686.6
siz'e 08 zee zee zee 0s€ 8Ll pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z UVIN| |10Z ¥dY HIVd3Y ® IONVYNILNIVIN L1 - 89616
65y el 119 9.0°} 599 aAoY - panolddy | £10Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z ¥dY S4 - NOILYSITV.INIWLHVLINOD - 8£8.6
€19'c 8el g€l 8€ElL 8€lL 8GL €062 aAjoY - panolddy | 610Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z ¥dY 90¥d FONVHNIT ALIAVS B HLIVIH - ¥92.6
LNIWIONVHNIT ALIAVS B HLIVIHv
808°L z18 veS L9y - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z ¥VIN| G102 ¥dY (SHO) SLNIWLSIANI TVILNISST - $80000
95, 9 14 14 14 44 ferae] pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z ¥VIN| 8002 NVI SNOILITOWIA AONIDHINT - 69226
06€'L v8€e 2z €61 €61 8rZ 6519 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HVIN| 0L0Z HdV SAIAYNS SOLSIASY OWTY - LELLE
180ddNs ® F¥VI ALINNIWINODv
pu3 Ml
lejoL -810Z 8102-L102 1102-9102 9102-G102 GL0z-7102 102" snjejs [eaouddy|  josloid 108f01d|$000,3 Ul senfep
ainypuadx3y ainyipuadx3y

Page 92



Z8

816'e 20zt 2L yrLL - pajsanbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z HVIN| GLOZ HdV (SHO) SFOVHVYO - 060000
SIOVAUVOY
SIOVAVYOY
z8L'e 9. 90L'e aAdY - panoiddy | ¥10Z 03A| 10T ¥dV (S¥0000) MOOME AIFEY - LSIM HLNOS - L5616
€8 ) ag] aAdY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| 210Z ¥dV (S¥0000) ATF1dOD LSINYT HA - £0¥26
HLNOSv
G/8°01 09 G180l aAoY - panoddy | GL0Z YVIN| |10Z HdY (5¥0000) SSOHD NOSHYd M3N - HLYON - 22616
HLYONv
0LL o 799 ey - panoddy | GL0Z YVIN| 110Z HdV (5¥0000) SIILITILN - HA - 29626
£0v'T y9L 161 £70°C aAoY - panoddy | 9102 YVIN| 0102 HdV SIDYVHO ¥IATOHISYI1 - 99226
000°€} [<1:18 15 88.°C) pejsenbay [eroiddy | 910z ¥VIN| 8002 NVF ONIAAv10 ¥IAONVH ANV INMOASNYT - 6§26
6LE'eL 182 8€0°€L aAoY - panoddy | GL0Z YVIN| 8002 NV SYYOM OWTY MOYHVHS - 92126
0L¥'8 - 0.t'8 aAoY - panoddy | #7102 YVIN| 0102 HdV ONILVIH ALINNWNOD HQ - 71126
S3AIOH LNID3AAv
zL zL BAIY - panoiddy| GLOZ YVIN| €102 AON ALDO LSIM HLHON - T¥O01 ONIOD - 8E¥.26
yOL 19 L 9¢ BAIY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z ¥dY SYYOM AYLNT HOOA d3 - ££8.6
e 8 08 ¥Zl BAIY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z ¥dY A3Y¥3LT3HS d3 - 96826
€08'} 96 00l 909°L BAIY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z HdY 1S3IM HLNOS d3 - 66826
08v'l 0€s 184 2€5 BAIY - panoiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z HdY 1SV3 HLNOS d3 - ¥£8.6
188 98l (4% €8¢ BAIY - parouddy| 9102 ¥VIN| 0L0Z HdY IVHINIO d3 - ££826
G668 €1z (934 %4 aAjoY - panolddy | 910z ¥VIN| 0102 ¥dY 1S3 d3 - 2€8.6
€LLL 1oL 44 066 BAOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥VIN| 0102 ¥dY LSIM HLYON d3 - 1£826
199 9Ll 191 ag8e aAdY - panoiddy | 9102 ¥VIN| 0102 ¥dY V3YVY HLYON d3 - 06826
VILINI TVINIWNONYIANT ' AD¥IANIv
IVLNIWNONIANT LNIWLSIANI VIUVy
pu3 el
|ejoL 8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-6102 GL0Z-7102 102 snje)g [erouddy|  peloid|  joefoid|S000,3 ul senjep

Iy obed 6102-G10Z dwuweiboid [ende Buisnoq

Page 93



€8

99%
Sy.
0s
evLL

oLl

9/¢
(4¢]

66¢
§9¢€
¥Se
¥5€
8G€

18¢
S61
(447
6l

0¢
00€

991

002

cee

)

14

00l
i
8y

151

9€

1S
8G1

0ge
€91
€91
€91
29l

9
19
16
6l

0¢
00¢€

OAIDY - panoiddy| £10Z HVYIN| #7102 AVIN

162 v - penoiddy | 210z 34| €10z 034
z 2Ry - panoiddy | 210z 03A| €10z 03a
986 aARoY - panoiddy | 210z 034 | €102 03a
Gl 9AOY - panoiddy | GLOZ WVIN| ZL0Z NVF
P> pajsanbay [eroiddy | 2102 HVIN| €102 AON
298 aARY - penoiddy | GL0Z 03A| 6002 NVF
69 aAROY - panoiddy | 810z WVIN| €102 1NF
€02 aAROY - panoiddy | 102 WVIN| €102 HdY
161 9AOY - panoiddy | GLOZ WVIN| 7102 HdY
Z61 v - panoiddy | GLOZ WVIN| ¥10Z HdY
61 2AIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ HVIN| ¥10Z HdY
1z pajsenbay [erciddy| 6L0Z AON| ZL0Z NNP
8zl pajsenbay [erciddy | GLOZ WYIN| €102 1OO

AAIOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥VIN| €102 O3a
SAIOY - panolddy | #L0Z YVIN| LL0Z d3S

OAIDY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| ¥L0Z HdVY
dAIOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| ¥1L0Z HdVY

JOVMOVd FHINIO ALIO 2dd - €L1€6
¥EX $837av3TO AT3I443IHS 2dg - ¢L1LE6
84 ¢ A131443HS HLYON ¢dg - LLLE6
89X a4 13144931S3HO ¢g9 - 0L LE6
(Tv0011) 1HOdSNVYL 2I18Ndv
s3sng ¥3all3gy
s3asng ¥3all3gy
(290000) SIAVYOLN YITTOHLNOD Ol44VYL - 98626
31N0Y¥ LIVINS avod 11vs31003v
LYOdSNVYL J178Nd J193LVHLSY
(3LNOY FTOAD) MNITNOA F1LLIT - €1626
31N0Y ITOAD AFTIVA NINEGMOVIE - €0L06
ONITOAD JI93LVHLSY
370AD A31V13d AVIHY S13341S - 0/€€6
S3ILINNLHOddO dVIHY S13341S - 05€€6
449HS MS SddO AV3IHV S1334d1S - 90L€6
443HS MN SddO AV3HY S13341S - 501€6
443HS 3S SddO AV3IHY S13341S - ¥0L€6
NIWIOVNVIN ANV LNINJOTIAIA d1Lv
LNINIOHOLANT ONIMEVd ALDD - 88616
ININDINOT LNIWIDHOSNT ONIMYVd - 098€6
(00S3L) TIH TVLIdS - ¥€926
ONINOIS ADH 344IT0¥3LLY - 80206
SAVMHOIH B LHOdSNVYL TVHINIOv
SAVMHOIH 8 LH4OdSNVYL TVHINIOv
SAVMHOIH 8 LYOdSNVYL TVHINIOV
SdVllv
SHIOM dNOD AVIHY S1IATHLS - €796
SHIOM ONINFHLONIHLS 390149 - 2926
SAVMHOIH TVY3INIO
FONVNILNIVIN SAVMHOIHv
JONVNILNIVIN SAVMHOIHv
ALN3ITO AVIHVY S133¥1Sv
SAVMHOIH 8 LYOdSNVY Ly

30vid

lejoL

€/} abed

-8102

8102-2102

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

pu3z Hels
v102- snjejs [eaosddy 108l01d 108l01d

$000.3 ul senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluueld Josloid O} :obels

SUOISIS/\ [BA0IddY Pajsenbay 10 paAoiddy  :SNjelS [eAoiddy
IV :108l01d / Wun sseuisng

IV, ebeuepy

IV

IV«

IV«

IV« I

SAVMHOIH 8 LHOdSNVYYLy :®0IAI8S

30Vd :sjelopallg

IV, wwelbold

TDNNOD ALID @T3I443HS L0000 -Auedwod

yebpng :8dA]  'peso|D 'SMEIS  ‘Pu3 YIUO L AON BJAD 18bpng - 0L :8[0AD

6102-G10z swweibold |eyde) skemybiH podsues |

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 94



¥8

€/z 9bed

6102-G10z swweibold |eyde) skemybiH podsues |

685 S6L 20€ €0€ ozv'L 69¢ AAIoY - panoiddy| 8L0Z ¥VINI| LLOZ NN AININIIYOV SNQ 296N1 - Sviv6
S3AILVILINI ¥43H10 d1v
SNO3ANVIIIOSIAY
9 8l 14 QAIOY - parolddy| #10Z d3S| €102 NVl JNFHOS MHVd ¥3d dSOH N3O HLHON - v¥Li6
SIWIHIS ONIMYV LINYIdv
(Iv201) NOILSIONODV
§SS L1 ejoid Aoy - panoiddy| £L0Z LOO| 0L0Z NI 1SV3 - SSV ALINNWINOD - 71226
1svav
d17 S3AMAGNISSY ALINNININODv
601 S 0L aAjoY - panoiddy| €102 LOO| Z2L0Z LOO (3LNOY ONIY FTOAD)AVM ¥IAONVH - 2.826
12y VA4 08z AAjoY - panoiddy| GLOZ TNF| 8002 NI YIHLMOT-AISIAIT ‘Y INOLSINAJ - Lv226
NV1d NOILOV ONITOADv
34 6EL 4 BAOY - parolddy| 8102 HVIN| €102 LOO ALITIGISSIOIV MS - £€50€6
44 8cl € Aoy - panoiddy| 810z ¥VIN| €L0Z LOO ALITIFISS3ODV 3S - 250€6
Sl Sl Aoy - panoiddy| 210z ¥VIN| ¥1L0Z NN ALITIFISSIOOV MN - L50€6
88 S8 € aAoY - panoiddy| 810z ¥VIN| €L0Z LOO ALITIFISSIOOV 3N - 050€6
0€ 14 S Aoy - panoiddy| ¥10z O3d| €102 43S ALIIGISS3OOV 90V INOZ - 6¥0£6
691 Sl Sl Aoy - panoiddy| ¥10z O3d| €102 43S ALIIGISS3OOV 80V AINOZ - 8¥0€6
26 3 06 AAjOY - panoiddy| 102 ¥dV | €102 UdY LIV 3NOZ - 5¥0€6
oy € 1€ SAIRY - panoiddy| ¥L0Z d3S| €L0C HdVY S0V INOZ - ¥10€6
SININIONVHNI AVIHV S13341S
Lol 8l 8 QAIOY - parolddy| €102 LOO| 8002 NVl SININIAOHdNI MNVY IXVL - S60€6
14 14 BAIOY - parolddy| GL0Z ¥dY| ¥10Z NP S3NIT MOTIIA 379N0A - S1626
SAVMHOIH 8 LYOdSNVYL TVHINIOv
0L 2z 905 pajsenbay |eroiddy| 9102 ¥VIN| L10Z HdVY AVM 40 S1HOIY OI79Nnd - 29916
AVM 40 S1HOIN J2IMandv
ALITGISSIOOVY
8L orlL 144 QAJOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| ZL0Z HdY JAV HLHOMSAHOM TOOHIS H3ONVHO - LSEE6
S3IWIHOS ALI4VS TOOHISY
€L, ole €9 QAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 2102 HdV (290000) ANOZ HANOZ IAIMALIO - 8616
8.2 0L 802 QAOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 7102 UdV AQNLS WTVO 44vdL SAILVAONNI - 0L6€6
1G¢ 9€L X449 BAIOY - parolddy| 17102 HVIN| 2102 YdY (290000) M3IINTY ¥V3 10 33X TOOHIS - Z2€9€6
20L 20l pajsenbay |eroiddy| $Z0Z ¥VIN| ¥10Z HdV (290000) M¥HYOMLIN SILNOY NI - ¥1626
ONINTVD J144VdL JAILVAONNIv
ove 0€ oLe Aoy - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| L10Z HdVY NOILITdNOD FNIHOS B SLIANV SY - 8EY6
S3IWIHOS NOILONAIY ¥IDNVAv
290°} 991 968 AAOY - panoiddy| L0z ¥VIN| ZL0Z HdY S3AWIHOS SONIAVS LNIAIDDV - 69226
S3IWIHOS ONIAVS LNIAIDIVv
AL34VS avOodv
NV1d SNVYL TvIO01 A131443HSv
G6 (44 €L QAOY - panolddy| G102 VN LL0Z AON ONIMHEVd FTOAD d17-61EE6
NV1d NOILOV ONITOADv
SAvoy ¥34vSy
0S5} 4% A Aoy - panoiddy| ¥10Z 43S| 2Loz 1N MNIT ITOAD ATHIAVM-HLHYOMSANVH - #9€€6
6y 08¢ 65 aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| 2L0Z AON 31LNOY ITOAD AFTIVA NOQ 4IMOT - €0626
NV1d NOILOV ONITOADv
3417 40 ALITVNOv
9ee 6l 8lLe QAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| L10Z d3S AJA ® NdO HdNV SLIAS - 95€€6
S1IAS
NVIN YML3N 8 NOILSIONOIv
SINIHIOS d17 3AIMALNNODV
LE0'E €96°C 89 Aoy - panoiddy| L0z 03d| €402 AON LNIOd HONId @Y INOLSINId - 9L 1€6
¥20°} 700°} (14 Aoy - panoiddy| 210z O3d| €102 03A ¥EM AVOY INOLSINId 299 - 116
pu3 Heis
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 9102-6102 S102-¥102 7102~ snjejs |eroiddy 109l01d 109/01d|$000.3 Ul SaneA
ainjipuadxgy ainjipuadxgy

Page 95



g8

Page 96

28Y'LS - S61 89% 90L'y 8€€'6C v.L2'9L lejol
02 S/ 0€ aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥VIN| ZL0Z DNV HOLOINNODFOr 39Aldg NITVIN - 6566
(4157) ANN4 SNVYL LSNS 20Tv
(41S7) ANN4 SNVYL 1SNS 201v
oel 6 [34) QAIOY - parolddy| 10z d3S| 2L0Z NVl 31VO SNg INVTHLNOS - LZvE6
861 16 19 BAIOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 2L0Z NVl 31VO SNg 13341LS NOLSOS9 - 9Z2v€6
eve L 9¢e SNV - panoiddy| G102 ¥dV| 2L0Z HdVY INWIOHOANT VHINWVYO 319VLIVO0T13Y - SZVe6
6 9 joi4 Aoy - panoiddy| 102 AON| €1L0Z HdV NIWIOHOANT AY dOSSOT1O/Ad ONVIN - 21626
19 0€ L€ Aoy - panoiddy| ¥10Z 43S | €L0Z YVYIN SIONVHO AVMYVYITO AY 3TVAAIEEY - 01626
9. SS 1z Aoy - panoiddy| ¥10Z 43S | ZL0Z NN SOHO AVMYVITO @Y AT1314431LSIHO - L0626
Sl Sl AAOY - panoiddy| L0z LOO| ZL0Z LOO SIONVHO AVMEVYITO Y 34TOHILY - Y0626
NIWIOHO4ANI VHIWVYD 3719VILVI013Y
s3sng yall3gy
ot 8l 8 143 QAIOY - parolddy| G102 LOO| LL0Z AON SANV1 +C - LGE€6
SANVT+Z HBL
162 242 9zl 9AIOY - paroiddy| G102 IVIN| €102 934 SL1IAS AITIVA NOQ - £28€6
SIWILSAS TOYULNOD SLIASv
NVIN MMLIN 8 NOILSIONOODv
0€ 62 3 Aoy - panoiddy| 10z ¥dV| ZLoz NP SONIX 3LNOY AAINNY MHVd MV3d - 66€€6
ONITOAD JIDILVYHLSY
ALITIGISSIOIV JI9ILVHLSY
596 4 €18 pajsanbay |eroiddy | G102 ¥VIN| 2L0Z ¥dY AVMATVH OL ALID :3ONVYHO OILdO - 85€€6
SAVMHOIH 8 LHOdSNVYL TVHINIOV
0cs 00¥ ozl QAOY - parolddy| G102 HVIN| 2L0Z NVl dNIA3daYEO/LSTTN/EIILSION LGV - LLEYE
139YV.1 ONOD AvOd ¥ILSIHONVINv
LELL 188 162 Aoy - panoiddy| GLOZ ¥VIN| 2L0Z NP ISNOHAOOM-443HS ‘J1d SNE A3IM - 202¥6
0¥ A3X 3SNOHAOOM Ol a131443HSv
S9L ¥S Ll Aoy - panoiddy| L0z NN 8002 NI Y9 SINIF-€ Hd-1d LHVINS ad 003 - 08176
oo [44 €1z aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z H¥VIN| ZL0Z HVIN 14 AVO | 3SVHJ-LY LYVIANS QY 003 - LLL16
31N0Y LYVINS AVOd TTVS3T1003v
L1HOdSNV¥L 21I79Nd JI93LVYHLISY
90¥ 44 19¢ SAIPRY - panoiddy| ¥L0Z d3S| 8002 NVI HONOYOESTIIH :ONIMYVd LINY3d - 97826
V1 NOILSTONOD avOoy dOOM3T1adINv
00¢ oLL 061 BAIOY - parolddy| GL0Z VI LLOZ NP (290000) A9ILVYHLS ONILNOY ADH - 28616
V.1 NOILSTONOD avOoy TIVHMOAVINv
671 8¢ Ll Aoy - panoiddy| GLOZ ¥VIN| LLOZ NI Id 3LNOY A¥ AT3I4Y3LSIHO L9V - 0LEV6
NOILSIONOD AvOod @1314431SIHIv
NOILSIONOD J193LVHLSy
£06'8L 200'€ §/6°CL G26'C aAoY - panoiddy| 910z ¥VIN| €102 03A 1ZdM) MNIT AFISNIL HLHYON LH9 - 068€6
65€'C 885 6L L 229 SNV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 O3 (FLdM) ANV :HLHYON LH9 - 688€6
6.6'C 414 96€'C 162 QAIOY - parolddy| 9102 HVIN| #10Z NVI 2dM) SN.HILTY SAMH HLHON L¥9 - 888¢6
8/1'C 14 8G1'C QAIOY - parolddy| 10z INF| 8002 NVI HLYON 149 - /88¢€6
(HLYON) LISNVYL aidvy Snav
oce (44 86¢ SAIY - paroiddy| L0z O3A| 21L0Z NI JNIHOS dddHL3N 8 3ddOHLY3ddN - 9¥.26
31N0Y LYVINS AVOY INOLSINIdv
d.11 SINIHIS YOrviv
pu3 Heis
lejoL -810C 8102-2102 £102-9102 9102-6102 S102-¥102 7102~ snjejs |eroiddy 109l01d 109/01d|$000.3 Ul SaneA
ainjipuadxgy ainjipuadxgy

¢/¢ abed

6102-G10z swweibold |eyde) skemybiH podsues |



00z'ech

05€°8¢

€08'9

9v6'/2

€88'2¢

81T, SAIOY - panoiddy | 8L0Z DNV | Z2L0Z ONY

SNOILNEIYLNOD I4d TVLIdVO - L8666

Idd SAVMHOIHv
1dd SAVMHOIHv
Idd SAVMHOIHv

31Vid0dd0D

lejoL

1/\ ebed

-8102

8102-L102

11029102

91025102

§10z-¥102

102~ snjejg [eaolddy

pu3g Hels

woloid|  109[0id|S000,3 Ul SONjEA

6102-G10z swweiboid [eyde) ajesodio)

|esodsiq 06 - buluue|d 108l0id 0} :abeis

SUOISIB/\ [BAOIddY Pa}sanbay Jo paAoiddy :Sniels [eAolddy
IV 1108l01d / WU ssauisng

IV, :lebeuep

IV, ¥ 80IAISS JO UOISINIG

IV, € 80IAISS JO UOISINI

IV, Z 80IAI9S JO UOISIAI

IV 1L 92IAI8S jo UoISIA

I :90IAI9S

J1VHOdHOD :ajeiopaig

IV, dwuwelbold

TONNOD ALID T3I443HS 10000 :AuedwoD

190pNg :90AL  "PaSOID SMBIS  “PUT YO ¥1 AON SI9AD 19bpNg - O L :310AD

1 Jduige) jenuuy [ Joday Atewwng

Page 97



18

502'G - - vov'e 9G'L LIV sopsnr [e1oog Buisealou| Apanod Buipioe
112 - - - - 112 SaNIUNWWOD 8IN09S B 9jes
9z8'18 - 891 £e6'8l 086'0€ Sv.'Le a|doad BUNOA g USIPIIYD |NJSS300NS
¥£0'€6 Zer'y 0lg'l ez, v1E'6Y 9v1'0€ Ao ennnadwog
Z51'LL - - - 805'8 S9'g aunjoniselu|
zeT'6%9 evE 051 605221 6LL'€TL szv'sel LIVLL A7 01 99€|d JeaID v
18¥'Ge v22'8 zZe6'e £98'c £98'e 665'G BuieqiioM B UNesH Jeneg
wninQ
fejo1 -810Z 8102-2102 11029102 91026102 EEIN $000.3 Ul SanjeA
ainy

01 xipuaddy Sawi023NQ o1b9jen}S Aq sjoaloid [eyded 91/51.0¢Z 30 Adewing

Page 98



Page 99

€6€'82
68L°LG
G9¢
85¥
80v'L
£ve'e

000y
¥ze'y

000'C
ze6'L

000°'C
€98°}

000
€98l

189°'L
G20
vee
(5329
¥S0°'L
cLL

TL9'9L
282°6€
34
SLlL
¥5€
0L0'c

pajsanbay |eaocuddy
pajsanbay |eaoiddy
9AIOY - panolddy
A0y - panolddy
OAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy

020C dYIN
0202 YN
S10Z 9VIN
¥10¢ 43S
S10Z 9V
G1L0Z ¥VIN

800¢ NvI
0102 ddv
€102 9NV
€10z nr
€10C AV
6002 NvI

SINVYO a378vsIa - veeL6

SNOILY.LdvaV - LvL .6

NOISNILX3 MIIA G13I4THNH - 15026

(€L000D) 103roYd dvs - 5¥0.6

(€10000) SNOILNTOS ONINYOM FFOWN - 70,6
(€10000) IUNLONYLSYHANI LOI - LE0.L6

el

1/| obed

-810¢

8102-L10C

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

¥10¢-

snjejs [enosddy

puz
108foid

Heis
108l0id

Bureg Io AN UledH Joneg

19bpng

:9dAL

‘peso|) snjeis

$000,3 Ul senjep

|esodsiq 06 - buiuueld y8loid 01 :8beig
SUOISIO [BAOIAAY Pa}SaNbay JO paAoiddy  :SNjeis [eAoiddy

IV«

IV
IV
IV
IV

'y 90IAISS JO UOIS
1€ 9OIAISS JO UOISIAIQ
1Z 90IAISS JO UOISIAIQ
1} 9IAIBS JO UOIS

:Josloid / yun ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy
1a

ia
IV :901A8S
IV :81esoj00u1a

ONIFETTIM B HLTVIH ¥31139 dwweibold
TIONNOD ALID @T3I443HS L0000 :Auedwod

‘PUT YIUOI #L AON 8I9AD 18bpng - 0L :819AD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing



68

[elele L1 8eY dAOY - panoiddy| €102 LOO| 0L0Z NI 1SV3 - SSV ALINNWOD - 71226
£ee - €ee BNV - panouddy| #1.0Z UVIN| 0L0Z NVI HLYON - SSY ALINNWINOD - 21226
[0l o¢ BAIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VYIN| 7102 ¥dVY SHHOM dNOD AVIHY SLITYLS - £7926
00€ 00€ BNV - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| 7102 HdV SMHYOM ONINIHLONIYLS I9AIdg - 27926
zel sz 16 aAoY - panoiddy | 910z ¥VIN| €102 O3A (00s31) 11IH TVLIdS - ¥€926
0z - 0z ANV - panouddy| €102 HVIN| 2102 NVI WYVH ALIDO AFT33H - 2€926
¥9 - 9 BAIY - panouddy| Z1L0Z AVIN| LLOZ AVIN VYL 39VLIYIH IdHOHLIMO - 62926
9l - 9l ANV - panosddy| 1.0Z HVIN| 2102 AON TIVYL FUNLYN OHOISOWN - 82926
052 oLl (144 26¢ BAIY - panouddy| 91.0Z HVIN| €102 HdVY JNOYAOYIY NOLHON HIWHOH - 81726
6ee - 6ee SNV - panoiddy| 210z YVIN| 1102 43S (900000) gYN4TY AYVHEIT A1FIHHOIH - L¥126
o€ vee 905 pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YVYIN| 1102 ¥dY AVM 40 S1HOIY 2119Nd - 29916
656'GC - 656'GZ SNV - panosddy| |LL0Z O3A| 6002 NVI €82 S3OVLS ¥YI- SN - L1916
Lv8 z Gv8 BAIY - panosddy| #1.0Z HVIN| 8002 HdVY AINIWIOVYNVIN 3341 - 89516
€zl - €21'e SNV - panoiddy| #L0Z LOO| 102 NVl (2¥0000) AOOM I4-4ITOLNH ILVEY OH - G156
02s 8GL 29¢ aAY - panouddy| G1L0Z O3A| 6002 NVI 31N0Y FTOAD AITIVA NUNGMOVTE - €0206
8l 8l pajsenbay [erolddy| GL0Z WVIN| ¥1L0Z NNP (120000) 9a1g ALINNWANOD IdHOHLNINOVH - 917106
062 062 By - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| ¥L0Z 03d|  (1.2000D) TYMINIY 400 WINOD/AYVHEIT MYVd - S7L06
l2¢ €ze 14 aAoY - panoiddy | 10z 03d| €102 03A (€00000) 430 LONYLS-INVH ANI 3TVAAIFEY - #7106
o€l 9zl 12 ANV - panouddy| 1.0z O3A| 102 NI (€20000) 400d AYILINID AVOYH ALID - €7L06
88l L s BAIPY - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| €102 d3S (100000) 4004 ISNOH AT3I4AIEAY - 27106
g€l ¥9 zL ANV - panosddy| GLOZ HYIN| €102 AVIN (€20000) 4004 WNISNIN ANVISI NVHTIN - 6€L06
8ey zee 8l 8l 8l 44 0€ pajsenbay [erouddy| 0€0Z 03A| 6002 NV JONVNILNIVIN IHVNOS ¥IONVHO - 9€106
018 4 86/ SNV - panosddy| GLOZ HYIN| 1102 d3S AYVA JOINY3S LIMYVIN HOOW - 92106
14 44 € pajsenbay [erouddy| GLOZ NNr| GLOZ NV (900000) vYaA 13341LS IAOT - #9006
(0]°74 0se ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HYIN| ¥1L0Z O3a (€20000) V¥4 % 4004 *® Y.L FHINSITT3 - 29006
687 174} ford} 44} 1zL BNV - panosddy| 8102 HVIN| #7102 HdVY S1S00 I0HUNOSIY - 2006
00} ford 0S 12z dAIOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥YIN| 7102 ¥dVY NOIS3A B ALITFISYIS dIO - LE006
002 €L 121 BV - panouddy| GL0Z AVIN| €102 O3d NOILYO013d FOIAYIS ITVAYINNYE - 62006
9v 6C 9l ANV - panoiddy| 102 NNI| €102 HdV (200000) ¥L-€L D0Yd LNLSIANI LNIWLOTTV - ¥2006
207’y 898'C 191°L 19¢ BNV - panouddy| 9102 LOO| €102 NVl ONINOISSININOD3A LINYVIN ITLSVO - 21006
N A e s
pu3 S
leyoL -8L0z 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 §L0zZ-¥102 y102- snjejs [erosddy 109/oid 108/01d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV :109loid / nun ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

IV, ¥ 90IAISS JO UOISIAIQ

IIVx € 90IAI9G JO UOISIAIQ

IV :Z 90IAISS JO UOISIAIQ

IV :l 90IAI9S JO UOISIAIQ

IV :901A8S

IV :81esoj00u1a

JAITOL IOVTd LYIIO V Bwwelbold

TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)

1obpng :edAL  ‘PasOID :SMEIS  ‘PUT YUO L AON SI0AD 195pNg - OF L :BPAD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

1/1 9bed Al 0} 808 18819 Y/

Page 100



06

1/Z 9bed

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

0S4 evl JA ANV - panoiddy| ¥10Z 43S| 210z INr MNIT 3TOAD ATHIAVM-HLYOMSANVH - v9€€6
00L - 00l BNV - panouddy| GL0Z HVYIN| 2L0Z DNV ADOTOIVHOHY HYIN - €9€€6
¥02Z GlL 0¢ BAIY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2L0Z DNV HOLO3INNODEOr 39aldd NITYIN - 65€€6
596 st €18 pajsenbay [erosddy | GLOZ YYIN| Z1L0Z ¥dY AVMATIVH OL ALID :IONVHO OILdO - 85€€6
or 8l 8 i BAIPY - panouddy| GL0Z LOO| LL0Z AON S3ANV +2 - LGE€6
9ee 6l gle ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HYIN| 1102 43S A3A 8 NdO HdNV SLIAS - 95€€6
8L ovl 44 BAIY - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2L0Z HdVY IAY HLYOMSAYOM TOOHIS ¥IONVHO - LGEE6
59¢ €91 €02 SNV - panoiddy| ¥1.0Z HYIN| €102 HdV S3ILINNLYOJdO AVIHY S1IIYLS - 05€€6
S6 44 €L BV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| LLOZ AON ONIMYVd ITOAD dL1T - 6¥EE6
Le0'e €96'C 89 APV - panosddy| GL0Z O3A| €102 AON LNIOd HONId Y INOLSINId - 9L 1L€6
¥20'L ¥00'L 0z 8y - panouddy| £10Z 03| €102 03d ¥g¥ AvOY INOLSINId 299 - #11€6
99¥ 991 002 00l ANV - panoddy| £10Z HYIN| #1.0Z AVIN JOVMOVd FYLINID ALID 299 - €L1€6
1] 14 162 8y - panouddy| 210z O3d| €102 O3A HgY SS31AVIO AT13I443HS 299 - 2L LEB
0S 8y z AV - panoiddy| £10Z O3A| €102 O34 ¥ 2 @131443HS HLYON 299 - LLLEB
gL'l 1SL 986 8y - panouddy| £10Z 03| €102 03d dgy QY d1314931S3IHO 299 - 0L1€6
¥Se €9l 161 BAIPY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVYIN| #7102 HdVY 443HS MS SddO AV3HY S133Y1S - 901€6
vSe €91 261 ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HVYIN| 7102 HdV 443HS MN SddO AVIHY S13341S - S01L€6
8G¢ 291 66l BAIY - panosddy| GL0Z VN | #7102 HdVY 443HS 3S SddO AVAHY S133Y1S - ¥0L€6
1oL 8l ¥8 ANV - panosddy| €102 LOO| 8002 NVI SINIWIAOHAINI MNVY IXVL - S60€6
Ll 6eL z BAIY - panouddy| 81.0Z HVIN| €102 1OO ALITIFISSIOOV MS - £50£6
24 8clL € ANV - panoiddy| 8L0Z HYIN| €102 LOO ALITIGISS3IO0V 3S - 250€6
<]} Gl BAIY - panouddy| £1.0Z UVIN| #L0Z NNP ALITIGISSI00V MN - L50€6
88 68 € ANV - panoiddy| 8102 HYIN| €102 LOO ALITI9ISS300V 3N - 0S0€6
o€ °14 S aAY - panouddy| 1.0z 03| €102 43S ALITIFISS300V 90V INOZ - 670€6
691 vSlL Sl ANV - panoiddy| ¥10Z O3A| €102 43S ALITI9ISS300V 80V INOZ - 870€6
€l - €l BAIY - panouddy| 102 HYIN| €102 HdVY 159 3NOZ - L¥0€6
L - JA ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HYIN| €102 HdV 219 ANOZ - 9v0€6
26 ! 06 BNV - panouddy| 102 ¥dV| €102 HdV L1V INOZ - S70€6
or € 1€ BAIPY - parouddy| ¥10Z 43S | €102 HdVY S0V 3INOZ - ¥v0€6
602 - 602 BNV - panouddy| 102 HVYIN| €102 HdV Y0V INOZ - €70£6
8G/'L - 8G/'L BAIPY - panoiddy| €102 UVIN| LL0Z HdVY S334 LWOW/SEIYLNOD/S1SOD d11 - 19626
18Vl - 181l SNV - panouddy| 110z ¥dV| 0L0Z HdV SIWIHOS YIHLO/SNOINVTTIOSIN - 25626
14 14 BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ ¥dVY| +1L0Z 1N S3NIT MOTI3A 379N0A - 51626
2oL 2oL pajsenbay [eroiddy | 202 YYIN| 7102 ¥dV (290000) MYOMLIN SILNOY NI - 1626
9.2 zee 1S € pajsenbay [erouddy| £L0Z YVYIN| €102 AON (31N0OY 3T10AD) NITNOA F1LLIT - €1626
6Y 9 {514 ANV - panoiddy| #7102 AON| €102 HdV NINWIOHOLNT Y dOSSO19/Ad ONVI - 21626
19 0€ L€ BNV - panouddy| ¥10Z 43S | €102 ¥VYIN STIONVHO AVMYVYITO QY 3TvaA3=aY - 01626
- - 20V INOZ - 60626
- - aAY - parouddy| €102 INF| 2LoZ INF JNTIHOS AVM-INO AVM T13MLI - 80626
9L e (¥4 ANV - panoiddy| ¥10Z 43S| 2LoZ NNP SOHO AVMYVY3TO AY 131443 LSIHD - L0626
<] Sl 8V - panouddy| #L0Z LOO| 2102 LOO SIONVHO AVMHVYITO QY 347043 LY - 10626
65y 08¢ 65 BAIPY - panoiddy| G10Z HVIN| 2L0Z AON 31N0Y FTOAD ATTIVA NOA ¥IMOT - £0626
601 S ¥0l aAIY - panouddy| €102 LOO| 2102 LOO (31LNOY ONIY FTOAD)AVM HIAONVH - 2.826
- - ONIMYVd LINY3d 13341S ¥TO4HON - 25826
90¥ 124 19¢ ANV - panouddy| ¥10Z 43S| 8002 NVI HONOYOISTIIH ONIMYVd LINY3d - 97826
290'L 991 968 BAIY - panouddy| #1.0Z HVIN| 2102 HdVY S3IWIHOS SONIAVS LNIAIODV - 69.26
o0ze 44 86¢ SNV - panouddy| 1.0z 03A| 2102 NVI JNFHOS dddHLAN B IdHOHLHIddN - 91226
12¥ yids 08¢ BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ TNF| 8002 NVI HIHLMOT-ATSIAINT ‘Ad INOLSINId - L7226
pu3 ueis
[ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 101



/¢ ebed

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

0oL 00l 0 ANV - panoiddy| 10z O3A| 2102 NVI AdvHgIT TIHNOOYS - 29ev6
2e9'L - 229'L BNV - panouddy| Z10Z 43S| 6002 NVI NOOFY HO AVMTIVY 0Y SLYISAOOM - LGEY6
9611 oLz 686 BAIY - panosddy| GL0Z HVIN| 6002 NVI 13341S a¥vMa3 - 92er6
02s 00¥ ozl SNV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 2102 NVI dINIGIdaYHO/LSTTIN/LILSION LSV - LLEVE
6vL 8¢ L BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 110Z NI Id 31N0OY Y Q13I4YILSIHO L9V - 0LEV6
L€1°) 188 (274 ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 2L0Z INP ISNOHAOOM-443HS 3.LH SNG A3 - 202v6
S9L S L BNV - panouddy| 102 NNI| 8002 NVI U9 SINIF-€ Hd-1d 1HVINS a¥ 003 - 08116
574 44 €l SNV - panoiddy| GLOZ HYIN| Z1L0Z ¥VYIN 14 WVO L ISVYHJ-LY L¥VINS 0¥ 003 - /L6
79 8l [*14 BNV - panouddy| ¥10Z 43S| €102 NI JNTFHOS MHVd ¥3d dSOH N3O HLHON - ¥iL16
96 - 96 ANV - panoiddy| Z1L0Z NNr| 0L0Z NNP MHVd-MYO N3O - LyLy6
9Ll - 9Ll pajsenbay [erosddy | #L0Z YVYIN| 0L0Z d3S ONIAVd FHLNIO ALID - ZELY6
0S ) I 6 6€ ANV - panoiddy| £10Z HVYIN| 0L0Z NVI | ASVYHd T1IH MNVEOONIM - L2116
005 59 582 0SL BNV - panouddy| £10Z d3S| 7102 ¥VYIN 103rodd 18V O119Nd AVMILYD LIN - 02116
¥81L'C oLL'e vL ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| ¥1L0Z O3A (3441MONYOHL) HOLId V4 - 0LLY6
26T 0L¥'e 8 By - panouddy| 9102 HVYIN| #7102 O3d (S3AVY9O) HOLId V4 - 60176
0007} 0009 0008 BAIPY - panoiddy| 9102 YVYIN| #7102 HdVY (500000) LO3r0odd WISON SIAVYD - S0L¥6
0012 02S'y €55'C 12 ANV - panosddy| 9102 NVI| €102 AON 103ro¥d HLYON JAILOV - v0L16
o143 (4 96¢ BAIPY - panouddy| #7102 ONY| 6002 NI (500000) NYNOGAOOM 40 ONINIJO-3 - 201 +6
S - S aAIY - panoiddy| 1.0Z HVYIN| 2102 LOO JOVTIIA SLHOdS A13I41LSIM - 86076
74 14 pajsenbay [eroiddy| GLOZ YVIN| SLOZ NV Idd IYINIO TIVYNYVA - L1L0V6
005 ¥8 9Ly SNV - panosddy| 910z O3A| 2102 NVI NOILISINDOY JLdAS FLYOIT1LSYO - 800v6
Zv6 1ze 0z BAIY - panouddy| 102 NN | Z10Z ¥YIN NIFHYO IYINSI T3 TTIH VLIS - 2L00v6
962 L 682 ANV - panoiddy| #L0Z TNF| 2L0Z HdV ¥3AUNGAVYTd AITIVA NITIAIY - 266€6
zee - zee BV - panouddy| +1.0Z HVIN| 6002 AVIN H3ATNUNGAYTd O3 IAVIHONYNG - 986€6
8.2 0L 802 ANV - panoiddy| G102 HYIN| 7102 HdV AQNLS W1V 44v¥L JAILVAONNI - 06€6
9T - 9.€'C BNV - panouddy| #1.0Z HVIN| 8002 HdVY 103rodd AYYHEIT SSOYD NOSHVd - 6£6€6
106'8L 100'€ 66Tl 626'C ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 O34 LZdM) MNIT AFTISNIL ‘HLHON 149 - 068€6
65€'C 885 6vL'L 229 By - panouddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 O3d (7LdM) ANV :HLHON 149 - 688€6
6.6'C 262 96€°C 162 BAIY - panoiddy| 91.0Z WVIN| 102 NI ¥2dM) SNHILTVY SAMH ‘HLYON 144 - 888€6
8.1'C 1z 8S1'C ANV - panouddy| #1L0Z TINF| 8002 NVI HLYON 149 - /88€6
152 LEL 9zl BAIPY - parouddy| GL0Z HVIN| €102 934 S1IAS AITIVA NOQ - £28€6
S61 19 8zl pajsenbay [eroiddy | GL0Z YVYIN| €102 LOO LNININDT LNINIFOHOANT ONIMEV - 098€6
68 - 68 BAIY - panouddy| €102 LOO| 2102 HdVY ANV INIIHO/QANIVIN/AY STTVM Od - 199€6
- - (AVM 3NO) INVTNOLIINS - €£9€6
16¢ g€l 1ze BAIY - panosddy| #1.0Z HVIN| 2L0Z HdVY (290000) M3IINTY "VITO 33X TOOHDS - 2€9€6
8€0'C - 8€0°'C ANV - panoiddy| ¥1.0Z HYIN| 6002 NVI TUN-AVMATVH-ZNNOD:SNVHLSNS - L55€6
o€l 6 LzL BNV - panouddy| ¥10Z 43S| 2102 NI 31V SN9 INVTHLNOS - £27€6
8G1 16 19 ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HYIN| 2102 NVI 31VO SNg 13341S NOLSOg - 92v€6
£ve Ll 9ze BNV - panouddy| GL0Z ¥dV| 2L0Z HdVY LINWIOHO4ANT YHINYD 31aV.LYO0T13Y - G2ved
59 29 € ANV - panoiddy| G1L0Z ¥dV | €02 AON 3av19O LSv3 - vIves
19 Ge 43 BV - panouddy| GL0Z O3A| 6002 NVI SMYVYd AITIVA SINO0YD - Z17€6
6¢ 6€ BAIY - parouddy| GL0Z NNF| 2L0Z DNV SININWIAOHdNI MV MNVE NVHONY - 0L7€6
g€ 14 9e ANV - panouddy| GLOZ ONV| €102 NP HNOMYYd 3441T100NT - 80¥€6
L - Ll BAIY - panouddy| Z1L0Z ONY| 2102 ddVY 1417dN SLYN0D Md WYHONIE - S0v€6
€61 0SL € ANV - panosddy| 6002 O3A| 6002 NVI 114 O¥d @1314MO1 - 20¥E6
(74 - ove BAIPY - parouddy| 10z ¥dV| 0L0Z NN AV1d IAISNTONI MHVd SIAVHD - LOYE6
o€ 62 l SNV - panouddy| ¥10Z ¥dV| 2L0Z INr SONIX ILNOY AAINNY MHVd MV3d - 66€€6
662 0€z 69 BNV - panouddy| 8L0Z HVIN| €102 NP 310A0 3LV AVIHY S133Y1S - 02£€6
pu3 ueis
[ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 102



c6

L/ 9bed

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

899'cl - 899°€lL ANV - panoiddy| #1.0Z HYIN| 8002 NVI MHOM SLINVOVA SINOH LN3O3A - €92.6
65 44 Ll BNV - panosddy| 91.0Z HVIN| 0L0Z HdV IVH NOID3Y 9NS AN - MHOA - €226
289 - 289 BAIPY - parouddy| #1L0Z INF| 0L0Z HdVY NTV3Y 2119Nd ¥YIONVHO - L2.6
09€'L - 09¢'L AV - panosddy| 102 HVIN | 8002 HVIN (LSV3) WHS IJHOHLHIANNIMS - 92226
2€6'L ove ozl ozl [k yid EL'L pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0Z0Z YVIN| 8002 NV S31143d0dd ALdW3T HSd - 22226
285'C - 286'C ANV - panoiddy| €102 HVIN| 8002 HdV (LSV3) ONITTIA0OWIY T1TVH 39Vd - 21226
6lC 00l 6Ll BAIY - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| 6002 HdVY A3IAYNS NOILIANOD ISNOH - 00226
SS - ele dAIOY - panoiddy | 6002 NVI| 8002 NI TVYH SANNS 49 aY¥04avyg - 92126
869 - 869 BV - panouddy| LLOZ HVIN| 0102 HdVY IVYH SNYOT gHY @131443HS - G9126
19z ¥eeT 0se 002 126'L pajsenbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z HVIN| 8002 NV TVYH SNYOT gHY - 05126
118 - L18'¢ BNV - panouddy| 21.0Z HVIN| LL0Z HdVY S3INWIHOS AT0 - SNOILNILNIY HS - 67126
€592 086'G 066'2 0662 0662 - 18G°LL pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HYIN| LL0Z ¥dV J3NOISSININOD S334 LWOW H S - 8¥L26
000°€) SS1L 1S 88.°CL pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YVIN| 8002 NV ONIAAVT1O Y3IAONVH ANV INMOASNYT - 6€L26
06€°L 8¢ 4% €61 €61 8vC 6519 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HVIN| 0102 ¥dV SAINYNS SOLS3EASY ONTV - LELLE
0€6'2S S0v'6 86E'Y vze'L vee'L 08L'S 10561 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 YVIN| 0102 ¥dV ONILV3H 31370890 - L2126
6le'cL 182 8€0'cL BAIPY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 8002 NVI SHHOM OWTY MOYHVYHS - 92126
0L¥'8 - 0L¥'8 ANV - panouddy| 102 HVYIN| 0L0Z HdV ONILVIH ALINNWANOD HA - 71126
Le - Le BAIY - panouddy| 1.0z VN | LL0Z AON NOILVAILOV Sd ¥30NVHO - 8026
- - SINNIL ST3ZVH HOIH/OHOgSTTIH - 88176
. (3 Ge BAIY - panouddy| 910z ¥dV| §L0Z 934 VONIN ANNOYD N.OFH MOONYVHO - /8716
Gl€ 191 802 dAOY - panoiddy | GL0Z d3S| ¥10Z 1N T4ANYT A3SOT0 NOLHOI3E - S21v6
2z 44 BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 7102 AVIN 7102 AYINIHOVIN SHYVd - 72176
6l 6l ANV - panoiddy| GLOZ HYIN| 7102 ¥VIN ONILHOIT Q1314 SY3aUVE - €L¥16
9z 9z BNV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 7102 43S V3IYVY NI3L NMOL13dVHO - 2L4v6
sz 14 aAOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| €102 AON avod Sv19N0da - LLv6
0S. 68¢ oge 1€ BNV - panouddy| 6102 ¥dV| €102 LOO SMYVd FHNLYN NVEHN - 0L76
19 19 aAOY - panoiddy | #7102 AON| €102 LOO Z ASYHd TTIH ¥NVEOONIM - 69176
e 44 aAIY - panouddy| ¥10Z ONVY| €102 43S SINIWIAOHdNI MEVd VISTIHO - 89116
v 44 BAIPY - parouddy| #10Z AON| €10Z 1N 901S SANVIAOOM - 99+76
66 - 56 aAIY - panouddy| €102 O3A| 2102 43S VONIN ANISNITIOH - S9716
zs - 4] BAIPY - panouddy| 1.0z WVIN| 2L0Z DNV XINEG 8 3LYMS IdHOHLINIMOVH - #9176
509 8l 905 18 ANV - panosddy| 9102 HYIN| 2102 43S SYMNITNITHO AOOM AV - €9¥16
8zl 14 iz4" BAIPY - panouddy| 102 NN | 2L0Z AVIN SONIATING TN SISNOHTIIN - 65476
8 el 1z aAOY - panoiddy| L0z d3S| 110Z LOO 733LS 40 NIWOM - LGvv6
z8 1z 19 BAIY - panouddy| #1.0Z HVIN| LLOZ AON 14V 0178Nnd T1IH V.LIdS - 95716
8 0 8 pajsenbay [eroiddy| L0z 03A| LLOZ d3S VI™V LNOGVMOIM SAT3I4 YONVIN - €516
1z - (4 pajsenbay [erouddy| 102 d3S| LLOZ 43S 103rodd 1411dN SA1314 YONVIA - LSv16
685'C g6l 20¢ €0€ ozy'l 69¢ ANV - panoiddy| 8L0Z HVIN| LLOZ NNP LINIWIFYOV SNd 296Ng - Sriv6
ove o€ oLe BNV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| LLOZ HdVY NOIL3TdINOD JNTHOS B SLIANY SY - 8EVY6
S0l - S0l BAIOY - panoiddy | €102 LOO| L10Z ¥dVY VONIN YEVd YOOHESHIIN - SLv6
26L'LL ¥4 LLL'LL BV - panosddy| GLOZ HVIN| 2102 ¥VYIN LININOTIAIA LINLVYIN M3IN - 20v¥6
€6¢ o] 262 4 aAIPY - panouddy| G610z 03| 2L0Z AON SYNITNIFED T1IH MHvd - 26§76
1oL z 00l ANV - panosddy| GLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z NP HA SQdIg 404 LIWOW ANV1dOOM - LBEY6
X4 zhL 6Ll aAIY - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z NP N3 SAYIg YO LD ANYIAOOM - 0676
(514} I 6 8% pajsenbay [erosddy| G102 HdV| LL0Z ONY AV1d ¥37000L SAT3I4 YONVIA - 08EY6
100°‘L 68 4] pajsenbay [erouddy| #L0Z 03A| 6002 NV 1S HLNOS / MdVd AITIVA 4V3HS - 8.£16
€98 - €98 SNV - panouddy| €102 HYIN| 2102 HdV (1¥0000) ONILHOITLIIYLS dLT- LLEVE
8l - 8l BAIY - panouddy| #1.0Z UVIN| 2102 HdVY JNTIHOS Sdd LNIONIA LS - 9976
pu3 ueis
[ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 103



€6

1/ ebed

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

2L zL aAoY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| €102 AON ALDD 1SIM HLHON - TvOOT ONIOD - 8E¥.L6
oge 0S 082 pajsenbay [erosddy | 9102 YVYIN| €102 AON SINOYH dOHS TT1IH TVLIdS - LEv.26
LG zze Lz 8L pajsenbay [eroiddy| 9102 YYIN| €102 ONY SHO 9dN43Y ANV SHIVd3Y S 317 - SEv.26
€ z ) aAoY - panoiddy | ¥1L02 ONV| €L0Z NP MHOM ONITEYNT ISNOH SSOHD - vEVL6
00g €l2 12 aAoYy - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| 7102 YVYIN SINOYH dOHS TIVYNYVA - €726
8L€C ¥G€ 80.°) L1€ pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YYIN| €102 ¥dV HIVd3Y ® ISYHOHNd S.3L7T - 62126
08 6L 0 BAIY - panosddy| #1.0Z VN | 2L0Z 1OO IVH @131443HS - 82v.6
]¥4 - 9z dAOY - panoiddy | 1.0z ¥VIN| 2L0Z d3S I9YIIONOD TIIHNYOD - L2v.6
- - (690000) S3ILIYOIY SILV.LST AOYdINI ANT - 227.6
- - (690000) SOI¥LO3T3 - STVININITT - 02vL6
098°'C) [ Gl 196'€ 106'% yv6'e ford BNV - panouddy| 6102 HVIN| €102 HdV (690000) ONIJ00Y LV14 - 61126
289'06 892'vC vsL'Le 6.£'C2 §G2'8L 100y 9z pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 YVYIN| €102 NP (690000) INITHO0Y B ONIJO0Y A3HOLId - 81126
1€9 o4 715 86 pajsenbay [erouddy | 9102 YVIN| €102 AVIN (690000) SIWOOY LNV1d - OLH WINOD - L1126
805’1 89¢ 8.6 vzl 8e pajsanbay [eroiddy | £L0Z HYIN| €102 ¥dV (690000) TYMINIY YHOM3IdId - OLH WINOD - 91+26
- - (690000) 1NO T10Y YILIN - OLH WNOD - GL¥.6
veL'y Gv8 198°L 0L 89¢ pajsenbey [eroiddy| 8102 HVIN| €102 ddV (690000) gYN4TY SIS INYOHLHNOGYY - #1726
v6€ 145 Sl ¥9 pajsenbay [erosddy| 9L0Z YVYIN| ZL0Z NNP (690000) ANIIMS - €1726
192 1S/ ¥ BAIPY - panosddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2L0Z HdVY (690000) ¥NO41vE - ZL¥.6
- - (690000) S3LNHD 3SN43Y - 01126
2] 1L - (454 pajsenbay [eroiddy| 9102 YVYIN| Z2L0Z d3S (690000) LNO-110d ONITOADFY - 60726
- - (690000) (HS) SL4IT30V4 - 80v.6
z6v G0l 18¢ BAIY - panosddy| 81.0Z HVIN| 2L0Z HdVY (690000) SNOILVTIVLSNI ONILYIH M3N - 90v26
0eY'9 6Ly 6L¥ 6Ly [15% 19L°L €65'€ ANV - panoiddy| 6102 HYIN| 2L0Z HdV (690000) SNAMOAMVIHE ONILVIH - ¥0V.6
€8 ! zv8 aAOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| 2102 HdY (5¥0000) A3TdOO LSIANYI HA - €0v26
88/'L - 88/'L ANV - panoiddy| ¥1.0Z HYIN| 2L0Z HdV (5¥0000) AVOY AISNIM HA - 20vL6
9z8'e - 9z8'e BNV - panouddy| 102 HVIN| 2L0Z HdVY (5¥0000) (HS) LSV3 HLNOS - 00¥26
vl - i BAIOY - panoiddy | |LOZ ¥VIN| 0102 VI SNOILNILIY QINIVLIY OOS - 96€.L6
9€9 09 66 118 pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YVIN| 0102 ¥dV IVH NOI9D3Y 9nS - SONIT AN - S6€.6
G8e’lL 052 86¢ 181 pajsenbey [eroiddy| 9102 HVIN| 800Z NV IVYH NOID3Y 9NS ¥3FNNH - TINH - ¥6£.6
4} 091 08 08 08 1L 14 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HYIN| 0102 ¥dV 17NV43d NI SYHOM HSd - 06€.6
z19 9./ 9es aAIoY - panoiddy | 210z ¥VIN| 8002 NI TIVLSNI M3N S1417 AIYILTIHS - LLEL6
ve 62 S dAOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| 0102 ¥dY ILINI STILINNININOD MHVd MTOJHON - G926
62y 00L 0$ a4 9ez pajsenbay [eroiddy| 210z HVIN| 0102 ddV IVYH NOI9D3Y NS AM - 404avyg - S5€.6
16 - 165 dAOY - panoiddy | €102 ¥YIN| 2002 HdY IHVYNOS M3IN ¥IONVHO - 2526
€2.9 1LY 1281 255°C 695 BV - panosddy| 81.0Z HVIN| €102 HdVY SING INHOHLYNOSYY - 05626
65y €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ €8¢ 75T dAOY - panoiddy | 6102 ¥YIN| 8002 NI LINIWIOVNYIN INANVHOON ViH - 8v€.6
201 ! Lol aAoY - panoiddy | 91.0Z ¥VIN| 800Z NI S3LIS A3YVIT0 Q3SIVYELNIO - LEL6
9/5'8 1€ 19¢ zLL'8 pajsenbay [eroiddy| GLOZ NNr| 8002 NV NVMS - 0¥€26
1€5'C 00S 0se 0se 05¢ 62¥ 868 pajsenbay [eroiddy| 0202 YVIN| 8002 NV SINVHO MHOM HONIW - €€€26
981zl 961 961 961 861 86V 20901 BAIOY - panoiddy | 6102 ¥YIN| 8002 NI 49 S1S0O INIWIDVYNVIN FNNVHOOH - 1ZEL6
8€e - 8€e dAOY - panoiddy | 1.0z YVIN| 8002 NI 3YNO3S ANV 34VS MOIFATLSYO - GLEL6
06€°c 101 L€ 98 928'C pajsenbay [erosddy | £L0Z YYIN| 8002 HdY (HLS) WHS NOILITOW3A TIHMYVYd - ¥62.6
8910} oy 0z 0z 05 GLL €98'6 pajsenbay [eroiddy | GLOZ YVIN| 6002 NV (HLS) TTIH MYvd - 282.6
v62'y 9€L 118 182'¢ pajsenbay [eroiddy| GL0Z 1OO| 8002 NV J3ANOISSININOD NYMS - 12226
952 1L o 9 [*14 44 §zs pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HVIN| 8002 NV SNOILITOW3A AONIOHINT - 69226
ver'L Lz 781 8l or 08 pajsenbay [eroiddy| 610z HVIN| 0102 ddV NOOY 91N O1 SSFOIV ONINOHINI - 29226
€0r'e 91 161 £/0'C dAOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥YIN| 0102 ¥dY SIOUVHO HIAQTOHIASYIT - 99226
€19'c 8€l 8€l 8€lL 8€l 8GL €06°'C BAIY - panosddy| 6102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdVY 904d IONVHNI ALIHVS B HLTVIH - #9226
pu3 Vel
|ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 104



¥6

1/9 8bed

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

8l6'c 20zt TLL'L vrL'L - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z HYIN| GLOZ ¥dV (SHO) S3DVHVYD - 060000
819y 0se'y 89¢ - pajsenbay [erosddy | 0202 YVYIN| 7102 ¥dY (SHO) SLN3NFT3 A3INNVYId ¥IHLO - 680000
eve 00l 0S 0S 0S €6 pajsenbay [eAoiddy| 020Z ¥VIN| 7102 ddV SAYVZVH 1O HSd - 880000
0vy's8 82C'v€ 816'LL 669'LC G6S'LL - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 6102 YYIN| 7102 ¥dV (SHO) ISYIHONI MOOLS - 280000
196'L€ z68'cl 088 €22'6 LY€'9 14 pajsenbaey [eroiddy| 020Z WVIN| 7102 ddV SY00A ¥ SMOANIM'SINHHLYE ‘SNIHOLIM - 980000
808'L 4] ¥es 9% - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 8L0Z HYIN| GLOZ ¥dV (SHO) SLNIWLSIANI TVILNISST - ¥80000
vLL'e 280°'L 890°L ¥20'L - pajsenbay [erolddy| 6102 HVIN| 7102 ddV (SHO) ININIOVYNVYIN ILSYM - £€80000
28¥'92 ovi'sL 028's 009'% 226 - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HYIN| 7102 ¥dV (SHO) SOIY.L0313 - 180000
502'ze 665'0C 0zy'L ovL'y 05 - pajsenbay [erosddy | 0202 YVYIN| 7102 ¥dY (SHO) STVYNY31X3 8 S400d - 080000
29g'e 002Z'L o'l A<l 895 - pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 HYIN| 7102 ¥dV (SHO) ONILVIH ALINNNINOD - 620000
00z'eel 05€'8€ €08'92 9v6'L2 €88'2¢ 8Le'L BNV - panouddy| 8102 ONV | 2L0Z DNV SNOILNGIYLNOD I4d TVLIdVO - 28666
¥8G'L €08 69. 4 ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 INF (690000) AL34VS Y14 - SYIMNIYS - 68616
18¢ s ¥9 [9X4 pajsenbay [erosddy| GLOZ AON| ZL0Z NN LININIOHOANT ONIMHVL ALDO - 88616
okl 9e SL ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HVYIN| 2102 NVl (290000) S3AVYOIN YITIOYLNOD Old4v¥L - 986.6
€Ll oLe £oF BAIY - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2102 HdVY (290000) INOZ HANOZ FAIMALIO - 58626
S - S BAIPY - parouddy| #1.0Z YVIN| L1L0Z NP (290000) AQNLS ONIMYVYd HOVOD - £86.6
00¢ oLl 06 ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| L10Z NP (290000) ADILVHLS ONILNOY ADH - 28616
G/8'0L 09 61801 BAIoY - penoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| L10Z HdVY (570000) SSOYD NOSHVd M3IN - HLHON - 22616
vl - 7l dAOY - panoiddy | 1.0z ¥YIN| 2102 HdY SOW3A IAILYA IONVYO MYvVd - ¥26.6
sle'e 08/ 443 443 zee 0s€ 8LLL pajsenbay [eAolddy| 020z HVIN| 1102 ddV HIVd3Y '® IONYNILNIVIN 1417 - 89626
08€'l - 08€'L SNV - panouddy| £10Z HYIN| LLOZ HdV (570000) MIIN MHVd - 99616
115 - 118 BAIY - panouddy| #1.0Z UVIN| LLOZ HdVY (570000) IAVIHONYNG - LSV3 - 85616
z8lL'e 9L 90L'e ANV - panoiddy| 10z O3A| LL0Z HdV (5¥0000) MOOHE A3FAY - LSIM HLNOS - L5616
viL 14 oLl BNV - panouddy| €102 LOO| LLOZ HdVY MOVYL 3TOAD SONIYDS AOOMMYYd - 97626
- - aAIoY - panoiddy| 0L0Z LOO| 0L0Z d3S 60S 0O AYVYMILS HIAIY - 20616
1z - 1z aAoY - panoiddy | 0L0Z INF| 0L0Z NN 128 AY313NID N3O 40 SANTIYS - L0616
S - S aAIOY - panoiddy | 0L0Z ONV| 0L0Z 1N 2€G 1SNYL LININDO13IAIA AITIIH - 00626
19% 00z 99z pajsenbay [erosddy| GLOZ YVIN| 0102 ¥dY (£00000) INNVHOOHd ONIOVIHNSTY HLVd - 668.6
e - 444 BAIPY - parouddy| £L0Z LOO| 0L0Z NNP MV ONILYOE MHVd HLYIH - 96826
851 - 851 ANV - panouddy| Z10Z d3S| 2L0Z HdV (£00000) YIMOL 1139 AQVOY ALIO - 16826
765’y el LL9'L 90°'L G99 aAIoY - panoiddy | 210z ¥VIN| 0102 HdY S4 - NOILVSITVINIWLHVCINOD - 8€8.6
¥0l 19 L 9 SNV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| 0L0Z HdV SHHOM AYLINI HOO0A d3 - £€8/6
Lz 8 08 iz aAoY - panroiddy | 910z ¥VIN| 0102 HdY A3Y3LTIHS d3 - 9€826
€08'L 96 00l 909'} dAOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥YIN| 0102 HdY LSIM HLNOS d3 - €826
08v'L 0€s 8Ly z€es BAIY - panosddy| 91.0Z HVIN| 0102 HdVY 1SV3 HLNOS d3 - ¥€8.6
188 98l zie €8¢ dAIOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥YIN| 0L0Z ¥dVY IVHLINIO d3 - €€826
668 [{%4 Ly Le BAIY - panosddy| 9102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdVY 1Sv3 d3 - 2€8.6
eLL'L 1oL 44 066 AAIOY - panoiddy | 910z ¥VYIN| 0L0Z ¥dVY 1S3IM HLYON d3 - 1€8/6
199 9Ll 191 G8¢ BNV - panouddy| 9102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdVY V3dV HLYON d3 - 0£826
Slv'L 29 €26'9 062 ANV - panoiddy| 9102 ¥dV | ¥10Z LOO (£90000) | ISYHd OSH TIONNOD ATING M3IN - 25626
616'€ 9611 €2L'e pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YVYIN| 7102 ¥dV (290000) 904d SNOILISINDIY OSH TIONNOD - 15526
00S°€ 00°'L 0e¥'C pajsenbay [eroiddy | GLOZ YYIN| €102 ¥dY SNOILISINOOV SINOH M3N - OHS - 05526
00¢ 00} 00l 0oL - pajsenbay [erosddy | 8L0Z YVYIN| 7102 ¥dV (2)IVH SANN4 49 SIFTHEIM - 02526
ozl 0zl aAoY - penoiddy | 910z ¥VIN| ¥10Z HdVY SONIT LSV3 HLYON d3 WNOD - 0526
26 Ly 94 SNV - panoiddy| 9102 HVYIN| 7102 HdV MHOA SNVO1d3 - #0526
18¢€ 7] €2 €e pajsenbay [eroiddy| 910z HVIN| €102 ddV ONIT LSV HLYON d3 - 20526
002 SL 0 €5 44 pajsenbay [erosddy| £L0Z YYIN| €102 ¥dV TINH SNYO1d3 - L0526
896'22 029'8 008'y 80L'% S8y °14 pajsenbay [eroiddy | 0202 YVYIN| 7102 AON S1V14 3SId MOT-SYI™Y TYNNWINOD - Lrr.6
pu3 Vel
|ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 105



pajsanbay |eaoiddy

0202 JvIN

§10Z ¥dv

(SHO) SOIVLI10AOLOHd - 160000

snjeis [eaosddy

puz
108loiq

Hels
108loid

9AI7 0} @0E|d JeBlD) VY

Page 106



96

BAIOY - panoiddy
A0y - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
A0y - panolddy
9AIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panoiddy
SAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panoiddy
9AIOY - panolddy
pajsanbay |eaociddy
OAIOY - panolddy
BAIOY - panoiddy
BAIJOY - panolddy
BAIOY - panoiddy
A0y - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
SAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
9AIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy

9102 YV | 210z O3d
910C dVIN| ¢10C ddV
9102 °YVIN| 110C ddVY
9102 dVIN| 0L0C ddV
9102 V| 010C ddVY
9102 dVIN| 0L0C ddVY
9102 dVIN| €102 O3d
7102 V| €10 AON
7102 NNr| €102 UdV
GLOC °dVIN| €102 ddV
G102 YVIN| €102 ddV
GLOC UVIN| €10C NVr
G10Z ¥VIN| 110 d3s
G102 "¥VIN| 010Z ddY
G10Z dVIN| 1102 ddV
SLOZ ¥VIN| vloz Inr
GL0Z 100| €102 O3a
G102 ¥VIN| €102 ddV
9102 JVIN| €L0C NNr
§102 LOO| ¢l0Z 03a
GLOZ UVIN| €102 NVr
G102 YVIN| €10C NVr
GLOC UVIN| €10C NVr
S0 ¥VIN| 7102 ONVY
¥10Z dVIN| ¢10C d3S

JONVITAINOD ALIAVS ® HLTIVIH - £20000

8bpoT A1auue | /osNoYpoop 199 - $90000

SIWNIHOS SOLSIESY - 050000

AdvddIT IVELNIO - 01,0000

SS300V a318VSIa 40 NOISIAO¥d - 900000

(€20000) INNVEOOHd LNINSSISSY MSIHIIS - 2Liv6
(500000) NOILVIQIWIY SAQ - L0L¥6

(500000) LNIWIONVHNI 13SSVY SAQ - 90176
(500000) NOILITOW3A SAQ - LOLY6

SINVIYLSHYOM LI - L1106

S1S0D AYIAITAA LOIrOHd - 07106

€1 AON3IOI443 LNV1d ® 310IHIA - 8€1L06

A9ILVHLS WAODDV ISNOH NIAMOH - €€L06
1004400 - 02106

d3d AUNOSVYIN 8 400 TIVH NMOL - L0L06
LNIWIONVHNI 13SSY OSIN - 0£006

(€20000) SHHOM V4 TIVNYVA-HLYOLINVLS - 22006
9I4NOOFY ISNOH AGHOS - 52006

NOILVHLSIDIY AYVYLNNTOA - 02006

JONVHNILISSY ITVAYIANNYE - 61006

SHHYOM ADILVHLS JHId - L1006

LNIWIONVHNI L3ISSY IJHOHLTMO - 91006
INIWIONVHNI 13SSY A13I41SIM - 51006

(020000) LNIWIONVHNI SILIS WYV - #1006
(0£0000) FONVHNILISSY ITVAYIANNYE-ATEEY - L1006

1/| obed

692'C 692'C -

osy osy -

0gh 051 -

vzl vel -

sez sez -

802 8yl - 09
61'9 059'€ £Y5°C

zee zee

€8 or ve
08y L9v el
005' 115 €86
06.'L 680'L Loz
050'L 0L0't or
516's \eL veZ's
852 26 999
8el 8el

004’} 890' ze

\ey 26 62€
Siy v6 161 g8l
€121 oge 86. 98l
198 9¢ lee
6y 05€ 66
9.z 9zl 00}
8 8

0.z 8¢ zee
feoL. -8102 8L02-210Z 1102-9102 9102-6102 SL0T-710Z 102

snjejs [enosddy

puz Heis
108foid 108loid

alnjonJiselju|

1ebpng :8dA |

‘peso|) snjeis

$000,3 Ut senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV, 198l01d / 1un ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

Vs ¥ @0IAI9S JO UoIsIAg

IV, i€ 82IAIBS JO UOISINIQ

IV, :Z @018 JO UoISIAg

IV :l 90IAI9S JO UOISIAIQ

[\YARRCSIIVETS

IV, :ejelojoaulq

FUNLONYLSVYANI :wwelbold

TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)
'PUT YIUOW ¥L AON BIOAD 195pNg - O :310AD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

Page 107



LLL°9€
0lLL
819
6.8'9
2sL's
4
00S
627'SC
869
06L°€
z8
rlgl
002
6.5
olLe
€96

6l

GG6

EV'y

0.2k

ve

gl

026
00l

VLY

Wl's

LLL'9E

o
§se
0l
0S¥
0€
005
681'GZ
cl
95y
19
9€6°C
00¢
0S
Y4
9

6L

99
€9¢
69
20zT's

Lve
Sl
[44°]
625°C
€8
A

9.8

Aoy - panoiddy
9AIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panoiddy
pajsenbay |eaocuddy
A0y - panolddy
OAIOY - panolddy
BAIOY - panoiddy
QAIJOY - panolddy
pajsanbay [eaocuddy
A0y - panolddy
BAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
9AIOY - panolddy
A0y - panolddy
SAIOY - panolddy
AAIOY - panolddy
QAIOY - panolddy
A0y - panolddy

9102 dVYIN
S10Z 9VIN
GL0C dvIN
020C dvYIN
9102 03a
102 NNr
SG10Z ¥VIN
GL0Z dvIN
2102 03a
9102 JVIN
7102 ddv
6102 dVIN
S10Z Nvr
102 NOP
S10Z 9VIN
GL0C dvIN
7102 dVIN
€102 03a

102 NVl
1102 ddv
800¢ NV
¢l0g ddv
1102 ddv
¥10c Inr
7102 ddv
€102 100
7102 ddv
102 43S
€10c Inr
€Loz nr
102 NvI
6002 NV
¢L0C AV
0102 ¥dv
110¢ d3s
1102 030

OuN - 820000

(§¥0000) S3ILIMILN - HA - 29616

IV3A NIFHO - INNVEOOHd ADHINT - 2E1.26
(690000) (9SH TIONNOD) NOILYINSNI - 50726
0dO ¥3LYYNO TIVLIY M3IN - 6£46
SININAOHNI AYITTVO 3LIS - 80L16
AININWHSIGENATY TV LIdVO WNNFOAT - €016

2 9314VN0 IVL3Y M3N - 05076
ANFOSLITULS 79 F44ITOUTLLY - 610v6
NIFHO OL AFHO - €10V6

AQNLS Q0014 ¥OO¥g ¥3.LHO0d - ZL0Y6
SMYOM 3FON343d A0O0T4 AQ1- 0L0V6
SHYOM TVIQINTY MOOHE I LHOd - 600¥6

Z 3SYHd W1v3Yd O179nd YOO - ¥00v6
JHIHSHYOA (HLNOS) NI d399N1d - 220£6
370A0 3417 AHITIVO WNINITTIN - 95626
ONINDIS AOH F441T0Y3LLY - 80206

(120000) IAOHO SNNV - 81106

el

1/| obed

-810¢

8102-L10C

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

¥10¢-

Ao enpedwod

snjejs [enosddy

puz
108foid

Heis
108loid

1ebpng :8dA |

‘peso|) snjeis

$000,3 Ut senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV, 198l01d / 1un ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

Vs ¥ @0IAI9S JO UoIsIAg

IV, i€ 82IAIBS JO UOISINIQ

IV, :Z @018 JO UoISIAg

IV :l 90IAI9S JO UOISIAIQ

[\YARRCSIIVETS

IV, :ejelojoaulq

ALIO FAILILIINOD Bwwelboid

TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)
‘pUT YIUOW L AON 8I0AD 185pNg - O | 181940

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

Page 108



8ET'61 - 8ET'6L dAOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥dV| 0102 ¥dY 39AI¥ESHO0LS - £2906
209'€z - 209'cT aAoY - panoiddy | 1.0z ¥VIN| 0102 HdY ALID - 22906
002 4} 989°C BAIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| 0102 ¥dY a7314avyg - 12906
996'61 18 G886l aAoY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥YIN| 0102 ddY (dn) SadvMaz ONIM - 02906
€G/'61 - €5/'61 AAIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| 0L0Z ¥dY AOOMMYYd - 61906
9.9y - 9.9 aAoY - panoiddy | #1.0Z ¥YIN| 0L0Z ONY NOISNVdX3 ITVA did - 81906
oLL'6z - oLL'6z BAIY - panouddy| 1.0z WVIN| 01L0Z NI IAOYD SYIAN - 21906
zL8'GL - TL8'GL dAOY - panoiddy | €102 ¥VYIN| 0L0Z NI SINIVS TV - 91906
L¥9'ElL - Ly9'cl BAIY - panouddy| #7102 AVIN| 6002 AON N3I349 SIN39 - 51906
888°L 8l 4 i 8€T ¥65'1 dAOY - panoiddy | 8L0Z ¥VIN| 0L0Z VI M - NV1d SSANISNG d31 - #1906
66.'€ LLL 889'C aAoY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| 0L0Z NI M - SLSOD '90dd T¥YNYILNI 00S - €1906
916'S - 916'g dAOY - panoiddy | |10z ¥VIN| 6002 LOO MHvd HLMIH - 11906
9819 - 9819 BAIY - panouddy| L10Z 43S | 6002 LOO 3937700 L¥0ddNS #SH - 01906
969'€l - 969°€l dAIOY - panoiddy | |10z 03d| 0L0Z NI HLYON N3S - 80906
Lze'oe - L2e0g aAoY - panoiddy | €10z 93A| 6002 NN SHYOLS HOIH - 20906
2L - 4% BAIOY - panoiddy| 0L0Z LOO| 800Z NI HLNOS N3S - 90906
#5081 - ¥50°81 dAOY - panoiddy| 0L0Z LOO| 800Z NI SANVIM3A - 50906
oavL'L - ovL'L AAIOY - panoiddy | 0102 AON| 800Z NI ITVAY3ATIS - #0906
€91 - ¥€9°1 dAIOY - panoiddy| 0102 AON| 800Z NI 3901449 aT31IAM3N - 0906
1¢€¢ - 1€€ BAIY - parouddy| 0L0Z AON| 6002 INF LM - NV1d SS3ANISNG d31 - 20906
I - ) dAOY - panoiddy| 0102 d3S| 6002 NI LM - SLSOO "90¥4d TYNYILNI 00S - 10906
10€C - L0e'C BAIY - panouddy| Z10Z d3S| 6002 NVI d0d g4N43d - T13ISNVIN - 62506
85 - 785 dAOY - panoiddy | €102 LOO| 0102 ¥dVY SINOH SNIYATIHO - §5506
G0S°L 00} SOv'L aAoY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥YIN| 0102 HdY JAILVILINI SSIOOV STOOHOS - 87506
€2 oL (¥4 dAOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| 0102 ¥dY NOILV.INIWITdNI LSOd - 62106
207 LL 00%'} 0G5°L 191°) G8Z'L pajsenbay [eroiddy| 210z WVIN| 1102 ddV Z1-110Z VLIdvO A3ATOA3A 4S - 81706
6eL'e zL 199'€ dAOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥YIN| 6002 HdY dOd MOO0¥E ¥ITMO - 0£706
160 414 €8¢ aAoY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| 800Z NI IUNLONYLSYHANI - LHJ 4S9 - 19€06
€591 - €59'1 AAIOY - panoiddy | |10z d3S| 8002 NI 101 - 4S9 - £5€06
181 102 985 aAOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥YIN| 0102 HdY ATTIVA 3DHO0S - SAVMHOIH - 25£06
pu3 S
leyoL -8L0z 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 §L0zZ-¥102 y102- snjejs [erosddy 109/oid 108/01d|S000,3 Ul senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV :109loid / nun ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

IV, ¥ 90IAISS JO UOISIAIQ

IIVx € 90IAI9G JO UOISIAIQ

IV« 2 9IAISS JO UOISIAIQ

IV :l 90IAI9S JO UOISIAIQ

IV :901A8S

IV, :ejelojoaulq

31d03d ONNOA/N.QTIHO SSIOONS  Bwiwelbold
TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)

1obpng :edAL  ‘PasOID :SMEIS  ‘PUT YUO L AON SI0AD 195pNg - OF L :BPAD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

¢/1 abed a|doad BunoA ualpiyD |nyssaoong

Page 109



66

€/Z 9bed

a|doad BunoA ualpiyD |nyssaoong

Ge0'L 8SY vis 29 ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| €102 43S (520000) TVLIdVO 134 - ¥7206
v6L 8zy 19¢ BNV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| €102 HdV (090000) INNVHOOHd SHHOM Vi - €206
1514 £14 [ia% BAIPY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| €102 HdVY (090000) AT3IASNIT- D373 INIVIN ANd - 27206
[eiel> 9 6l€ ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| €102 HdV (090000) AOOMISIM - 0313 LNIVIN AN - L1206
00¢ ol 062 BAIPY - panouddy| 1.0z O3A| 8002 NVI (090000) FHOWITIHG-LONYLS LNIVIN AN - 07206
829 ¥4} 105 SNV - panouddy| ¥10Z 43S | €102 HdV (090000) IHOWITIHL-ONILYIH "LNIVIN ANd - 6€L06
60. 20l 109 aAoY - panoiddy | GL0Z YYIN| €102 HdVY (090000) AOOMMNYE - ONILYIH “LNIVIA AINd - 8206
00€'C vyl 819 6€C pajsenbay [eroiddy| GLOZ ONV| €L0Z NNP (190000) ATINE3Y - AYVNIYD SST1AVITO - €206
16G 8l €15 BAIY - panouddy| #1L0Z INF| €102 AVIN (090000) IOVId3Y ITFGON - Hvd SHILNNH - 9€206
09L'v 1€1°) 29T zse pajsenbay [eroiddy| 910z HVIN| €102 HdV INIWIOVIdIY AN MHVd MTOJHON - v€L06
29z 0 192 BV - panouddy| GL0Z HVIN| 210z 03d 30V1d3Y IGO0 - AWd IHNVLINI - €206
1el's 16€'C oee'e ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 2L0Z AON (190000) AV3IWHILYM - AINd M3N - 2€L06
609'G 00€‘2 60€'e 8y - panouddy| 1.0z 03d| 210Z AON (190000) IJHOHLYINNIMS - AN M3IN - LELOB
0S €¢ Ll aAIoY - panoiddy | ¥10Z ¥dV| 2102 d3S NOILOVHLX3 NOAV¥ - LNIVIN dVO - 0£206
125 (r1) LS BNV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 2102 NP (090000) AN WYTIVH - 0313 LNIVIN AN - 52206
€Sy z 14 BAIY - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| €102 HYIN (090000) 1 14040900~ ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - #2206
€6 8 926 ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 2102 INP (090000) 3INVT A9V~ IRNH LNIVIN AN - €2206
ey °14 8ty BAIPY - parouddy| ¥10Z d3S| 2102 "dVY (090000) SOM - “INIVIN ANd - 22206
297 8z yEY ANV - panoiddy| 102 HVIN| 2L0Z HdV (090000) 90Yd MOANIM - "LNIVIN ANd - 61206
886 (0) 886 BAIPY - parouddy| #10Z d3S| 2102 "dVY (090000) r ILYOAAT- ONILYIH "LNIVIN ANd - 21206
568 1€8 - 85 pajsenbay [eroiddy| 9102 HdV| 2102 HVYIN AYISHNN NIMO 3OVHO - 91206
1454 6l G6E BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| €102 AVIN (190000) AN 39AIMGILHONO - 29dd - §1206
Lvy 09¢ 18 ANV - panoiddy| GL0Z HYIN| L1L0Z O3d (190000) AW TTIH SIHOV - 29dd - 71206
059 €51 16¥ BV - panosddy| GLOZ HVIN| LLOZ AON (090000) N9IS3A 38 W'H - 60206
00Z‘} 8.0°) 44" aAIOY - panoiddy| GL0Z ¥dV| L10Z d3S JONVHNI ONISNOH Y34V ¥3LS04 - #0206
veg‘L 19 L9%°) BNV - panouddy| #1.0Z UVIN| LL0Z NP (090000) LOW NOILIANOD" LNIVIAl AINd - 26906
00¥ sz <725 AV - panoiddy| GL0Z NNF| LLOZ NP (090000) SHHOM AONIDHINT "LNIVIN ANd - 16906
o147 ! 544 BNV - parouddy| 102 NNF| LLOZ DNV (090000) SINOLSAIHD- D313 LNIVIA AN - 06906
€95 0 295 BAIY - parouddy| 10z NNF| LLOZ DNV (090000) ¥ AVMATVH- ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - 68906
%7 0 €ey aAIY - panouddy| 102 NNF| LLOZ DNV (090000) NOLHOIFE- ONILVIH LNIVIA AINd - 28906
81S 00} 8Ly pajsenbay [eroiddy| GL0Z HVIN| 800Z NV NOIS3A % ALITIGISY3S - 82906
112 - Y% ANV - panoiddy| 1.0Z HVIN| 0102 AON (€50000) IHYLINID LHOJS AOOMISIM - 22906
1Sy 0SL o€l 6v¢ 81zl oLo'e aAIoY - panoiddy| 810z WdV| 8002 NI ¥M - SLSOD 1OVHLINOD 008 - 6£906
8 - T8 dAOY - panoiddy | |LOZ ¥YIN| 8002 NI LM - SLSOD LOVHLNOD 00S - 8£906
v0l - Y0l aAoY - panoddy| L1L0Z NNF| 0L0Z NI SMOQAV3IN JLYOTOH - L£906
€l - €Ll dAOY - panoiddy | ZL0Z ¥YIN| 0L0Z NI MYVd FOVLIYIH - 96906
a4y’ - [44N" BAIY - panouddy| 210z UVIN| LL0Z HdVY aT3I41S3IM - G906
v52'C - ¥52' AAIOY - panoiddy | €102 ¥VYIN| 0L0Z ¥dVY NOLdVL - #€906
€5e°) - el BNV - panouddy| 210z UVIN| LLOZ NNP AYIHMOAV3IN - £€906
€slL'L - €G1°L ANV - panoiddy| €102 HYIN| LLOZ NNP (MO7) SAYVYMA3 ONIM - 26906
zeL) - zeL') BNV - panouddy| LLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z NNP 1439903 ONIM - LE906
L1V - LLLL aAIY - parouddy| 0L0Z O3A| 0L0Z NNP 3SNOH 3ANIH - 0£906
100°} - 200°} ANV - panouddy| €102 HVIN| 0L0Z HdV 101 ITVA HId - 62906
Ay - [Arard aAIoY - panoiddy | €10z ¥YIN| 0102 HdVY a71314S31003 - 82906
€982 152'C 209 ANV - panouddy| GLOZ HVYIN| L 1L0Z ¥VYIN (A¥VANOD3S)S30V1d TidNd 1.4aV - 22906
SOt'EL - SOv'El aAoY - paroiddy | 1.0z YYIN| 1102 ¥VYIN JINVA FHLON - 92906
191Gl Gl 51 dAOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VIN| 0L0Z LOO JONVYO HLHOMSANVH - §2906
8LL'6l 6¢ 6€L'61 BAIY - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| 0L0Z AVIN A3TdI9 - #2906
pu3 Vel
|ejoL -8102 8102-2102 1102-9102 9102-5102 GL0Z-¥102 ¥102- snjejs [eroiddy|  josloid 10801d|S000,3 Ul senjep
ainjipuadxy ainjipuadxy

Page 110



00k

62€'91L 6291 - pajsenbay [erolddy| 210z HVIN| 1102 HdV Z sud - ymol9 udod - pesN diseq - L90000
060°L (1) €0L°L BNV - panouddy| #1L0Z INF| 2102 NI (090000) INOHFAVHLS- ONILYIH LNIVIN ANd - L9¥16
S S pajsenbay [eroiddy| GL0Z 834 §L0Z NVl NOISN3LX3 - ISNOH 3ANIATY - 02206
€L €L pajsenbay [erolddy| GL0Z WVIN| §10Z NVI SHYOM AYANNS - ISNOH INIATY - 69206
000°L 066 oL aAIOY - panoiddy| 910z ¥VIN| GLOZ HVIN (190000) NOISNILX3 IDAIYEILHONO - 89206
sze sze - pajsenbay [erosddy| GLOZ ONV| SLOZ NV (090000) ONILYIH - AN AQYIHNDIZY - 99206
00€ 0S 0S¢ BAIY - panouddy| GL0Z d3S| 7102 DNV (090000) AYVIIYD AH4YAMAT IONIY - #9206
988'L 999'L 0ze pajsenbay [erosddy| 9L0Z YVYIN| ¥1L0Z NNP (190000) NOISNVdX3 NVMOY - €906
0508 050°} 0002 - pajsenbay [erouddy| 9L0Z 03A| ¥1L0Z NNP (190000) AYVIYH ATTSNIL - 29206
00L'9L £EV'8 60L'8 651 ANV - panouddy| GL0Z J3S| 102 NVl (190000) TOOHIS AITIVA NOQ - 19206
€19 €19 aAoY - panoiddy | GL0Z YYIN| #7102 UdY (090000) TYOINVHOIN - SINVANI ILYOAAT - 85206
6.0°L §.S €05 ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HYIN| 7102 HdV (090000) SGL/vL - INNVEOOE SHHOM V4 - 26206
00 00 aAoY - panoiddy| GL0Z NVF| #7102 ¥V (090000) FRINH AN ATTHIVM - dINOd - 95206
ole'L ale'l AAIOY - panoiddy | L0z LOO| 102 NVI (SLNVANI) AO¥d INS4- NOISNVJX3 - 65206
602 861 L aAoY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| €102 AON (090000) OV1d3Y HINOG AUVINIED ATII4YYO - #5206
454 S0y L BAIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VYIN| 102 NI (190000) NLX3 WOOHSSYTO OML - ASTONOT - €5206
86T 44 9 dAIOY - panoiddy | GLOZ ¥VYIN| 102 NI (090000) 30V1d3Y TGO - NIIHD YIHLIAN - 25206
6.€ 29¢ Ll AAIOY - panoiddy | 7102 AON| #7102 NVI (090000) I0V1d3Y ITGON - IDAIMESHOOLS - L5206
LLL (r1) 98l AV - panouddy| GLOZ HVIN| €102 AVIN (090000) ONILYIH ALINNININOD MT1O4HON - 05206
095 155 € aAIY - panouddy| #10Z 43S | €102 AON (190000) NOISNVAX3 NYNOFGAM - 67206
0€ 74 9 AV - panoiddy| GL0Z HVIN| €102 AON (190000) (€) LSV HLYON AYVINI¥d M3N - 817206
0L0'e 0ze'e 289 8 pajsenbay [erosddy| 9102 YVIN| €102 AON (190000) NOILYHYNOIANODIY WV TIVH - L7206
geL'e 20L'C 12¥ S ANV - panoiddy| 9102 HVIN| €102 AON (190000) NOISNVAX3 SINOLSATHO - 97206
006 09/ 04 pajsenbay [eroiddy| 9102 WVIN| #1L0Z NP LINN 378I1SS300V I9AIYENYOHL - §7206
pu3 uels
[el0L -810¢2 8102-L102 £102-9102 9102-G10¢2 GL02-7102 7102- snjejg eroiddy|  josloid|  308loid|s000,3 Ul seniep

¢/ abed a|doad BunoA ualpiyD |nyssaoong

Page 111



10}

AAOY - panoiddy | GL0Z ¥VIN| 2L0Z ¥dY 9079 ALINNWINOD MNVEOONIM 180 - L7616
puz Hels
el -810¢ 8102-L10C £102-9102 9102-5102 §102-¥102 ¥10¢- snjejs |eroiddy 109l01d 109014 |$000,3 Ul sanfep

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV, 198l01d / 1un ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

Vs ¥ @0IAI9S JO UoIsIAg

IV, i€ 82IAIBS JO UOISINIQ

IV, :Z @018 JO UoISIAg

IV, :1 821G JO UOISINIQ

[\YARRCSIIVETS

IV, :ejelojoaulq

SIILINNWINOD FYNOIS ® 34VS swwelboid

TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)

1obpng :edAL  ‘PasOID :SMEIS  ‘PUT YUO L AON SI0AD 195pNg - OF L :BPAD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

1/1 abed SUNWWOY 9IN09S djes

Page 112



4003

pajsenbay [erosddy| £L0Z YVYIN| L1L0Z NNP

(5¥0000) ONIYILIN - HA - 19626

[ejoL

1/| obed

-8102

810¢-2102

£102-9102

9102-5102

§102-¥102

102

puz Heis
snjejs [enosddy 108foid 103014 [S000,3 Ul senjep

lesodsiq 06 - buluue|d Jo8lold 0} :ebels

SUOISIOA [BAOIDAY pa)senbay Jo paroiddy  :snjejs [eAosddy
IV, 198l01d / 1un ssauisng

IV, Jebeuepy

Vs ¥ @0IAI9S JO UoIsIAg

IV, i€ 82IAIBS JO UOISINIQ

IV, :Z @018 JO UoISIAg

IV, :1 821G JO UOISINIQ

[\YARRCSIIVETS

IV, :ejelojoaulq

SN 00S YONI/ALYIAO ONITHOVL swwelboid
TMONNOD ALID @13I443HS 10000 :Auedwio)

1obpng :edAL  ‘PasOID :SMEIS  ‘PUT YUO L AON SI0AD 195pNg - OF L :BPAD

1 Jouiqe) jenuuy / Joday Alewwing

aolsnr [e1oos Buisealou| / Auanod Bulpoe |

Page 113



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 114



FORM 2

SHEFFIELD CITY COUNCIL

Sheffield Cabinet Report

City Council

Report of: The Chief Executive and Executive Director, Resources
Report to: Cabinet

Date: 11 February 2015

Subject: Revenue Budget for 2015/16

Author of Report: Eugene Walker, Acting Executive Director of Resources

Key Decision: YES

Reason Key Decision:  Expenditure/savings over £500,000

Affects 2 or more wards

Summary:
The City Council on 6 March 2015 meets to consider the Revenue Budget for
2015/16 and to determine the Council Tax for that year

The report provides information to enable the Council to set a budget and
determine the Council Tax.

The proposals set out in this report provide for a balanced budget to be
recommended to Council.

Reasons for Recommendations:
Please see above

Form 2 — Executive Report Page 115 January 2014



Recommendations:
The report contains recommendations to Council on 6 March 2015

Background Papers:

Category of Report: OPEN

If CLOSED add ‘Not for publication because it contains exempt information
under Paragraph (insert relevant paragraph number) of Schedule 12A of
the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).’

Page 116 Page 2 of 3



Statutory and Council Policy Checklist

Financial Implications

YES Cleared by: Mike Thomas

Legal Implications

YES: see Legal Advice section of report

Equality of Opportunity Implications

YES

Tackling Health Inequalities Implications

NO

Human Rights Implications

NO

Environmental and Sustainability implications

NO

Economic Impact

NO

Community Safety Implications

NO

Human Resources Implications

NO

Property Implications

NO

Area(s) Affected

NO

Relevant Cabinet Portfolio Lead

ClIr Ben Curran

Relevant Scrutiny Committee

Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee

Is the item a matter which is reserved for approval by the City Council?

YES

Press Release

YES

Page 117 Page 3 of 3



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 118



BUDGET REPORT 2015/16

Contents

LiSt Of APPENAICES .....ceiiiiiieiiii ettt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2
PUrpose Of the REPOIT ... ... i 3
Budget ConSURALION ........ooiiiee e 3
Medium Term Financial Strategy .........oooooii e 8
Autumn Statement 2014 ... ————————————————————— 10
Local Government Finance Settlement ..o 11
BUSINESS RaAtES INCOME.......iiii e 16
COUNCI TAX INCOMIB....eiieiieiiieieeee ettt ettt e e e e e e e e e e e aaaeaaeeaaaaeaaans 21
Business Planning for 2015/16 ... 23
Formulation of the budget for 2015/16 ... 24
Savings proposals for 2015/16 ... 30
Revenue Budget position for 2014/15 ... ... 30
BalanCes and RESEIVES .......coooi oo 31
RiISK Management ... ..ot 31
S 1 31
Portfolio Revenue Spending Plans for 2015/16 ............oovviiiiiieeeieeeeeeeee e 32
Financing the 2015/16 Budget Requirement ... 49
e L=T0T=Y o < J PR 52

South Yorkshire Police and Fire & Civil Defence Authorities............ccccuveieiieeeeeenn.n. 52

Parish and TOWN COUNCIIS ..........ouuiiiiiiiiii i e e e eeeees 52
[T = 7o LY o 53
Responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer.......... ... 53
Housing Revenue Account (HRA) BUAGet ..........ovvmiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieieeeeeeeeee e 54
The OUIOOK TOr 2016/17 ...t e e eeeeas 54
Treasury Management Strate@gy .........eee e 55
Financial ImplCatioNS...........ui i 56
WOrkfOrce IMPaCL..... ..ot e e 56
PAY POICY ...ttt 57
MeMDErS” AlIOWANCES ......uuiiiie e e e e e e e e et e e e e eeas 57
EQUAIItY IMPACL.....c e 58

(@70 o 10 ] L =1 1o o 1RSSR 60

AssessmeNnt Of IMPACT ........ccoooiiiiiii e 61

What do we already KNOW?.........ooooi i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 62

Fairness and Equalities Impact Overview................cceeeeiiiiiiiiiiiiiicceee e 63

Portfolio Area Impact ASSESSMENTS.......cooiiiiiiiiiiii e 66

CuMUIALIVE IMPACT ... .o e e et e e e e e e e e e e eeeeees 73
ReCOMMENAALIONS ... e e e e e e 77

Page 119



List of Appendices

Reference Section Detail Page
Number
Appendix 1 Portfolio Pressures 79-80
Appendix 2 | Portfolio Budget Implementation Plans
2a: CYPF 81-121
2b: Communities 123-159
2c: Place 161-185
2d: Policy Performance & Communications 187-194
2e: Resources 195-220
Appendix 3 | Summary Budget for 2015/16 221
Appendix 4 | Reserves Strategy 223-231
Appendix 5 | Risk Register 233-240
Appendix 6 | Council Tax determinations See note
below
Appendix 7 | Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategy,
including The Prudential Code and Prudential Indicators 241-270
Appendix 8 | Pay Policy for 2015/16 271-281
Appendix 9 | Equality Impact Assessments 283-322
Appendix 10 | Glossary of Terms 323-326

Note — Appendix 6 will be included in the revenue budget report to Full Council on 6

March 2015.

Page 120




2015/16 REVENUE BUDGET
REPORT OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE AND THE EXECUTIVE
DIRECTOR, RESOURCES
Purpose of the Report
1.  The purpose of this report is to:

e approve the City Council’s revenue budget for 2015/16, including the position
on reserves and balances;

e approve a 2015/16 Council Tax for the City Council; and

¢ note the levies and precepts made on the City Council by other authorities.

Budget Consultation

2. As part of the development of options for the 2015/16 budget, the Council ran a
budget conversation between October and January that included a range of
consultation activity with local people and partner organisations. This has
helped us to ensure that the proposals that we are putting forward have been
shaped by people who may be affected by decisions taken as part of the
budget, and to ensure that they have had an opportunity to put forward other
ideas for consideration.

3. In line with our values as an organisation, we have used consultation to inform
people about our proposals, provide the opportunity to give feedback, make
suggestions and let people know how their feedback has helped to influence
our thinking. In this way we have attempted to ensure that our consultation
activity is meaningful and appropriate at all times. Our budget consultation
activity has had two main strands this year:

e Two large corporate budget conversation events in the Town Hall,
supplemented by additional activity, including a survey

e Detailed consultation on particular topics and specific proposals

Corporate Consultation

4. Budget priorities have also been heavily shaped by consultation activity
undertaken over recent years that has consistently confirmed public support for
protecting services for the most vulnerable. This year public feedback on our
guiding principles has supported our approach to:

e operate efficiently as an organisation

Page 121



e develop solutions for the longer term

o take early preventative action

e focus on people with the greatest need; and

e work with our communities to deliver services in a different way.

These findings have been developed by both budget and non-budget related
activity. This includes consultation that informed proposals in last year’s budget
and where implementation is being phased over two years in areas such as
libraries, reviews and assessments in Adult Social Care, and changes to
supported housing funding. The first of the large budget conversation events in
the Town Hall was held in October 2014 and gave an opportunity for the
Council to explain the scale of reductions we are facing to members of the
public and our partners, to set out our approach to making the reductions, and
to invite initial feedback on our approach. The open event was attended by
over 140 people from partner agencies, representatives of community groups
and voluntary organisations, as well as members of the public.

The second event, held in January 2015, was attended by around 100 members
of the public, and gave us an opportunity to describe our budget proposals in
more detail, and included workshops led by each of the Cabinet Members to
discuss some of the most significant proposals in their areas of responsibility.
To supplement the public events, we also invited feedback on our proposals
through the Council’s website (see www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget). We also
produced a short animated video (available at www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget)
designed to broaden understanding of the budget challenge, our approach and
we used this alongside social media to signpost people to the consultation, as
well as posting each of the presentations given at the events on the Council’s
website. The video was widely promoted via social media and received several
thousand hits, significantly expanding the reach of our budget conversation
compared to previous years.

The public events and the survey elicited an extensive range of comments
which helped to inform our overall thinking on the budget. These included
requests for further information and explanations, along with people’s views on
financial and resource issues covering capital and revenue budgets and how
they are spent; the Government’s approach to cuts; flexibility over charging and
contracts; public sector collaboration and shared services; the importance of
prevention work in housing & social care; support for addressing health
inequalities with and for local people; focussing on providing the infrastructure

Page 122



10.

11.

and environment to encourage growth and investment; make the Council’s
assets more productive and more resilient to provide financial relief in the short-
term and reduce a reliance on fossil fuels in the long term; using existing assets
to encourage enterprise and wealth creation in Sheffield; supporting residents to
become less dependent and more independent of grants and support; reducing
the numbers of councillors and their remuneration; recovery of monies owed to
the council and further efficiencies; staff pay, sickness and pensions; and
Council tax levels.

People asked about the extent to which the most vulnerable can be protected;
how communities could be helped to support themselves; and the role of the
voluntary and community sector. There were also discussions in relation to the
impact of devolution, retention of business rates, and the potential creation of
investment funds; the balance between longer term prevention and reactive
work; what delivering services in a different way might mean for fair access, and
distribution and quality of services; and the cumulative impact of savings over
the last four years and the consequences of these.

We also invited people to provide ideas on ways to reduce spend, generate
income, or do things differently to allow us to continue to provide services whilst
maintaining a balanced budget. Suggestions ranged from brief comments to
extensive commentaries covering a range of possible approaches. Some
mirrored comments raised in the public events such as suggestions for reducing
spend through cutting management and staffing costs, more efficiency reviews
and greater use of digital communications. Others included stopping road
alterations, further reducing libraries and encouraging greater recycling and
fewer collections.

Ideas for generating income included: more proactive collection of monies owed
to the Council and charging market rates for services; introducing a local lottery
to raise funds for the voluntary and community sector; increasing advertising
and sponsorship of council assets; early payment discounts; better use of the
higher education institutions and colleges to harness ambition and work to
retain students for a longer period; increasing council tax; growing the tourist
economy; increasing transport charges and fines for littering; and being more
business friendly and growing business in the city.

Views on doing things differently included more local procurement; using better
products for repairs so reducing perceived false economies; getting better value
from contractors and reducing outsourcing; reducing dependency on benéefits;

exploring community sector delivery of services; better partnership working, e.g.

Page 123



12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

health and social care; improving Special Educational Needs (SEN) provision;
and increasing the use of technology.

People also gave their views on the draft proposals presented by Members at
the second public event. These comments, and the responses to them, are
available on the Council’s budget webpages.

More detail on the points raised by people during this consultation event are
available on the Council’'s website at www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget. This
information has been carefully considered by officers and Members in
developing and refining the budget proposals.

Topic and service-based consultation

Alongside our corporate budget conversation, we have also consulted with
people about proposals on particular themes or in specific areas. This
consultation has taken many forms, depending both on the nature of the
proposal and which service users and communities are likely to be affected. In
general terms, proposals that were assessed as having a higher impact were
subject to more detailed consultation. This has ranged from public meetings, to
individual discussions with providers and customers, to surveys and
questionnaires. Three areas of significant consultation activity are highlighted
below.

We have in the past been able to protect spend, in relative terms, on areas like
adult social care. Although we continue to prioritise support to the most
vulnerable and those at risk, the continued reductions in government funding
and continuing demand pressures have meant that this is no longer possible as
the reductions in other areas would be likely to lead to these services becoming
unsustainable. We have therefore spent a great deal of time talking to service
users and providers about our proposals in adult social care, as this represents
a significant area of change from current service provision. Consultation on the
Learning Disabilities Commissioning Strategy has taken place with service
users, providers and stakeholders to establish principles and overarching
commissioning intentions, in order to enable the development of future specific
learning disability budget proposals.

In Children, Young People and Families services, significant initial consultation
and discussion with service users as part of the review of short break and
respite services took place over April-September 2014. Consultation also
included staff, providers and children and young people. A second stage
consultation commenced on 27 January as proposals were developed.

Page 124



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

Similarly, consultation with Sheffield Futures on the Youth Service contract
started in August 2014, with staff consultation starting in October 2014 for both
Sheffield Futures and Sheffield City Council employees. Final consultation with
young people, parents and communities is anticipated to complete in January
2015. The consultation outcomes are being used to update the Equalities
Impact Assessment, and will be communicated to Members ahead of final
decisions being taken.

More broadly, the following examples illustrate the breadth of other consultation
activity across all areas of the Council with consultation taking place with
Friends of Parks Groups and local residents on the future of urban nature parks;
and with business and organisations such as the Chamber of Commerce on an
alternative delivery model for Marketing Sheffield. We have consulted with
voluntary and community groups to establish the likely impact of funding
reductions in grants, and with providers about reductions to the Community
Wellbeing Programme.

Consultation on proposals will not stop once the budget has been agreed by
Members. Further consultation with those affected individuals, groups,
organisations and staff will take place throughout the year as decisions are
implemented through the Council’s usual governance processes — this will
include, for example, highways maintenance provision following negotiations on
our contract with Amey; with residents and businesses on the Council’s
approach to online self-service as the preferred channel for customer enquiries;
and on a range of proposals in adult social care provision, e.g. community
support service, home support, small adaptations and independent living
solutions; and the proposed review of the Public Health Grant contribution to
mental health provision in line with the Council’s wider re-commissioning of
mental health services. We remain committed to making sure that people have
the opportunity to comment on and influence proposals, particularly where
services may change or reduce.

All the results of consultation activity will be taken into account when making
individual decisions on the proposals. In some cases this consultation activity is
not yet complete and therefore firm proposals will be subject to further decision-
making in line with the Council’s usual governance processes.

More information about our approach to consulting on the various budget
proposals can be found in individual service ElAs.

Page 125



Medium Term Financial Strategy

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

On 15 October 2014 Cabinet considered a report of the Executive Director,
Resources entitled Medium Term Financial Strategy (MTFS) 2015/16 to
2019/20. This report provided an update of the Council’s MTFS to reflect the
budget decision of the Council for 2014/15 and the potential impact on the next
5 years of the Government’s plans for deficit reduction. This report set the
planning scenario for the medium term.

The report on the MTFS indicated that there would be reductions in Revenue
Support Grant (RSG) of up to £45m (or 28%) in 2015/16 and a further £11m (or
10%) in 2016/17. The assumption for 2015/16 was based on a Technical
Consultation on the Finance Settlement for 2015/16 issued by the Government
on 22 July 2014.

It was also forecast in the MTFS report that reductions in RSG of 10% per
annum would occur in the years from 2017/18 onwards. Reductions of this
scale have become the norm in funding for Government departments with the
majority of public services reduced by this percentage in the spending plans for
2015/16. However, it is important to note that the Government has not provided
any details regarding local government funding beyond March 2016. It is likely
that there will be a spending review once the outcome of the 2015 general
election is known.

As well as the RSG reduction, a series of assumptions around business rates
income were made:

e The Council’s locally retained share of business rates income would
increase by £6m in 2015/16, and;

e The Council would receive compensation for the 2% cap on the small
business rate multiplier in 2015/16 (equivalent to £2.5m).

In addition to these funding assumptions, the Council faced additional corporate
expenditure of up to £3.5m. This primarily included:

e additional Streets Ahead costs (£1.8m),

e provision for funding the increased pension contributions as a result of the
2013 actuarial review (£1m),

e provision for funding debt charges in relation to the New Retail Quarter
(£1m), offset by;

Page 126



27.

28.

e reductions in capital financing costs (£1.6m).

There was also the issue of rising costs faced by Portfolios due to variations in
inflation, new burdens legislation and levels of demand, particularly in social
care services. It was proposed that the approach to be taken regarding
pressures would be the same as that adopted previously, i.e. that portfolios
would be required to manage their pressures from within existing resources and
where necessary they would be required to identify offsetting savings.

The overall forecast picture for Sheffield City Council was for a potential
shortfall of around £38m in 2015/16 rising to a cumulative shortfall of £78m by
2019/20, not including portfolio cost and demand pressures. The final position
shown later in the MTFS report is that £63m of savings are required — including
savings to offset portfolio cost and demand pressures — in order to balance the
budget for 2015/16. The MTFS indicated that in order to achieve a balanced
budget position over a three 3 year period savings proposals needed to be
identified that were equivalent to a reduction of 15% in 2015/16, 10% in 2016/17
and 10% in 2017/18.

Better Care Fund

29.

30.

As shown in table 3 further on in this report, the Council currently receives
funding via the NHS to meet some of the costs of providing adult social care.
The allocation to Sheffield is shown in the spending power figures as amounting
to £12.4m in 2014/15.

The MTFS report also referred to announcements made in the June 2013
Spending Review (SR13) and their potential impact on the City Council. SR13
included the creation of a £3.8 billion pooled budget from April 2015 for health
and social services to work more closely together. This is to be referred to as
the Better Care Fund. In preparation for the move to pooled budgets in
2015/16, an extra £200m was transferred from the NHS to local authorities in
2014/15 (£2.7m of which was allocated to Sheffield) to ensure that change can
start immediately through investment in new systems and ways of working.
These initiatives are referred to later in this report.

Approach to balancing the budget

31.

The overall approach to balancing the budget has involved using the strategic
outcome model that the Council has adopted in previous years and which has
assisted in developing strategic proposals that have achieved a greater
alignment of priorities and resources. Strategic Outcomes are an important

Page 127



statement of how the Council achieves its priorities and give important direction
and prioritisation for the authority.

Autumn Statement 2014

32.

33.

34.

35.

36.

The Chancellor delivered his Autumn Statement (AS2014) to Parliament on 3
December 2014. Looking at the projections made in AS2014, departmental
spending is scheduled to continue to fall in 2016/17 and 2017/18 at the same
rate as has occurred in this Parliament, suggesting that there could be more
budget reductions beyond 2015/16.

AS2014 did not include any analysis of spending impacts down to Department
level. It is possible to make comparisons of total forecast Departmental
Expenditure Limits between the data released alongside the Budget 2014 and
AS2014, from which extrapolations about potential spending cuts beyond
2015/16 could be made. However, such extrapolations would be purely
speculative because it is not clear for example which departments (other than
Health, Education and perhaps International Development) will be protected
from cuts in the future.

AS2014 did include the Government’s announcement about its commitment to a
long-term review of business rates, the outcome of which will be reported back
by March 2016, with terms of reference to be published in due course. Although
no specific details were provided, the AS2014 report did state that “the review
will be fiscally neutral and consistent with the government’s agreed financing of
local authorities”.

A short-term business rates administration review was conducted in April 2014,
the interim findings of which were published shortly after AS2014. The findings
included a summary of the government’s proposals to address businesses’
concerns regarding clearer billing, better sharing of information and a more
efficient appeals process.

The Chancellor re-affirmed a number of commitments he made in the 2013
Autumn Statement, namely to extend the doubling of Small Business Rates
Relief and to continue the 2% cap on the RPI increase in the business rate
multiplier to the end of 2015/16. He also announced that the £1,000 business
rates discount for shops, pubs, cafes and restaurants with a rateable value of
£50,000 or below, will be increased to £1,500 in 2015/16. The Council is fully
compensated for its share of business rates foregone as a result of these
measures, so the impact is cost neutral.

Page 128

10



37.

The AS2014 does have the potential to create opportunities for Sheffield’s
growth and reform activity with a specific focus around the economies of
northern cities and a number of key announcements (Sir Henry Royce Institute;
major road and rail investment). On the public service reform agenda, there are
a number of key references to greater public service integration, including in
health and social care (multi-year budgets for local authorities and Clinical
Commissioning Groups from the next Spending Review) and health and
employment (for instance, supporting people with mental health conditions to
find employment).

Local Government Finance Settlement

38.

39.

40.

The Government announced details of the Provisional Local Government
Finance Settlement for 2015/16 on 18 December 2014. Unlike previous years,
the 2015/16 Settlement did not include indicative figures for the 2016/17
financial year because 2015/16 is the final year of the current Parliament, after
which it will be for a new Government to determine a new Settlement for Local
Government, following the General Election in May 2015.

With the introduction of the business rates retention scheme in April 2013,
Finance Settlements now include a “Settlement Funding Assessment” (SFA)
which represents each local authority’s share of the overall local government
spending control total, i.e. the total amount the Government plans to spend in
respect of local government.

The SFA comprises the following elements:

e The Business Rates Baseline funding: the Government’s estimate of each
local authority’s 50% share of business rate income which is then adjusted
via a system of top up grants or tariffs to arrive at a Business Rates
Baseline Funding level for each local authority, and;

e Revenue Support Grant which includes some of the funding allocations
that have been specific grants in the past.

Settlement Funding Assessment for 2015/16

41.

The Settlement included a reduction in the SFA of approximately £40m in
2015/16. Although the overall reduction in SFA is broadly as expected, there
are variations within the components:

Page 129

1"



The business rates baseline is £3.8m less than assumed in the MTFS. The
Government’s estimate of the business rates baseline is simply based on the
increase in the multiplier (which is capped at 2%), whereas the Council also
took into account factors such as growth in the number of properties liable to
business rates as well as a reduction in the provision for appeals.

The level of RSG in 2015/16 is marginally worse than assumed in the MTFS,
once the inclusion of the Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2014/15 — which was
paid as a specific grant in 2014/15 — is taken into account.

42. The comparison between 2014/15 and 2015/16 is set out below:

Table 1
Actual Provisional Difference
2014/15 2015/16
£000 £000 £000
Revenue Support Grant 157,460 114,749 -42,711
Baseline Business Rates Funding
Local Share of Business Rates 100,593 102,517 1,924
Top Up Grant 28,342 28,883 541
Total Settlement Funding Assessment 286,395 246,149 -40,246

43. The amount that is allocated to each local authority as SFA has two component
parts:

A formula funding allocation that is based on complex formulae to reflect the
relative needs and resources of local authorities. This formula involves data
sets that include 2011 based population projections and council tax
projections. A floor damping mechanism exists to limit the impact that
movements in data and formulae have on individual authorities, and;

Grants that were previously allocated as specific grants and which now have
been “rolled up” into RSG and Business Rates Baseline funding. This

mechanism was introduced in order to provide the facility for the Government
to make the overall Spending Review reductions in local government funding.

44. The elements in SFA are shown below:

Page 130

12



45.

46.

Table 2

RSG Baseline Total
2015/16 2015/16 2015/16

£000 £000 £000
Upper Tier Funding 76,240 97,182 173,422
Lower Tier Funding 13,430 18,503 31,933

Grants rolling in:

Council Tax Freeze Compensation Part 1 2,837 2,042 4879
Early Intervention Funding 7,558 7,378 14,936
Homelessness Prevention Funding 293 215 508
Lead Local Flood Authority Funding 76 56 132
Learning Disability and Health Reform Funding 8,572 6,024 14,596
Council Tax Freeze Compensation Part 2 3,882 0 3,882
Local Welfare Provision 1,861 0 1,861
Total SFA 114,749 131,400 246,149

It should be noted that the Government adjusts some of the figures for grants

rolling into RSG and the business rates baseline, purportedly for the purposes

of like-for-like comparisons. What this means is that the figure quoted in the
Government’s settlement figures does not always bear any resemblance to the
actual specific grant received in the previous year. A good example is the Local
Welfare Provision Grant which, according to DCLG settlement figures as per
Table 2 above, will be rolled up into RSG at £1.861m. However, as shown in
Table 3 below, the actual amount paid to the Council in 2014/15 was £2.472m.

Specific Grants

The overall impact of the Local Government Finance Settlement will include
variations in the level of specific grants that will be allocated to the City Council.
Although the majority of funding is now allocated through the Formula Funding
process, there remain a number of specific grants from Government in support
of service delivery costs. The table below shows the grants that the Council
has taken into account when setting the 2015/16 revenue budget. The majority
of these grants are already included in Portfolio/Service budgets and the
proposals set out in the budget implementation plans.

Page 131

13



Table 3

Actual Budget Variance
2014/15 2015/16

£000 £000 £000
Council Tax Freeze Grant 2014/15 1,968 0 -1,968
Local Welfare Provision Grant 2,472 0 2472
Housing Benefit Admin Grant 3,868 3,564 -304
Council Tax Support New Burdens Funding 270 124 -146
Local Services Support Grant 0 53 53
NHS Funding 12,399 0 -12,399
Better Care Fund 0 37,783 37,783
Public Health 30,748 30,748 0
Business Rates Top Up Grant 28,342 28,883 541
S31 Grant for Business Rate Cap 2014/15 & 2015/16 1,079 1,916 837
S31 Grants for Business Rate Reliefs 0 3,100 3,100
Adult Social Care New Burdens (starting in 2015/16) 0 2,644 2,644
Total 81,146 108,815 27,669
Less:
Adult Social Care New Burdens (starting in 2015/16) 0 -2,644
Better Care Fund 0 -37,783
Adjust:
Local Welfare Provision Grant -2,472 0
NHS Funding 0 12,399
Revised total 78,674 80,787 2,113

47. The overall net increase in specific grants of £2.1m for 2015/16 reflects the
following key changes:

o Council Tax Freeze Grant (CTFG): the Council accepted the Grant for
2014/15 and included £1.968m in its revenue budget for that year. However
this is no longer a specific grant in 2015/16. As CTFG has effectively
become a one-off source of funding, acceptance of CTFG can no longer be
viewed as a sustainable strategy. The Council is proposing to increase
council tax up to the local referendum limit of 2%, hence it will not be eligible
for CTFG in 2015/16.

o Local Welfare Provision Grant: this is being removed from April 2015. This
currently amounts to £2.472m and funds the Council’s welfare assistance
scheme.

° Compensation for business rates capping: the 2013 Autumn Statement
capped the increase in the business rates multiplier (the rate in the £ that

Page 132

14



businesses pay) to 2% in 2014/15 and 2015/16. The business rates
retention scheme that was established in April 2013 uplifts the Business
Rates Baseline by RPI and this was therefore expected to increase by
approximately 2.8% for 2014/15 and 2.3% for 2015/16. The Government will
continue to compensate local authorities for this difference. For Sheffield the
compensation is expected to amount to £1.916m in 2015/16.

Compensation for business rates reliefs: as compensation for business rates-
related measures introduced and/or extended in the 2013 Autumn Statement,
the Council expects to receive a number of grants including Small Business
Rates Relief (£2.5m), Retail Relief (£500k) and Empty New Build Relief
(£100Kk).

Adult Social Care New Burdens funding: the Government will provide
£2.644m of new funding for Sheffield to cover additional statutory
responsibilities as a result of the Care Act.

Better Care Fund: contrary to what is implied in the Settlement figures, the
Council will not receive £37.8m from the Better Care Fund; this figure
represents the total amount of the pooled budget shared with the NHS, and
the actual amount which the Council will receive from the BCF is subject to
ongoing discussions with the Clinical Commissioning Group. NHS funding to
support social care will be amalgamated into the BCF.

Numerous independent commentators have stated that it is misleading on
the part of the Government to quote the full amount for BCF in spending
power figures because it masks the underlying reduction in RSG. CIPFA for
example has been quoted as stating that the government’s spending power
presentation is “disingenuous” and massively underplays the “true size and
scope of the cuts”, which it says amount to more than three times the official
government figure.

Independent Living Fund (ILF): The ILF scheme is currently administered by
Department for Work & Pensions (DWP) and delivers financial support to
disabled people so they can choose to live in their communities rather than in
residential care. The scheme will close on 30 June 2015, after which point
the responsibility for service users will transfer to local authorities. No official
confirmation of funding to support the transfer of responsibilities from DWP to
local authorities was provided in the December 2014 Settlement, hence it
does not appear in Table 3 above. It is understood that funding will be paid
as a so-called Section 31 grant from DCLG, which normally means that the

Page 133

15



48.

49.

grant is not ring-fenced. The current estimate for the Council in 2015/16 is
around £2m, and this figure has been used for the purposes of setting the
budget for the Communities portfolio on the basis that this funding will be
earmarked for ILF activity.

Public Health Grant: the Government announced in the December 2014
Settlement that £30.7m of Public Health grant would be allocated to the
Council. A further £3.5m will be allocated to the Council in 2015/16, along
with a transfer of responsibilities from the NHS with effect from October 2015.
These responsibilities will include health visitor services for children aged 5
years and under. This additional funding has not been shown in Table 3
above because it has not yet been officially confirmed.

The position above does not include various education-related grants such as
Education Services Grant (ESG) and Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG), the
majority of which is “passported” to schools. The provisional DSG settlement
amounts to £377m for Sheffield, of which it is currently estimated that £320m
will be passported directly to schools. The remaining funding is used to provide
early years activities and statutory educational services. The final settlement for
DSG will be received in the spring.

The New Homes Bonus (NHB) was introduced in 2011 as an incentive for local
authorities to build new homes and bring back into use those which have been
unoccupied for more than six months. The NHB allocation has increased from
£6m in 2014/15 to £7.4m in 2015/16. This variation is not included in the
assessment of the revenue budget position because it would not be prudent to
use time-limited funds such as NHB to sustain long-term commitments. The
Council has decided to use NHB to fund projects which help make sites
available to developers to encourage new housing developments or bring long
term empty properties back into use. NHB is therefore used mainly on capital
projects but some projects are used to enhance services normally funded
through the revenue budget. NHB-funded projects are approved on a case by
case basis and for a specific time period.

Business Rates income

50.

Prior to 2013/14 local authorities collected business rates on behalf of the
Government and the amount was redistributed as part of the Formula Funding
mechanism. As a result of the Government’s Business Rates Retention
scheme, which was introduced in April 2013, the Council continues to collect all
of the business rates in its area, but it is allowed to keep a share (49%). The

Page 134

16



51.

52.

53.

54.

remaining portion is paid over to Government (50%) and South Yorkshire Fire
Authority (1%). The Council therefore has a strong incentive to maximise this
source of income in order to mitigate the impact of reductions in RSG.

The amount of business rates an individual authority is capable of collecting
differs significantly across the country depending on its location and certain
characteristics. For example, relatively prosperous areas will expect to collect
more business rates because their billing areas will include a large proportion of
business premises with high rents and therefore high rateable values. In
contrast to this, authorities in regions of relatively high deprivation will expect to
collect less in business rates because their billing areas are likely to comprise a
large proportion of small business premises with low rents and therefore low
rateable values which are subject to small business rate relief.

In order to counteract this national imbalance, the Government has introduced a
system of top-ups and tariffs to re-distribute business rates across the country.
Authorities with a relatively high level of business rates pay a tariff into a
national pot which is then used to pay top-ups to those authorities with relatively
low levels of business rates. The Government has set the level of tariffs and
top-ups for a period of at least seven years with effect from April 2013, although
top-ups and tariffs will increase by inflation over that period.

The Council is required to provide an estimate of how much business rate
income it will collect and therefore how much it will rely upon in setting the
budget for 2015/16. The basis for doing so is set out on a statutory return
called an NNDR1 which the Council is required to submit to Government. This
will involve the Council’'s own assumptions about growth (if any) in the amount
to be collected, the losses on collection, the levels of refunds that may be given
and the levels of outstanding appeals. All of these carry significant risk and will
involve assumptions about performance in 2015/16 that will be based on
experience of recent years and the use of the most up to date information
available.

The first assumption which the Council needs to make is the number of
business premises in Sheffield that are liable for business rates. The NNDR1
asks authorities to use 30 September 2014 as the starting point; on this basis, it
is estimated that the number of business premises in Sheffield that are liable for
business rates is 18,161 (17,602 as at 30 September 2013) with an aggregate
rateable value of £533.965m (£530.083m as at 30 September 2013). This
includes two parts of the city where special rules apply.

Page 135

17



New Development Deal and Enterprise Zone

55.

56.

57.

As shown in the table below, the parts of the city referred to as the New
Development Deal and Enterprise Zone account for less than 2% of the
aggregate rateable value of the city. However, both parts of the city are
significant because any growth in business rates above the “baseline”
established in 2013/14 can be retained in full locally, rather than half being
repaid to Government. On the NNDR1, they are called “Designated Areas”.

The New Development Deal, which is within the section of the city centre
earmarked for the New Retail Quarter, is expected to see substantial long-term
growth in business rates, which will be re-invested to improve the infrastructure
of the city centre. Sheffield is one of only three authorities in England who have
successfully applied for this status as part of the Government’s programme of
city deals, the other two being Newcastle and Nottingham.

The Enterprise Zone is located at the Advanced Manufacturing Park off the
Parkway. Businesses which choose to re-locate to enterprise zones can
receive several financial incentives. The Government also allows the Council to
passport all business rates over and above the 2013/14 baseline to the Local
Enterprise Partnership (or in Sheffield’s case, the Combined Authority) which
then decides how those receipts should be invested. In 2015/16, the amount
payable to the Combined Authority over and above the baseline, and including
the Government’s Enterprise Zone qualifying relief, is £347k (see ‘Designated
Areas’ in Table 5).

Table 4

£m

New Development Deal 3.420 | 0.6%

Enterprise Zone 3.779 | 0.7%
Rest of Sheffield 526.766 | 98.7%
Total 533.965 | 100%

Calculating the Business Rates Estimate for 2015/16

58. Based on the 2015/16 rating multiplier (the “rate poundage”, which is set by

Government) this produces a gross business rate estimated income (the “Gross
Rate Yield”) of £259.9m (£250m in 2014/15). This is the most realistic estimate

Page 136

18



of the likely level of income before any further adjustments. However there are
a number of deductions from this figure:

o Reliefs: there are a number of reliefs against business rates liability including
small business rates relief, charitable relief, deductions for empty properties
and partly occupied premises. It is estimated that the total value of these
reliefs and deductions will amount to approximately £38.2m (£36.9m in
2014/15).

o Losses and costs of collection: this includes an estimate of the bad and
doubtful debts in 2015/16, the potential legal and other recovery costs. Using
the assumptions set out in Government guidance about this, the estimated
figure is £3m (£2.2m in 2014/15).

59. A further deduction is required relating to refunds of business rates due to
successful appeals. Business ratepayers can seek an alteration to the rateable
value of a property by appealing to the Valuation Office Agency (VOA).
However, because of the large volume of appeals, decisions by the VOA can
take several years, although the Chancellor announced in the Autumn
Statement in December 2013 that he had a set a target for the VOA to work
through 95% of outstanding appeals (as at 30th September 2013) by July 2015.

60. It is difficult to arrive at a reliable estimate of the potential refunds due on
outstanding appeals in addition to any new ones that may be lodged. Based on
data provided by VOA in September 2014, the number of outstanding appeals
in Sheffield include 72 (114 in September 2013) in respect of the 2005 rating list
and 858 (988 in September 2013) in respect of the 2010 rating list.

61. The provision for losses due to appeals that was established in 2013/14
amounted to £13.6m and was based on information relating to the level of
outstanding appeals, assumptions about the likely level of “success” for the
claimant and potential further claims lodged. In 2014/15 a further provision for
appeals of £56m was taken. A similar method in 2015/16 results in an additional
estimated provision for appeals of £3.8m.

Overall Business Rates Estimate for 2015/16

62. Based on assumptions relating to reliefs and appeals, it is estimated that the
total net business rates for Sheffield will amount to £214.9m in 2015/16
(£205.8m in 2014/15). However, this is then appropriated between Government
and local authorities (the City Council and SY Fire Authority) on the 50:50 basis
set out in the Business Rates Retention scheme. Business Rate income is

Page 137

19



taken to the Council’s Collection Fund where the appropriations are made. The
estimated Collection Fund for 2015/16, insofar as it relates to business rates, is
shown below.

Table 5

Collection Fund - Business Rates Estimate for 2015/16

2014/15 2015/16
£'000 £'000
249,955 Gross Business Rates income vyield 259,881
-36,886 LESS Estimated Reliefs -38,208

-2,240 Losses in Collection -3,027
-5,028 Losses on Appeals re Current Year Bills -3,761
205,801 Net Estimated Business Rates 214,885

Appropriation of net business rates:

100,898 Sheffield City Council 105,661
2,058 SY Fire Authority 2.136
102,845 Government 106,741
Designated Areas 347

205,801 214,885

63. The estimated 49% of net business rates for Sheffield amounts to £105.7m
(£100.9m for 2014/15). This is slightly more than the figure assumed by the
Government in the provisional 2015/16 Local Government Finance Settlement
that £103.6m would be retained by Sheffield City Council due to anticipated
growth in the city’s business rates yield above inflation.

It is proposed that the Council budget for 2015/15 include business rates income of
£105.661m as its 49% share of net income. The proposed budget for specific
grants includes £1.9m relating to the compensation from Government for the
loss of business rates as a result of the decision to cap the increase in the
multiplier at 2%.

Page 138

20



Council Tax income

64.

65.

66.

67.

Council Tax base for 2015/16

The Council set a Council Tax Requirement of £164.377m for 2014/15 which
resulted in a Band D council tax of £1,282.75. This included a determination
that the council tax base — the number of properties on which a tax can be
charged — would be 128,144.18 Band D equivalent properties. This
represented a modest increase in the taxbase of 0.07% compared to the
previous year.

The phrase “Band D equivalent properties” is used throughout this report
because Band D is used by the Government as the standard for comparing
council tax levels between and across local authorities. This measure is not
affected by the varying distribution of properties in bands that can be found
across authorities. A definition of Council Tax can be found in Appendix 10.

A summary of the council tax levels by band can be found in Table 9 further on
in the ‘Financing the 2015/16 Budget Requirement’ section of this report.
Further details can also be found in Appendix 6.

The calculation of the tax base for 2015/16 has involved an assessment of the
following:

There has been an increase in the number of domestic properties that are liable
for council tax. An increase in house building has resulted in an additional 1,079
band D equivalent properties.

There has been a decrease in the expected CTSS caseload. This reduction
amounts to 1,104 fewer band D equivalent properties claiming council tax
support.

There is an increase of 95 in the number of band D equivalent properties that are
entitled to discounts and exemptions. This is mostly due to additional student
properties which are exempt from council tax.

The estimated collection for 2015/16: the practice has been to set a prudent in
year collection rate as part of the tax base calculations although eventually the
Council recovers up to 99% of council tax. As anticipated, the introduction of
CTSS and other welfare reforms such as the ‘Spare Room Subsidy’ (the
‘Bedroom Tax’) has increased the level of financial hardship of many taxpayers
resulting in late payments and non-payment of council tax. Therefore for tax

Page 139

21



base setting purposes for 2015/16, a prudent collection rate of 95.5% has been
assumed (although we still intend to collect 99% over the long term), which is
unchanged from 2014/15. The collection rate will continue to be closely
monitored during the year as the ongoing impact of the CTSS and other welfare
reforms continue to put pressure on taxpayers’ ability to meet their payments.

68. The Council Tax Base for 2015/16 has therefore been determined as
130,231.44 Band D equivalent properties, as shown in Table 6 below. This is
an increase of 2,087.26 properties (or 1.6%) compared to 2014/15 and will
result in an increase in council tax income of £6m assuming a 1.99% increase
in Band D council tax. Of the £6m increase, £2.7m is as a result of the net
increase in Band D equivalent properties, and the remaining £3.3m is due to the
proposed 1.99% increase in Band D council tax.

Table 6
Band D

equivalent

number of

properties
Council Tax Base of Band D equivalent properties for 2014/15 128,144.18
Additional properties in 2015/16 1,078.78
Reduction in properties entitled to CTSS 1,103.53
Increase in number of properties entitled to discounts / exemptions -95.06
Council Tax Base of Band D equivalent properties for 2015/16 130,231.44

Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2015/16

69. The Finance Settlement includes details of the Council Tax Freeze Grant for
2015/16. This is to be paid to local authorities that do not increase the council
tax from the 2014/15 level and the cash value of the Grant will be equivalent to
a 1% increase in council tax excluding the reduction in tax base due to the
Council Tax Support Scheme. If the Council chose to freeze council tax at the
same level as 2014/15, the actual grant would amount to £1.972m in 2015/16
(approximately £0.3m higher than the amount based on the actual tax base).

Page 140

22



70. The Finance Settlement states the following:

“Government intends that Council Tax freeze funding for 2015/16 should be
built into the baseline for subsequent years. This provides the maximum
possible certainty for councils that the extra funding for freezing council tax will
remain available. The 2011/12, 2013/14 and 2014/15 freeze grants are already
in the local government settlement total for future years.”

71. To what extent this grant will continue indefinitely is uncertain. In any event, as
the pattern appears to be that CTFG will no longer be given as a specific grant
for more than one year, acceptance of CTFG can no longer be viewed as a
sustainable financial strategy.

72. Therefore, the proposals set out in this Report assume that the Council will set
a 1.99% increase in council tax in 2015/16. This follows four years (2011-15)
during which time council tax has been frozen.

Council Tax referenda

73. The Localism Act 2011 introduced a requirement for a local authority to
determine whether its council tax for a financial year is excessive. If the council
tax were to be considered as excessive, a referendum is required in respect of
that amount.

74. The principles on which a council tax is considered to be excessive are
determined by the Secretary of State. This replaces the capping powers that
were previously available to the Secretary of State.

75. The principles for 2014/15 were issued on 5 February 2014. Although there
were indications that the Government were considering setting the threshold at
1.5%, the principles have determined that the “basic amount of council tax” is
excessive if the 2014/15 tax is 2%, or more than 2%, greater than the tax for
2013/14.

76. The Provisional Local Government Finance Settlement issued on 18 December
2014 confirmed that, subject to consultation, the Government had no plans to
revise either the 2% referendum limit or the provisions relating to the calculation
of the “relevant basic amount” of council tax.

Business Planning for 2015/16

77. The Council’s approach to managing its financial position in the medium term
has been through the Business Planning process. This requires Services and

Page 141

23



78.

79.

Portfolios to develop business plans which show what activities will be provided
in 2015/16 for a specified cash limited budget.

The Business Planning process for 2015/16 began before the consideration of
the MTFS report by Cabinet in October 2014. The planning process to
balancing the budget over the medium term involved a strategic approach that
included:

For planning purposes, the development of forecast budget totals that fit
within the level of available resources over a 5 year period

Resources being allocated to Services/Portfolios and also to strategic
outcomes in a way that reflected priorities

Executive Directors being given responsibility for developing realistic,
affordable 2 year delivery plans within a 3 year context for each outcome
area and which fits within the available level of resources

The plans were to consider all income and spending, cost and demand
pressures, as well as setting out clearly any major changes required in
service delivery.

To assist in the development of these outcome driven plans, the current year
Service/Portfolio budgets were aligned to strategic outcomes. This approach
enabled broad planning totals to be produced for strategic outcome areas and
led to the development of savings proposals that are set out in the budget
implementation plans.

Formulation of the budget for 2015/16

80.

81.

In formulating the budget for 2015/16 there are a number of adjustments that
will need to be made to reflect variations in costs and resources, some of which
are outside of the control of the Council and others reflect the continuation of
current Council policy. The following section shows those items that have been
included in the proposed budget, along with a summary table (Table 7) which
demonstrates how the Council’s revenue budget for 2015/16 has been
balanced.

Funding from Government

The earlier part of the report provided details of the Local Government Finance
Settlement for 2015/16. The Settlement resulted in a reduction in RSG of
£42.7m for 2015/16. Further details of variations to specific grants are also

Page 142

24



provided earlier in this report; a summary of the main changes — amounting to a
net increase in specific grants of £2.1m — are as follows:

o Council Tax Freeze Grant 2014/15 will be rolled up into RSG (£2m loss of
income), offset by;

o £3.1m of grants awarded to the Council as compensation for business rates-
related measures introduced and/or extended in the 2013 Autumn Statement,
including Small Business Rates Relief (£2.5m), Retail Relief (£500k) and
Empty New Build Relief (£100k);

o Additional Business Rates Inflation Cap Grant (£837k);
o Additional Business Rates Top Up Grant (£541k).
82. The overall reduction in funding from Government is £40.6m.

Business Rate income

83. As stated earlier in this report the position relating to business rate income
carries significant risk. The City Council’s share of estimated business rate
income amounts to £105.661m, which is an increase of circa £4.8m compared
to 2014/15. This is £3.1m above the assumed retained business rate figure that
is determined by Government as part of the Business Rates Baseline.

Council Tax income

84. The determination of the council tax base has resulted in additional income of
£6m as reported earlier. This assumes that the actual Band D equivalent tax will
increase by 1.99% from April 2015.

Collection Fund surplus

85. The Collection Fund position has been determined at 15 January 2015, as
required by statute. There is an estimated surplus for the City Council of £3.3m.
For further details, please refer to the ‘Financing the 2015/16 Budget’ section of
this report.

Additional Budget Provisions

86. There are a number of proposed additions to the budget for 2015/16:

o Portfolio pressures: Portfolios are faced with increased levels of demand for
services and rising costs of service provision, particularly in the area of social

Page 143

25



care, all of which is exacerbated by onerous legislative changes to the
Council’s statutory responsibilities and by loss of funding. The total cost of
Portfolio pressures amounts to around £22m. Details of the pressures are in
Appendix 1.

Local Government Pensions costs: as a result of the triennial valuation of the
South Yorkshire Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) completed by
31 March 2014, the Council’s financial obligations with regard to the LGPS
have increased significantly over the period 2014-17 compared to the
previous triennial period. The Council is required to set aside a further £2.4m
to meet these obligations in 2015/16.

Pay strategy: the expected net cost of reinstating half-increments after taking
account of 3 days’ unpaid leave is around £0.1m greater than the 2014/15
budget.

Infrastructure Investment (New Retail Quarter): proposals relating to the
development of the new retail quarter were presented to Members in July
2014. These proposals involve land acquisitions funded by prudential
borrowing which could result in capital financing charges to the revenue
account. The existing budget for such charges is £0.4m in 2014/15, rising to
£1.4m thereafter.

Streets Ahead: the Council investment in the Streets Ahead contract will
result in the required amount increasing by approximately £1.8m per annum
from April 2015, as planned. This includes the full debt charges associated
with borrowing £135m to finance the acquisition of assets (a saving on the
previous borrowing via PFI).

Improved sundry debt collection: as performance in respect of sundry debt
collection improves, the practice of taking income to a corporate budget is
being phased out. The improvement in debt collection is now reflected in
Portfolio budgets. It is proposed to reduce the corporate budgeted income
target from £250k in 2014/15 to £nil in 2015/16.

Future Shape: As part of the plan to deal with further sustained funding
reductions, the Council needs to ensure that it continues to adapt and
change to maximise the outcomes it can achieve for the people of Sheffield
at the least cost. Our new Corporate Plan will set out how we aim to be an
“in touch” organisation. For us this means:

Page 144

26



o finding smarter ways to operate so that we are intelligent, agile,
innovative and efficient;

to listen and be responsive to customers;

to reform public services to meet people’s needs;

to make well informed decisions, based on good information;
making changes to the right things in the right way, and;

valuing our employees to ensure we support and get the best out of
them.

In order to achieve this we will have to work with a range of partners and
invest in technology and projects to change the way we work — to improve
customer services, including digital access to services and to develop better
business intelligence, joined up with partners such as health to support
integrated working. The budget approves a level of funding for such projects,
funded from savings that we have made by negotiating an extension to, and
changes in, the Capita contract.

o Council Tax Hardship Scheme: the Council set up this scheme alongside the
introduction of its council tax support scheme in April 2013, with a budget of
£500k which remained in 2014/15. For 2015/16, it is proposed to increase
this budget by £100k to mitigate the potential for an increase in claimants as
a result of the 1.99% increase in council tax.

Reductions in budget provision

87. There are a number of reductions that the Council can make to its budget:

o Capital financing costs: the Council holds a revenue budget in order to meet
the costs of borrowing undertaken to finance the capital programme. On the
assumption that market conditions will remain favourable to the Council next
year, i.e. interest rates and borrowing requirements will not exceed those
stated in the Treasury Management Strategy in Appendix 7, it is proposed to
reduce this budget by £3.1m.

° Provisions for redundancy/severance costs: based on the savings proposals
that are set out in this report and which are required to achieve a balanced
budget, the Council will require an adequate provision for redundancy and
severance costs. The 2014/15 base budget included a provision of £11.2m
to fund redundancies and other severance costs. The proposals set out in
the budget implementation plans (BIPs) involve a reduction of fewer than 200
posts (the figure quoted in the Council’s HR1 submission), a number of which
are currently assumed to be vacant. The net reduction in posts estimated in

Page 145

27



the BIPs amounts to 98 which represents a 79% decrease compared to the
figure of 475 for 2014/15. It is therefore proposed to reduce the redundancy
cost provision in the 2015/16 budget by £3m to £8.2m. As part of the
Council’s risk based reserves strategy, it is also proposed to increase the
corporate redundancy reserve from £2.1m to £5.1m as a contingency.

o Public Health: savings of £2.5m have been targeted from existing public
health activities in order to avoid disinvestment in other Council services
which promote health and wellbeing outcomes, for which revenue funding is
no longer available. Of the £2.5m, £500Kk is already included in CYPF’s
savings proposals. Further details of individual savings proposals can be
found in the portfolios’ Budget Implementation Plans (BIPs) in Appendix 2.

° Capita contract: in-depth negotiations have taken place between Council
officers and Capita to identify the potential for further savings on the Capita
contract. It was announced in Autumn 2014 that the negotiations were
successfully concluded, resulting in savings of £1.8m in 2015/16.

° Pensions re-financing: the Council has been reviewing a number of options
for re-financing large regular payments to third parties by gaining access to
low interest rates in order to secure an early payment discount. One such
instance is the £20m+ annual payment to South Yorkshire Pensions
Authority, whereby the Council will generate an estimated net saving of
£500k in 2015/16.

Contribution from Reserves in 2015/16

88. The budget proposals involve the use of reserves to meet expenditure in
2015/16, and/or smooth costs in future years, for the following purposes:

e Drawing down funding from the Better Care Fund reserve to smooth the
transition to pooled budget arrangements with the CCG whilst a more
sustainable funding strategy is formulated;

e Setting aside a proportion of the estimated 2014/15 Collection Fund
surplus in the business rates reserve as a contingency against the risk of
an increase in refunds as a result of appeals

Page 146

28



Table 7

Reductions in funding from Government
Reduction in Revenue Support Grant (RSG)

Council Tax Freeze Grant 2014/15 rolled up into RSG

Variations in Specific Grant

Small Business Rates Relief Grant

Additional Business Rates Inflation Cap Grant
Additional Business Rates Top Up Grant

Portfolio pressures
Loss of funding
Increasing demand on services
Pay & price inflation
Legislative changes

2015/16 budget gap before portfolio savings proposals

Portfolio savings proposals

2015/16 budget gap after portfolio savings proposals

Growth in Business Rates base

Additional Council Tax income
1.99% increase in council tax
Growth in tax base

Collection Fund estimated surplus in 2014/15

Removal of one-off items
Collection Fund estimated surplus in 2013/14

Additional budget provisions
Pensions costs
Streets Ahead contract
NRQ infrastructure investment
ICT refresh / Future Shape
Improved debt collection
Pay strategy
Increase in Council Tax Hardship Fund

Budget reductions
Capital financing costs
Redundancy costs
Public Health savings / re-investments *
Capita contract
Pensions re-financing

Contributions from reserves
2015/16 budget gap

NOTE

Public Health savings / re-investments * - savings of £2.5m have been targeted from existing public health

£m

2.0
-0.2
-2.5
-0.8

-0.5

£m

42.7

94
5.3
3.7

3.6

-3.3

-2.7

24
1.8
1.0
0.3
0.3
0.1

0.1

-3.1
-3.0
-2.0
-1.8

-0.5

activities in order to avoid disinvestment in other Council services which promote health and wellbeing
outcomes. Of the £2.5m, £0.5m is already included in the portfolio savings proposals figure.

Page 147

£m

40.6

220

62.6

-37.5

251

0.2

6.0

-10.4

0.0

29



Savings proposals for 2015/16

89.

Discussions with Members have taken place since the consideration of the
MTFS to produce a set of proposals that will achieve a balanced budget. The
proposals set out in this report form the basis of a balanced budget and a
recommendation to Council on 6 March 2015. The total amount of Portfolio
savings are £37.5m. If any of these proposals were not to be approved by
Council then alternative compensating savings would need to be identified and
recommended to Council. Details of the Portfolio savings are in the Budget
Implementation Plans (attached at Appendix 2).

Table 8
Savings

Proposals

Portfolio for 2015/16
£m

Communities 14.9
CYPF 8.0
Place 10.2
PPC 0.5
Resources 3.9
Total 37.5

Revenue Budget position for 2014/15

90.

91.

92.

At its meeting in March 2014, the Council approved a Net Revenue Budget for
2014/15 of £451.248m. The Council kept the level of Council Tax unchanged
from the previous year — at £1282.75 for a Band D equivalent property - and
therefore qualified for the one off Council Tax Freeze Grant.

The level of spending against budget is subject to a rigorous monitoring and
review process each month and results in a comprehensive budget monitoring
report being submitted to Cabinet which shows the forecast outturn position.
The budget monitoring position at month 8, covering the period to November
2014, shows a forecast reduction in spend of £144k as per the table below.

In summary, the position as at Month 8 shows a balanced budget for 2014/15,
so there is no direct impact on the 2015/16 budget.

Page 148

30



Portfolio Forecast FY FY Movement
Outturn Budget Variance from Month 7
£000s £000s £000s

CYPF 80,216 81,163 (947), ~
COMMUNITIES 166,174 163,515 2,659 4
PLACE 167,654 166,010 1,644 4
POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMUNICATION 3,011 2,922 89 &
RESOURCES 62,942 62,519 423 4
CORPORATE (480,666) (476,129) (4,537), &
GRAND TOTAL (669) 0 (669) 4
LESS APPROVED CARRY FORWARD 525

ADJUSTED GRAND TOTAL (144)

Balances and Reserves

93. The Council budget has been prepared against a backdrop of uncertainty and
potential risk. There is nothing new in this and whilst some of these are risks
which the authority has managed for many years it is important that the Council
has adequate financial reserves to meet any unforeseen expenditure. For an
organisation of the size of Sheffield City Council relatively small movements in
cost drivers can add significantly to overall expenditure.

94. The Director of Finance has reviewed the position relating to Reserves and has
produced a Reserves Strategy which is attached at Appendix 4. This sets out

the estimated requirement for Reserves and explains the purpose of each
earmarked reserve.

Risk Management

95. Attached at Appendix 5 are details of corporate risks which will need to be
monitored closely throughout the year. The budget proposals identified in this
report will be risk assessed and given a risk rating. The implementation of the
budget proposals will then be closely monitored and reviewed based on the risk

assessment and this will be reported as part of the budget monitoring process
for 2015/16.

Levies

96. The Council currently has approximately £28m in its revenue budget for levies.
This includes the following levies:

o Sheffield City Region (SCR) Combined Authority Local Transport Board
(CALTB) levy; the SCR Combined Authority has approved its budget for
2015/16 in January 2015. A transport levy reduction of £4.2m is expected for

Page 149

31



Sheffield. This reduction is included in the City Council budget proposals
under the Place portfolio.

Payments to the South Yorkshire Pensions Authority and to the Environment
Agency amounted to £0.214m and £0.186m respectively in 2014/15. The
figures for 2015/16 are £0.205m and £0.196m respectively.

Portfolio Revenue Spending Plans for 2015/16

97.

98.

A Budget Implementation Plan (BIP) has been completed for each of the five
Portfolios and these plans, together with a detailed cash allocation for each
Portfolio, are provided at Appendix 2. As in previous years, the BIPs will be
subject to regular monitoring reports throughout the year, in accordance with
the City Council’s overall budget monitoring procedures.

Set out below is a high level summary of the Portfolio savings proposals. This
section reflects the content of the Council website relating to budget proposals.

Our Priorities

99.

Our budget for 2015/16 is driven by five priorities:

An in-touch organisation: This means listening; being connected and being
responsive to a range of people and organisations; ideas and developments.
This includes local people; communities and Government, as well as keeping
pace with technology. This means understanding the increasingly diverse needs
of individuals in Sheffield so the services we and our partners provide are
designed to meet these needs. It also means understanding how to respond.
This priority is also about empowering individuals to help themselves and
providing opportunities to do this, so they and their communities are increasingly
independent and resilient.

Strong economy: This means creating the conditions for local businesses to
grow and making Sheffield an attractive location to start a business. We want
Sheffield to achieve our economic potential and for the pace of Sheffield’s
economic growth to quicken, particularly in the private sector. This means being
well-connected, both physically and digitally, building on our success as a city
that supports businesses to grow and play a full, distinctive role in the global
economy. We want local people to have the skills they need to get jobs and
benefit from economic growth; and to make the most of the distinctive things
Sheffield has to offer, such as cultural and sporting facilities.

Thriving neighbourhoods and communities: This means neighbourhoods
where people are proud to live, with communities that support each other and get
on well together. This includes good, affordable housing in places that are well-

Page 150

32



maintained and easy to get around. It means places with access to great,
inclusive schools that also act as community amenities, together with libraries
and it means places with access to high quality sport and leisure facilities,
including green and open spaces. We want people living in Sheffield to feel safe
and will continue to join with other agencies in the city to make it easier for local
people and communities to get involved, so we can spot and tackle issues early.
We will work with communities to support them and to celebrate the diversity of
the city.

Better health and wellbeing: This means helping people to be healthy and well,
by promoting and enabling good health whilst preventing and tackling ill-health,
particularly for those who have a higher risk of experiencing poor health, illness
or dying early. Health and wellbeing matters to everyone. We will provide early
help and look to do this earlier in life to give every child the opportunity to have a
great start in life. This is strengthened by our other priorities that make sure the
city has facilities and amenities that help people to stay healthy and well, such as
leisure and culture, as well as access to green and open spaces.

Tackling inequalities: This means making it easier for individuals to overcome
obstacles and achieve their potential. We will invest in the most deprived
communities; supporting individuals and communities to help themselves and
each other, so the changes they make are resilient and long-lasting. We will
work, with our partners, to enable fair treatment for individuals and groups, taking
account of disadvantages and obstacles that people face.

100. Part of our response to the recommendations made by the Fairness

Commission was to embed the fairness principles into our Corporate Plan. The
Fairness Commission report available on the Council’s website at
www.sheffield.gov.uk/fairnesscommission and we have continued to use the
Fairness Principles to influence the shape of the budget as a whole, ensuring
the Council’s budget is invested as fairly and equitably as possible. These
principles are:

e Those in greatest need should take priority

e Those with the most resources should make the biggest contributions.
e The commitment to fairness must be for the long-term.

e The commitment to fairness must be across the whole city.

e Preventing inequalities is better than trying to cure them.

Page 151

33



101.

102.

103.

104.

105.

To be seen to act in a fair way as well as acting fairly.

Civic responsibility - all residents to contribute to making the city fairer and for
all citizens to have a say in how the city works.

An open continuous campaign for fairness in the city.

Fairness must be a matter of balance between different groups, communities
and generations in the city.

The city’s commitment to fairness must be both demonstrated and monitored
in an annual report.

We need to find savings of around £63m to meet grant cuts and pressures in
2015/16 compared to 2014/15. The Council is structured with four large
spending portfolios: Communities; Children, Young People and Families; Place;
and Resources. Our approach to the budget has been to seek to identify
budget savings totalling 15% of our investment in each portfolio bearing in mind
the Council’s overall priorities and the fairness principles. Within each portfolio,
some areas of spend have been protected, whilst other areas of spend within
outcomes have seen larger reductions.

Our broad approach for each portfolio is set out below. Our broad approach for
each portfolio is set out below.

Communities

We spend around £146 million each year helping adults across Sheffield stay
healthy and well. This is our second biggest area of our spending, behind
education.

Most of our money goes on Adult Social Care — helping those people who
need extra help and support to stay independent, safe and well. Last year we
supported nearly 14,000 people through our services, including paying for more
than one million hours of home care.

In previous years, we have been able to protect most of our spending on adult
social care by finding the majority of the savings needed from other service
areas. As explained above, the scale of the Government funding cuts means
that we can no longer protect our adult social care budgets. We expect,
therefore, to reduce our adult social care spending by over £9.2m in 2015/16.
This means significant reductions in spending over a short period of time. At
the same time, there are changes underway which affect how people will pay

Page 152

34



106.

107.

108.

for their care in future. This means that adult social care will be a challenging
area for some time and that we will have to make changes to ensure that
services are as effective and efficient as they can be.

On top of the savings required because of reductions in Government grant,
Adult Social Care is experiencing significant demand pressures — these are
additional costs caused by more people needing a service from us or because
costs are rising. This has meant additional pressures on services of £13m.

We are committed to ensuring Sheffield people can stay healthy, stay out of
hospital, and live independently at home for as long as possible. The city has
set out its priorities in this area in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy and this is
reflected in our new Corporate Plan for 2015-18. We will therefore focus our
remaining spending in this area on:

Doing what we can to help people stay independent, safe and well
Targeting our support on those that need it most, to reduce health inequalities
Making sure services in this area are as efficient and effective as possible

Working more closely with health services so that people get better
coordinated help and support.

We have been working very closely with NHS Sheffield Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) towards developing a single budget for health and social care
under the Better Care Fund. The planned pooled budget of around £240m
(including £116m from ourselves) goes significantly beyond the statutory
minimum requirement of £42m demonstrating a real commitment to the benefits
of joint working. The Better Care Fund includes all our current expenditure on
four areas of citizen’s need, focussing on those at risk of admission and those
for whom there is the greatest opportunity for health outcomes improvement:

Keeping people well in their communities - incorporating GP care planning,
focussed on preventing avoidable crises.

Independent living solutions - recognising the current joint commissioning
arrangements for community equipment and the opportunities presented by
the expiry of the current contract.

Intermediate care - to improve the range and efficiency of out of hospital step
up and step down services, to reduce admissions to hospital and support re-
ablement, reducing admissions to long term care.

Page 153

35



e Long term high support care - integrating our assessment, placement, quality
management and contracting processes to ensure a shared focus on
achieving the most effective care for people, and avoiding the unproductive
cost shift between health and social care that has often characterised
approaches to achieving savings as single organisations.

These joint arrangements will come into effect from April 2015.

109. The Better Care Fund as outlined above is one example of how we are working
hard to make services more joined up and efficient. However, the scale of the
continued funding reductions means that we continue to have to make difficult
decisions. In 2015/16 some of our main areas for reducing costs are:

e Developing the supply and market for Learning disability support. We expect
to see efficiency gains of £1.7m as a result of transferring all current
supported living business to providers on the Supported Living Framework
who have all been evaluated for quality and cost effectiveness.

e Using Adult Placement Shared Lives as an alternative solution to long term
Care Placements will save £850k.

¢ Promoting cost effective home care supply. By promoting the independence
of some service users we will achieve reductions in home care costs of
£850Kk.

e Full year effects of previously implemented changes. Many of the changes
agreed in last year’'s budget process were implemented part way through
2014-15 as planned. The full year effect of these changes in 2015-16 means
that we will see further savings of £4.9 m. These relate mainly to Reviews
and Assessments and continue to ensure that we are allocating our resources
fairly and equitably.

e We remain committed to giving people choice or control over how their needs
are met, but we will be more mindful of value for money. For example, we
won’t pay a higher price for someone’s personal care if a good quality
alternative provider can meet these needs for less. If someone wants to use a
more expensive provider then they will have to pay the extra cost themselves

¢ We will continue to offer people Direct Payments so that they can arrange
and pay for their own care if that is their wish. However, we need to make
sure that everyone who receives a Direct Payment is able to manage it, and
that the arrangements meet their care needs. We will review people’s Direct

Page 154

36



Payments at least every year. Where people are using Direct Payments to
buy the same or similar services, we will bulk buy those services on their
behalf to get better value for money.

110. Our library service has undergone a major review following consultation with
stakeholder groups. Changes to introduce a new structure and service were
implemented from October 2014. This implementation included asking some
community groups to take over the running of some libraries, whilst still having a
core network of council run and staffed hub libraries. In order to maintain the
viability of the non-council run libraries we will be supporting these groups to
demonstrate the long term viability once allocated funding ceases after 3 years.
The full year effect of these changes will mean a further saving of £800Kk in
2015/16.

111. Sheffield is one of the safest cities in England and anti-social behaviour is much
lower than in other similar cities. We want to keep Sheffield safe and make it
even safer.

112. As a local authority, we spend a relatively small amount of money keeping
Sheffield safe, compared with some other organisations in the city. Our direct
spend in this area is less than 1% of our net revenue budget — just under £1
million - compared with South Yorkshire Police’s spend of almost £250 million,
which is spent on a wide range of activity across the whole of South Yorkshire.

113. We will continue to work with the Police and Crime Commissioner (PCC) on
these proposals. We want to discuss how we can best spend our remaining
budget on safety in the city, including how best to align this with South
Yorkshire Police’s budget. We are already working with the PCC and his staff
to develop a more coordinated and intelligence-led approach, making sure that
between ourselves and the Police, our money is being spent where it can have
the biggest possible impact.

114. The Council’s budget in this area is spent on:

e A small number of Safer Neighbourhood Officers who work alongside the
Police in specific areas of the city;

o Running Community Justice Panels, which bring victims and offenders
together to resolve conflict and harm;

o A specific budget for small grants to various community-based organisations.

Page 155

37



115.

116.

117.

118.

119.

120.

In addition to the above, we support specific groups of people - for example, we
spend about £8.5 million supporting people who misuse illegal drugs and
alcohol: we know that reducing the harmful impact that drugs and alcohol
has on individuals’ health has a positive impact on communities as a whole.

We also use our enforcement powers, including those associated with requiring,
issuing and removing licenses, to make sure that activities don’t happen that
have a negative effect on safety and security for local communities.

We've already made changes in this area - including reducing staff numbers
and reducing the amount we spend on funding other groups and organisations.
We have also protected some services by working more closely with the Police
and PCC.

Over the next two years, we need to continue the work already started to keep
Sheffield safe and secure whilst maximising value for money, by reducing our
spend accordingly. The level and speed of change we need to make isn’t easy
so we will make sure that we keep a close eye on how any changes we make
affect different groups of people in the city.

We have now integrated our Safer Neighbourhood Officer team and our
Community Safety function, creating a single street-based response team,
which has led to a more targeted and coordinated response at a local level and
a better way of responding to issues. This has saved us £131,000 in annual
costs.

We plan to be much more targeted about how small grants are spent, based on
what the street-level response and anti-social behaviour teams tell us. Part of
our remaining budget is spent on a fund for supporting communities in crisis.
This year will see further reductions to the total amount available which will
have an impact on how many groups are supported and the value of grants
made.

We will work with people and organisations about our proposals over the next
few months and ensure this informs our next steps. We will also be having
discussions with our partners and the private sector in the city to maximise their
contribution to this area. Clearly the Police’s budget is the largest area of
spending alongside ours but other city partners benefit from Sheffield being and
feeling safe and we will be looking at what contribution they can make.

Page 156

38



121.

122.

123.

124.

125.

126.

Children, Younqg People & Families

Our ambition is that all children, young people and families in Sheffield achieve
their full potential in all aspects of their lives. That they have the best start in
life, go to great schools, are safe and healthy, active, informed and engaged in
society.

We will work together with all our partners and communities to ensure we raise
expectations and attainment and enable our children, young people and adults
to gain first class qualifications and skills, have enriching experiences and make
a positive contribution to their local communities and our city.

We will continue to respond to increases in demand for services and in the
range of our statutory duties and expectations of Inspectors (e.g. Ofsted). Our
approach will be creative and transformative in the way we work and deliver
services to ensure that outcomes for children, young people and families
continue to improve.

In 2014/15 we have spent in the region of £82m cash, which includes £11m of
Public Health investment, on delivering services for our children, young people
and their families. A further £421m of funding was allocated separately by
government for schools.

We’ve made a lot of changes to how we deliver and pay for services —
increasingly working with partner organisations including schools. We have
found savings on management, premises and administration costs and have
increased our traded income, whilst protecting as far as we can, services to
children, young people and families — this will always be a priority for us and is
where we spend the majority of our budget.

The strategies that underpin our ambition for successful children, young people
and families are shaped in three main areas:

Keeping children, young people and families safe, healthy and strong and
giving every child a great start in life. Our services focus on safeguarding,
learning difficulties/disabilities, early intervention and prevention and the city’s
health strategy for children/young people. We provide multi-agency support
services for children with additional needs and for social care services for
Children in Need (CIN), including those at risk of harm, in need of
accommodation and those looked after. Our services promote the early
identification of children in need and deliver high quality preventative and
supportive services that enable children to achieve their potential. Through

Page 157

39



127.

good quality assessments that inform effective plans to address children’s
needs, including the need to be safeguarded, will be met and their outcomes
will be improved. We will ensure that services are put in place to support
children living within their families wherever possible. Where children cannot
remain in their families we will make timely decisions to ensure that they are
secured in a permanent placement as soon as is possible. We will deliver,
monitor and provide the highest quality care and placements for our looked after
children.

Developing skills for life and work and encouraging active, informed and
engaged young people into further education, employment or training.
Increasingly we are spending our limited resources in a targeted way,
supporting young people and helping those who are most at risk of not being in
education, employment or training (NEET) when they leave school. This is an
area we are leading the way in nationally: we have a deal with Government
whereby we have control of the funding and are redesigning and improving the
skills system. We’re putting much more power in the hands of employers and
local businesses, and with other local authorities, agreed to deliver 4,000 new
apprenticeships and 2,000 upskilled employees by 2016.

Supporting schools and children and young people’s education; being the
advocate and champion for Children, Young People and Families and
improving the quality of learning outcomes and attainment for all. The
quality of the school experience for children is fundamental to their later life
chances. Children who experience high quality teaching and learning are much
more likely to experience positive outcomes (sustained employment, good
mental and physical health, avoidance of poverty and increased social mobility)
in the short and long term.

The Council does not run schools and has not for many years, however, it does
have a vital role to play to ensure all our children and young people achieve
their full potential. We do this by working in partnership with schools and other
education providers (the City Wide Learning Body) on the key educational
issues affecting the whole city such as school places or support for vulnerable
learners, and by challenging schools and other education providers where their
performance is not good enough and supporting them to improve.

For 2015/16 we need to find further reductions of £8m from our current

spending on Successful Young People and Families. Our challenge is that we
have to reduce how much we spend, whilst focusing on our ambitions we want
to achieve for the City. We need to be sure our organisational changes lead to

Page 158

40



positive impacts and that we are still flexible enough to respond to unforeseen
challenges.

128. Our approach to address this budget challenge will be:

e To continue to keep children and young people safe we will invest £1.2m
grant in evidence based prevention and early intervention, making sure
that we do as much as we can to support children and their families
before a crisis hits. We will continue with our approach to reorganising
and supporting early intervention that we have consulted on and began
implementing last year.

To build on our Successful Families programme to further develop early
years, family support and early intervention with our partners and this will
enable us to save £2m without affecting services. We also want to work
effectively with our partners to redesign and develop services to support
children, young people and families’ emotional wellbeing and mental
health.

To make sure there are more local and better fostering placements. We
think that this will save around £400k.

By further integrating Education, Social Care and Health services and
providing a transition into independence service. We are also reviewing
respite and short breaks to ensure a fairer system of allocation for all.
Consultation on these proposals has been underway for some time and
will continue over the coming months.

To work across the region to develop and improve approaches to adoption
and fostering and youth justice. This will deliver around £350k savings.

To support young people into further education, employment or training.
We will continue our approach of increasingly targeting resources to
those who most need our help and where we can have the biggest
impact - focusing our spending on those young people most at risk of
offending and anti social behaviour and ensuring young people are active
citizens and have a voice and influence over their lives. This is an area
where we have prioritised investment and have developed innovative
proposals to provide opportunities for young people and which match the
training that young people receive with the needs of local employers.

Page 159

41



¢ As our funding reduces, we will be less able to provide funding for

activities for young people. We will reduce the amount we spend on
youth services (delivered either through the Council, Sheffield Futures, or
voluntary and community organisations) by £840k next year by focusing
our support primarily on young people who are in most need, and
tapering most of our remaining universal or non-targeted provision, and
instead encouraging and supporting community organisations to provide
this sort of activity.

We will continue to work in partnership with schools, through the City Wide
Learning Body, to give responsibility to schools wherever possible. We
will work with others to increase the scope and potential of “school to
school” improvement partnerships, so their knowledge and expertise can
jointly lead the improvement needed. This means all our schools
seeking improvement; so that outstanding schools truly excel alongside
the best in the country and they also support other schools to improve.

We will continue to ensure that funding for services for those most
vulnerable children and young people is prioritised and make sure that
funding retained by the Council to deliver its core functions is spent on
key services which support children and young people’s education.

We aim to increase our trading income with schools and academies by
around £640k in response to rising demand for services such as
educational psychology.

By restructuring management, business support integrating services that
work with children and young people, we intend to save over £1.3m next
year.

Meanwhile, we will continue to be as efficient as possible across all our
services. Within this overall approach, we have a number of specific
savings proposals, and will be consulting with service users and other
interested people and organisations on these and other proposals over
the next few months. In the medium term, we are working to develop
(with adult services and the NHS) an all age disabilities service from birth
to old age, to support individuals to lead independent lives. We are also
exploring what opportunities exist to bring together our children and adult
safeguarding services.

Page 160

42



129.

130.

131.

132.

133.

134.

e During 2015/16 we will work closely with Sheffield Teaching Hospitals
(STH) to consider innovative ways in which to deliver sexual health
services to the population of Sheffield (both adults and children) in order
to embed the integration of Sexual Health Sheffield (SHS), improve
service delivery and release savings.

Place

The Place portfolio works to strengthen Sheffield’s economy even further -
helping existing and new businesses to grow, and to provide more and better
jobs.

This area also includes our commitment to environmental responsibility. This
includes reducing the carbon footprint of our own buildings and vehicles;
encouraging Sheffield’s businesses to reduce their carbon emissions; and
working with our partners to invest in sustainable and affordable energy, such
as in our District Heating network.

We also want to continue to offer a vibrant mix of cultural and sporting facilities
and events. This includes putting on events in the city centre, supporting
cultural venues such as the Sheffield Theatres — the Crucible, Studio and the
Lyceum; Sheffield Museums — Millennium Gallery, Weston Park Museum, the
Graves Gallery; as well as major sporting and cultural facilities such as the
Arena, Ponds Forge and the City Hall.

We want to create new and improve existing public spaces and buildings so that
they are safe and welcoming for businesses and people to use, for example our
improvements to the Moor pedestrian area and the new Moor Market. Much of
our work in this area relies on large one-off project funding, and large scale
projects will continue to transform the city over the next few years. Work will
start shortly in the West Bar area removing 500m of redundant highway and
replacing it with a green environment. Plans are being developed for the
regeneration of the Castlegate area too.

It also about working with and influencing key partners to improve transport
links (including the proposed new high speed rail links) from Sheffield to other
key cities such as London and Manchester, to increase our economic activity.

We currently spend about £9 million each year on this area of work. This is
about 7% of the Place portfolio’s net revenue budget — this is in addition to any
one-off project funding we receive for major capital projects.

Page 161

43



135.

136.

137.

138.

139.

As part of this budget, we plan to reduce our spending in this area by about
£0.2 million. That is £0.7m of savings offset by inflation and demand pressures
of £0.5m. Our challenge has two parts: we need to quickly reduce how much
we spend and at the same time keep focussing on the ambitions we want to
achieve for the city.

Our ambition around creating a competitive city with a strong economy and
great assets and transport links will not change, but how we go about it will. In
particular, we are going to have to pay for things in different ways and influence
our partners to find new ways of funding activity.

In the past we have paid for services and activities ourselves as a council, we
are now working with our partners in the private sector to support them to pay
for activity themselves. Our plan is to save approximately £0.4m this year by
changing the method of funding for our major events.

We will reduce our subsidy for cultural and sporting organisations in the city,
such as Sheffield Theatres, Sheffield Museums, and Sheffield International
Venues this year by £0.5m. This may affect the programmes and activities that
those organisations offer, but we have agreed plans with the various trusts to
minimise the impact on quality. Wherever possible we have protected the trust
budgets especially where that commitment has enabled the trust to gain
external funding to help develop the services they offer. Moreover, our three
year business planning process in this area helps to give the organisations a
basis for their own long term planning so they can better adapt to the age of
austerity.

We are also looking to find new ways to pay for how we promote Sheffield —
including through events such as the World Snooker Championship and the
hugely successful Tour de France in 2014 — because the amount of money that
we can commit continues to reduce. We know that different people benefit
when we promote Sheffield and put on events: visitors and the people of
Sheffield, and there is a financial benefit for businesses in the city centre,
including both retailers and hotels. We need to have a more commercial
approach to events and how we market the city. We are therefore looking at
whether this type of activity could be funded through other means such as
‘Business Improvement Districts’, where businesses make a contribution to
activities that will attract visitors to the area to work, shop, eat and relax. This
follows the successful vote for Sheffield’s first Business Improvement District in
2013.

Page 162

44



140.

141.

142.

143.

144.

145.

146.

We also want Sheffield to be a city that has successful places and sustainable
communities with access to high quality housing, local services, shops, and
jobs, as well as having excellent parks, streets and other physical infrastructure.
Our ambition is that everyone in Sheffield should have a high quality of life, and
that people feel proud of where they live.

It means making sure our neighbourhoods are safe and easy to move around
through delivering our Streets Ahead scheme to improve our roads and
pavements and keep them in good condition. We also want people to be able
to choose how they travel about the city whether by bus, tram, cycling or
walking.

We need to maintain our parks, sports and leisure facilities to encourage people
to use and enjoy them, and keep the streets clean by collecting and processing
the city’s waste and recycling. As well as making Sheffield a better place to live
in, all of these help to promote the health of the people of Sheffield as part of
our new responsibilities for Public Health. We also want communities to be
better able to help themselves and for people to have a say over what happens
in their local area.

As a local authority, we also provide a number of other services that are legally
required. These include planning, pest control, trading standards and health
protection services as well as the coroner and bereavement services for the
city.

We will spend around £130 million this year on all these things.

Next year, we need to reduce our budget in this area by a further £8 million.
Not only do we need to reduce how much we spend; we need to do it quickly.
The level and pace of change we need to make isn’t easy so we will make sure
that we keep a close eye on how any changes we make affects different groups
of people in the city.

The amount of savings we need to find over the next three years in this area
means that we need to change the way we do some things or do less. A key
part of this strategy is working with our long term contract partners to reduce
the cost of delivering the Streets Ahead programme to renew and maintain
roads, pavements and street lighting, and the Waste Management contracts to
recycle and dispose of the residual waste which is not converted into energy at
the Energy Recovery Facility.

Page 163

45



147.

148.

149.

150.

151.

152.

We’'ll continue to collect and process the city’s waste and recycling at the same
time as looking at more efficient ways of doing this. For example, we want to
make it easier for people to recycle. We will also look to reduce the cost of
our contract for waste management by over £1m, but we will make sure that
this has no impact on the frequency of bin collections as part of these
proposals.

As part of an agreed plan being led by the South Yorkshire Passenger
Transport Executive, we aim to reduce our spending across this area by just
over £4m next year.

Some of the city’s local green spaces and parks might also look different as
we continue to switch from traditional, formal maintenance to more natural and
lower cost land management that will support meadow, wildlife, wild flowers and
more trees in some of our parks, saving almost £100k per year.

Along with these changes, we are also proposing that we increase charges for
some of the services we have to provide including pest control, allotments
and bereavement services, although there will be no increase in parking
charges. Those charges that do increase will be benchmarked against market
rates.

Resources

We have a number of corporate services which support Sheffield residents in
their day to day lives. These include the Council’s Customer Service Function
and our service for assessing and paying benefits and collecting council tax and
business rates.

Additionally, the Council is like any large organisation and we rely on effective
support to run our business and the services we provide to Sheffield people.
This support includes:

helping our teams to manage their budgets and staff
providing and maintaining our technology
helping our teams with legal advice

making sure we get the best value for money when we buy goods and
services

Page 164

46



153.

154.

155.

156.

157.

158.

159.

helping us as a whole Council to manage our performance, finance staff,
contracts and our plans for the future

Sheffield City Council is also a democratically elected organisation. This means
we have specific additional responsibilities associated with running elections
and ensuring that the public can engage with the council and have their say on
important decisions, and supporting Councillors who make these decisions on
behalf of the people of Sheffield.

In addition, Services require the necessary ‘infrastructure’, which includes
providing council buildings, transport services and information technology
systems.

We have already made substantial savings in these areas — saving over £35
million in recent years. We have reduced our spending on computers and
technology by 30%. We are also reducing the number of offices we occupy:
consolidating 27 locations into three city centre sites, thereby avoiding
expenditure of £34 million. By reducing staff in our corporate services, this has
meant that we have been able to protect frontline services.

Where services have historically had a significant core budget, savings have
already been made to a great extent, for example the Finance and Human
Resources Services have experienced budget reductions in the region of 50%
since 2010/11, with the Finance Service planning to save a further £0.6m in
2015/16 and Human Resources £0.3m.

Many corporate services have small core budgets and are increasingly reliant
on trading income (some are fully traded, so receive no budget allocation) — this
trading income is effectively subsidising the strategic functions that would need
to exist irrespective of general services to Council departments, such as Legal
and Governance. It would therefore be high risk to reduce such service budgets
much further.

We intend to drive out savings in excess of £1m from the cost of essential
goods and services by working with our suppliers on a range of payment
initiatives, and a further £1m on the cost of transport, facilities management
and office accommodation provision.

Some services, such as Customer Services, work directly with customers, and
significant savings continue to be achieved by changing the way we provide
services. We will be making improvements to our website and encouraging
people to contact and do business with us — such as paying their Council Tax —

Page 165

47



160.

161.

162.

163.

through electronic channels. This is faster and more efficient for customers,
and easier and cheaper for us. Most of the savings (£0.4m in 2015/16) will
come from reducing the size of teams and through restructures, and the full-
year effect of outsourcing the City Wide Alarms service in 2014/15. We also
intend to make £0.4m savings on system costs in this area via the Capita
Contract.

Public Health

As a consequence of the Health and Social Care Act 2012, substantial public
health responsibilities were transferred to local authorities on 1 April 2013.

The budget in this area is around £30 million, which is spent on a wide range of
programmes and services such as:

addressing the root causes of ill health by supporting community groups that
help people improve their health and wellbeing

working to improve the quality of housing
promoting healthier lifestyles through encouraging physical activity, and

commissioning services such as school nursing, sexual health services, and
treatment for people with drug and alcohol problems.

Local authorities were given a ring-fenced Public Health grant, which took into
account estimates of baseline spending, including from PCT recurrent
resources and non-recurrent resources, such as the pooled treatment budget
and drugs intervention programme, and a fair shares formula based on the
recommendations of the Advisory Committee for Resource Allocation. The
grant allocation for Sheffield was £29.665m in 2013/14, rising to £30.748m in
2014/15. As per the Local Government Finance Settlement announced on 18
December 2014, the allocation will be frozen at £30.748m for 2015/16.

The outcomes expected of the public health grant will be assessed under the
Public Health Outcomes Framework (PHOF), and broadly fall into the following
categories:

Improving significantly the health and wellbeing of local populations

Carrying out health protection functions delegated from the Secretary of
State

Page 166

48



164.

165.

166.

Reducing health inequalities across the life course, including within hard to
reach groups

Ensuring the provision of population healthcare advice.

Under the Health Premium Incentive Scheme (HPIS), a proportion of future
grant allocation will be dependent on making progress in improving
performance against two of the PHOF outcomes. Therefore, there is a risk of
grant clawback if sufficient progress against these outcomes is not made, or if
there is any underspend.

As part of the Council’s business planning process for 2015/16, Officers have
reviewed all current Public Health contracts and commitments for which the
Council is liable, to ensure that best use is made of the Public Health grant so
as to deliver the outcomes — as identified above — with the aim of broadening
the use of public health funding across further activities.

Savings of £2.5m have been targeted from existing public health activities in
order to avoid disinvestment in other Council services which promote health and
wellbeing outcomes, for which revenue funding is no longer available. Further
details of individual savings proposals can be found in the portfolios’ Budget
Implementation Plans (BIPs) in Appendix 2, and are summarised in the
sections for each portfolio above.

Financing the 2015/16 Budget Requirement

167.

168.

The earlier part of this report is concerned with the formulation of the revenue
budget and the issues which need to be considered in arriving at a total budget
for 2015/16. This section of the report sets out the overall summary position
and the statutory determinations relating to total net expenditure and its
financing. In accordance with the Local Government Finance Act 1992 (as
amended by the Localism Act 2011) the Council is required to make a number
of determinations. These will be set out in Appendix 6 and will include:

a Budget Requirement (a “section 32 calculation”)
a Council Tax Requirement (a section 31A(4) calculation)
a basic amount of tax (Band D equivalent)

The Budget Requirement will be financed by a combination of Revenue Support
Grant, Business Rate income, Top Up Grant and Council Tax income. Other

Page 167

49



specific grants including the Council Tax Freeze Grant must be used to reduce
the Budget Requirement and are therefore netted off against this figure.

Council Tax

169. After taking account of the Revenue Support Grant, Business Rate income and
Top Up Grant for 2015/16, the total amount to be raised from council tax
amounts to £170.379m: this is the Council’s Council Tax Requirement.

Collection Fund

170. The City Council is required to estimate, for Council Tax setting purposes, the
projected year-end balance on the Collection Fund. This estimate must take
account of payments received to date, the likely level of arrears and provision
for bad debts etc, based on information available by 15 January. Taking these
factors into account, the projection on 15 January was that the Collection Fund
is in surplus with a distribution to the City Council of £3.3m.

Council Tax Base

171. On 18 January, the Director of Finance, under delegated authority, approved
the calculation of the Council Tax Base for the 2015/16 financial year. The
amount of the Tax Base is 130,231.44 Band D equivalent properties.

Budget Requirement for 2015/16

172. If the Council votes in favour of increasing the Council Tax by 1.99%, this will
mean the Budget Requirement for 2015/16 will be £422.972m, as shown in the
table overleaf.

Page 168

50



2014/15 2015/16
£°000 £000

Service Expenditure 453,216 422,972
LESS
Council Tax Freeze Grant (1,968) -
Total Expenditure 451,248 422,972
Financed by:
Revenue Support Grant 157,460 114,749
Business Rates 100,898 105,661
Top Up Grant 28,342 28,883
Council Tax 164,377 170,379
Collection Fund Surplus 171 3,300
Budget Requirement 451,248 422972

£ £
Band D Council Tax (City Council) 1,282.75 1,308.28

Council Tax Levels

173. Details of the indicative level of Council Tax for Bands A to H are set out below
with further details in Appendix 6.

Band Multiplier Value (up to) Chargeable Tax
in 1991 Properties £
%
A 6/9 £40,000 58.5 872.19
B 7/9 £52,000 15.9 1,017.55
C 8/9 £68,000 12.7 1,162.92
D 9/9 £88,000 6.4 1,308.28
E 11/9 £120,000 3.7 1,599.01
F 13/9 £160,000 1.7 1,889.74
G 15/9 £320,000 1.1 2,180.47
H 18/9 over £320,000 0.1 2,616.56
100.0

Page 169

51



Precepts
South Yorkshire Police and Fire & Civil Defence Authorities

174. The budget proposals of the South Yorkshire Police & Crime Commissioner
(PCC) and of South Yorkshire Fire & Rescue Authority are to be finalised in
February. Details of the approved precepts will be submitted to Council on 6
March.

Parish and Town Councils

175. The overall level of Council Tax needs to include the precepts of Parish and
Town Councils that lie within the City’s boundaries. The latest indications from
the Parish Councils are that the levels of precept will be as set out in the table
below. The final figures will be confirmed in the revenue budget report to Full
Council on 6 March.

Council Tax Grant from Total Precept
Income Council on Collection

Fund

£ £ £

Bradfield Parish Council 218,517 12,506 231,023
Ecclesfield Parish Council 136,284 12,551 148,835
Stocksbridge Parish Council 103,978 9,030 113,008

176. In 2013/14 the Council received a specific grant of £82k for the purposes of
compensating Parish Councils for the loss of council tax income as a result of
the introduction of the Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS). From 2014/15 this
specific grant was no longer provided by Government. Nevertheless, in March
2014, the Council voted in favour of still compensating Parish Councils in full for
the loss of council tax income as a result of CTSS, which was £47k in 2014/15.
This was despite the fact that the Council had to absorb RSG reductions in
excess of 20% over the period 2013-15.

177. The council tax base calculations have been revised again for 2015/16 to reflect
the actual level of Council Tax Support Scheme (CTSS) claimants in parish
council areas. A reduction in the number of CTSS claimants across the city
means that the “lost” council tax income as a result of CTSS is less than was
the case in 2014/15.

178. As part of the 2015/16 business planning process, the Council has reviewed its
position with regard to the CTS subsidy to Parish Councils. The Council has

Page 170

52



179.

taken into account the fact that as RSG is the source of the CTS subsidy, the
subsidy should reduce in direct proportion to RSG (i.e. 28% in 2015/16).
Furthermore, there are indications that RSG is likely to be reduced by 20% per
annum from 2016/17.

The Council is therefore proposing to reduce the CTS subsidy to Parish
Councils by 28% in 2015/16, to a total of £34k as shown in the table above.
The total reduction is thus £13Kk.

Legal Advice

Responsibility of the Chief Financial Officer

180.

181.

182.

183.

184.

Under Part 2 of the Local Government Act 2003, the Chief Finance Officer of an
authority is required to report on the following matters:

¢ the robustness of the estimates made for the purposes of determining its
budget requirement for the forthcoming year; and

¢ the adequacy of the proposed financial reserves.

There is a requirement for the authority to have regard to the report of the Chief
Finance Officer when making decisions on its budget requirement and level of
financial reserves. Details of Reserves are set out in a separate Appendix. The
view of the Director of Finance is that Reserves are low (compared to
benchmarks) but are not inadequate.

In addition, under the Prudential Code framework the Chief Finance Officer of
an authority is required to prepare and report upon a series of Prudential and
Affordability indicators. These are set out in Appendix 7.

The Local Government Finance Acts of 1988 and 1992 specify that the City
Council determines its Revenue Budget before 11 March each year. The City
Council is also required by Section 30 of the Local Government Finance Act
1992 to set its Council Tax after having determined its Revenue Budget
requirement in accordance with the provisions of section 32 to 36 of the Act.
Details of how the Council Tax has been calculated are included as part of the
Council Tax resolution in this report, which is set out as required by legislation.

In determining its budget as in all other matters, an authority should have due
regard towards the interest of Council Tax payers and Members must, in
arriving at a balanced decision based on the evidence, take into account all
relevant information placed before them and ignore irrelevant matters.

Page 171

53



185. The proposed budget has been prepared in the context of the requirement for
the Council to make significant savings in its overall expenditure. The
implementation of some of the proposals in the budget will require Executive
decisions. These will be made in accordance with the Leader’'s Scheme of
Executive Delegations, and any further delegations (e.g. from Cabinet) made in
accordance with the Leader’'s Scheme. It is important to note that in making
these decisions there will have to be full consideration of all the relevant issues
such as the Council’s legal duties and contractual obligations (including but not
limited to its Equality duties and consideration of any impact on Human Rights).

186. In relation to equalities the Council has a duty to have regard to the need to
eliminate discrimination and advance equality of opportunity between all
irrespective of whether they fall into a protected category such as race, gender
religion etching. Determining the final set of proposals for consideration Officers
and Cabinet Members have had regard to how the equality impact assessments
will be prepared for specific proposals as identified by each Portfolio prior to
decisions being made. The Council needs to be satisfied that it can continue to
meet its statutory duties and meet the needs of vulnerable young people and
adults. Proposals have been drawn up on the basis that Strategic Directors are
satisfied that this will enable them to continue to meet their statutory duties and
the needs of the most vulnerable. In some cases further consultation may be
required.

187. If the outcome of such further considerations were to present difficulties in
adhering to the agreed Council budget, officers would bring further proposals to
members as appropriate.

Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Budget

188. This Report concerns the position of the Revenue Account of the Council, i.e.
the income and expenditure for the bulk of Council services other than those
that are accounted for separately as part of the Housing Revenue Account. A
separate report on the HRA budget was considered by Cabinet on 14 January
2015.

The Outlook for 2016/17

189. As mentioned earlier in this report, the Government did not issue any lllustrative
Finance Settlement for 2016/17 as part of the Settlement announcement for
2015/16.

190. However, in the Autumn Statement in December 2014, the Chancellor signalled
the Government’s intent to continue with the current austerity programme into

Page 172

54



191.

192.

the next Parliament in order to tackle the national deficit. A number of think
tanks have come to the conclusion that it is likely that local authorities can
expect to see further reductions in RSG in the order of 20% per annum. The
Council’s MTFS published in October 2014 currently assumes that RSG will
reduce by 10% per annum from 2016/17.

The position for 2016/17 and beyond is therefore more difficult than currently
forecast. To enable the Council to begin planning a revised Medium Term
Financial Strategy, officers will be formulating planning proposals based around
Council priorities early in the 2015/16 financial year.

The financial planning predicament faced by local authorities is summed up in
the speech of the Rt Hon Margaret Hodge MP (Chair of the Public Accounts
Committee) on 28 January 2015 at the launch of the Committee’s publication
‘Financial Sustainability of Local Authorities 2014’

“Looking to the future, if funding reductions were to continue following the next
spending review, we question whether the Department [DCLG] would be in a
position to provide assurance that all local authorities could maintain the full
range of their statutory services.

The Department cannot at present satisfy us that it understands whether it is
feasible and practical for local authorities to deliver the service transformation
necessary to maintain financial sustainability. Nor does it understand what the
effects on service users would be.

Late funding announcements by the Department in this Parliament, coupled
with incentive-based mechanisms such as the Business Rates retention
scheme, have increased financial uncertainty which undermines the ability of
local authorities to act according to longer-term savings plans.”

Treasury Management Strategy

193.

194.

As part of its budget decision the Council is required to approve a Treasury
Management Strategy for 2015/16. Treasury Management relates to the
management of the Council’s investments, borrowings, and banking operations.

The Council’s Treasury Management activities are required to comply with the
CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management which sets out the controls
over the risks associated with those activities and looks to achieve optimum
performance consistent with those risks.

Page 173

55



195.

196.

A separate CIPFA code, the Prudential Code for Capital Finance, requires the
Council to set a range of Prudential Indicators as part of the budget process to
ensure that capital spending plans are affordable, prudent and sustainable. The
Local Government Act 2003 requires the Council to have regard to the
Prudential Code and to set Prudential Indicators for the next three financial
years.

The Sheffield City Council Treasury Management Strategy for 2015/16,
including the proposed Annual Investment Strategy, Prudential Indicators, and
the Minimum Revenue Provision Policy, is set out in Appendix 7. The
responsibility for day to day management of the Council’s treasury management
activities rests with the Director of Finance and it is recommended that authority
for undertaking treasury management activity and relevant reporting be
delegated to the Director of Finance.

Financial Implications

197.

The financial implications of the recommendations in this report (below) are set
out in the preceding sections of the report.

Workforce Impact

198.

199.

200.

201.

There are a number of potential workforce impacts as a result of the
recommended actions of this report.

The potential workforce impact arising from the recommended actions to set the
2015/16 Budget equates to a reduction of approximately 123 full time equivalent
posts although the reduction once vacant posts are taken into account falls to
98 posts. The Budget Implementation Plans attached at Appendix 2 contain
details of these reductions. This will be managed in the first instance through
deleting vacant posts, voluntary early retirement (VER) and voluntary severance
(VS) schemes where appropriate and then through the Council’s Managing
Employee Reductions (MER) procedure to achieve the balance of reductions
and redesign services.

VER/VS activity and the outcomes of MER processes have been the subject of
Equality Impact Assessments as described below and will continue to be
monitored on an ongoing basis to ensure there is no disproportionate impact on
any group within the workforce.

Consultation is taking place with the trades unions at a corporate and portfolio
level to identify opportunities to mitigate redundancies.

Page 174

56



Pay Policy

202.

In accordance with the Localism Act the Council is required to publish a Pay
Policy for 2015/16. This will be reported to Council on 6 March.

Members’ Allowances

203.

204.

205.

206.

207.

Prior to 1 April each year, the Council has to agree a Members’ Allowances
Scheme for the forthcoming financial year. At least every four years, or
whenever the Council wishes to amend its Scheme, its Independent
Remuneration Panel has to consider the Scheme (and any changes being
proposed by the Council) and make recommendations to the Council.

The Independent Remuneration Panel reviewed the whole of the Scheme in
March 2013 and the Council, at its annual meeting on 15 May 2013, having
regard to the recommendations contained in the Panel’s report, made
substantial revisions to its 2013/14 Scheme. The revisions that were made to
the structure of the Scheme, when allied to fewer appointments of Members to
positions of Special Responsibility in 2013/14, resulted in financial savings
being achieved of approximately £96k over a full year.

The 2013/14 Scheme was also implemented for 2014/15.

Following approval of the 2014/15 Scheme and the setting of the 2014/15
Members’ Allowances budget, regulatory changes were introduced relating to a
phased removal of Members’ entitlement to participation in the Local
Government Pension Scheme, meaning that savings have resulted in the
2014/15 financial year, and will do so again in the 2015/16 and 2016/17
financial years, on the amount of superannuation contributions that the Council
makes. A savings proposal from the Members’ Allowances budget in 2015/16
of £80k (£52k relating to 2014/15 and £28k relating to 2015/16) has been put
forward relating to these superannuation savings.

As regards the Scheme for 2015/16, officers have not identified any forthcoming
changes in the structure or operation of the Council’s decision-making
arrangements which would require consideration by the Independent
Remuneration Panel due to their impact on the structure of the Scheme, and
the outcome of discussions held in December 2014 with the leaderships of the
political groups on the Council was that the 2014/15 Scheme would be rolled
forward unchanged for 2015/16. Accordingly, the members of the Panel have
been informed of this fact and of the savings that will be made in the Members’
Allowances budget in 2014/15 and 2015/16 arising from the changes in

Page 175

57



pensions regulations, and they have affirmed the views expressed in their
previous report and have indicated that in these circumstances they are content
not to re-convene the Panel to review the Scheme for 2015/16.

208. The Council is therefore recommended to agree that the Members’ Allowances
Scheme for 2013/14 and onwards, approved on 15 May 2013, and implemented
for 2014/15, be also implemented for 2015/16, with the addition (to paragraph
(h) of Schedule 2) of the following approved duty which was approved by the
Council at its meeting held on 3 December 2014 — “attendance at meetings of
Local Area Housing Forums”.

209. The Scheme contains provision for the allowances to be adjusted on an annual
basis in line with an agreed index. The index that has been used for many
years for applying to the allowances is the average percentage officer pay
award in Sheffield, although the Council has agreed not to apply an annual
increase each year from 2010/11, including in the last two years when Council
employees received a pay rise. In 2014/15 the Council rejected an increase in
Members’ allowances and instead used the £12k financial provision that had
been made for this as a fund to mitigate against the impact, on the ability of
disabled children to travel to education, of the Transport Authority’s changes to
bus passes which was introduced around the same time that the Council
agreed its 2014/15 revenue budget.

210. All portfolios have made provision of 1% towards the costs of the pay award to
Council officers in the revenue budget for 2015/16, and in line with that general
planning assumption this uplift has also been applied to the Members’
Allowances budget to cover the costs of a similar increase in the allowances. If
the Council wished to apply an uplift to the allowances in 2015/16 in line with
the officer pay award, this is estimated to amount to £13,500 with on-costs.

211. However, the Administration will be recommending to the Council that, for the
5th consecutive year, it agrees not to apply an annual increase to the
allowances in 2015/16.

Equality Impact

212. Under the Equality Act 2010, as a Council we have a statutory Public Sector
Equality Duty to pay due regard to:

- Eliminating discrimination, harassment and victimisation

- Advancing equality of opportunity

Page 176

58



213.

214.

215.

216.

217.

218.

- Fostering good relations

This is with regard to people who share Protected Characteristics under the Act
and those who don’t. This means we need to understand the effect of our
policies and practices on equality, this will involve looking at evidence, engaging
with people, staff, service users and others and considering the effect of what
we do on the whole community. One of the ways in which we do this as a
Council is through conducting Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs).

We have undertaken both a corporate EIA on the budget as a whole, as well as
individual EIAs on the various proposals that are being recommended as part of
the budget. A list of these is available on the Council’s website for anyone to
request at: Equality Impact Assessments.

The Council wide EIA and the individual service EIAs on budget proposals that
underpin it are focussed on the impact on the protected characteristics set out
in the Equality Act 2010. These include age, disability, race, sex, sexual
orientation, religion/belief, gender reassignment, and pregnancy & maternity. In
Sheffield, we have also decided to assess the impact on other areas such as
the voluntary and community sector, poverty and financial exclusion, carers and
cohesion.

Decisions will affect different people in different ways. It is possible that the
decisions will have a disproportionate impact on some groups in comparison to
others, even if this is not the intention. We use the impact assessments to help
us identify and avoid any negative unintended consequences of the proposals
developed. These could, for example, be disproportionate impacts on different
geographic locations, different communities such as disabled people, lone
parents, younger or older people or BME communities as well as the cumulative
effect of any decisions made.

All budget proposals have undergone an initial impact analysis which was
started early in the process to decide whether there was likely to be
disproportionate negative impact on different groups of people. Where this was
identified as disproportionate, having medium or high impact, full EIAs were
carried out. The impact analysis shapes proposals which do not make it forward
into the budget as well as those that do.

Inevitably when funding is reducing year on year at the scale and pace that we
are experiencing, there will be an impact on the front-line services we deliver

Page 177

59



and on some of the work we do with groups who share a protected equality
characteristic. We have tried to minimise the impact on the most vulnerable
and these groups as far as possible, however we have to make some really
tough choices.

219. This year the savings we are required to make amount to £63 million which is
on top of £240 million of savings already made over the past 4 years and this
means we are less able to protect frontline services than before. This is
particularly relevant in the Communities Portfolio where Adult Social Care was
substantially protected in the first 3 years having to make fewer savings than
other areas. However this year we expect to reduce our adult social care
spending by over £9.2m. This means significant reductions in spending over a
short period of time at a time of increasing demand. Therefore adult social care
will be a challenging area for some time, and we will have to make changes to
the way we do things to ensure that services are as effective and efficient as
they can be. However protecting those in greatest need still remains one of our
top priorities this year.

220. These substantial reductions in funding mean that progress on work on equality
and fairness is much more focused on ensuring we do not slide backwards and
lose ground in existing areas of inequality and ensure we are doing things fairly,
not necessarily about meeting new demands.

221. Also national policies such as welfare reform are adding to the financial
pressures facing some communities and are widening existing inequalities.
Overall we estimate that over £169m has been taken from the local economy as
a result of these welfare reform changes. This equates to £460 per year per
every working adult in the city, although this reduction is not spread evenly.
These changes are likely to impact on specific groups who already experience
inequality such as people on a low income, disabled people and women. For
example households with dependent children across the city will experience an
average loss of £1,690 per year. This increases for lone parents to an average
of just over £2,000 per year.

Consultation

222. As part of the development of options for the 2015/16 budget, the Council ran a
budget conversation between October and January that included a range of
consultation activity with local people and partner organisations. This has
helped us to ensure that the proposals that we are putting forward have been
shaped by people who may be affected by decisions taken as part of the

Page 178

60



223.

224.

budget, and to ensure that they have had an opportunity to put forward other
ideas for consideration.

In line with our values as an organisation, we have used consultation to inform
people about our proposals, provide the opportunity to give feedback, make
suggestions and let people know how their feedback has helped to influence
our thinking. In this way we have attempted to ensure that our consultation
activity is meaningful and appropriate at all times. Our budget consultation
activity has had two main strands this year:

e Two large corporate budget conversation events in the Town Hall,
supplemented by additional activity, including a survey

e Detailed consultation on particular topics and specific proposals, that
includes informing Equality Impact Assessments

More information about our approach to consulting on the budget proposals can
be found in the consultation section of this Revenue Budget Report and in
individual service ElAs. The full results of our consultation can be found on the
website. https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/finance/2015-2016-
budget.html

These considerations have been discussed with Members in developing our
proposals and in advance of any decision being taken at Cabinet or Full
Council, including briefing all relevant Cabinet Members on impact assessments
related to proposals in their area of responsibility.

Assessment of Impact

225.

226.

Our response to this funding challenge has been firstly to find more efficient
ways of delivering our services including through contract renegotiation.
However, the continuing size of the financial challenge means that efficiency
savings alone will not enable us to balance our budgets and so we will be
continuing to reduce the Council’s investment in services next year and in future
years.

Many of these reductions or changes in provision are in progress or will occur
during the next year and we are monitoring the impacts on individuals and
groups to ensure that any potential negative impact is reduced as far as
possible. Our ElAs are ‘live’ documents and will be subject to change, as
proposals or evidence of impact changes.

Page 179

61



What do we already know?

227. As well as consultation evidence, we have used monitoring information we
already hold in services to help us identify possible impacts and to help shape
and inform the EIA process. To help us identify possible impacts requires an
understanding of how the city is made up and the issues people face.

228. The 2011 Census Sheffield Facts and Figures and State of Sheffield show:

e Sheffield’s population has grown above the national average and the City
Region, rising from 513,000 in 2001 to 552,698 at the time of the 2011
census. This is currently projected to increase to around 600,000 by 2020.

e Sheffield is a diverse city and the ethnic profile continues to change, with the
proportion of residents classifying themselves as non-white British growing
from 11% in 2001 to 19% in 2011. BME adults make up 16% of the population
and BME children 29%.

o Sheffield has a higher proportion of its population aged 65 years or over
(16.7 % or 85,700 people) than the other English Core Cities. This is projected
to increase, with the largest increase in the number of people aged over 85.

e The age group that has increased the most from 2001 to 2011 is 16 — 24; we
now have 16.7% of our population in this group and a further 18.2% under 16.

¢ Residents’ incomes are around 10-15% lower than the national average. In
addition Sheffield is ranked 6th out of 326 against other Local Authorities for
low income.

o Life Expectancy in the city is 78.4 years for men and 82.1 years for women and
there are greater numbers of women than men in the city, due to higher life
expectancy for women.

e While the pay gap between men and women has been reducing, in general
men are paid more than women. Women working full-time are paid on
average 15.5% less an hour than men for doing work of equivalent value.
Women pensioners therefore tend to be poorer than male pensioners.

e There are over 105,000 adults with a long term limiting iliness, equivalent to
around 19% of the population, with 9% saying this limits their activity a lot.

e The Council has 31,552 working age taxpayers who receive council tax
support and although fluctuating in December 2014 there were 3,903 Council
tenants affected by under occupancy.

Page 180

62



o At the end of December 2014, 151 households in Sheffield were subject to the
Benefit Cap; the number of children within these households was 780.

e There are geographic variations in poverty in Sheffield. 125,000 (22%)
Sheffield people live within areas ranked as the most deprived tenth nationally,
and 47,000 (8%) live within the least deprived tenth nationally.

e The face of poverty has changed and some of the characteristics overlap to
cause multiple deprivations. Whilst pensioners are now less likely to be in
poverty than previously, poverty amongst pensioners is directly linked to their
experience in earlier life. Falling poverty rates for disabled people have
reversed, with poverty starting to increase. People from minority ethnic
backgrounds are more likely to be poor than white British people. Care
leavers, and carers (both young carers and adult carers) are at increased risk
of poverty. Children in large or single parent families are at greater risk of
poverty and almost two thirds of children living in single parent families live in
poverty.

Fairness and Equalities Impact Overview

229. Inevitably when funding has reduced year on year at the scale that we have
experienced, there will be an impact on the front-line services we deliver and on
some of the work we do with the most vulnerable people in Sheffield, including
groups who share a protected equality characteristic. We have tried to
minimise the impact on these groups and on front line services as far as
possible, however we have to make some really tough choices. We are being
guided in these choices by our priorities as outlines and supported in our budget
consultation these are to:

operate efficiently as an organisation

develop solutions for the longer term

take early preventative action

focus on people with the greatest need

work with our communities to deliver services in a different way.

230. Our approach to the budget is summarised in Portfolio Areas which
correspond to the way in which the Council is structured. Each Portfolio area
has been asked to make savings but in line with the Fairness Commission
Principles and our Tackling Poverty and Increasing Social Justice Outcome
Board. There are a number of key themes that run through the budget
proposals in most Portfolio Areas.

e Restructuring and integrating services and teams to increase efficiency
and effectiveness

Page 181

63



231.

232.

233.

234.

¢ ‘Managing Employee Reductions’ processes to reduce the number of
staff employed

e Targeting of resources to target those in greatest need and at risk

¢ Helping people to be independent, safe and well and to make their own
choices

¢ Intervening early and doing more preventative work

e Working with other agencies to avoid duplication and to help coordinate
help and support

e Better value for money in the services we commission or purchase

e Fairer contributions and charges to ensure full cost recovery and as a
way to maintain service levels

¢ Increasing traded services in non-core areas (such as with schools)

e Reductions in funding to the Voluntary Community sector in line with
reductions to the rest of the Council’s budget

¢ Shifting the focus of public health spend to addressing the root causes
of ill health

¢ Continuing with changes made in the past year to have full year effect
on savings

¢ Continuing to monitor the impact of changes over the coming year.

Furthermore, we will continue to fund a Local Assistance Scheme and to have a
Council Tax Support scheme at 23% in spite of Government funding cuts in
these areas. We will also mitigate the impact of the 1.99% increase in Council
Tax by increasing the Council Tax Hardship Fund by £100k in 2015/16.

Overall, the proposals have the potential to impact negatively in some areas
and service EIAs have sought to mitigate this, however there are also positive
impacts identified which are highlighted. Further details of the impacts are
contained in individual service EIAs.

Our impact assessments identify and provide mitigations for potential impact in
services for younger people, older people, disabled people, BME, women and
men, religion and belief, sexual orientation, voluntary community and faith
sector, cohesion and financial inclusion/ poverty (there is over representation
within this last group of disabled people, some women and some BME
communities).

Headline features of the combined Impact Assessment show:

There are 124 EIAs on proposals and the groups most likely to be impacted
negatively by individual proposals and cumulatively are disabled people,
young and older people, women and people on a low income.

Many services are continuing to comprehensively restructure services and
teams and as a result we have saved money on office and technology and
staffing levels across the council have reduced. Last year the majority of

Page 182

64



changes were managed through voluntary severance schemes. In 2015/16
we will be reducing the workforce by fewer than 200 further posts. Monitoring
from the past year indicates that there has been no disproportionate impact
on those who share protected characteristics. See workforce implications
section below.

Services will be looking to increase charges, to ensure full cost recovery and
to continue with the work to apply costs fairly through our Fairer Contributions
Policy. However, the changes will impact more on people experiencing
financial exclusion.

We will continue to fund a Local Assistance Scheme and to have a Council
Tax Support scheme at 23% despite Government cuts in these areas.
However we will increase Council Tax for the first time in 4 years by 1.99% or
approx. 38p per week for most households to enable us to continue to protect
services to those in greatest need and at risk. We will mitigate the impact of
this by increasing the Council Tax Hardship Fund by £100k in 2015/16.

Public Health spending is integrated throughout the Portfolios. Overall there
will not be any reduction in investment in this areas, but in line with what as
agreed last year we are reviewing how and where the funding is spent to
ensure that it is targeted to tackle the root causes of ill health and to have the
maximum impact on reducing inequalities. This means that we will save £2.5
million on existing activities in order to reinvest in other areas.

This year will see the start of the new integrated Commissioning Programme
between the Council and the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) to
create a combined budget to develop joined up services. This new approach
aims to ensure people get the right care when and where they need it but will
also create efficiencies in processes. It focuses on supporting people at
home where possible to help increase independence and delay access to
Health and Social Care services.

When considering the impact on the VCS the importance of ‘social value’ is
recognised by the ‘Best Value’ guidance', which was published by the
Government in 2011. This states that authorities have a duty2 to consider the
impact of budget reductions on VCF or other organisations that have a ‘social
value’. The Public Services (Social Value) Act® requires us to take social
value into consideration when we commission services. In order to do this

! https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/best-value-statutory-guidance--4

2 The Best Value Statutory Guidance has statutory force and must therefore be taken into account in the
exercise of funding decisions. It is issued under section 3(4) Local Government Act 1999 which states
that, in deciding how to fulfil its Best Value duty (section 3(1) LGA 1999), local authorities have to take
into account guidance issued by the Secretary of State which may cover the form, content and timing of
consultations http://www.ncvo-vol.org.uk/news/civil-society/helping-you-understand-new-best-value-

3 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/3

Page 183

65



effectively we will: continue to monitor the impact of changes over the next
year, on service changes as well as the knock on effects of reductions on
other providers and continue detailed consultation with customers and other
stakeholders as specific activities are implemented.

e We are investing in the Voluntary and Community Sector including through
Grant Aid and Public Health albeit at reduced levels. Some negative equality
impacts have been identified resulting from the reductions in overall grant aid
funding available. Some projects that the Council previously supported will
no longer receive funding in future; however the funding will be targeted at
those in greatest need of support. We will also review existing arrangements
across the Council in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support
available.

e We will continue to target resources to those most in need and at risk; help
people to become more independent; where possible intervene earlier and do
more preventative work; get even better value for money in the services we
purchase; and pursue innovative approaches in service commissioning and
design. This relates to both internal and external services.

e We are proposing to continue with restructures of Council services and are
considering both internalising and externalising services where appropriate
(such as the contract for Revenues and Benefits customer services function
being brought back in house and with some care and support services being
externalised).

e We will continue to work on getting value for money from our contracts; this is
with our major strategic providers but also across Portfolios where for
example we have issued a new Framework for Supported Living to ensure we
have a choice of providers at competitive prices and retendering of existing
services.

¢ The Impact Assessment also highlights some positive implications of budget
proposals. Examples include improving the process of assessment and
support planning for existing and future social care customers whilst ensuring
choice and control over support to meet their eligible needs, and reshaping
transport to provide services which promote independence. The Better Care
Fund partnership should continue to develop and mean more joined up
pathways and services. Also, as we restructure services both internally and
with external providers there should be clearer and more efficient ways to
contact services.

Portfolio Area Impact Assessments

235. Each portfolio has undertaken initial impact analysis on all proposals and where
the risk of disproportionate impact has been identified an in depth impact
assessment has then been undertaken, informed by service specific
consultation where appropriate.

Page 184

66



236. The Place Portfolio has completed 35 Budget EIAs on savings totalling £10.2m

identified for 2015/16. We have asked our partners Amey, Veolia and South
Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE) to identify and deliver
potential savings of 15% on each contract; this will total 71% of our reductions.

237. The budget proposals are a mix of:

Finding new ways to deliver the services that support the priorities for the
Great Place to Live, Competitive City and Health & Wellbeing strategic
outcomes;

Making sure that all of our services are operating as efficiently as possible;
Reviewing existing charges and introducing new ways of generating income;
Changing or reducing service standards and as a last resort, stopping some
activities altogether.

238. We have used a range of evidence, such as consultation and data, to identify if

there are if there are any differential impacts and the key areas are:

There is a cumulative impact of year on year reduced subsidies on our
charitable partners, Museums Sheffield, Sheffield International Venues and
Industrial Museums. Although the services continue to be delivered this is
with staffing levels at reduced levels. Any potential leisure or theatre price
increases will be minimised for low income users via discount schemes.

The Place Public Health budget savings will have a low level impact on health
inequalities for those people living in the more deprived areas of Sheffield,
where the work tends to be concentrated. The savings also have the potential
to impact on some of our Voluntary, Community and Faith partners due to
reduced funding.

By increasing the number of school crossing patrols funded by schools, there
may be a negative impact for children/young people travelling to/from school
should the school not fund a replacement vacancy. This would be mitigated
through the council proactively implementing measures to improve safety
outside schools e.g. 20 mph speed limits.

Dependent on the savings identified through working with our partners Amey,
Veolia and SYPTE there potentially could be a negative impact on young/old,
disabled people, carers, new mothers and mothers-to-be and the less well-off.
This will be identified in the individual EIAs on each proposal.

239. Last year the key impacts related to socio economic issues, impacts on partners

and staffing. Most of the budget savings have been implemented with no
significant impact due to, for example, ongoing subsidies mitigating any
potential barriers to increased charging. Key to this process was well planned
quality consultation to inform the decisions and also gain the public and
partners’ input and understanding of the changes required.

Page 185

67



240.

241.

242.

243.

244,

245.

246.

The Children Young People and Families Portfolio have completed 28
Budget ElAs for savings of £8m identified for 2015/16. Education is our biggest
area of spending.

The Business Strategy proposals are changes to support services which are
based around continuing to provide the current level of services to schools. The
proposals include a reduction in the marketing of Services to Schools, hosting
changes to the School Information Centre, reduction of cash collections by
schools and an admin charge for joining the central catering contract.

The Children’s Commissioning Unit proposals enable the unit’s functions to
continue with a greater integration of public health outcomes and functions.

The Inclusion and Learning Services proposals enable us to continue providing
essential support services to schools and academies that support the
successful children and young people outcome and respond to changes in
funding following the conversion of schools to academies. The savings
proposed help us to protect those statutory and regulatory functions such as the
Statutory duty to provide independent Educational Psychology input into the
educational needs aspect of all SEN statements; the Statutory Duty to act as
the champion for children and families for the quality and effectiveness of
education and the Statutory Duty to ensure the availability of sufficient school
places.

A further proposal is to start trading of the Inclusion and Targeted Service which
supports capacity development and to improve outcomes for pupils, in particular
new arrivals.

Within Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities, the proposed savings are in
youth services and further savings from proposals agreed in 2014/15. These
savings help protect other areas of targeted support to children and young
people and employment projects. This means that we can continue to provide
support to those young people Not in Education Employment or Training
(NEET), diverting young people from offending, maintaining individual support
for 16-24 year olds with learning difficulties and disabilities, supporting young
people who are at risk of sexual exploitation, protecting apprenticeships and
employment programmes and external investment.

Whilst significant, the youth service savings are part of a strategy over several
budget rounds of planned reductions in buildings and back office costs which
has helped protect frontline delivery. In 2015/16, there will be some reduction in
staffing across the council and in Sheffield Futures, and some changes

Page 186

68



247.

248.

249.

250.

251.

252.

proposed to youth open access delivery. The strategy has protected provision
to the neediest.

The CYPF Public Health changes to Sexual Health Sheffield will be delivered
through a redesign, transformation of services and improved partnership
working and potentially re-allocating investment across the sexual health
system in order to better meet outcomes. There will be some funding reduction
to Young People’s Substance Misuse pooled budget.

The Children and Families savings proposals include reviewing all Independent
Fostering Agency placements and long term fostering placements aiming to
secure permanency or LA fostering placements; developing regional
approaches to youth justice services and fostering and adoption; improved
coordination of SEN placements; changes to the out of hours social work
provision; improved choice and flexibility on short breaks and integrated
provision.

In addition, there is planned investment in Strengthening Families to provide an
incremental transformation of all services to children and young people into a
jointly funded, commissioned and delivered multi agency family service. There
is a public health investment in Best Start early years programme which
supports the neediest children and families.

There will be some staff reductions in all the areas noted above. All staff
reductions are subject to HR procedures and ElAs are completed where
relevant and in addition a Council wide EIA on managing employee reductions
is completed annually - see the workforce section.

The savings enable high quality essential intervention and prevention services
for the most vulnerable children and families to continue. The potential adverse
effects of other saving options would have included our ability to keep children’s
centres open, an increase in social care referrals and other subsequent
interventions such as child protection cases, LAC which would have greater
cost pressures as well as unmanageable social worker caseloads.

Last year although we had difficult choices to make, our mitigations and
monitoring of impact were effective. Wherever possible we have minimised the
impact that the proposed changes on young people’s services will have on
young people and their parents/carers. We recognise that some of the children,
young people and their families will be using more than one of the services
where there are changes proposed and may therefore be affected by this.

Page 187

69



253.

254.

255.

256.

257.

258.

We recognise that there have been year on year reductions since 2010, for
example to youth services. These have been mitigated and usage data since
the start of reductions in 2010/11 highlights improved take up of youth provision.
Equally, other reductions for example those to the Integrated Sexual Health
Service affect multiple characteristics and the consultation with the provider
through the development of a provider led EIA is part of the mitigation.

Some people may receive a changed or a reduced service as we focus on the
most in need and at risk and wherever possible we have sought to mitigate this.

Our transformational changes, for example the Early Years Best Start
investments will have positive impacts for those in the greatest need which
includes some BME groups and women, and militates against future impacts.

The Public Health spending is approx. £30 million and is integrated
throughout the Portfolios. More detail on the use of our Public Health grant is
given in the portfolio sections. There are also 5 ElAs for the Director of Public
Health Office which mainly cover internal structures and have lower impact.
Overall there will not be any reduction in investment in this area, but in line with
what was agreed last year we are reviewing how and where the funding is spent
to ensure that it is targeted to tackle the root causes of ill health and to have the
maximum impact on reducing inequalities. This means that we will save on
existing activities in order to reinvest in other areas. Some of the proposals
involve more cost effective delivery and retendering contracts, earlier
intervention leading to prevention, or internal restructuring that will have fewer
equality impacts. Some of the changes have the potential to impact negatively
upon some people who share protected characteristics. However, two of the
main areas the changes will support are early years and advice and information
so impact of the overall investment will be positive on the groups within the EIA.

In the Resources Portfolio there are 18 EIAs which cover all budget proposals
for 2015/16. There are 5 EIAs pending Managing Employee Reduction (MER)
processes within the Finance, HR, Commercial Services and Transport & FM
services. ElAs on past MERs have all shown no disproportionate impacts on
staff within the portfolio. Of the other ElAs, a limited number have potential
equality impacts on our customers.

There is a Customer Service proposal which covers the restructure of the
service, implementation of contact centre technology to deliver efficiencies
alongside implementation of channel shift strategy and tools. There are no

Page 188

70



259.

260.

261.

262.

263.

expected negative impacts from this strategy and in some cases positive
impacts on certain groups.

There are other EIAs which cover Council Tax and its support schemes; we are
proposing this year to continue to keep the same Council Tax Support (CTS)
scheme. The CTS scheme continues to be based on the principles of the old
CTB regulations and provides for the maximum financial support being made
available to those with the greatest financial need. They protect some of the
income of the disabled and of families whilst providing assistance to those
people who move off benefits into paid employment. The Council recognises
however that requiring all working age customers to pay a minimum of 23% of
their Council Tax may cause financial hardship amongst some households.
Therefore the Council is also proposing to continue to operate the CT Hardship
Scheme in 2015/16 in order to continue to offer assistance to the most
financially vulnerable households.

This year we are also proposing an increase in Council Tax for the first time in 4
years, again we are aware that any increase in Council Tax could have a
negative impact on those households who are already struggling financially.
However, the provision of Council Tax Support (CTS) backed up by the CTHS
will ensure that such an impact in minimised. The impacts will continue to be
monitored through the EIA process and action plans developed to mitigate
impacts where appropriate.

In the Communities Portfolio there are 31 EIAs most of which are full EIAs as
many of the services in this Portfolio such as Adult Social Care are, by
definition, providing services to vulnerable, disabled and older people. This
area represents the single largest controllable area of our budget and we
support 14,000 people through our services. This area has also seen an
increasing level of demand and of costs of services.

Savings in this area have the potential to impact negatively upon those
protected groups. However, some of the proposals involve more cost effective
solutions to individuals, earlier intervention leading to prevention, retendering
contracts or service internal restructuring that will have fewer equality impacts.

We are continuing to implement last year’s changes in a number of areas such
as to library services, adult social care reviews and reassessments and housing
related support. We are implementing a programme of change to move focus
to short term preventative and re-enablement services. We are working with
providers around the changes to mitigate direct impact.

Page 189

71



264.

265.

266.

267.

268.

269.

We are taking steps to ensure we get the best value for money and quality in
our contracts in a number of areas, e.g. value for money in provision of short
breaks for people with learning disabilities, moving to Supported Living
Frameworks in mental health and learning disability services, and re-tender of
the community equipment store, small adaptations and independent living
preventative solutions. We are supporting individuals with any transitions.

We are investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the voluntary sector,
although this reduction is less than the Council’s overall budget cut. Some
negative equality impacts have been identified resulting from the reductions in
overall grant aid funding available, and the fact that some projects that the
Council previously supported will no longer receive funding in future. However
the funding will be targeted at those in greatest need of support. We are also
restructuring teams such as Grant Aid and Locality Management to ensure
greater efficiency. The current local area working model includes providing
Councillors with a ward pot to fund community groups, projects or additional
services to tackle the issues and priorities within their ward. We will also review
existing arrangements across the Council in the next year to ensure we are
prioritising support.

Public health in communities will see a reduction in the community well-being
and community health champions programmes but investment in other areas
such as support to advice centres to tackle the root causes of ill health in
communities. We are also starting to review the public health contribution to
mental health provision in line with the Council’s re-commissioning of mental
health services strategy overall. EIAs and consultation will be undertaken as
this work progresses.

We are also proposing to review the Community Support Service, and will
undertake a full EIA to determine the future direction of the service.

There will be some staff reductions (for example in internal services such as
Business Support and Business Strategy) and we have worked towards
minimising impact on front line services.

The Better Care Fund partnership with the NHS CCG will continue to develop
with the aim to deliver better joint commissioning, to ensure people get the right
care when and where they need it. This should also lead to more effective and
efficient services to release savings in this area.

Page 190

72



270.

In Policy, Performance and Communications there are 7 EIAs and they are
mainly internal restructuring and are not likely to have any customer impact.

Cumulative impact

271.

272.

273.

274.

275.

276.

277.

Groups highlighted as impacted across ElAs and all Portfolios are disabled
people, older and younger people, women, carer's and people on low incomes.
Disabled people, some women such as lone parents and women pensioners,
carers, young people and some BME communities who tend to have a lower
income may be cumulatively impacted.

By definition, older people, disabled people, carers and women will be the most
impacted by the changes in Adult Social Care. Young people and parents will
be impacted by changes in ‘young peoples’ services. Some people who have
been previously receiving a service will receive a changed, reduced or no
service as we focus on the most in need.

We are continuing to work with partners to be more efficient and joined up such
as with the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group towards developing a single
budget for Health and Social Care. The changes come into effect in April 2015
and could help mitigate both demand pressures and cumulative impact.

There are year on year reduced subsidies on our charitable partners, however
where charges increase, whether for leisure, cultural or other services, this has
the potential to increase barriers to participation to people on a low income,
therefore affecting the groups noted above.

A further impact across a range of proposals will be the transition from one
provider to another, which may include moving from one location to another and
these changes have the potential for significant impact on those individuals
transitioning. We will take this into account in any changes, undertake risk
assessments where necessary and provide support for users and carers.

There are again a number of changes to our strategic contract arrangements,
our providers where relevant have undertaken consultation and evaluated
impact and we have tried where possible to limit impact on front line services.

There will be an impact on the workforce across all areas given the amount of
internal restructuring as a result of the budget proposals and possible staff
reductions of up to a further 200 posts in 2015/16; a significant number of
workforce EIAs are ongoing and a Council wide Managing Employee
Reductions (MER) EIA has been completed.

Page 191

73



278.

279.

280.

281.

It is difficult to quantify the cumulative level of impact although mitigations have
been highlighted in all EIAs as external factors such as welfare reform are also
impacting negatively on some of the same groups for example, disabled people,
carers, young people and women.

We will as a Council not invest or provide services in as many areas as we did
before the reductions started 4 years ago. Services are targeting those in
greatest need and those at risk but that does mean that there is reduced
universal provision. We are still providing statutory services and we are
focusing on the most vulnerable with the resource we have to invest.

Managing Impact: Mitigation

Our overall approach is to protect services for those in greatest need and at risk
where possible and to change how we manage and deliver services to make
savings. This will have an impact on what the Council can continue to deliver.

The year on year reductions and the scale of the savings required mean there
will be impacts upon vulnerable groups that share protected characteristics.
Most impacts relate to age both younger and older people, disabled people,
women and people on low incomes. In all these areas some mitigating actions
have been identified and will be implemented as part of EIA action plans. For
example:

All proposals have been assessed in line with the Fairness Commission
Principles and to take into account the Tackling Poverty and Increasing Social
Justice outcome area.

Working with external providers to achieve savings in our large contracts and
to achieve this as much as possible through non front line service functions.

Working with partners to encourage private sector to support activities and
events and encouraging commercial activity to promote Sheffield.

Working to increase our income through fees and charges, full cost recovery,
and increased trading of our services, for example with schools to help keep
non- core services.

Continuing where possible with successful schemes from last year that
impacted positively such as the apprenticeship schemes and employability
programmes.

Investing in prevention and delivering targeted support for those most
vulnerable or at risk such as in our Best Start programmes.

Page 192

74



282.

283.

Following the library review investing in local community groups to maintain
the viability of non- council run libraries.

Continuing to encourage people to be independent, safe and well in both
children and adult social care such as through direct payments and to
continue to reduce reliance on expensive provision outside of Sheffield.

Reviewing care and support arrangements and re tendering services where
applicable to ensure fair contributions and value for money.

Working in partnership with the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group towards
developing a single pooled budget for health and social care under the Better
Care Fund.

Restructuring management and services to increase efficiencies and create
simpler routes of public access. For example through our safer
neighbourhood team and community safety function creating a single street
based response team.

Regionalisation of services where appropriate such as adoption and youth
justice.

Continuing to invest £30 million in Public Health but shifting the focus to
address the root causes of ill health to help reduce health inequalities.

Continuing to invest in the Voluntary and Community Sector through grant
aid, including building on the successful integration of the Sheffield Advice
and Law Centre and lunch clubs.

Although there are very difficult choices, our impact assessments illustrate our
approach to fairness principles and to mitigate negative impacts where possible.
Through our ‘live’ EIA process we will be monitoring closely any adverse
equality impacts as reductions and changes in provision occur during the next
year.

Human Resources Impact Overview

In all Portfolio areas many of the budget proposals involve staff efficiency
savings, including: service restructuring, a reduction in management costs by
deleting vacancies, reviewing agency staff, managing employee reductions
through voluntary early retirement and severance. We have across the Council
reduced management costs, minimised redundancies by using the talent pool,
and reduced the impact on frontline staff where appropriate. Unfortunately
there may still also be compulsory redundancies in some areas.

Page 193

75



284. We have also promoted employee led measures such as voluntary reductions

285.

in hours, career breaks and annual leave purchase schemes. We are
committed to continue to pay a ‘Living Wage’ to Council employees.

The council believes that the composition, skills and commitment of the
workforce are vital factors in our ability to deliver effective, efficient responsive
and personalised services. We continue to monitor workforce issues, and are
aware of the need to address:

The degree of occupational segregation within the workforce such as a high
proportion of women in the Communities and Children and Young People and
Families workforces and a high percentage of men in the Place portfolio

Under-representation of disabled, BME and lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans
(LGBT) people in the workforce and especially for women, disabled and BME
staff at Chief Officer level

286. Given the amount of internal restructuring as a result of the budget proposals,

287.

288.

289.

other drivers and possible staff reductions of up to a further 200 posts in
2015/16, a significant number of workforce EIAs within Portfolios have been
done and a Council wide Managing Employee Reductions (MER) EIA has been
completed.

These show possible changes to the diversity of the workforce as a result of
staff restructuring and MERs required from some of the budget proposals. It is
not yet possible at this stage to predict the precise impact of these processes
upon workforce diversity as this can only be known later in the year as the
schemes are all worked through. Last year’s monitoring of the MER and
VER/VS schemes showed no negative disproportionate impact on people who
share a protected characteristic and had positive impacts in line with our
workforce diversity strategy. See the corporate MER EIA for full details.

We will continue to work within our current policies and procedures, which
promote workforce diversity to reflect the demographics of the city. We are also
working with managers, staff and trade unions to ensure the workforce is viable
and appropriate to the council’s future operating and service needs, with a
balance of skills and experience.

Workforce related Impact Assessments are periodically updated and have for
example been undertaken as part of MER including Voluntary Early Retirement
(VER) and Voluntary Severance (VS), and the Pay Strategy.

Page 194

76



Recommendations

290. Members are recommended:

d)

f)

j)

k)

To approve a net Revenue Budget for 2015/16 amounting to £422.972m;

To approve a Band D equivalent Council Tax of £1,308.28 for City Council
services, i.e. an increase of 1.99%;

To approve the Revenue Budget allocations and Budget Implementation
Plans for each of the services, as set out in Appendix 2;

To note that, based on the estimated expenditure level set out in Appendix 3
to this report, the amounts shown in part B of Appendix 6 would be
calculated by the City Council for the year 2015/16, in accordance with
sections 32 to 36 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992;

To note the information on the precepts issued by the South Yorkshire Police
Authority and the South Yorkshire Fire and Civil Defence Authority, together
with the impact of these on the overall amount of Council Tax to be charged
in the City Council’s area.

To approve the proposed amount of compensation to Parish Councils for the
loss of council tax income in 2015/16 at the levels shown in the table below
paragraph 175;

To note the latest 2014/15 budget monitoring position;

To approve the Treasury Management and Annual Investment Strategies set
out in Appendix 7 and the recommendations contained therein;

To approve the Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) Statement set out in
Appendix 7;

To agree that authority be delegated to the Director of Finance to undertake
Treasury Management activity, to create and amend appropriate Treasury
Management Practice Statements and to report on the operation of Treasury
Management activity on the terms set out in these documents;

To agree that the Members’ Allowances Scheme for 2013/14 and onwards,
approved on 15 May 2013, and implemented for 2014/15, be also
implemented for 2015/16, with the addition (to paragraph (h) of Schedule 2)
of the following approved duty which was approved by the Council at its

Page 195

77



meeting held on 3 December 2014 — “attendance at meetings of Local Area
Housing Forums”

I)  To approve foregoing an annual increase in the Members’ allowances in
2015/16.

m) To approve a Pay Policy for 2015/16 as set out in Appendix 8.

n) To agree that authority be delegated to the Director of Public Health and the
Executive Director of Resources, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for
Finance, to approve the final allocation of Public Health grant to portfolios in

2015/16.
John Mothersole Eugene Walker
Chief Executive Interim Executive Director, Resources

Page 196

78



Portfolio Pressures

Communities

Impact of loss of Local Welfare Provision Grant

Lower fairer contributions income due to reduced numbers of service users
Shortfall in funding to support Independent Living Fund (ILF) users
Reduction in recharge to Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

Increased demand on Learning Disabilities arising from emerging in-year
(2014/15) pressures.

Increase in demand for adult social care service due to demographic changes
Increase on Care Home fees

Cost of pay award

Early impact of Care Act

Costs arising from the Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards legislation
Communities Total
CYPF

Reduction in Education Services Grant (ESG)

Reduction in Troubled Families Grant

Loss of Training Unit funding from Education Funding Agency (EFA)
Cost of pay award

Fostering allowances

Staying Put agenda - Children & Families Act 2014

CYPF Total
Place

Contribution towards running costs on the Electric Works
Provision for inflation on waste management contract
Cost of pay award

Provision for inflation on energy and rent/rates bills
Increase of £8 per tonne on landfill tax

Loss of pilot government grant for the waste management contract,
including cost pressures

Re-alignment of funding with revised Moor Market business case

Provision of a feasibility cost budget for strategic projects to deliver future
year savings

Preserving the City’s position as a major host city for cultural, leisure and
sporting events

Reduction in Capital Delivery Service turnover

Place Total

Appendix 1
Loss of  Increasing Pay & Legislative  Total
funding demand on price changes
services inflation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
1,900
1,000
403
400
2,800
1,871
1,263
359
2,490
500
3,703 4,671 1,622 2,990 12,986
1,500
1,200
260
442
80
250
2,960 0 522 250 3,732
250
650
358
127
60
1,000
400
300
195
70
2,215 0 1,135 60 3,410

Page 197

79



PPC

Cost of implementing Individual Electoral Registration system

Cost of pay award

PPC Total

Resources

Increase in Moorfoot business rates liability due to higher occupancy levels
as part of Accommodation Strategy savings

Increase in insurance premiums in relation to transport and property
Cost of pay award
Increased ongoing ICT costs

Loss of capital funding for voluntary land registration project

Loss of income from Insurance Fund

Rationalisation of fleet and equipment
Resources Total

Grand Total

Page 198

Loss of  Increasing Pay & Legislative  Total
funding demand on price changes
services inflation
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
300
32
0 0 32 300 332
400
66
316
400
210
200
20
830 400 382 0 1,612
9,708 5,071 3,693 3,600 22,072

80



Appendix 2a

Children Young People and Families

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000
BUSINESS STRATEGY
Capacity Planning and Development 3,888 3,888 0
Organisational Development 377 371 6
Strategic Support Services 232,886 236,412 -3,526
Information Systems 1,981 2,207 -226
Contract Services 21,601 18,712 2,889
Resources Support Services 27,869 27,102 767
Children's Commissioning 2,493 2,346 147
Children's Public Health 9,781 9,781 0
300,876 300,819 57
CHILDREN & FAMILIES
Prevention and Early Intervention 15,647 9,216 6,431
Fieldwork Services 17,257 1,545 15,712
Health Strategy 3,033 403 2,630
Learning Difficulties and Disabilities 1,614 130 1,484
Policy and Service Improvement 446 31 415
Provider Services 12,988 5,429 7,559
Safeguarding Children 2,573 1,243 1,330
Placements 23,140 1,812 21,328
76,698 19,809 56,889
INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES
Access & Pupil Services 5,065 5,175 -110
Learning & Achievement Services 1,966 1,675 291
Inclusion & Targeted Services 12,008 10,524 1,484
19,039 17,374 1,665

LIFELONG LEARNING SKILLS & COMMUNITIES

Employment and Skills 3,957 2,369 1,588
Family and Community Learning 9,186 9,124 62
Performance & Partnerships 1,251 1,072 180
14-19 Partnership 2,494 2,370 124
Strategic Support 1,662 942 720
Youth 5,925 1,230 4,695

24,475 17,107 7,369

| 421,088 | 355109| | 65,980 |

Page 199

81



Page 200

82



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
e AR CAPACITY PLANNING &DEVELOPMENT (Division)

B gl e e n et o - Revenue contribution to property and maintenance costs for schools.
of Planning Entity

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 0.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{]1{4’/ SCHOOLS PREMISES

sl Revenue contribution to property and maintenance costs for schools.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 201

83



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
e =01 | ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT (Division)

Bl e n gt o) This relates to early retirement, redundancy costs and trade union duties in schools, as well as the cost of
1 BT ) =144 schools' Human Resources Service.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 0.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\={11{4/ BUSINESS DEV & SCHOOL DELIVERY

s 7ail3 1 This reflects the corporate recharges to schools in relation to human resources services to Schools and is
funded from the dedicated schools grant

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

\-{|1{/ STAFF COSTS

8171403 This relates to the cost of school staff retiring early, the cost of redundancies in schools.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Iden

Page 202

84



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
HENLE A STRATEGIC SUPPORT SERVICES (Division)

Bl e n o This budget contains funding for Sheffield's 170 schools, together with schools contingency funding and
o1 JE T =143 support for schools educational initiatives.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Core Activities 232,886

5.30

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\={171{4/ FINANCIAL SUPPORT SERVICES

-1 odlaile]31 Sickness Insurance scheme for schools funded by contribution paid by schools.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

\<{17142 MANAGEMENT REVIEWS

51-1- ¢l :031 This budget contains schools contingency funding and traded services with schools.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1111 SCHOOLS CONTINGENCY

8-yl The Schools Contingency Fund consists of resources set aside from the delegated schools budget, with the
agreement of schools. Also includes Capital Commissioning which identifies CYPF capital priorities across
schools, early years, children's homes and youth centres, It then commissions the build or maintenance
solution from Property and Facilities management.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

225,640

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

225,754

\={1113'/ Loss of Funding/Income

s dlail A pressure as a result of reduced Education Services Grant (ESG). This reduction is a result of the
academisation project and a reduction in the General Fund Rate per pupil from £113 to £87 for 2015/16.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 203

85



Directorate [93{v]
=1-07(<- BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
HEGRRIER =AY INFORMATION SYSTEMS (Division)

Bl e n gt [o ) This service provides information technology infrastructure and support to the Children, Young People and
i JET e =144 Families Portfolio (CYPF).

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Core Activities 22.70

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

({37 ICT CONTRACT

8- i3 This service provides information technology infrastructure and support to the Portfolio.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1714 MANAGEMENT INFORMATION

sl a1l The service includes Schools’ Management Information Systems; Development Team; Information System
Team (Social Care); and Improving Information Sharing and Management (l1ISaM).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 204

86



Directorate [93{v]
=1-07(<- BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
AEGLIERE12T CONTRACT SERVICES (Division)

Bl dglaile e n et - Contract Services provides the Schools Food Service (SFS) together with Emergency Planning, Business
1 JET ) =143 Continuity and Independent Travel Training.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 16.10

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

:\-{11{'/ CONTRACT SERVICES

8-l Contract Services provides the Schools Food Service (SFS) together with Emergency Planning, Business
Continuity and Independent Travel Training. The SFS provides strategic support and advice to schools on
catering and client and contract management of the Sheffield Central Schools Catering Contract. Emergency
Planning and Business Continuity arrangements are managed on behalf of the Portfolio, working closely with
the corporate team, while the Independent Travel Training team work with children and young people with
Special Educational Needs, who have the potential to be trained to travel independently, to and from their
educational settings, rather than having to travel via taxis or minibus.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

21,601

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 205

87



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
e =0 RESOURCES SUPPORT SERVICES (Division)

B gl e e E oo This area delivers Business Strategy Support Services, Advice and Conciliation, External Funding , income
i JEG ) =144 from the 3rd party use of property and insurance cost of property and other cover including employee liability

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Serv

.\-{1/{'/ CENTRAL SUPP COSTS (INC SLAS)

8-l This area delivers Business Strategy Support Services, Advice and Conciliation, Free Entitlement Funding for
2, 3 and 4 year olds, school income for the mandatory and contents insurance and other cover including
employee liability.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

\=i\[{1) PENSIONS

sl Pensions and Early Retirement - Contribution to early retirement fixed cost of pension for school staff.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

07107 Inflation

Bl 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 206

88



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
e =0 RESOURCES SUPPORT SERVICES (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(417147 Cross Service MER

8- dfaile ) This saving will be delivered through an MER and service improvements - reduced school meals cash
collections following the introduction of on line payments, reduction in marketing spend for service to schools
and reduced ICT costs for the provision of information to schools.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 207

89



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
HELL =0 CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING UNIT (Division)

children's health and well being and the Sheffield Music Hub.

Byl n et o The function works across the Portfolio and with Partners to support service delivery and change; including
BN =L consultation and engagement with parents, all partnerships and priority work programmes with schools,

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

46.50
3.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{1/{1/ CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING UNIT

children's health and well being and the Sheffield Music Hub.

817l il3 The function works across the Portfolio and with partners to support service delivery and change; including
consultation and engagement with partners, all partnerships and priority work programmes with schools and

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Page 208

90



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
HELL =0 CHILDREN'S COMMISSIONING UNIT (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4117142 Children's Commissioning Unit

51-1- il Further integration of programme management and support services teams across Commissioning and Public
Health. This will be achieved through an Managing Employee Reduction (MER) scheme, phased over a 3 year
period in order to minimise FTE impacts whilst ensuring a structure fit for the future. Further savings will be
realised through increased trading of the Parental Engagement Service.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(= {1{3' Music Service

8- ilei The Music Hub is currently funded through cash, grant funding, DSG and traded income. Through pump
priming investment and continued trading activity, the Service is now able to sustain business as usual without
the need for further cash investment.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 209

91



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
EL =0 CHILDREN'S PUBLIC HEALTH (Division)

DLl e e E et oo Public Health aims to improve the health of the population and reduce health inequalities through health
i JET ) =144 protection (stopping people being exposed to risk), health promotion (with individuals, communities and
organisations) and through influencing the design of health care services.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 36.14

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{]/{’/ COMM SERVICES - VOLUNTARY

81l Services commissioned from Voluntary and Community organisations to promote health in the Early Years
and with vulnerable groups.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\«{11{4'/ ENHANCED SERVICES

sl | Enhanced Sexual Health Services delivered in Primary Care by GP Practices and Community Pharmacy.
Provision of long acting reversible contraception, emergency hormonal contraception and chlamydia
screening.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

0710/ NHS TRUSTS

8117111031 Sheffield residents receiving sexual health services out of city.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-.{11{3/ PUBLIC HEALTH INFRASTRUCURE

-1 o(i:sl CYPF Public Health Team who deliver public health planning and commissioning activity.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 210

92



Directorate [93{v]
=101 BUSINESS STRATEGY - CYPF
EL =0 CHILDREN'S PUBLIC HEALTH (Division)

.\={11{/ SCH - SCHOOL NURSING

-1l ile]31 School nurses provide a variety of services such as providing health and sex education within schools,
carrying out developmental screening, undertaking health interviews and administering immunisation
programmes.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

=174 STH - GUM

s qilaile It is a confidential service at Sheffield Teaching Hospital providing specialist information, advice, counseling,
rapid testing and treatment for sexually transmitted infections

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Section 4:Public Health Investments (None Identified)

Section 5:Public Health Savings

.\=11'114'7 5% reduction in budget for sexual health services

81101131 5% reduction in budget for sexual health services

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\«.{11{4') Funding reduction Young People's Substance Misuse

8-l Public Health grant contribution funding reduction into the Young People's Substance Misuse pooled budget.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 211

93



Directorate [93{v]
131+ CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HELLE = PREVENTION & EARLY INTERVENTIO (Division)

Byl e 8t o Providing intensive family projects, working with children on the edge of care, supporting families to achieve
i JET ) =144 their full potential. Working in partnership to ensure families receive effective support, preventing families
needing to progress to more intensive statutory services eg Social Care or Child & Adolescent Mental Health
Services. Multi Agency Support Teams work to eradicate social exclusion, improve health/wellbeing, address
antisocial behaviour for those children and young people at risk. This includes a coordinated approach to
improve our statutory responsibilities for schools attendance, Early Years including Children’s Centres advice,
information and free early learning.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 304.60

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{11{4/ PREVENTION AND EARLY INTERVENT

s 47l The delivery of whole family support services within a locality, supporting families to achieve their full potential
ending social exclusion, improving health and wellbeing and improving school attendance, providing a local
access point for families, schools and other service providers in Sheffield. Timely response to requests for
support and work in partnership to ensure families receive an effective package of support to prevent families
needing to progress to more intensive, statutory services for example Social Care or Children and Adolescent
Mental Health Services (CAMHS). Multi Agency Support Teams (MAST) also work jointly with families and
those leaving intensive services to ensure families can be supported effectively to reduce the risk of children
coming back into the care system.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(47147 Loss of Funding/Income

B 0il« s MAST Troubled Families

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(07107 Inflation

Bl 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 212

94



Directorate [93{v]
131+ CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HELLE = PREVENTION & EARLY INTERVENTIO (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

{41714 Successful Families Grant

511 ol oile)3 | Additional grant - MAST Troubled Families mitigated pressure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

\<{11{4'2 Strengthening Families

sl aile]31 Saving generated by additional income from Public Health (PH) investment £500k, Clinical Commissioning
Group (CCG) grant income £500k, and a reprofiling of the Building Successful Families (BSF) grant

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 213

95



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
eI FIELDWORK SERVICES (Division)

Bl e cE e - Works with families in crisis to prevent breakdown, statutory responsibility around legal orders, child protection
i JET ) =144 keyworkers. Courts impose contact requirements on service for Children in Care during and after proceedings.
Hospital Social Work Team covers Jessop's and the Children’s Hospital working with pregnant mothers to
undertake pre-birth assessments and formulate appropriate plans. Responsible for social worker/young person
advisors for looked after children and Care Leavers.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 384.20

Total Savings Made 10.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

G ASYLUM

Description Responsibmty for social worker and support worker for Unaccompanied Asylum Seeker Children (UASC)
involves supporting and planning UASC through the asylum processes and appeals processes in tribunals and
courts; working to asylum legislation and care leavers legislation. Strong operational and strategic
relationships with United Kingdom Border Agency and reports through an elected members group. An internal
review panel operates to track all cases and keep plan tight within timescales; and linkage with the Immigration
Panel.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

:\-{11{/ CENTRAL MGT & BUSINESS SUPP

8-l Central Management and Business Support Service consists mainly of the staffing costs supporting the
Fieldwork and Fostering and Adoption services. This activity includes business support and business support
Management and the administrative running costs of Fieldwork and Fostering and Adoption services.
Supporting Fieldwork and Provider services.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\={17{37 FIELDWORK STRATEGY

8171031 Contract for services to work with families in crisis to prevent breakdown. Intensive support & counseling
around substance abuse.

Cost of proceedings including court fees and third party experts.

Contact Contracts is demand led as courts impose contact requirement on service for children in care.

Multi systemic therapy — an intensive programme to keep 11+ at home reducing care and custody numbers.

Implementation and development of a service record management system

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 214

96



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
eI FIELDWORK SERVICES (Division)

.\<{11{'/ OUT OF HOURS, HOSPITALS & PROJ

51-1- il +1il3 The Hospital Social Work Team covers Jessops and the Children’s Hospital. They work with pregnant mothers
with their first child or who have none of their previous children living at home to undertake pre-birth
assessments and formulate appropriate plans. They receive referrals from the Children’s Hospital on children
admitted or identified through Accident and Emergency or wards who are not currently allocated to Social
Care. It is a 9 week service and transfers to appropriate area long term teams

The Out of Hours service operates links to the 101 Shared Service to receive referrals from Social Care, the
general public and other agencies where there is concern about a child’s welfare where there is a need for an
immediate response as a result of significant harm or the risk of family breakdown.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1111’ PERMANENCE & THROUGHCARE

8-yl il Provides social worker/support worker services for Looked After Children (LAC) and Care Leavers and
planning and commissioning of services, where decision is for them to remain in care.

The age range covers 5 to 25 years, planning for transitions to young adulthood with a wide ranging and varied
network of partnerships ; Inclusion and Learning Service and Lifelong Learning and Skills Service; fostering;
residential; and private providers of 16 plus accommodation; universities; Further Education colleges, Multi-
agency service with midwifes; dentist drop-in; apprenticeships; mental health; Multi Agency Psychological
Service.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(<1114 SERVICE AREA EAST

sl ail The teams are made up of 9 weeks service and the long term teams and include Social Workers, Support
Workers, Practice Teachers and Approved Social Worker Professionals. The types of the assessment/work
undertaken include : Children in need - assessing and supporting families and their children. Child Protection -
a plan is required in order that children are safeguarded. Looked After Children - either permanency care or
further assessment to assess whether children can return home. Children subject to Court Orders or Directives
: e.g. section 7 and section 37 of the Children's Act 1989. Families that have no re-course to public funds,
unaccompanied asylum seekers, homeless 17-18 year olds, adoption for children.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 215

97



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
eI FIELDWORK SERVICES (Division)

.\={11{3"/ SERVICE AREA NORTH

81 flili The teams are made up of 9 weeks service and the long term teams and include Social Workers, Support
Workers, Practice Teachers and Approved Social Worker Professionals. The types of the assessment/work
undertaken include : Children in need - assessing and supporting families and their children to achieve. Child
Protection - a plan is required in order that children are safeguarded. Looked After Children - either
permanency care or further assessment to assess whether children can return home. Children subject to Court
Orders or Directives : e.g. section 7 and section 37 of the Children's Act 1989. Families that have no re-course
to public funds, unaccompanied asylum seekers, homeless 17-18 year olds, adoption for children.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\={11{/ SERVICE AREA WEST

s -dlailei The teams are made up of 9 weeks service and the long term teams and include Social Workers, Support
Workers, Practice Teachers and Approved Social Worker Professionals. The types of the assessment/work
undertaken include : Children in need - assessing and supporting families and their children to achieve. Child
Protection - a plan is required in order that children are safeguarded. Looked After Children - either
permanency care or further assessment to assess whether children can return home. Children subject to Court
Orders or Directives : e.g. section 7 and section 37 of the Children's Act 1989. Families that have no re-course
to public funds, unaccompanied asylum seekers, homeless 17-18 year olds, adoption for children.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

Bl aile 1% Pay Award

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 216

98



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
eI FIELDWORK SERVICES (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

40710 Multisystemic Therapy (MST)

8- dfaile 1 Review therapeutic interventions commission

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

-\={1'1{3'2 Out of Hours

sl Changes to the way the Out of Hours social work function operates to improve the performance of the service
and reduce costs.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\=.{1/{3'7 Business Support and Management Review

sl Management review - Central Management & Business Support

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 217

99



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
BRI =2 HEALTH STRATEGY (Division)

Byl e E o This service oversees joint commissioning with NHS colleagues of some healthcare and public health services
o0 JET ) =144 for vulnerable young people and families, primarily substance misuse prevention and treatment services for
under 18s, and some sexual health services.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 12.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

({714 HEALTH STRATEGY

8- (il This service oversees joint commissioning with NHS colleagues of healthcare and public health services for
vulnerable young people and families, primarily substance misuse prevention and treatment services for under
18s, and sexual health services.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(= {171{4/ STRATEGY AND PARTNERSHIP SERVI

-1 (11131 Provision of a statutory service providing impartial advice & guidance for parents of children with Special
Educational Needs (SEN)

Staffing and associated costs attributed to the implementation of Learning Difficulties and Disabilities (LDD)
Strategy

Development of short breaks : increasing access, workforce development provider development,
commissioning services based on identified gaps.

Reducing barriers associated with disabled children's access to childcare
Young Carers contract and Direct Payments

Social care's contribution to the multi agency information and SIGN (Sheffield Information Giving Network)

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 218

100



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
BRI =2 HEALTH STRATEGY (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

e dfaile 1 Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

(4117144 Choice and FIexibmty in Provision

5 1-1- ol +ile)3l Embedding Short Breaks Grants

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 219

101



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
G =1 LDD (Division)

Bl e i n o This area provides a number of services including a regional resource for children diagnosed with cancer,
o1 JE T ) =144 children with disabilities and practical support for families to support disabled children in a home setting.
Provides social work assessment processes and specialist support based on needs.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 41.80

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

:\=.{1/{3/ CHILDREN WITH DISABILITIES

8-l This area provides a number of services including support for children diagnosed with cancer, children with
disabilities and practical support for families to support disabled children in a home setting

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(0710 Inflation
1% Pay Award

Description

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 220

102



Directorate [93{v]
131+ CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HELLE = POLICY & SERVICE IMPROVEMENT (Division)

B ool e e n et o - Improve outcomes for children and families by:

i JET ) =144 * Ofsted Inspection preparation

« Establishing and maintaining policies & procedures that ensure statutory compliance

« Leading & delivering the social work Recruitment and Retention Strategy

« Disseminating research evidence to practitioners and managers

« Supporting service delivery of information systems e.g. Information Communication Systems, CareFirst
» Undertaking reports required as part of Serious Case Review process

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 5.70

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{11{ POLICY & SERVICE IMPROVEMENT

-1l Improve outcomes for children and their families by enabling quality service improvement :

Ensuring the delivery of service improvement

Ofsted Inspection preparation

Establishing and maintaining policies and procedures that ensure compliance with statutory requirements
Leading and delivering the social work Recruitment and Retention Strategy

Disseminating research evidence to practitioners and managers

Supporting the service delivery of information systems e.g. CareFirst

Undertaking the reports required as part of the Serious Case Review process

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

Bl 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 221

103



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

B glaile e cn et The Provider Service mission statement is to deliver, monitor and provide the highest quality placements and
i JET e 241437 complimentary services that will endeavour to meet specific assessed needs of children and young people
within Sheffield.

Service is responsible for the recruitment, preparation and assessment of prospective parents and their
support once a child is in placement. Provides secure accommodation via Aldine House which is a safe caring
environment. Funds service and strategic commissioning for children and young people’s emotional health and
wellbeing and short break care for children with disabilities in Sheffield.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 265.50

Total Savings Made 4.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

N1/, A ADOPTION

8- 71103 Responsible for the recruitment, preparation and assessment of prospective adoptive parents, and their
support once a child is in placement, and for searching for a suitable adoptive placement that will meet most of
the child’s needs, for all Sheffield children with an agreed plan of adoption. The service offers support to
adoptive families post placement and post Adoption Order including a wide range of support groups. We also
offer support to birth families and adopted adults, including assistance with access to adoption records and
counselling. We facilitate the ‘letterbox exchange scheme’ which assists contact between birth families and
adopted children. The service is responsible for administering and reviewing all Residence Order and Special
Guardianship Order payments and for undertaking non-agency adoption assessments and providing reports to
the Court

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-.{1/{1'/ CHILDRENS RESIDENTIAL HOMES

sl | We provide residential care for Looked After Children and short break care for children with disabilities in
Sheffield in compliance with Children homes regulation 2011

We provide care for young people in 5 directly managed mainstream homes and care for and support young
people and their families in three directly managed short break care homes.

We aspire to provide high quality care for all young people in residential settings; based in thriving
communities with opportunities to improve quality of life, life chances and achieve outcomes which meet or
exceed national minimum standards.

We aim to achieve positive outcomes for children and young people by working in collaboration with parents,
carers, and internal and external partnership agencies.

Our homes aspire to meet the needs of individual young people within a caring family setting.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 222

104



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

/i1, \FOSTERING

(il The Fostering Service has to comply with a number of statutory guidelines including Fostering Service,
National Minimum Standards and Regulations 2011. The Fostering Service: recruits, trains and approves a
high quality cohort of foster carers; retains high quality foster carers; provides placement choice for children
who need looking after by the local authority; ensures that best value for money principles are applied. The
service provide placements that are needed for a cross section of reasons, long term placements for looked
after children (LAC), supporting families within the community, short term placements. The service has to
follow legislation in regard to the supervision of staff and foster carers. Marketing and retention activities are
supported by the services Key Campaign.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

(<1113 PLACEMENT STRATEGY

51-1- oyl ile131 Support for the Corporate Parenting Agenda Board. Looked After and Adopted Children (LAAC) Survey and
Pledge. Star Awards Event. Residential provision for Children’s Workforce Development.

Commissioned service contracts with partnership providers for Care Experience Council and
Advocacy/Children's Rights Services / Looked After Nurse provision.

Supports schools providing early preventative support to children with emotional and mental health problems.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

({1713 YOUTH JUSTICE

s dlail i The Youth Justice Service provides the city’s statutory function for the assessment, supervision and support of
young people involved in the criminal justice system. Key statutory functions include: assessment,
supervision and risk management of young people on community punishment orders and on release from
custody; provision of Appropriate Adult services, provision of reports to court; pre-sentence supervision and
bail support; support to parents and carers of young offenders; work with victims of youth offending. Sheffield
City Council is the lead agency but the service is funded through a statutory partnership funding formula,
including contributions from the Home Office, Ministry of Justice, Department for Education, Probation, Police
and Health.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 223

105



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

Bl ail1 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(4117142 Choice and Flexibility in Provision

8-yl ile)3 1 Health and social care integrated approach to delivery of service

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

(417142 A regional approach to Adoption

811l | A regional approach will provide economies of scale and provide more alternative permanent homes for
children in Sheffield and across the region.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

4117142 A regional approach to Youth Justice

171l A regional approach will increase economies of scale and deliver a faster and more cost effective process

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(4117142 Choice and Flexibility in Provision

8- 71131 Development of a transition into independent living service (including respite) jointly funded by social care and
Special Educational Needs (SEN)

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

41711/ Release of Reserves

8-l 4:131 One off saving through the release of traded income reserves, generated over time.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 224

106



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
AR E132T SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN (Division)

Bl n e The Safeguarding Children Service is an integrated service, formed from child protection functions in Health,
7 JE T =143 Education and Social Care. It incorporates integrated practice and supports and services the Sheffield
Safeguarding Children Board (SSCB).

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 55.80

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{1/{1'/ SAFEGUARDING CHILDREN

s glailehl This is an integrated service, formed from child protection functions in Health, Education & Social Care. It
incorporates integrated practice and supports and services the Sheffield Safeguarding Children Board (SSCB).
Core functions of the Safeguarding service include:

Convening, chairing and minuting of child protection conferences

Independent Reviewing Service

Managing the list of children subject to a child protection plan, performance monitoring and reporting
information

Serious Case Reviews and Child Death Overview processes

Specialist services - Sexual Exploitation, Substance Misuse, Licensing and E-Safety

Support, advice, training, procedures and best practice guidance to enable organisations and individuals to
understand, prioritise and discharge their safeguarding responsibilities to best effect.

The SSCB and other specialist services are joint funded by partner agencies

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(0710 Inflation

Bl aile 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 225

107



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
LRI PLACEMENTS (Division)

B glaile e i n et Purchasing of Foster care, Learning Difficulties and Disabilities (LDD) and Care Leaver beds for Looked After
7 JE ) =144 Children, LDD and Care Leavers.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(=171 PLACEMENTS

8-l ile0y | Purchasing of Foster beds for Looked After Children when in house facilities are not available or on rare
occasions when necessary, for safety reasons, to move a child out of city. Purchasing of residential block
contracts and other residential placements in and out of the city.

There are a number of children and young people with disabilities who are looked after by the Local Authority
who are either placed within or out of city residential home or placed with a private fostering carer.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Activity L[niEie]

Bl dlaile 1% Pay Award

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

a1 Legislation

8- o1l Staying Put agenda - Children & Families Act 2014

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Activity LniEiie]

8-l ile]5 1 Fostering Allowances

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 226

108



Directorate [93{v]
<107 CHILDREN & FAMILIES
LRI PLACEMENTS (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

{47147 Placement Review

511l il3 To review all Independent Fostering Agency (IFA) placements and long term fostering placements, with a view
to securing permanency or LA fostering placements

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(417144 Co-ordination of SEN Placements

8- (1003 | Implementing more formal contractual arrangements, with bespoke service specifications and robust contract
management and monitoring in place, in order to improve outcomes for children and young people and the
quality of service delivery

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 227

109



Directorate [93{v]
=1:07(=- INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES
HEGLIER =12 ACCESS & PUPIL SERVICES (Division)

DLl e e n et The School Organisation Team fulfils the statutory duty to ensure sufficient high quality school places. The

i JET L) =144 Pupil Admissions Team manages all elements of the school admissions process and is supported by the
Children Missing From Education Team who work to ensure that all children missing from education are
promptly re-engaged with educational provision. The School Liaison function provides a de-escalation service
for school issues and includes the lead for services to schools and governors support.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 70.00

Total Savings Made 2.50

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{17{’/ ACCESS & PUPIL SERVICES

51 (il The School Organisation Team fulfils the statutory duty to plan and provide sufficient high quality Primary and
Secondary school places commissioning new provision where it is required and making changes to the
organisation of schools. The Pupil Admissions Team provides advice and guidance to parents and schools and
manages all elements of the school admissions process from application to appeals and transport. The
admissions process is supported by the Children Missing From Education Team who work to ensure that all
children missing from education are promptly identified and re-engaged with educational provision. The
Services to Schools function oversees the services offer to schools including the redesign and quality
assurance of services. It includes the School Liaison Service which deals with problem resolution and de-
escalation of school issues.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Activity L[niEie]
1% Pay Award

Description

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Income

Non Staff

Page 228

110



Directorate [93{v]
=1:07(=- INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES
HEGLIER =12 ACCESS & PUPIL SERVICES (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(417147 Behaviour and Attendance Partnership

5]--(w 1011131 Reduction in Management and Staffing

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\={17{1'/ Traded Income

sl aile | E-Learning Service to be fully traded with schools and academies from April 2015.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\-{11{3'7 Review of ILS Support Service Teams

-1l 113 Reorganisation of support service functions enabled by the co-location of teams that were previously on split
sites.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

.\<.{1'1{3'/ Trading of Pupil Admissions Services

8-l il Additional income from academies for the Pupil Admissions Service.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

a1y Pay Award

-1yl Pay Award - Funded through reductions across the service.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 229

111



Directorate [93{v]
=101+ INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES
HENLEE SV LEARNING & ACHIEVING SERVICE (Division)

Byl e n gt The Learning and Achievement Service provides advocacy for all children and young people’s educational
i JE e =143 outcomes to ensure that they make good progress, with a particular focus on the most vulnerable. In our role
as advocate and champion for children, young people and families the Local authority will support, challenge
and intervene in schools where necessary.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 15.30

Total Savings Made 0.50

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(= {111/ LEARNING & ACHIEVING SERVICE

-1 flail | The Learning and Achievement Service (LAS) provides advocacy for all children and young people’s
educational outcomes in Sheffield, to ensure they reach their full potential. In addition to the role of advocates,
LAS also operates a virtual school for looked after children to champion their educational outcomes. Within
LAS there are also services such as Every Sheffield Child Articulate and Literate (ESCAL).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Section 3: Summary of Savings

4147 Lead Headteachers

8-l ile3 1| Reduction in Management and Staffing

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 230

112



Directorate [93{v]
=101+ INCLUSION & LEARNING SERVICES
HELE S INCLUSION & TARGETED SERVICES (Division)

B gl e e E o The identification of the educational needs of individual children and young people with Special Educational
7 JET L) =143 Needs and the provision of high quality statutory services including schools to meet those needs. The
provision of targeted services or provision to meet the needs of other identified vulnerable groups at risk of
underachievement or exclusion within mainstream schools.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 153.00

Total Savings Made 1.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.= {11{/ INCLUSIONS & TARGETED SERVICES

8-l ail Timely assessments and reviews are undertaken to identify needs and support required. Needs will usually be
met within maintained mainstream schools, integrated resources or special schools. However for a few
children and young people independent provision may be required or travel assistance for school attendance.
The key objective of the Inclusive Learning Strategy is to ensure that every school is good and inclusive,
improving parental confidence to send their children to their local school. Key to all schools being inclusive is
Special Educational Needs (SEN) provision delivered through excellent services (Educational Psychologists,
Hearing and Visual Impairment and Autism), specialist provision (Integrated Resources and Special Schools)
and for vulnerable individuals high quality targeted support as well as challenge when outcomes are not good.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Income

(10,524)

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified
Section 3: Summary of Savings

Non Staff

(417144 Traded Income

8-yl Increased level of traded income from schools to reflect increased demand for the Educational Psychology

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

41714 Establishing a Traded Model

-1l Establish a traded model for Inclusion Learning Services, in particular the English as an Additional Langauge
(EAL) Programmes, which are well regarded by schools. This will realign the service and enable it to continue
to contribute to improved outcomes for pupils from vulnerable groups across the city in the context of

increasing academisation and school choice around purchasing services.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 231

113



Directorate [93{v]
=107 LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
AEGRIER =AY EMPLOYMENT & SKILLS (Division)

B dglaile i n e The team secures external funding to support people to develop the skills for work in vulnerable groups and
i JETL ) =144 communities. It is part of a wider strategy to tackle poverty and support.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 28.55

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

i\ CITY DEAL

sl Management of the City Deal programme across the Sheffield City region on behalf of the Local Enterprise
Partnership (LEP).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(=171 EMPLOYMENT & SKILLS

L dilili The team

- commissions, through the third sector, the SCC Employability Programme targeting vulnerable adults and
young people furthest from the labour market including those with disabilities and mental health conditions, as
well as lone parents, ex-offenders and some Black and Minority Ethnic (BME) communities.

- operates Opportunity Sheffield brokering job and training opportunities with the city’s employers placing
jobseekers in work.

- implements the Skills Strategy working with stakeholders, including Skills Funding Agency (SFA), to improve
the skills levels of the city’s workforce.

- organises the Sheffield 100 Apprentices programme and manages the City Deal for Skills for the city-region.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Staff Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure
24.55 856 1,240 2,096 (208) 1,888

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 232

114



Directorate [93{v]
<101H= LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
e A FAMILY & COMMUNITY LEARNING (Division)

Bl e e n - Organises adult, community and family learning for the city and manages training units. This is on the whole
i JET e =144 externally funded via the Skills Funding Agency and Education Funding Agency

Leads Sheffield’s Raising the Participation Age strategy

Leads on learning provision for 16-25 year olds with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities for Sheffield

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Core Activities 88.60

Total Savings Made 7.50

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

VXS 71416 - 19

bl-(wdaile 1 - Commissions and delivers provision for young people Not in Education, Employment or Training (NEETS)
and other vulnerable learners

- Co-ordinates provision for 16-25 year olds with Learning Difficulties and Disabilities including assessment of
need and provision of tailored learning programmes such as New Routes

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

({17142 ADULT & COMMUNITY LEARNING

8-l aile3 1 Holds the Skills Funding Agency (SFA) contract for the city and commissions provision for learners on its
behalf. To facilitate this, the service manages extensive partnership working across a range of local learning
partnerships, Community Assemblies and with other providers, model now been adopted as a national pilot for
the Business Innovation and Skills Community Learning Trusts. The programme is partly delivered by the
service’s tutors, adult learning in community settings, including basic skills, first steps to employment, English
for Speakers of Other Languages, vocational learning and learning for leisure. The programme also includes
SFA funded Family Learning, delivered in schools, children’s centres and other community settings. These are
structured programmes to support parents to support their children’s learning and to improve their own basic
skills and confidence.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

G EMTAS

8- (i3 The Ethnic Minority and Traveller Achievement Service (EMTAS):

- designs and delivers support programmes targeted at under achieving young people from vulnerable
communities, specifically BME

- has strategic and operational responsibility for mentoring programmes for vulnerable young people

- develops prevention and intervention strategies to support cohesion and develop resilient communities

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 233

115



Directorate [93{v]
<101H= LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
e A FAMILY & COMMUNITY LEARNING (Division)

\={\1{4'/ EXTENDED SCHOOLS

-1l aile]31 Study Support and the Children’s University

This service contributes to the increased achievement and participation in learning of targeted cohorts of
children and young people by continuing to develop:

- study support programme is a traded service that is offered to schools.

- promoting and celebrating participation in the Children’s University, with 8,000 learners currently holding
passports, as a direct contribution to school based attainment through enrichment activities.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

-\«{11{4"/ LEARNING SKILL & EMPLOYMENT

-1l Management and delivery in SCC'’s four training centres of Skills Funding Agency /Education Funding Agency
funded learning programmes across the majority of vocational areas. This activity includes:

- the 14 -16 Vocational Skills Programme to enhance the school-based curriculum offer.

- apprenticeships for young people and adults.

- work based assessments and further education in vocational sectors.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

\={11{3'/ Loss of Funding/Income

-1l aile]3 | Grant drop out from EFA into Training Units from rule changes around 16-19 programmes

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Section 3: Summary of Savings

-\-.{1714') Restructure of Management Staffing

8ol Full year effect from 14/15 restructure of Families & Communities including merger with 14-19 team and loss of
Skills Funding Agency funding leading to reshaping of Training Units (Progression Pathways)

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 234

116



Directorate [93{v]
<101H= LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
e =0 PERFORMANCE & PARTNERSHIPS (Division)

Byl e e 8t o ) Provision of performance management and analytical services in the portfolio and direct support to schools.
o1 JET L) =143 Undertakes joint work with Primary Care Trust. Partnership working arrangements, such as the 0-19+
Partnership and Children's Trust Executive Board. Delivery of children's and parental consultation and
engagement eg Parents Assembly and Every Child Matters survey. Responsible for statutory Independent
Reviewing Service, which monitors care plans of Sheffield's Looked After Children.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 27.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{17{3') PERFORMANCE & PARTNERSHIPS

-1 (11031 Performance and Partnerships is responsible for:

- performance management and analytical services, ensuring intelligent commissioning by all services.

- providing direct support to schools and undertaking joint work with NHS.

- management of partnership working arrangements e.g. 0 -19 Partnership and the Children's Trust Executive
Board.

- providing support for business plans.

- coordinating external inspections.

- monitoring and reporting on policy developments.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 235

117



Directorate [93{v]
=107 LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
HEGRIER AT 14-19 PARTNERSHIP (Division)

B gl i n et e - Vocational Skills Programme for young people. The Not in Employment Education or Training (NEET)

1 JET ) =143 prevention programme. Develops Foundation level learning policy/practice. Plans 16-19 provision with
government agencies. Leads education employer links and the city's 14-25 Partnership/working groups.
Oversees activity to widen Higher Education participation. Champions/coordinates Science, Technology,
Engineering and Maths agenda. Responds to national initiatives (University Technical College/Studio School)

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 11.80

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

= {17147 14 - 19 PARTNERSHIP

-1l ail| Commissions and quality assures provision of 14 -16 Vocational Skills Programme for 900 learners as
purchased by schools.

Organises the city’s Alternative Provision for 500 most vulnerable young people e.g. Looked After Children, not
on school roll, home educated.

Plans the city’s 16 -19 provision jointly with government agencies.

Leads on education employer links prioritising growth sectors and enterprise.

Leads city's award winning 14-25 Partnership.

Oversees activity to widen participation to Higher Education. Champions and coordinates the Science,
Technology, Engineering and Maths agenda.

Responds to national initiatives e.g. University Technical College.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 236

118



Directorate [93{v]
=107 LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
HEGRIGER =T STRATEGIC SUPPORT (Division)

B gl e n et - Core Team: Winning external grant/contracts, developing strategic programmes, commissioning learning, skills
i JET L) =144 and employment provision and delivering traded services. The team levered a total of £32.8m for City Deal
and Ambition Sheffield over the last 3 years, which the Council manages on behalf of the Local Enterprise
Partnership and is pursuing other opportunities to secure further funding. Strategic Support & Development:
Comprises of the Grant Administration Unit and Administration teams, the team supports managers at all
levels in the delivery of service objectives.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 32.80

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

=111/ STRATEGIC SUPPORT

8-yl Lifelong Learning, Skills and Communities Core Team

Responsible for:

- the management of 14-19 learning, Integrated Youth Services, Employment and Skills, Adult, Community and
Family Learning and Community Cohesion.

- winning external grants and contract, developing strategic programmes, commissioning learning, skills and
employment provision and delivering traded services.

- undertaking project and performance monitoring, review and evaluation, liaison with funding bodies and
compliance with corporate policies, funding body contractual requirements.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Activity LniEie]

Bl ail1 1% Pay Award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

i1y Pay Award

8-l ail 1 Funded through reductions across the service.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 237

119



Directorate [93{v]
=107 LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
HEGLIER =AY YOUTH (Division)

DLl e et e ) Commissions Community Youth Teams to identify young people at risk of falling out of education, involvement
o1 JET ) =144 in crime/antisocial behaviour/other poor outcomes and keep them on positive paths through
support/advice/guidance. Delivers targeted youth work provision and programmes including street based.
Supports voluntary groups to deliver positive activities for young people. Involves Young People in decisions
affecting then via Involvement Strategy/Youth Council/Young Inspectors etc.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 34.00

Total Savings Made 5.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

:\<{17{4’, COMMUNITY YOUTH TEAMS

-1+ aile)31 Directly employs the council staff who are deployed into Community Youth Teams (CYTs). Identifies and
delivers preventative programmes to vulnerable young people at risk involvement in crime and antisocial
behaviour. Supports multi agency management arrangements for CYTs including police and health staff.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

<1171 UNIVERSAL SERVICES

511yl aill Commissions activity through Sheffield Futures and other third sector partners including:

- Capacity building to grow grass roots development of positive activities focussed on communities where there
are gaps in provision

- Direct delivery of targeted youth engagement programmes

- Identification, tracking and re-engagement of young people Not in Education, Employment or Training
(NEETSs) into learning or employment

- Youth Involvement through the Youth Cabinet and UK Youth Parliament Members, Young Advisers, Young
Inspectors and local youth forums

- A traded service in Careers Guidance for schools

- Information, Advice and Guidance for vulnerable groups, including young people with Learning Difficulties
and Disabilities, Looked after Children, young offenders and young parents

- Supports the Duke of Edinburgh scheme

- Tailored support for specified groups i.e. LGBT young people

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Staff Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure
5.00 9 4,112 4,120 (1,081) 3,039

Page 238

120



Directorate [93{v]
=107 LIFELONG LEARN, SKILL & COMMUN
HEGLIER =AY YOUTH (Division)

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Section 3: Summary of Savings

-\={1'1{3') Targeted Support for Vulnerable Young People

817l A review of youth involvement and community youth teams and a reduction of Sheffield Futures core contract.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Income

Non Staff

Page 239

121



Page 240

122



Appendix 2b

Communities

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000
CARE AND SUPPORT
Assessment and Care Management 79,609 3,632 75,977
Contributions to Care 1,234 32,601 -31,367
Housing Related Services 5,247 2,649 2,597
Learning Disability Service 61,574 4,855 56,719
Provider Services 12,838 2,832 10,006
160,502 46,569 113,932
COMMISSIONING
Housing Commissioning 19,754 4,847 14,907
Mental Health Commissioning 12,557 1,184 11,373
Public Health 2,093 2,093 0
Public Health DACT 8,603 7,763 840
Social Care Commissioning 3,603 1,049 2,554
46,610 16,936 29,674
COMMUNITY SERVICES
Community Safety 501 0 501
Libraries 5,569 1,216 4,353
Locality Management 2,596 139 2,457
8,666 1,355 7,311
BUSINESS STRATEGY
Executive and Portfolio-wide Services 4,062 1,255 2,807
Planning and Performance 816 128 688
Quality and Safeguarding 2,333 530 1,803
7,211 1,913 5,298
| 222989 | 66,773 | 156,215|

Page 241

123



Page 242

124



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENE S0 | ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT (Division)

Bl e e E o The service assesses needs and provides resources for the care and protection of vulnerable older people,
i JET L) =144 adults with a physical disability or sensory impairment and their carers. The aim is to provide through self
directed support and personal budgets care and support for people either in their own homes, or in residential
care, by working in close partnership with health, housing, Care4you, the independent sector and voluntary
organisations to assess and provide care as required.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 261.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(<1113’ ADULT SOCIAL CARE PURCHASING

51-1- ol +i]31| Care purchased from Independent Sector Providers, via direct payments and self directed support. Primarily
provision of services where there is statutory duty to meet the required needs. Some service provision of
preventative services, to avoid higher levels of need developing (therefore maximising independence and
minimising higher cost packages).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\={11{4'2 ADULT SOCIAL CARE REABLEMENT

sl aile]5i Provision of initial early and preventative intervention and safeguarding through timely assessment,
reablement and support to people to access universal services.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

\={11{’/ CASE MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

-1l aile) 1 Provide time limited support/Social Work services to enable people to continue to live as independently as
possible. Provision of support/protection for very vulnerable people, e.g. Safeguarding, Deprivation of Liberty
etc. Statutory duties associated with Community Care Services define the responsibilities to access needs and
provide services. To assess and manage risks associated with vulnerable service users and to agree
outcomes with them to keep them free from harm and as independent as possible whilst remaining in their own
home. Additionally to support people who have to go into care or who have complex mental health problems.
We also work with the Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group to establish eligibility for either social care or
health care funding.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 243

125



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENE S0 | ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT (Division)

(=173 REVIEW & REASSESSMENT FUNCTION

8113l The Council must review/reassess users who require Care and Support to determine whether their eligible
needs have changed and to ensure that support continues to be provided cost effectively.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\-{111/ ACCESS PREVENTION & REABLEMENT

sl aile]i | Hospital and Intermediate Care based services. The primary function of this service is to support people to
return home from hospital safely, avoiding inappropriate hospital admission and provide Social Work support
for those with significant health conditions.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-.{1/{1’/ SERVICE MANAGEMENT

-1l ail]31 Cost of service management team.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\={1/{3/ HOUSING SERVICES 3

b]-(od0i 0 Assessment of needs and supply of equipment and adaptations for all people to enable them to remain living

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 244

126



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENE S0 | ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(4710 Demand

sl-1- il Increase in demand for adult social care service due to demographic changes

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(= {17147 Inflation

8-l ile]3 | Care Home Fees 2% Increase - based on expenditure of £31.35m.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

a1 Legislation

8-yl ailep | Early impact of Care Act, including assessment costs, financial assessment costs, Carers assessments and
Carers Support beyond what we currently provide.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

.\=.{11{3'2 Promote cost effective home care supply

8-l This saving will be achieved by promoting independence of service users, which will lead to a reduction in
home care costs.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

(4017107 Adults Reviews & Reassessments

8-l ail3 The Council must review/reassess people who require Care and Support. Outcomes of those reviews and
reassessments is that for some people the Council has been providing more care and support than people
need and/or support has not been provided cost effectively, which is not a fair and equitable use of resources.
This has reduced costs in 2014/15 and will give a full year effect in 2015/16 as the costs are continuous.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 245

127



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENE S0 | ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT (Division)

411711/ Review extra care grant payment

-1l ail)5 Reduction of historic grant monies to various providers.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.\-{11{1'/ Review sheffcare beds

-1l This saving will be realised as a result of achieving greater value for money due to service re-design.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

.\=.{11{37 Anticipated Funding Allocation for Care Act

-1l ile i Funding Allocation to meet requirements of the Care Act from April 2015 based on the revised financial
modelling work undertaken following the Autumn Consultation Exercise.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(4117142 Tender Community Equipment Store

51-1- o711l Reduce running costs by re-tendering in collaboration with the Sheffield Clinical Commissioning Group. The
outcome of the tender will offer greater value for money, whilst modernising service delivery in line with
strategic design principles.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 246

128



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENE S0 | ASSESSMENT & CARE MANAGEMENT (Division)

(4117117 Review preventative service re independent living

sl Review preventative services in respect of small adaptations and independent living solutions.
End stayput contract which provides some Occupational Therapy Assessments and Minor Adaptations to non-
eligible customers.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(417147 Housing Revenue Account Recharges

51-1- oyl il3 | Recharge the Housing Revenue Account for property checks essential for moving customers under the
Lettings Policy.

Making appropriate charge to HRA to assess suitability of properties for customer for mobility priorities -
minimise rent losses of voids

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 247

129



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
LRI CONTRIBUTIONS TO CARE (Division)

B glaile i n et e The Social Care Accounts Service manages the processes relating to financial assessments, payment
i JET ) =144 recovery, resources management and direct payments, which results in the generation of contributions to care
from service users.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1:

(=111’ CHC INCOME

b]-{w o101 Income from CCG where individuals' care packages are either wholly or partially eligible for Health funding.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

\=117137 ILF INCOME

51:1- il ile3 1 Income from Independent Living Fund where Sheffield City Council acts as the award manager for individuals.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\« {1113 INTEGRATED CHARGE INCOME

-l Income from service users contributions for non residential care, as assessed under Sheffield's Fairer
Contributions Policy.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

.\« {17137 RESI, NURSE & PTY INCOME

s -1 o113 Service User Contributions for residential and nursing care as assessed using national regulations (CRAG).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 248

130



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
LRI CONTRIBUTIONS TO CARE (Division)

-\={11{'/ SCAS PROGRAMME TEAM

-1+l 411e]31| One-off projects for managing changes to the way in which the Social Care Accounts Service operates or the
way in which income is collected. There are no such projects scheduled to take place in 2015/16.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-{1'1{'2 SOCIAL CARE ACCOUNTS SERVICE

8-l il]31| Cost of the Social Care Accounts Service which administers and pays for all care packages, manages direct
payments to service users and financially assesses individual service users and collects income

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(4017147 Loss of Funding/Income

»l-(w il Emerging 14/15 budget pressure, as a result of reduced numbers of service users leading to lower fairer
contributions income.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(411714 Maximising Income options

-1 (]3| People needing Care and Support contribute what they can afford and recovery action is taken when they
refuse to contribute. The proposed benefits uplift in 2015/16 and a simplification of allowances awarded in the
financial assessment will increase income in 2015/16.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\<1{1'113'2 Social Care Accounts Service Restructure

sl aile]3 1 Staff have left the service during 2014/15 as a result of the service being re-designed and developing generic
roles rather than specialisms. Part year savings in 2014/15 become a full year saving in 2015/16.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

Page 249

131



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENLEE A HOUSING RELATED SERVICES (Division)

Bl e e E et Services which help to prevent homelessness or support individuals and families who are homeless. To

i JE e =143 provide housing advice and assistance with equipment and adaptations for daily living, and disabled facilities
grants. To provide support to meet other housing needs. The service also provides accommodation and
support to asylum seekers.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 70.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\-.{1/{i' ACCOMMODATION & SUPPORT

8 -1+l 4i1e]31| Provision of accommodation, support and related services for asylum seekers. Responsibility for refugee
integration strategy and the intelligence and impact of migrants on the city.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\-{1'/{4'/ HOUSING OPTIONS & ADVICE

-1 o111 Statutory homeless services including homeless prevention, homeless assessments and advice. High support
family intervention unit. Medical assessments for priorities under lettings policy. Provision of temporary
accommodation (including bed & breakfast) for customers owed statutory housing duties.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(<1111’ HOUSING OPTIONS & ADVICE

8-yl ail | Adjustment for strategic outcome transferring Local Assistance Scheme from Better Health and Wellbeing

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 250

132



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131+ | CARE AND SUPPORT
HENLEE A HOUSING RELATED SERVICES (Division)

.\={1/{4'/ HOUSING OPTIONS & ADVICE

Social Justice

81l Adjustment for strategic outcome transferring Local Assistance Scheme to Tackling Poverty and Increasing

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

\={11{3' Loss of Funding/Income

s qdlailegii Local Welfare Provision Grant no longer received from Government.

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Section 3: Summary of Savings

-\=.{11{3'’2 Accommodation and Support - Housing Solutions

s -1l Reduce the running costs of the Private Rented Solutions Service, whilst maintaining service standards and

outcomes.

Gross Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure

Net Revenue
Income Expenditure

(4017142 Accommodation and Support: High Support Review

51-1- ¢l | Reduced use of Bed and Breakfast accommodation. As an alternative, service users will be placed into
suitable temporary, supported or permanent housing as soon as possible.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Page 251

133



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
AEGRIER =01 LEARNING DISABILITIES (Division)

Byl cE et The Learning Disabilities team assesses needs and provides specialist community based services,
0 JE T e =143 accommodation and support, short break services, specialist mental health services and service for fuffilling
lives through self directed support and personal budgets.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure FTEs
Core Activities (4,855) 56,719 257.00

Total Savings Made (3,115) 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(<1111’ SHORT BREAKS

51-1- o7l +i1e]3 1| Provision of short break respite service to service users with learning disabilities

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1713 EMPLOYMENT TEAM

8- 711031 Provision of employment related support to adults with a learning disability. Includes work based day care and
support into open employment

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1113 EXTERNAL FUNDING

811l Team to support and manage programme delivery of Learning Disabilities services including accommodation
and out of City placements.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

(<1111’ LEARN DISABILITIES FIELDWORK

51-1- 11031 Social work teams providing information and advice, assessing the support needs of vulnerable people,
agreeing and arranging care packages, reviewing care and support.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 252

134



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
AEGRIER =01 LEARNING DISABILITIES (Division)

(<1111 LEARN DISABILITIES MANAGEMENT

8l Management team and business support part funded by NHS

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(<1714 LOCALITY 1 CORE BUSINESS

sl In-house provision of accommodation, and related support services, to people with a learning disability. The
income for this service is currently received via the Learning Disability Pool (SCC and NHS Sheffield)

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

\«{11{4/ LOCALITY 2 CORE BUSINESS

s -1 flaileh i In-house provision of accommodation, and related support services, to people with a learning disability. The
income for this service is currently received via the Learning Disability Pool (SCC and NHS Sheffield)

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1111 PURCHASING LD

8-l ile]31| Care purchased from the independent sector, direct payments and self directed support.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff
51,840

Income

48,160

=737 LD A&CM

sl ail | Assessment and Care Management teams supporting Learning Disability service users.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 253

135



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
AEGRIER =01 LEARNING DISABILITIES (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(4710 Demand

51-1- il il Increased demand on Learning Disabilities Purchasing arising from emerging in-year (14/15) pressures.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(4710 Demand

8-l Increased demand on in-house Learning Disabilities services arising from emerging in-year (14/15) pressures.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

.\« {113/ Demand

-l Increase in demand for adult social care service due to demographic changes

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(407147 Loss of Funding/Income

5l-(w 001 Shortfall in funding to support Independent Living Fund (ILF) users as legislation and funding changes

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

07107 Inflation

8- (a1l Care Home Fees 2% Increase - based on expenditure of £20.35m

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 254

136



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
AEGRIER =01 LEARNING DISABILITIES (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4017142 Supply & Market Development: Learning DisabiTity

8-yl ailep Transfer of all current supported living business to the appropriate, newly tendered for price band, delivered by
providers who have succeeded in getting on the supported living framework as a result of the evaluation of
quality.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

4017142 Supply & Market Development: Short Breaks

-1 7l Negotiations with existing providers to achieve best value for money for short breaks through more cost
effective market rates.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\<{1114'2 Use of Adult Placement Shared Lives

-1 (ilei To develop APSL as an alternative solution for long term care placements.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(40714 Review staff structure in LD A&C Management

8-l | Review staff structure in Learning Disabilities Assessment & Care Management. Full year effect of 14/15
savings.
Implemented June 2014

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

41714/ Learning Disability: Supported Living Framework

-1 (11031 De-registration of registered residential care homes and change to supported living to maximise value for
money. This will be achieved through transfer of all current business to the appropriate, newly tendered for
supported living price band, delivered by providers who have succeeded in getting on the supported living
framework as a result of the evaluation of quality.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 255

137



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

Bl e n gt The Social Care Services directly managed by the Council for older people and adults with a physical disability
1 JET ) =144 or sensory impairment and their Carers. This includes Home Care, Community Support, City Wide Care
Alarms, Adult Placement Shared Lives Service (APSL).

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\ {11{4'2 ADULT PLACEMENT SHARED LIVES

5 -1+ ile]31 Provision of long and short term family or community based support provided by approved self employed
Carers who have been assessed, trained and supervised by the service. Provision includes day support,
befriending, overnight stays and long term placements within the Carers' own home.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(40710 REABLEMENT SERVICES

-1 (113 Home Support has 3 specialist service areas as follows: 1) Short Term Intervention (STIT) providing a re-
ablement service for a short period of time to enable service users to remain at home. 2) Mental Health
providing direct care to service users who have been diagnosed with Dementia or Mental Health problems. 3)
Complex Needs providing direct care and support to individuals who are assessed against a complex needs
criteria; this may also include service users who are in Safeguarding, or have had their service re-provided for
from the Independent Sector.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 256

138



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

\<1{1713/ CARE4YOU 24 HOUR RESPONSE SERV

51-1- 1131 Enabling our customers to lead healthy and independent lives through the installation of equipment and
provision of emergency care advice, support and practical help 24 hours a day, 365 days per year (helping the
individual to remain safe, secure and independent at home).

Provision of the service is free for the first 6 weeks (preventing delayed discharge from hospital and avoidable
hospital admissions). Provision of an Out of Hours and Overnight support function to all service areas.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\<{11{/ CARE4YOU BUSINESS & PERFORMANC

5]--{w 0101 Provides the Management and Administration to support the delivery of all areas of the Care4you Service. This
support is provided via: * Business Support and Reception function; ¢ Planning and co-ordination of the use of
Caredyou resources, including allocation of staff to service users and transport; « Quality Assurance and
performance reporting.

The B&P function in every team works towards providing a consistent support service that meets all quality
and corporate standards, including customer service and communication standards.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\<1{1/{’/, COMMUNITY SUPPORT SERVICE

8-l il In-House provision of social respite via Community Support Services which supports service users to remain in
the community as an alternative to residential or nursing care, and provides respite support for their carers.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.\« {\/{i” HEAD OF SERVICE

8-yl Includes Major Incident Response and other miscellaneous items managed by the Head of Service which
relate to the whole of Adult Provider Services

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 257

139



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-0(<-= CARE AND SUPPORT
HEGLIER =12 PROVIDER SERVICES (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4117147 Closure of Complex Needs service

8-yl il i This is the full year effect of savings plans agreed and implemented in 2014/15. Services are being re-provided
in a more cost-effective way.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(407142 Adult Provider Services General Fund

b1l aile i Examine & reduce non-stafﬁng budgets

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

(4017147 Adult Provider Services Training Costs Reduction

8- oyl oile3 Reduction in Adult Provider Services Training Expenditure. Will not impact on training requirements.
Reduction proportionate to staff reduction within Service.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\={171{3'7 Review of Community Support Services, incl. Grange

5w 00001 Review of Community Support Services, including Grange Crescent and social respite groups across the city.
Options Appraisal to be undertaken to determine the future direction of the service, taking into consideration
the need to maximise value for money whilst continuing to ensure ongoing provision for all service users.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

:\41714'2 Close Manor Centre and relocate to Moorfoot

8l-(w 001 This relocation of staff will result in lower building costs whilst service delivery will remain unaffected.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 258

140



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =2 HOUSING COMMISSIONING (Division)

B gl e 8o Activity to get the best out of the city's existing housing through managing the relationship with social landlords
7 JET ) 241447 and private landlords, and supporting the Council's Housing Service. Commissioning of supported housing
from a wide range of providers across the city, and development of new capacity.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure FTEs
Core Activities (4,847) 14,907 47.00

Total Savings Made (1,100) 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(=111’ CENTRAL OVERHEADS

sl il Housing service support costs including corporately processed Service Level Agreement charges.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\<{11{/ HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT

8-l il Maintaining independence for vulnerable people who need additional support to maintain a tenancy.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

.\={1713'7 PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING

-1l Work with landlords to ensure private sector properties meet statutory standards: to prevent illegal eviction and
harassment of private rented tenants; mandatory licensing of Houses in Multiple Occupation (HMO) and
enforcement, selective licensing and Empty Homes service.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

:\-.{11{1"/ SOCIAL HOUSING

-1l Work undertaken by SCC to ensure effective partnership working with other providers. Includes grounds
maintenance, Housing Associations strategy and standards and Gypsy and Traveller sites.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 259

141



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =2 HOUSING COMMISSIONING (Division)

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(47147 Implement exisiting plans. Housing Related Support

s 47l A range of changes to housing related support contractual arrangements, which will deliver efficiencies in the
way this support is provided. A large proportion of the savings is the full year effect of savings made in 2014/15
for sheltered accommodation and extra care housing.

Where possible the full impacts of reductions to extra care and sheltered housing have been mitigated by
remodelling some of the funding into Housing Benefit, but has covered risks and priorities and full impacts of
reductions of services to other vulnerable groups have been mitigated by better prioritising who support is
directed to.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 260

142



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=101+ | COMMISSIONING
e =S MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSIONING (Division)

Bl e n gt Investment in services provided by Sheffield Health and Social Care Foundation Trust for people with mental
O HENT R health issues.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Core Activities 82.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\-{1/{3/ ASSESSMENT & CARE MGNT-MH

8-yl ail31 Social work teams (seconded to Sheffield Health and Social Care Foundation Trust) providing information,
care and advice including approved social workers, assessing the support needs of vulnerable people,
agreeing and arranging care packages, reviewing care and support. Purchasing of care packages from the
independent sector and undertaking statutory assessments under the Mental Health Act.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.\<{1/{’/ COMMISSIONING MENTAL HEALTH

8-l ile)3 | Partnership grants and support for Carers of people with Mental Health issues.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-{1/{1/ OLDER PEOPLES MENTAL HEALTH

»l-(Hd il Resource centres provided by Sheffield Health and Social Care Foundation Trust under the Section 75
Partnership Agreement providing short term care and day care. Staff employed by Sheffield Health and Social
Care Foundation Trust.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\-.{]'/{1’/ SUBSTANCE MISUSE SERVICES

8- o¢lail31 Care and support for people with drug and alcohol issues.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 261

143



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=101+ | COMMISSIONING
e =S MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSIONING (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

sl aileii Increase in Health & Social Care NHS Foundation Trust pension charge

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

i1y Demand

sl aile Increase in demand for adult social care service due to demographic changes

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

71 Inflation

8-yl il31 Care Home Fees 2% Increase - based on expenditure of £3.3m

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 262

144



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=101+ | COMMISSIONING
e =S MENTAL HEALTH COMMISSIONING (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4117147 Retender Hurlfield View resource centre management

-1l i | A renegotiation of the current delivery arrangements will take place with the provider; to enable them to re-
configure their service model to meet the savings target, with no adverse impact on service delivery.

There should be no impact to current funded users of the services who are referred as part of eligibility.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(407107 Impact of revised offer - Mental Health Purchasing

8- il il3| The Council must review/reassess people who require Mental Health Services. Outcomes of those reviews
and reassessments is that for some people the Council has been providing more care and support than people
need and/or support has not been provided cost effectively, which is not a fair and equitable use of resources.
This has reduced costs in 2014/15 and will give a full year effect in 2015/16 as the costs are continuous.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 263

145



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =12 PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNITY (Division)

Bl e en T o= Public Health responsibilities transferred to Local Authorities several years ago now. This service includes:

i JET ) =144 work to promote the health of people with mental health problems, learning difficulties and other vulnerable
adults, general health promotion, and the Community Wellbeing Programme. This is a community based
programme operating primarily in the most disadvantaged parts of the City, which builds on community assets
to address the root causes of ill health, promote healthier lifestyles and facilitate access to health services.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 15.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{]'/{3’/, COMMUNITIES PH CONTRACTS

8-l Public Health commissions the voluntary sector to deliver a number of Public Health services for the delivery
of the Healthy Communities Programme, Health Trainers, Health Champions and Mental Health related
services.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\«{11{4'/, COMMUNITIES PH STAFF

s dlaileii In house provision includesa Mental Health initiative, the Health Trainers service largley funded through the
Sheffield CCG and work to support people with HIV.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(4117142 COMMUNITIES PH NON PAY

-1l Public Health infrastructure budget funds public health staff in Communities Portfolio who commission,lead
and develop public health interventions including working in partnership with other services and organisations.
It includes the support and services non pay budget covering mental health, older people, vulnerable groups,
the voluntary, community & faith sector infrastructure, community development and the Healthy Communities
Programme.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Page 264

146



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =12 PUBLIC HEALTH COMMUNITY (Division)

Section 4:Public Health Investments (None Identified)

Section 5:Public Health Savings

.\-.{11{3'7 Reviewing PH investment in Mental Health Services

8-l aile]31 Value for money and impact reviews of public health investment in care and support services - considering
how we maximise impact of public health investment alongside existing mainstream mental health investment.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

(47147 Review of Community Wellbeing Services

8-l | Agreeing extensions to existing contracts with reductions in cost achieved through negotiated savings and/or
changes to service provision.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 265

147



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =12 PH DRUG & ALCOHOL (DACT) (Division)

Byl e 8t e - Public Health responsibilities transferred to Local Authorities several years ago now. This services relates to
i JET ) =144 work in the prevention and treatment of alcohol and drug dependency.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 17.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(11132 DRUG & ALCOHOL SERVICES CS

-1l Public Health commissions a range of community based interventions for drugs and alcohol, including brief
interventions through to residential rehabilitation. Interventions are aimed at both harm reduction - reducing the
spread of blood borne viruses - and recovery from drug dependence. A procurement exercise is underway to
reconfigure and streamline the local services to respond to new challenges in terms of drug trends and to
deliver "more for less". A key area for the city is in increasing recovery capital and opportunities including links
with mutual aid.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

.\<1{1'/{3 Demand

b]--(w 0000 1 Additional IDVA Capacity (Independent Domestic Violence Advocacy)

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 266

148



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=1-07(<-5 COMMISSIONING
HEGRIER =12 PH DRUG & ALCOHOL (DACT) (Division)

Section 4:Public Health Investments (None Identified)

Section 5:Public Health Savings

(417142 Consolidation of drugs treatment contracts

- dfaile 1 Achieved without impact on service levels by consolidating drugs-treatment contracts and services with one

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 267

149



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=101+ | COMMISSIONING
HENLE =01 SOCIAL CARE COMMISSIONING (Division)

Bl aile e e cE e - Commissioning of services for older people, people with mental health problems and learning disabilities
iHENL G including needs assessment, service redesign, market development and contracting.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 56.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{17{4'7 PARTNERSHIP FUNDING & CONTRACT

s ¢laile | Funds a range of projects and programmes delivered internally and by Voluntary, Community and Faith Sector
and private providers eg Carers provision, Health and Wellbeing Board, development of Health and Social
Care Integration.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

=113/ STAFF & SUPPLIES

-1 ¢l il]31 Contract management and commissioning of adult social care services which are delivered by the voluntary,
community & faith sectors and private providers. Developing the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment and
commissioning strategies, e.g. Carers, prevention, Black and Minority Ethnic, Quality in Care Homes.
Partnership contract management for Adult Mental Health; resource management for independent Home Care;
monitoring of care homes and other care providers

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

n 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 268

150



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
={-07(<-=- COMMUNITY SERVICES
HEGRIER =2 COMMUNITY SAFETY (Division)

B gl e e cn et e The Community Safety Team have responsibility for managing Cohesion. Migration and Safety issues across
i JET e =144 the City, including statutory responsibility around the Community Safety Partnership, Domestic Violence and
Anti Social Behaviour.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

14.00
0.00

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\={11{'/ SAFER COMMUNITIES PARTNERSHIP

8-l This team is responsible for coordinating the Partnership to deliver the city's Community Safety Strategy, Joint
Strategic Intelligence Assessment Action Plan and its statutory duties. This partnership has been developed to
bring together all strategic partners - Council, Health, Police, Fire, Probation Services, Voluntary Section and
range of other support services to achieve the city's ambitions.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 269

151



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131 COMMUNITY SERVICES
e A LIBRARIES, ARCHIVES & INFORMAT (Division)

Bl e el 8T o1 ) Provision to provide under the 1964 Public Libraries & Museums Act 'a comprehensive and cost-effective

i JET e =144 library service' for all those who live, work or are educated in Sheffield. The key roles of the service include the
promotion of reading and celebration of books and other media, the provision of welcoming libraries and library
spaces, as 'hubs' for Sheffield's successful centres and for celebrating the city's diverse history, locality and
culture, and the promotion of lifelong learning.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 118.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{11{4/ ASSOCIATE LIBRARIES

8- ¢1i131 10 Libraries independent of Sheffield City Council now run by volunteer groups.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

(<1111 CENTRAL & COLLECTIONS

»l-(w (a1l The Sheffield Central Library, the Library Theatre and the management of the council’s library collections.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\<.{11{4’/ CO-DELIVERED LIBRARIES

s daile31 5 Libraries which are run by volunteers with Sheffield City Council support by maintaining buildings and
providing lending materials not part of the Council’s Library service.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

\«{17{/ HERITAGE SERVICES

-1 o100, Sheffield’s Archives and Local Studies Service which also includes records management.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 270

152



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<131 COMMUNITY SERVICES
e A LIBRARIES, ARCHIVES & INFORMAT (Division)

.\={17{/ HUB & HOME LIBRARIES

-1l aile031 12 Sheffield City Council Hub libraries (Tinsley until 2016), including our Home Library service to people that
are not able to access a community library.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

-\«{11{3"/ LEADERSHIP TEAM

8- ilail3 The Management Team for the Libraries Archives and Information service.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.\-.{17{4/ SERVICE DEVELOPMENT

8-l ail3 Support functions for the Library service, Schools and children’s library services and the World Metal Index.
Also includes IT and e-services.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

n 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Section 3: Summary of Savings

.\-{1713'/ Review of Sheffield's Library Service

s dlailii In February 2014 Cabinet made a decision on the future of Sheffield's Library Service to meet its statutory duty
at this time.

Continue with the planned savings. The plans for the new service and the development of community hubs,
volunteering and outreach provision align with the strategic priorities and direction of the Council.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 271

153



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
={-07(<-=- COMMUNITY SERVICES
HEGRIER =012 LOCALITY MANAGEMENT (Division)

B glaile i n e The Locality Management Team facilitates the 7 Local Area Partnerships (LAPs) that support Ward Members
i JET L) =144 at a community level across the City. The team also supports the Voluntary Community Faith (VCF) sector at
a local level including community based funding through Grant Aid.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 18.00

Total Savings Made 3.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{17{'/ CENTRAL COSTS

81l Community Development and Services, Grant Aid Management to Community based organisations, cohesion
management and support to Local Area Partnerships.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-.{{'/{i’/, COMMUNITY BUILDINGS

-1l Management of range of Community Buildings across the city to support the development of the VCF sector
and local communities.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1170 LOCALITY AREA

51-1- oyl aile31 During 2013/14 significant changes to the role and structure for the team responsible for managing community
assemblies was undertaken. This created the newly formed LAPs and changed the support mechanisms for
local elected members. This has provided a more streamlined governance and engagement structure in the
city. The new arrangements have been implemented and have informed the new team structure.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 272

154



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
={-07(<-=- COMMUNITY SERVICES
HEGRIER =012 LOCALITY MANAGEMENT (Division)

(<1111’ VOLUNTARY SECTOR

8- ol o1i1e131 Supporting the development of the Voluntary, Community and Faith sector, supporting local communities
across the city.This coordinates grant aid funding, mainstream Council and partnership funding and has
resulted in maximising the use of external funding.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

n 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4117147 Locality Management - Executive Costs

8- o113 Reduction in budgets that cover meeting hire, communication and start up costs for new Locality management
arrangements.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(471407 Locality Management - VS Grants Fund

51-1- 7l il Reduction in the City Wide Voluntary Sector Grants Fund

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(= {1714'7 Merger of Staff Structures

s il Reduce and Merge Staffing Structures for VCF/Grant Aid.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 273

155



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<101 BUSINESS STRATEGY
e =V EXECUTIVE & PORTFOLIO-WIDE SER (Division)

Bl e e n e Includes the costs of Communities Executive Director and the Business Strategy Management Team (and
i JET L) =414 support), together with central portfolio overheads.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 130.00

Total Savings Made 15.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

-\« {1113 EXECUTIVE

-1 o1l Executive Director and Business Strategy Management Team and support

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

.\<{1/{3’/ PORTFOLIO-WIDE SERVICES

8-l il General, 'central' Communities Portfolio overheads, including the provision of business support services and
the Mail and Insurance contracts.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(417147 Loss of Funding/Income

8-yl ile3 1| Recharge to Housing Revenue Account - Service Level Agreement recharge recalculation, which has led to a
reduction in the recharge.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

71 Inflation

51-1- oyl il]31 Cost of 1% pay award for the whole of Communities Portfolio

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 274

156



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<101 BUSINESS STRATEGY
e =V EXECUTIVE & PORTFOLIO-WIDE SER (Division)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

4117142 Reduction in non-staff costs

-1 (il Reduction in non-staff costs for Business Strategy based on an analysis of current and previous year
requirements.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\-.{1'/11'/ Business Strategy Business Support Staff Reduction

sl ail] | As a result of plans already underway, improved working practices will enable the achievement of business
support savings of 15 full time equivalents and associated staff costs.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

(47147 Business Strategy Personal Assistants

8-l ail | As a result of a review of Personal Assistant support to Heads of Service and Directors.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 275

157



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
=107 BUSINESS STRATEGY
HEGRIER =012 PLANNING & PERFORMANCE (Division)

Byl e n et o1 - Responsible for business systems and information, including the CareFirst team for Communities Portfolio,
1 JET L) =144 performance and service business planning and programme management and governance.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 32.00

Total Savings Made 7.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(= {1713/ INFO MANAGEMENT & SYSTEMS

sl Provide IT systems and services for adult social care and other services in Communities.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

(<1111’ PERFORMANCE, PLANNING & CHANGE

5117l ile3 1| Business Strategy team ensuring the Portfolio operates as a whole with shared systems and infrastructure
within the context of One Council. The team provides performance and business planning for continuous
improvement and programme and project management to deliver major change.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified
Section 3: Summary of Savings

.\={1113'7 Reduce staffing levels across Business Strategy

-l Review and restructure Business Strategy to deliver an overall reduction in 7 full time equivalents and
associated staffing costs.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 276

158



Bl Cla =18 COMMUNITIES
<101 BUSINESS STRATEGY
HEGRIER =2 QUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING (Division)

Bl i R This service includes the Adult Safeguarding, Mental Capacity Act and Deprivation of Liberty Safeguards
i JET ) =044 (DoLS) teams, which are funded through a joint partnership with health, probation, police and fire services.
There is also a training element provided primarily for Adult Social Care. Risk management, equalities,
professional practice, service user consultation and involvement are also covered in this area.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 32.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\« {17147 QUALITY AND SAFEGUARDING

8-l | Adult Safeguarding and mental capacity teams, quality and service standards.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

4147 Legislation

51-1 (i3 The Supreme Court ruling has significantly reduced the threshold for DOLS (Deprivation of Liberty). As a result
there has been a tenfold increase in the number of cases where the local authority has to assess and approve
the living arrangements for people whose liberty is restricted for their own safety.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 277

159



Page 278

160



Business Strategy and Regulation
Capital & Major Projects

Creative Sheffield

Culture & Environment

Marketing Sheffield

Public Health

Regeneration & Development Services

Place

APPENDIX 2c

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000

36,982 8,003 28,979

10,611 10,126 485
20,638 18,378 2,260
25,629 10,304 15,325

1,110 497 613

2,810 2,810 0

98,389 19,531 78,858

| 196,169| | 69,649| 126,520 |

Page 279

161



Page 280

162



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION
el =137 BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION (Service)

Bl il =t 1o To ensure the portfolio is strategically well placed in terms of business planning, performance management,
iHERL T A1 resource and investment management, business improvement and change management, resilience and
effective Governance.

The city is well protected and safe through effective regulation, enforcement and Licensing and that the Council's
statutory obligations in this regard are efficiently and effectively discharged.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Core Activities 151.48

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(=713 CORONER

-0 The Coroner's service investigates unexplained deaths, carrying out post-mortems and hosts the Coroner's

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

AT ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATIONS

L Environmental Regulations covers a range of activities including Environmental Protection, Health Protection,
Trading Standards and Pest Control. The majority of activity relates to the implementation of legally enforceable
measures. The service exists to keep the city safe and healthy as well as protecting the environment.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

AT LICENSING

el Delivery of the Councils legal / statutory / non-statutory licensing functions in relation to sports, gambling and
entertainment facilities, alcohol and food sales, charity collections and animals.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

AU/ MEDICO LEGAL

0 1: e ]s1{1e0 1 The Medico legal centre provides mortuary services to the Coroner, supporting the investigation of unexplained

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 281

163



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION
el =137 BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION (Service)

A1/ PORTFOLIO WIDE LEADERSHIP & ST

0 1-- e ]s1{ley ) Business Strategy which covers the Place portfolio, leading on strategic development, organisational capability,
resource management, programme and performance management, and internal and corporate controls.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

A1 WASTE MANAGEMENT

=141y Household waste collection and treatment services provided through outsourced integrated waste management
contract with Veolia. The long term contract, to 2036, included the development of the Energy Recovery Facility,
enabling the city to recover energy from waste and achieve one of the highest landfill diversion rates in the
country. The budget includes a small client team responsible for the management of the contract and
development of the strategy for managing waste in the city.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

28,474

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

({17147 Inflation

-1 | Provision for a pay increase (1%).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

A Inflation

=1 s (1) Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%) inflation.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

A Inflation

8- ]s1{1e0h ) Provision for contract inflation on waste management contract (2.3%).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 282

164



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION
el =137 BUSINESS STRATEGY & REGULATION (Service)

1171407 Legislation

- e lsie) Increase of £8 per tonne on landfill tax.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(«{1714'/ Loss of Funding/Income

DL | Provision of a feasibility cost budget for strategic projects to deliver future year savings.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

{1714/ Loss of Funding/Income

- | Provision for cost pressures (£800k) and loss of pilot government grant (£200k) on the waste management
contract/service.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Section 3: Summary of Savings

Income

{17147 Identify levers to release savings on contracts

DL | [dentify levers to release savings of up to 15% over the next 3 years on contracts and levies (waste
management).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(A Inflation Increase on Fees and Charges

=LA AN inflation increase on all fees and charges within BSR not included in specific proposals, principally recovery
of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 283

165



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS
el = CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS (Service)

B el Gt 1o To lead the City Council's major capital projects — city developments, housing, operational and non-operational
i B EG a7 buildings and infrastructure. Also responsible for property services, design services, energy management and
commercial property including markets.

The Service through the Director also provides the Chief Property Officer of the Council, for Corporate property
matters reporting to the Executive Director, Resources.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 76.50

Total Savings Made 7.40

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

<{\714/ CAPITAL DELIVERY SERVICE

=151y The development and delivery agent for all council-led and procured building and construction projects. The
service ensures that projects, including building, construction and development projects are scoped, developed,
procured, delivered and managed as efficiently, economically and successfully as possible whilst delivering the
required outcomes to the highest possible quality and ensuring that the requisite corporate processes are
followed. The service will also provide the Capital Programme Hub to monitor and manage the councils overall
Capital Programme together with the Energy Management function, responsible for the management and
reduction of the council’s energy consumption

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

(1113 CARBON REDUCTION

-0 Carbon Reduction Commitment (CRC) Energy Efficiency Scheme - is a mandatory Government scheme
administered by the Environment Agency. The Council qualifies as a CRC ‘participating organisation’ and is
required to report annually on energy used by sites and supplies specified under CRC rules, and to buy 1
‘carbon allowance’ for each tonne of CO2 emitted as a result of using that energy. The CRC budget is for the
purchase of carbon allowances and other fees due under the CRC scheme.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

<{1711/ COMMERCIAL ESTATE

-1 ]s{1e0y) Corporate Asset Strategy, Management of the Commercial, Rural and Agricultural Estates, Client Management
of Kier Asset Partnership Services Property Consultancy including, Valuation, Rating Advice, Acquisitions and
Disposals, Asset Rationalisation Work, Major Projects Property Negotiation.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 284

166



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS
el = CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS (Service)

{1710 EMERGENCY PLANNING

0 [-1e]51{1e4 ) The Emergency Planning Shared Service Rotherham & Sheffield is responsible for leading and co-ordinating the
council’s preparations for, response to and recovery from a major incident which may affect Sheffield. Their
plans and actions comply with the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, other government guidance and also take into
account the needs of our residents, the emergency services, neighbouring Local Authorities, and other
emergency responders.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

LGAUIWANEW RETAIL QUARTER

B =H1 T The City Council’s Primary Objective is to enable the development of an extensive high quality retail led mixed
use scheme incorporating leisure, food and drink uses in the City Centre.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

{1714 SHEFFIELD CITY MARKETS

=1 s (e Provision of the City and District markets service including operational and staffing costs associated with
wholesale, retail, street trading and visiting markets.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue

Non Staff Income Expenditure

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(<1714 Loss of Funding/Income

-0 1 Re-alignment of funding with revised Moor Market business case.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

01 Inflation

0=l s {leq ) Provision for pay increase (1%).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 285

167



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
(- CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS
el = CAPITAL & MAJOR PROJECTS (Service)

<1714/ Loss of Funding/Income

8- ]+1{1oh ) Reduction in Capital Delivery Service turnover.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

({1714 Moor Market - Revised Business Case

=g A reduction in in staff (patrol& management) aimed at delivering efficiencies to enable lower rent/service
charges with a view to sustaining higher occupancy levels.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

1132 Capital Delivery Service

=101 A reduction in staffing to re-align costs with reduced income and sustain the achievement of the overall profit
target for the service (see Pressure E3)

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Y1 Inflationary Increase on Fees and Charges

-0 An inflation increase on all fees and charges within C&MP not included in specific proposals, principally recovery
of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 286

168



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
“1:3(<- CREATIVE SHEFFIELD
HELLe =33 CREATIVE SHEFFIELD (Service)

B o Creative Sheffield is the economic development service of the Council. It is responsible for the development,
i E LG a7 delivery and monitoring of Sheffield's economic strategy as well as delivering business facing services of
enterprise, inward investment and sector development.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 25.80

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

{711/ ACCOUNTABLE BODY PROJECTS

=11 Projects for which Sheffield City Council acts as the accountable body.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

18,493

Non Staff Income

18,191

.(=\7{1'/ CORPORATE CS MGT

- el Management and all operational costs of the service for Creative Sheffield and in year activity budgets.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

AU ENTERPRISE

-l Delivery of a range of core business support programmes that assist business to start up and grow.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

=718 BUSINESS GROWTH

Ll Delivery of core investment and sector development activities that attract external investment into Sheffield,
support key employers, and drives growth in our key industry sectors.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 287

169



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
“1:3(<- CREATIVE SHEFFIELD
HELLe =33 CREATIVE SHEFFIELD (Service)

{710/ STRATEGY AND SKILLS

-1 ]51{1eq 1 Economic policy and strategy support and activities that promote the development and retention of high level
skills and graduate utilisation in Sheffield.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Line |Si

01 Inflation

2=l ]s1 {14} Provision for Pay increase (1%).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Line |24

A Inflation

0= ]s1(1eq ) Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%) inflation.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Line =€)

w171 Demand

10T Contribution towards running costs on the Electric Works due to lower than originally planned occupation, in line
with revised business case.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

A Inflation Increase On Fees and Charges

-7 AN inflation increase on all fees and charges within BSR not included in specific proposals, principally recovery
of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

Page 288

170



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
0= CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT
el =7 CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT (Service)

B i o This service area delivers a range of in-house services and also commissions major sports and cultural services
i EL LG EG T from trusts. Services include:- Parks and Countryside, Activity Sheffield, sports and leisure facilities, city centre
management, city events (arts, sports and parks), museums, theatres, galleries and the City Hall.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Expenditure Income Expenditure FTEs
Core Activities 15,325 436.29
Total Savings Made (1,027) 3.10

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

LAY ACTIVITY SHEFFIELD

e Activity Sheffield particularly targets children/young people and older people. It offers a wide choice of activities
through sport, play, and physical activity. It makes a major contribution to the city’s health improvement agenda
and a positive impact on the city’s wider regeneration agendas e.g. community programmes, reducing Anti
Social Behaviour, and helping older people become more independent. It creates pride in local communities and
increases the skills and confidence of local people.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

AU ARTS STRATEGY

-0 1 Business development and delivering key projects for arts and culture in the city. Specifically, facilitating the
implementation of the strategic projects and working with partners and organisations across the city to maximise
the impact of culture.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(=111 BEREAVEMENT SERVICES

0o ]s1i1eq) Providing a burial & cremation service, managing City Road and Hutcliffe Wood Crematoria, and 16 Cemeteries
across the city. Provision of memorialisation, including bronze plaques, Book of Remembrance.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 289

171



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
0= CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT
el =7 CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT (Service)

{710 CITY CENTRE MANAGEMENT

-4 ]+1{1.1) To manage the city centre in an efficient and integrated manner to aim to sustain current investment, footfall and
retail spend and to attract future investment opportunities. The service objective is to effectively manage the city
centre spaces and streets to ensure that not only their potential is fully realised, but also that they are effectively
maintained in response to increased use, demands and expectations and to manage the city wide CCTV
network to ensure it provides an efficient, reliable service to all partners and stakeholders.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

.1/ DIRECTOR CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT

-0 | Leadership of the Culture & Environment services, plus management and development of key strategies,
projects and partnerships.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

AU EVENTS

- To provide a city events calendar including city and community events. Through exploiting present and future
opportunities the events team will work to maximise the value that events give to the city in terms of profile,
economics, creativity and community cohesion. The team will provide a range of delivery methods which will
include direct delivery, support to other event owners and commissioning.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

(=713 PARKS AND COUNTRYSIDE

-0 Management, maintenance and development of the city's parks, green spaces and countryside. Includes parks
& public realm, countryside & environment, policy & projects. Key functions include implementing Sheffield's
Green & Open Spaces Strategy, tree & woodland management and maintenance, Rangers service, ecology
function including biodiversity statutory duty, facility management including sports provision, playgrounds,
allotments & community food growing, city, district & local parks, Botanical Gardens, animal farm, community
forestry, volunteer partnerships development & support, floral displays, graffiti removal, and visitor and
destination facilities.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

10,400

Non Staff

Income

Page 290

172



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
0= CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT
el =7 CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT (Service)

{1710 PARTNERSHIPS & SPECIAL PROJECT

-1 ]4{1eq ) The Partnerships and Special Projects section deals with the relationships with the leisure/sports and cultural
trusts. They all deliver services that are viewed as important to the Council in terms of its strategic objectives
and play a key part in influencing the city's economic, social, educational and health priorities.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Line |S4|

A1 Inflation

=15 {101 Provision for Pay increase (1%) on Competitive City activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Line |24

G012 Inflation

8- ]s1{1e0h) Provision for Pay increase (1%) for Great Place to Live activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Line [=¢]

{17147 Inflation

- | Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%) inflation for Competitive City activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Line |23

({17147 Inflation

- | Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%)for Great Place to Live activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 291

173



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
0= CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT
el =7 CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT (Service)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

«{\714 Urban Nature Parks

0= | Shift from formal maintenance to more natural land management that will support meadow, wildlife, wild flowers
and more trees.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

{1714 SIV Efficiency Programme

DLl Increased income and efficiencies in sports facilities.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

1132 Public Realm Maintenance Efficiencies

=150 Merge Housing Estates Services and Parks grounds maintenance teams to realise efficiencies in both Housing
Revenue Account and General Fund (net General Fund saving only shown below).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

.\<.{1/14'/ Reduction in Theatre Trust Grant

DL | Agreed reduction in annual grant to Theatre Trust.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

41712 Reduction in Museums Sheffield Subsidy

- | Agreed reduction in Museums Sheffield subsidy.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

-(<{1714'/ Reduction in Sheffield Industrial Museums Grant

DL | Agreed reduction in Sheffield Industrial Museums Grant

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

Page 292

174



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
0= CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT
el =7 CULTURE & ENVIRONMENT (Service)

11114 Upperthorpe Healthy Living Centre

-4y Reduction in Upperthorpe Healthy Living Centre subsidy.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.(<{1714'/ City Centre Management

=S ) Increased Income generation and additional fee paying events

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(<{\7147 Events New Business Model

-4 Move towards new business model for Major Events reducing dependency on General Fund.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

(713 Inflation Increase on Fees and Charges

-0 An inflation increase on all fees and charges within culture and environment not included in specific proposals,
principally recovery of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects (great place to live).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

.(<{1714/ Inflation Increase on Fees and Charges

- sieg 1 An inflation increase on all fees and charges within culture and environment not included in specific proposals,
principally recovery of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects (competitive city).

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

Page 293

175



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<10 MARKETING SHEFFIELD
el = MARKETING SHEFFIELD (Division)

Bl 1t o Strategic marketing of Sheffield as a destination to key target audiences of trade, talent and tourism.
of Planning Entity

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 10.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

{710/ MAJOR EVENTS

1511 Commisioning major events including World Snooker, DocFest and MADE festival

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

AT MARKETING SHEFFIELD

e ]s (10 Strategic Marketing of Sheffield as a destination to key target audiences of Trade, Talent and Tourism. This
involves Trade Marketing of the city through the creation of on-line and off-line marketing materials and strategic
business events such as the MADE Festival, The Global Manufacturing Festival and the 100 Years of Stainless
Steel initiative in 2013. Marketing Sheffield is also responsible for driving the visitor economy, this includes
operating the Tourist Information Centre, the Welcome to Sheffield website/guide, and partnerships with national
Tourism agency and relevant regional Tourism partners. Marketing Sheffield also operates the Sheffield
Convention Bureau - attracting high profile conferences amd exhibitions to the city.This activity is spearheaded
by a Sheffield Conference Ambassador Programme.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 294

176



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<10 MARKETING SHEFFIELD
el = MARKETING SHEFFIELD (Division)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

A1 Inflation

0= ¢]s1{1eq ) Provision for Pay increase (1%).

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Net Revenue
Expenditure

{1714/ Loss of Funding/Income

Ll Preserving the City’s position as a major host city for cultural, leisure and sporting events.

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Net Revenue
Expenditure

.(<1{1714 No General Fund

- Move Marketing Sheffield to an alternative business model with no General Fund allocation

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Page 295

177



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
-3 PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH
el = PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH (Service)

Bl i U e The purpose of the service is to contribute to Sheffield being a healthy and successful city by: tackling social

i JEL 7 determinants of ill health, health improvement programmes, tackling inequalities in health, increasing access to
services and improving services.

The service leads public health action on several key policy areas — such as tobacco control interventions to help
people to live smoke free lives, obesity and food and environment and health.

It supports stakeholders by providing a health perspective to ensure that projects and services have a positive
impact on health and provide public health support on some of the root causes of ill health, for example, air
quality, and transport issues to help prevent health problems and address health inequalities.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

A1/ TOBAC, OBES, ENV & SUST

Description

The purpose of the service is to contribute to Sheffield being a healthy and successful city by: tackling social
determinants of ill health, health improvement programmes, tackling inequalities in health, increasing access to
services and improving services. The service leads public health action on several key policy areas — such as
tobacco control interventions to help people to live smoke free lives, obesity and food and environment and
health — through to commissioning specific frontline health services for the population, such as stop smoking
services, weight management services and community dieticians for the community.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified
Section 4:Public Health Investments (None Identified)
Section 5:Public Health Savings

(=713 Reduce funds to Skyride event

8- e ¢]51{1e4 ) Cycling opportunities — reduce funds to Skyride annual event and maintain PH funding for programme of led
rides to build behaviour change

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 296

178



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
-3 PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH
el = PLACE PUBLIC HEALTH (Service)

.(<1{1714'4 Cut to Move More Funding

8- ]51{1e0q ) Cut to Move More funding

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.(<.{|714'/ Cut to Tobacco control programme budget:

1o s1{1eq ) Cut to Tobacco control programme budget:

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

\<1{1/14'/ Stop Eatwell — Trading Stds Healthy Takeaways work

e ]si1e0y ) Stop Eatwell — Trading Stds Healthy Takeaways work.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

.(<.{1/14'/ Stop Food & community cooking skills

- 1 Stop Food & community cooking skills — currently provided citywide by Upperthorpe Healthy Living Centre

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

{17142 Cut MCDT food work
- Cut MCDT food work

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

<1714/ Cut to Weight Management Services contracts

ey Cut to Weight Management Services contracts

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 297

179



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

Bl el I o - Regeneration and Development Services is responsible for the physical development of the City and promoting
i JEL G sustainable regeneration. This includes regeneration of Neighbourhoods and the City Centre, Housing Strategy
and delivery of the Sheffield Local Housing Company; Spatial Development plans, development management,
urban design and environmental planning; Building Standards and flood prevention; All client Highway Services
including car parking and traffic information and control; Transport policy and programmes, and air quality
management.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure FTEs
Core Activities 78,858

Total Savings Made (7,038)

378.97
3.20

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

{7142 CITY DEVELOPMENT DIVISION

=511 Provides professional support and project management for City Centre and upper and lower Don Valley priority
areas.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

G710 HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE DIVISION

e Management of the Streets Ahead Contract

Provision of a Development Control and Adoptions Service
Provision of a Highways Records Service

Delivery of Highways related infrastructure programme and works
Provision of a Flood & Water Management Regulatory Service

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

AT MANAGEMENT & SUPPORT DEVS

-0 1 Provides management, administration and general support for Development Services

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

Page 298

180



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

({1710 PLANNING SERVICES

8- ]s1{1o0q) Statutory planning and building control service, including plan making, development management and projects.
Support housing and economic regeneration and delivery and strategic core priorities to achieve a Competitive
City and a Great Place to Live. To prepare planning briefs for key sites, protect what is special about Sheffield
including it's Conservation Areas and Listed Buildings and achieve design quality in new development. To design
major new greenspace and public realm and South Street park. Includes Building Standards trading account, the
externally funded South Yorkshire Forest Partnership and the jointly funded South Yorkshire Archaeology
Service.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

=01/ PRECEPTS AND LEVIES

8- ¢]s1(1e19 1 The South Yorkshire Integrated Transport Authority charges a levy on Sheffield City Council to fund the provision
of public transport services across South Yorkshire including the Suertram system.

The Environment Agency charge Sheffield City Council a levy to cover flood defence for main rivers in the
Sheffield area. Flood defence money is spent on the construction of new flood defence schemes, the
maintenance of the river system and existing flood defences and the flood warning system.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

28,528

Non Staff
28,528

Income

Page 299

181



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

<1718 SUSTAINABLE CITY

-5l The Service provides the following services:

Delivers Housing and Neighbourhood Regeneration programmes

Professional and project management support to Housing and Neighbourhood Investment Programmes.
Provision of non-housing HRA asset management

Provision of a Regional Loans Service

Delivery of the Sheffield Housing Company

Leads on the development of Corporate Housing Strategy and Policy, including City-region strategy
development.

Supports the Sheffield City Region (SCR) Housing and Regeneration Board, a sub-board of the SCR Local
Economic Partnership (LEP).

Low Carbon/low emission vehicle programmes

Corporate Environmental resilience and responsibility

Corporate and City Sustainability Strategy

Works closely with external funding agencies and other partners, as well as working with other stakeholder
including community and residents groups.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

=715 TRANSPORT TRAFFIC & PARKING SE

=510 To plan, administer, co-ordinate and regulate activities on the City's highways in order to provide for the safe and
efficient movement of people and goods around Sheffield.

Main service areas within Transport, Traffic and Parking Services (TTAPS) are :

Transport Planning.

Road Safety and School Crossing Patrol Wardens.

Highway Network Management, including Highway Coordination and Intelligent Transport Systems.
Transport and Traffic Design & Delivery, including Traffic Regulations.

Transport Traffic & Parking Services Business Management, including Public Rights of Way and Air Quality.
Parking Services.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

Page 300

182



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Line |34

A1 Inflation

015 {101 Provision for Pay increase (1%) on Competitive City activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Line |24

({17147 Inflation

STl Provision for Pay increase (1%) on Great Place to Live activities.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

E3

Line

({17147 Inflation

- | Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%) inflation for Competitive City activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Line |24

A1 Inflation

-1 ]s1{1eq ) Provision for energy (10%) and rent/rates (3%) for Great Place to Live Activities

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Section 3: Summary of Savings

Income

{1714 Identify levers to release savings on contracts

DLl [dentify levers to release savings of up to 15% over the next 3 years from contracts and levies (Streets Ahead)

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Income

({17147 Identify levers to release savings on levies

-0l [dentify levers to release savings of up to 15% over the next 3 years from contracts and levies (Public Transport
Contribution)

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 301

183



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

<1111/ Road Safety

e s{1e00 1 Reduce 1fte vacant school crossing post (£7k) and increase the balance of schools funded crossing patrols

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

4071 Urban & Env Design Restructure

- ]s1{1e0h ) Delete vacant Principal Officer Business and Programmes post (G9) in Urban & Environmental Design and

replace with an Assistant Landscape Officer post (G6).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

.(<{1711'/ Development Management

- s1{1e00 1 Reduce working hours of the Business Manager post (G11).

Gross Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

.“{\714'/ Increase Income - Planning & City Regeneration

Quarter and Sheffield City Region Investment Fund projects (£14k).

-0 | Additional income assumed in pre-application fees (£25k); Building Control fees (£5k); New Homes Bonus 2
funding for Housing Market Intelligence Project (£35k); City Regeneration project recharges to the New Retail

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

41712 Highway Network Management

from Licence income (£18k).

T A number of measures: reduced UTC communications costs (£40k); bus lane enforcement income to contribute
to UTC costs (£50k); increased income from Licence fees (£35k); fund technical support officer post in Licences

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Income

Page 302

184



Directorate |[g¥.Xe{
<1-37(<-- REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SEFR
ELLe =17 REGENERATION & DEVELOPMENT SER (Service)

(<1114 Transport Planning

e ]s i A number of measures : fund scheme design and delivery officer from camera enforcement income (£20k);
increase recharge to Streets Ahead Opportunities post to Capital (£15k); recharge Child Pedestrian Training
post to Safer Roads Partnership (£8k); delete vacant post (0.5fte) in Business Management (£17k).

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

1132 Parking Services

e lsie0) Increased on-street parking income (£15k); off-street parking income (£10k) and peripheral parking zones
income (£10k) - reflecting increased patronage, not parking fee increases; remove funding for Police
decriminalised parking work that has now ceased (£26k); recharge of Parking Services client role to income
(£37k); apply income to fund Parking Services administration costs (£30k).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue

Non Staff Income Expenditure

(1712 Highway Maintenance

s A number of measures : Recharge officer time to the developing Flood defence capital programme
(£20k);reduce non-employee budgets (£20k);increase income to New Works Team from Capital Programme
(£38Kk).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.(<1{|/14'/ Sustainable City

DL A number of measures : Delete 0.5fte business support post (£10k); recharge some Sustainability Officer time to
projects (£20k).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(< {1714'/ Inflationary Increase on Fees and Charges

-0 An inflation increase on all fees and charges within R&DS not included in specific proposals, principally recovery
of costs from third parties and re-charges to projects.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 303

185



Page 304

186



APPENDIX 2d

Policy, Performance & Communications

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure

£000 000 £000
Policy, Performance & Communications 4,611 2,184 2,427
Public Health 963 1,098 -135
5,574| | 3,282| | 2,292|

Page 305

187



Page 306

188



bl e POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
~1-07(<- POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE
e =i | POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE (Service)

B glaile i cn et e The PPC service includes the following areas: Policy and Improvement, Performance and Research, Elections,
i JET L) 2414047 Equality & Involvement, Communications and Public Health Intelligence.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1:

(<1111’ COMMUNICATIONS

l-{w a0 Communications’ principal purpose is to support the council in its strategic priorities, communicating and
reinforcing the corporate plan values, priorities and initiatives through key campaign work against the strategic
outcomes. Internal comms enables council employees to support delivery of the plan.

We also work with services and partners to develop and deliver strategies and plans to support their work, and
to promote the Council’s image, protecting its reputation.

We help the Council get its message across to make sure the people of Sheffield know what the Council does
for them, and what services and support are available to them. We provide a full range of support for the
Council including media liaison; marketing campaign development and implementation; design and print; and
internal comms (inc. intranet).

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

{14 ELECTIONS

8-yl | Electoral Services is responsible for ensuring the delivery of efficient and robust Electoral and Registration
statutory functions

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

(<1713 EQUALITIES & INVOLVEMENT

8-l ile)3 1| Equalities and Involvement is responsible for supporting the Council to develop new policy and strategy on
social justice, fairness, equality, and involvement; delivering an effective statutory scrutiny function; and
ensuring we meet the full range of Equalities and Consultation duties, including our obligations under the
Equality Act.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 307

189



bl e POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
~1-07(<- POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE
e =i | POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE (Service)

=173/ HRA COMMS

8-l The work of the Communications Service includes the full range of communications activity with Council
tenants and internal communications for the Housing service delivered under a Service Level Agreement,
funded by the Housing Revenue Account.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure

Non Staff

\={17{37 PERF & RES

8- (i3 The Performance and Research Team is responsible for providing performance management, research and
analysis functions for the Council. This covers a wide range of areas, including internal performance
management, service and business planning, workforce opinion survey, demographic and other statistical
analysis, survey & consultation support, and spatial analysis. We support work carried out across all portfolios
in the council.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(=171 POLICY & IMPROVEMENT

8- (il The Policy and Improvement Team has two main goals:
Making the case for improvement and public service reform, driving forward new thinking and new ideas
across the organisation and across the city, working with a range of partners;

Supporting the organisation to develop strategy and to plan its business accordingly.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(411714 PUBLIC HEALTH - INTELLIGENCE

Description Survemance, monitoring and assessment of health and weﬁbeing and the determinants of health and weITbeing
and development of the public health evidence base and knowledge.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 308

190



bl e POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
~1-07(<- POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE
e =i | POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE (Service)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

Byl aile i Assumed 1% pay award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

= 1{17147 Legislation

s ail s All local authorities will need to implement the system of Individual Electoral Registration in 2015/16 which
requires additional activity to be undertaken to register voters. This will incur additional canvassing staffing
costs, postage and printing.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Section 3: Summary of Savings

47147 Increased advertising income

s glailh i As a result of work on advertising and sponsorship to increase the income to the team through review and
reletting of the small and/or large format advertising sites.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

.\=.{1'113'2 Schools Communications

s flaili Increase traded communications work with schools.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

00147 Print unit

-1l Reducing the Authority's spend and overheads on print.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 309

191



bl e POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
~1-07(<- POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE
e =i | POLICY, PERFORMANCE & COMMS SE (Service)

(117144 Reduction in supplies and services

-1 ¢l ile)31 Vacancy management and reduction in training budget and supplies and services.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

-\-.{1'1{3'7 Additional New Burdens funding for IER

8-l ail HM Treasury have confirmed that funding will be provided to local authorities in 2015/16 to cover the additional
costs incurred for operating Individual Electoral Registration (IER). This saving offsets an equal pressure under
PPC budget.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(4017142 Charge the HRA for Communications Management Time

5]--(w 10111 Allocation of Head of Communications and Communications Management time to be charged to the Housing
Revenue Account Communications budget.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 310

192



b9l POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
<-4 PUBLIC HEALTH - DCEX
LR E1T PUBLIC HEALTH - DCEX (Service)

B oglaile e i cn et e The Director of Public Health office, including spend on key health contracts, such as GP Health checks.
of Planning Entity

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 9.76

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\={11{3/ PUBLIC HEALTH - DPH

-1l aile]3 1 Director of Public Health Office

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Section 4:Public Health Investments (None Identified)

Section 5:Public Health Savings

.\-.{1114'7 Reduction in (statutory) health checks budget

8-l ail | Reduction in (statutory) health checks budget

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

-\-.{1'/{1'7 Reduction in SOHAS budget

8-l Reduction in Sheffield Occupational Health Service budget

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

(417147 Infection Prevention and Control

8-yl oil31 Infection Prevention and Control

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 311

193



b9l POLICY PERFORMANCE AND COMMS
<-4 PUBLIC HEALTH - DCEX
LR E1T PUBLIC HEALTH - DCEX (Service)

.\=.{11{47 Employment and disability

81l Employment and disability

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

-\=.{11{4'/ Public Health Staffing costs

8-l ile) | Public Health Staffing costs

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(4117142 Reduction in overheads

8-l oil3 Reduction in overheads

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 312

194



Resources

Business Information Solutions
Commercial Services

Commercial Services Savings
Customer Services

Finance

Human Resources

Legal Services

Resources Management & Planning
Transport and Facilities Management
Sub-total

Central Costs

Central Costs

Finance - Capita

Housing Benefit

Human Resources - Capita

ICT - Capita

Sub-total

Appendix 2e

Gross Gross Net
Expenditure Income Expenditure
£000 £000 £000

2,861 2,496 365

2,002 1,406 596

0 1,981 -1,981

6,358 3,533 2,825

6,785 1,835 4,950

4,677 1,339 3,338

5,667 2,425 3,242

818 513 305

33,825 18,850 14,975
62,993 34,378 28,615
11,541 9,599 1,942
12,387 21 12,366
193,975 193,248 727
2,653 141 2,512

10,100 2,127 7,973
230,656 205,136 25,520
| 293,649| | 239,514| | 54,135|

Page 313

195



Page 314

196



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<101 BUSINESS CHANGE & INFO SOLNS
e =0 BUSINESS CHANGE & INFO SOLNS (Service)

Byl i e n et The Business Change and Information Solutions Service makes change happen across SCC by supporting the
i JET L) =144 implementation of change across the business. Changes may involve process re-engineering, technology
implementation, cultural change and organisational redesign. We provide guidance and support relating to the
management of the council’s information technology (IT) to ensure that they are exploited effectively; we drive
information and knowledge management through the development of a number of strategies, policies and
procedures that underpin how information is managed and used across the council; we assure that the service
delivered by our ICT Partners meets the agreed SLA performance criteria in terms of day-to-day business,
client-driven and planned ICT changes and all elements of charging and billing, driving the improvement of the
service delivered by our partner and suppliers.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 67.90

Total Savings Made 2.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{1/{1'/ CORE BUSINESS ICT

-1l Business Change and Information Solutions performs the lead role for the council for ICT and has
accountability for providing the professional leadership on Business Transformation/ Change Management,
Technology and Information Management including Information Security.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

a7 Inflation

Bl Pay Award 1%

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(17147 Staff reductions

-1yl ailehi Deletion of 2 vacant Business Partner posts from the core budget.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 315

197



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-07(<-5 COMMERCIAL SERVICES
HEGRIER AT COMMERCIAL SERVICES (Service)

Bl E e To provide strategic leadership, direction, innovation and control across the full range of the Council's
i BT ) =144 procurement, commercial, contract and supplier management activities in order to deliver value for money and
efficiency improvements, whilst ensuring continuity and quality of supply.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Income Expenditure
Core Activities 46.08

Total Savings Made 4.69

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\<{1/{3/ COMMERCIAL SERVICES

s (il To provide strategic leadership, direction, innovation and control across the full range of the Council's
procurement, commercial, contract and supplier management activities in order to deliver value for money and
efficiency improvements, whilst ensuring continuity and quality of supply.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(071 Inflation

Bl aile i Assumed 1% pay award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(407147 Staff reductions

511l ailey i Launch of VER/VS scheme and post deletion

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 316

198



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-07(<-5 COMMERCIAL SERVICES
HEGRIER AT COMMERCIAL SERVICES (Service)

47147 Increase in external income

-l aili Increased marketing of Procurement Toolkit

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

:\«.{171{4'2 Supplies and Services spend

8- ¢l Reduction in supplies and services spend

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 317

199



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=131+ COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS)
HENLEE A COMMERCIAL SERVICES (SAVINGS) (Service)

Byl n e This service is to deliver savings through the tendering of goods and services under contracts which represent
i JET ) =144 best value for the Council.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 0.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{1/{'/ COMMERCIAL SERVICE

s ¢1il3 ] This service is to deliver savings through the tendering of goods and services under contracts which represent
best value for the Council

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Expenditure Income

Non Staff

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(407147 Loss of Funding/Income

bl-(w el Up to 14/15 a £200k annual contribution from the insurance fund has been received as income. Due to
increases in insurance premiums, the contribution will cease and will not be available from 2015/16 onwards

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(417142 Procurement savings

811l Procurement savings from a number of projects and commercially restructuring existing contracts

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 318

200



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1-07[<-= CUSTOMER SERVICES
HEGRIER =12 CUSTOMER SERVICES (Service)

Byl e E et oo - Customer Services fulfils three key roles in delivering the Customer Focus objectives in our Corporate Plan:
o1 JET ) =144 we provide the Council's In-Person and Telephone customer access services through First Point offices and
the Corporate Contact Centre. We also deliver a number of specialist services and support for external and
internal customers.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 161.84

Total Savings Made 12.50

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{17{1’/ CUSTOMER SERVICES

-1 o7l ail]31 Customer Services provides the Council's in person, telephone and on-line customer access through First
Point offices, call centres, website and social media. We also deliver a number of specialist services and
support for internal and external customers including the delivery of the Sheffield Register Office.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

(47147 Loss of Funding/Income

-1yl ailehi Increasing ongoing ICT costs

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

0717 Inflation

Byl aile i Assumed 1% pay award

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 319

201



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1-07[<-= CUSTOMER SERVICES
HEGRIER =12 CUSTOMER SERVICES (Service)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(417142 Process improvements

s -1 ¢l ile)F Reduction in supplies and services spend;

Increased income;

Channel shift/ voice automation/ process improvements/ document management;
Changes to staff utilisation and shift management.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(417147 Savings from Capita Sourcing Strategy

8-l Savings from Capita Sourcing Strategy

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(4117147 Phone response times

5111l Move from 80% of calls being answered in 20 seconds to 85% of all calls being answered in 60 seconds.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 320

202



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
S FINANCE
HEGRIER =02 FINANCE (Service)

B glaile e n et e - The Finance service provides an effective financial management framework, with financial leadership for the
7 JET L) =143 Council through strategic business and financial planning, provision of financial advice and information for
service managers and elected members. The Finance service adopts a business partner approach, one of
support and challenge, to the Council’s service portfolios. It also manages the finance contract with an
outsourced provider for finance business transactions, administering housing and council tax benefits and
collection of council tax and business rates.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 149.28

Total Savings Made 12.50

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\={11{1/ BUSINESS PARTNERING

8- 7il 1 The business partner approach develops the strategic link between key financial and accounting requirements
and resource planning in the portfolios. It provides financial support, advice and challenge to the normal
business in each portfolio

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\« {1713 EXT FUNDING/ CAPITAL

-1 (il | External funding team undertake a strategic co-ordination and control function with regard to all external
funding and develop and ensure compliance with council wide processes for Revenue and Capital external
funding

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\-.{1/{1’/ FINANCE LEADERSHIP TEAM

s ilai | FLT provide the leadership and management for the Finance service, advise the Council Senior Management
team and elected members in developing and implementing the strategic plan and support them in resourcing
and delivering the Council's strategic objectives sustainably and in the public interest. FLT lead the promotion
and delivery of good financial management so that public money is safeguarded at all times and used

appropriately, economically. efficiently and effectively.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Page 321

203



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
S FINANCE
HEGRIER =02 FINANCE (Service)

(=114 FSSG/ STRATEGIC FINANCE

8 1:1471i:) | FSSG are responsible for the provision, configuration, maintenance and development of the Council's financial
and associated systems as well as maintaining and developing financial processes and provision of financial
and system training.

Strategic Finance co-ordinate the strategic financial planning processes i.e. the budget setting and medium
term planning processes, co-ordinate the financial reporting processes including the provision of monthly
budget monitoring reports and production of the annual statement of accounts, the financial management of
the council's balance sheet and fixed and current asset base.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(= {17{47 ICAM/ REVS & BENS

s (lail | Revenues and Benefits client team are responsible for ensuring the service standards in the Capita contract
are achieved, ensuring statutory functions are delivered. Income Collection and Management team are
responsible for the centralised debt recovery to collect the Council's sundry debt arrears and developing the
protocols and best practice for debt recovery in the council.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

G071 INTERNAL AUDIT

sl An assurance function that primarily provides an independent and objective opinion to the organisation on the
control environment. The majority of reviews undertaken are risk based audits of services and functions across
the Council. They assess management's treatment of risk and undertake reactive (fraud) investigations and
pro active counter fraud initiatives. There is a statutory responsibility under the Accounts and Audit regulations
for the authority to maintain an adequate and effective Internal Audit function. It contributes to the discharge of
the statutory responsibilities (proper financial arrangements) associated with the designated Chief Financial
Officer (section 151 officer). Forms a key part of the Corporate Governance arrangements of the Authority and
contributes to the production of the Annual Governance Statement.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 322

204



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
S FINANCE
HEGRIER =02 FINANCE (Service)

-\={171{/ PROJECT & COMMERCIAL

-1l ile]31| Provides financial support to large, complex or cross cutting projects and major contractual or partnership
relationships to ensure that the benefits are optimised and subject to an appropriate allocation of risk.

The team also provides taxation advice and support so as to ensure that the Council operates in the most tax
efficient way and complies with all relevant legislation and regulations and the management of the Council's
banking arrangements, investment and borrowing.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

a1 Inflation

Bl aile i Assumed 1% pay award

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

(401714 Finance Appraisal system

8-l :1e]31| Cessation of the use of non corporate appraisal system

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(4017142 Savings in non staff costs

8-yl These non staff savings will include reductions in external debt collection costs and finance system
development costs

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 323

205



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-7(<-5 HUMAN RESOURCES
HEGRIER =2 HUMAN RESOURCES (Service)

Byl e n et e The HR Service comprises Occupational Health, Health and Safety, Learning and Development, HR Policy
i JET L) =144 and Strategy, HR Advisory, Employee Relations and management of the Capita contract. It is responsible for
the lead on all people policy and practice within Sheffield City Council. The service also includes Business
Support for the Resources portfolio.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 114.90

Total Savings Made 7.40

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\={17147 HR CORE

s 4glail The HR service aims to ensure that the Council attracts, develops, motivates and retains a diverse workforce
within a supportive work environment.

We provide:

Support for organisational change

Quality assurance of HR partnership arrangements

A framework for workforce development, skills and attainments

HR/OD interventions to support manager development

Accurate, accessible and timely HR management information

Council-wide HR initiatives

A sound employment policy framework

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

/\“il/1y/HR OTHER

8-l The Resources portfolio Business Support Service

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 324

206



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-7(<-5 HUMAN RESOURCES
HEGRIER =2 HUMAN RESOURCES (Service)

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

71 Inflation

Bl Assumed 1% pay award (including business support)

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(17147 Staff reductions

- dfaile 1 Managing Employee Reductions process to delete vacant posts.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(417142 Savings in the business support service

8- dfaile 1 Reductions in business support through colloborative working with services

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Page 325

207



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-07(<- LEGAL SERVICES
eI =012 LEGAL SERVICES (Service)

Bl cE e - We provide a high quality legal service to meet the needs of the Council and individual portfolios to ensure the
i JET ) =144 Council carries out all aspects of its functions lawfully.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 95.99

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-.{1/{'/ DEMOCRATIC SERVICES

817l ail3 To manage the democratic process.This involves supporting and servicing a wide range of Council meetings
including Full Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Committees, Planning and Highway Committees, Licensing
Committees, the Audit Committee and administering the decision making function within the Council.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1113 LEGAL SERVICES - PEOPLE

51-1-o7lil31| To provide high quality legal advice regarding Governance, Litigation and Community Law (Child and Adult
Social Care) to ensure the Council acts lawfully and satisfies its statutory obligations

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

.\={11{ LEGAL SERVICES - PLACE

-1 (il To provide high quality legal advice regarding Commercial and Property to ensure the Council acts lawfully and
satisfies its statutory obligations.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 326

208



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-07(<- LEGAL SERVICES
eI =012 LEGAL SERVICES (Service)

.\-{11{4/ LEGAL -BUSINESS SERVICES

-1l il Deliver value for money Statutory and Regulatory Services including the Director and Assistant Directors
salaries, Practice Management,trainee solicitor costs and Local Land Charges.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

<1714/ MEMBERS' BUDGETS

8-yl i]e]3 1| Provide a range of support for elected members. Provide and administer allowances for elected members
including special responsibility and basic allowances, travel expenses, training and conference costs and the
member development programme.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(<1111’ MEMBER SERVICES

8-yl i[5 High quality administrative, policy and secretarial support to Elected Members and the running of the Lord
Mayor's office.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form Es)

Activity L[niEiie]
Pay Award 1%

Description

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

a7 Inflation

Bl Pay Award 1% for Members

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure

Page 327

209



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=1-07(<- LEGAL SERVICES
eI =012 LEGAL SERVICES (Service)

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(4117142 Reduction in Members Pensions

s 47l ail Changes in pension regulations has resulted in pension cost reductions for members allowances of £52k in
14/15 with a further reduction of £28k in 15/16

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(417117 Revised income charge out rates

sl ailei Increase external income by extending the types of legal services provided and carrying out a review of the
internal charge out rates and/or worktypes charged for.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 328

210



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<101 RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNII
e = RESOURCES MANAGEMENT & PLANNIN (Service)

B dglaile i h et e The service includes the Executive Management for Resources, the Council’s insurance and risk service.
of Planning Entity

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 13.00

Total Savings Made 0.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

(=714 IRM & MANAGEMENT

s -1l Management of the Councils insurance service, insurance funds and provisions, risk management strategy
and framework.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

<1171 MANAGEMENT

- dfaile 1 Resources directorate executive management.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Page 329

211



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1071+ TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT
e = TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT (Service)

B gl e n gt e The Transport and Facilities Management Service provides effective management and provision of SEN home
1 JET ) =144 to school and adult/CYP social care transport services. Procurement and hire of vehicles, management of
strategic transport contracts. Vehicle maintenance, servicing and MOT testing, support and advice on vehicle
specifications, transport legislation and risk management. We provide facilities services for all Council owned
property excluding Council Housing Dwellings. This work includes ensuring Health & Safety compliance with
respect to property, the management of PFI contracts on schools and offices and the Maintenance contracts
and Cleaning contracts.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 228.35

Total Savings Made 2.00

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

=171/ ASSET MANAGEMENT

81yl ile)h | Facilities Services for all Council owned property excluding Council Housing Dwellings. The services include
the administration of the intelligent client model of all the facilities managed external contracts. This service
includes the management and operation of all buildings including any statutory records and compliance
requirements.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

15,091

(<1111’ CENTRAL TRANSPORT

- dfaile ) The service transports children with special needs to school and respite care, as well as adults to day venues
and respite care, together with residents with difficult access to health, leisure and well being.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

<1173 FLEET MANAGEMENT

8-l aileh i Procurement and hire of vehicles and plant for Council departments, Schools and Academies ensuring
compliance with all relevant legislation, and management of the Council fleet and Operator Licences.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Page 330

212



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1071+ TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT
e = TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT (Service)

(=171 WORKPLACE

sl ailiManagement of the Council's Accommodation Strategy for office provision, conference and meeting room

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

=117, WORKSHOPS

51-1- 7l il3 The service and repair of Council, Kier, Schools and Academy vehicles in line with the Driver and Vehicle
Standards Agency requirements and manufacturers' service recommendations. The carrying out of
Compliance testing of Taxis on behalf of the Licencing service.

Grant Income Source

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 2: Summary of Pressures (Form E

a7 Inflation

Byl Pay Award 1%

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(40714 Demand

»l-w ¢4l Moorfoot Rates liability due to increased occupancy of building.

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

a7 Inflation

8-l aile) i Increased insurance premiums in relation to Transport fleet etc. Of the £39k increase, £32k is in relation to
Motor premiums, £7k is for Admin, Payments etc

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Page 331

213



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1071+ TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT
e = TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT (Service)

Activity L[niEie]

sl ailii Inreased insurance premiums in relation to property

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Expenditure

(417147 Loss of Funding/Income

-1 710031 Voluntary Registration project - funding agreed from capital for 2013/14 and 2014/15 but project start delayed.
Funding still required for next 2 years - total of £420k to be met from New Homes Bonus. Expenditure profiled
£210k in 2015/16 and £210k in 2016/17.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

\={11{3'/ Loss of Funding/Income

s -1 ¢l Public realm achieving change leading to a rationalisation of fleet and equipment.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

Section 3: Summary of Savings

(417142 Accommodation fee charge to Customer Services

81l Charge to Customer Services an accommodation fee for HRA staff now located in Howden House. Customer
Services will then recharge to HRA.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

.\={1114'7 Inc FM traded income, variations to KAPs contract

s qdlailelil| £100k original saving for Transport & Facilities Management, £45k 1% pay award, £27k increased insurance
pressure to be met by the following combination of increased income via the traded service and variations to
the Kier KAPs contract:

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 332

214



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1071+ TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT
e = TRANSPORT AND FACILITIES MGT (Service)

(4117142 Accommodation recharge to Insurance Fund

8141 i1e]3 1| Staff accommodation recharge to Moorfoot for Insurance Fund team relocated from Sovereign House

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

(407147 Incr.Transport charges for Int. & Ext. customers

-1l ile)3 1 Increased costs will be passported to Children and Young People (11k). Charge out rates for external
Transport customers to be increased to cover extra fixed and running costs. Managing Employee Reductions
process for staff reductions (32k).

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

(41714 Workplace Programme

8- 71l Moorfoot rates increase to be offset by funding from Workplace Programme benefits arising from reducing the
number of buildings occupied by Council staff.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

\<{11{3'/ Transport staff savings

-l ails | Managing Employee Reductions launch (2 staff) to cover balance of pay award, increased insurance premiums
and other elements not funded corporately or recovered from Children and Yound Peoples Service Level
Agreement.

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure Income Expenditure

(017144 Voluntary Land Registration Project

-1+l aile]31 Continuation of project for an additional 2 years to be funded from New Homes Bonus, £420k in total.
Expenditure is profiled £210k in 2015/16 and £210k in 2016/17

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff

Income

Page 333

215



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<1070 CENTRAL COSTS
HEGRIER =12 CENTRAL COSTS (Service)

B dglaile e cn et These are costs managed centrally which are essentially outside of the immediate control of the Council. The
i JETL ) =144 key components of the service are: Former Employee Pension Costs; Benefit Payments; Outsourced Services
(Capita); Corporate Fees.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

0.00
0.00

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s

Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{17{'/ CENTRAL COSTS

8-l ai1e]31 Council wide costs of which the largest element (£7m) relates to Former Employee pension costs.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

11,541

Income

Non Staff

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None ldentified

Page 334

216



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=107 FINANCE - CAPITA
HEGRIER =02 FINANCE - CAPITA (Service)

B dglaile e e 8t o) Financial Services in the SCC/Capita contract are:-

(o1 JE ) =143 Council Tax - billing, collection and recovery of local taxes raised by the authority (call handling and in-person
access).

Business Rates - billing, collection and recovery of Business Rates.

Housing and Council Tax Benefit - the assessment and payment of state determined benefits that assist low

income customers and customers on state benefits with their Council Tax liability and Housing costs (call

handling and in-person access).

Accounts Receivable - print and dispatch and sundry debtor's accounts.

Purchase to Pay - the receipt, scanning and indexing of invoices for supplies and services. Cash collection

services for the Council

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

0.00
0.00

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\-{11{3'/ CAPITA CONTRACT 1

s -1 ¢l il Financial Services in the SCC/Capita contract include council tax, business rates, housing and council tax
benefit, accounts receivable and purchase to pay.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Expenditure

Non Staff Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 335

217



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
<-4 HOUSING BENEFIT
HEGLIERE12T HOUSING BENEFIT (Service)

B gl 8t e - Council wide costs relating mainly to Housing Benefit payments and the Invest-to-Save Capita budget
of Planning Entity

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure
Core Activities 193,975

0.00
0.00

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

.\-{17{'/ CENTRAL COSTS

-1l ail]31 Council wide costs relating mainly to Housing Benefit payments

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue
Non Staff Expenditure
193,975

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Income

Page 336

218



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
S HR - CAPITA
HEGRRIER =T HR - CAPITA (Service)

B dglaile i cn e HR transactions and payroll - recruitment processing, contract changes, starter and leaver processes,
1 JET e =144 management information and payroll.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

0.00
0.00

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\-{11{3'/ CAPITA CONTRACT 1

- dlai I HR transactions and payroll recruitment processing, contract changes, starter and leaver processes,
management information and payroll.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 337

219



BlCa =18 RESOURCES
=107 ICT - CAPITA
HEGLIER =T ICT - CAPITA (Service)

Bl e e n ot o) Strategic and Operational ICT including network and hosting services, application management, service
BN management, project management, strategic lead and service assurance.

Gross Revenue Net Revenue
Expenditure Expenditure

0.00
0.00

Core Activities

Total Savings Made

NB all monetary amounts shown in £'000s
Section 1: Summary of Core Services (Form A)

\-{11{3'/ CAPITA CONTRACT 1

8-+l ile]31| Strategic and Operational ICT including network and hosting services, application management, service
management, project management, strategic lead and service assurance.

Grant Income Source

Net Revenue
Expenditure

Gross Revenue

Non Staff Expenditure Income

Section 2: Pressures (Form Es) - None Identified

Page 338

220



Appendix 3

Summary Revenue Budget

Original Original

Budget Budget

2014/15 2015/16

£000 £000
Portfolio budgets:

70,624 Children Young People and Families 65,980
156,726 Communities 156,215
130,983 Place 126,520

2,358 Policy Performance and Communications 2,292

55,541 Resources 54,135

416,232 405,142

Corporate Budgets:

Specific Grants

-1,968 Council Tax Freeze Grant for 2014/15 0
-12,399 NHS Funding -12,399
-71,116 PFI Grant -73,442

-6,397 New Homes Bonus (LGF) -7,738

-1,079 Business Rates Transitional Grant -1,916

0 Small Business Rates Relief -2,500

0 Empty New Build Relief (ENBR) -100

0 Retail Relief (RR) -500

0 Local Support Services Grant -53

0 Independent Living Fund -2,216
Corporate Items

11,200 Redundancy Provision 8,200

9,750 Pension Costs -17,289

500 Council Tax Hardship Fund 600

-250 Improved debt collection 0

5,036 New Homes Bonus (LGF) 6,391

0 Public Health Savings / re-investments* -2,000

3,716 Contingency - Adults Social Care Pressures 3,000

24,747 Schools and Howden PFI 24,913

-1,300 Enhancements 0

400 Infrastructure Investment in NRQ / St Pauls Place 1,400

82 Payment to Parish Councils 34

0 ICT Refresh 300

0 CAPITA Contract Savings -1,783

2,874 Other 2,727
37,282 Capital Financing costs 37,184
28,117 MSF capital financing costs 28,073

5,821 Contribution to Reserves 26,944
451,248 Total Expenditure 422,972

Financing of Net Expenditure

-157,460 Revenue Support Grant -114,749
-100,898 NNDR/Business Rates Income -105,661
-28,342 Business Rates Top Up Grant -28,883
-164,377 Council Tax income -170,379
-171 Collection Fund surplus -3,300
-451,248 Total Financing -422,972

Public Health savings / re-investments * - savings of £2.5m have been targeted from
existing public health activities in order to avoid disinvestment in other Council services
which promote health and wellbeing outcomes. Of the £2.5m, £0.5m is already
included in the portfolio savings proposals figure.

Page 339

221



Page 340

222



Appendix 4

Reserves Strategy

INTRODUCTION

1.

This appendix reports on the latest position in relation to the level of the
Council’s reserves. Section 25 of the Local Government Act 2003
requires the Chief Finance Officer to present to the authority, in
determining council tax levels, a report assessing the adequacy of
unallocated reserves in the context of corporate and financial risks
facing the Authority. The Authority needs to balance the necessity for
reserves against the immediate impact on council taxpayers and arrive
at a level it considers adequate and prudent, but not excessive.

. This Reserves Strategy therefore needs to be considered and agreed

by the Authority in setting its 2015/16 budget, capital programme and
council tax. The Strategy explores the purpose of the general and
earmarked reserves held by the Authority and sets out a recommended
approach to optimise their use over the 2015-20 Medium Term
Financial Strategy period.

This assessment of reserves is even more important in the context of
the significant and sustained cuts in central government funding in the
five years from 2011/12 to 2015/16, and the likelihood of continued cuts
thereafter. In addition, there is pressure on the capital programme and
ultimately any deficit on the programme would have to be charged to
revenue reserves. Reserves can be used temporarily to fund services
and this is reviewed as part of the budget strategy. However:

e reserves are “one off’ funds and using them in the budget will only
delay the need to make savings. Once used, they are clearly not
available to support future years.

e they are therefore most suited to covering “one off”’, unexpected
costs such as emergencies (e.g. the Sheffield flood in 2007) or
costs that are likely to be incurred in the future but the timing is
uncertain (e.g. legal or other claims against the council).

Page 341

223



TOTAL RESERVES

4. The Council’s Statement of Accounts for 2013/14
https://www.sheffield.gov.uk/your-city-council/finance/statement-of-
accounts.html shows a figure for “usable” reserves in the balance sheet
at page 30 of £212m as at 31 March 2014. However, this figure is a
technical accounting one and is not relevant for the purposes of setting
the General Fund revenue budget. The definition of “usable” is
important here — it means usable in some way, but there are very
specific rules about what different parts of this type of reserve can be
used for. The Council’s total spending and total reserves is legally
separated in to four main blocks:

e delegated school budgets, held in trust and only usable for
schools spending;

¢ Housing Revenue Account (HRA), i.e. spend on council housing,
funded by rents;

e capital spending, i.e. investment in long term assets such as
roads and buildings;

e “General Fund” spend, which is spend on all other services not in
the above three categories and is funded from government grants
and council tax. It is only this category that this reserves strategy
and budget report to Cabinet and Full Council is concerned with.

5. None of the resources for schools, HRA or capital can be used for the
Council’'s General Fund spending, so for the purposes of setting the
budget, £131m of the “usable reserves” are irrelevant, namely:

e Schools reserves of £16m
¢ Housing revenue account reserves of £14m

e Capital reserves of £101m, which are committed to funding
schemes planned over a number of years, e.g. school rebuilding,
highways, council housing major repairs or rebuilding.

6. This leaves around £81m of General Fund reserves. However, as part
of the assessment of the adequacy of reserves referred to above, a
number of reserves are set aside or “earmarked” to cover liabilities for
expenditure which is already committed but not yet paid for, as

Page 342

224



explained below. The following table shows the split of earmarked and
non-earmarked reserves - of the £81m as at 31 March 2014; all but
£11m is set aside as earmarked reserves for future liabilities.

7. The table below shows that next year earmarked reserves levels are
planned to increase by £27m. This is primarily as a result of the
transfer of Highways PFI grant to reserves to fund future increases in
unitary charge payments relating to the Streets Ahead project, the final
outstanding amounts being repaid to the invest-to-save Reserve and
the planned repayment of funds borrowed from the PFI and MSF
reserves in 2014/15 to cover the early pension deficit payment made to
South Yorkshire Pension Authority.

8. So to summarise, earmarked reserves are expected to decrease by
£7m in 2014/15 (from £70m to £63m), then to increase by £27m in
2015/16 (from £63m to £90m). This means that a larger balance is then
available for consideration as part of setting the 2016/17 budget.

9. Although the balance on reserves as at 31 March 2016 of £101m
seems significant it is worth noting that this is well below the national
average as a proportion of net revenue expenditure for Single Tier and
County Councils. The National Audit Office Report 2014 ‘The impact of
funding reductions on local authorities’ highlighted that:

“There has been a marked increase in levels of both types of
reserve. For single tier and county councils most growth has been
in earmarked reserves. These have increased from 19% to 27% of
net revenue expenditure in real terms. Unallocated reserves have
remained stable at 6% of net revenue expenditure.”

10. This report shows that on average Single Tier and County Councils
have set aside 33% of their net revenue expenditure budget in reserves.
The comparable figure for Sheffield City Council in 2015/16 is only
25.5%.

Page 343

225



Summary Estimate of Non-Earmarked & Earmarked Reserves at 31
March 2015 & 31 March 2016

Description
Non-earmarked Reserves
General Fund Reserve

Earmarked Reserves
Invest to Save Reserve:
Projects

Capita Contract
Customer First
Investment Fund

Total Invest to Save Reserve:

PFIReserve

Highways PF| Reserve
Total PFl Reserve

Major Sporting Facilities
New Homes Bonus
Insurance Fund Reserve
Other earmarked

Total Earmarked Reserves

Total Revenue Reserves

* a negative number (in brackets) indicates that the reserve is in deficit: in this
case because of up front investment that is to be repaid in future years from

savings.

Balance Balance
at Movement at
31/03/15 in 2015/16 31/03/16

" £000 ~ £000 " £000
10,616 200 10,816
10,616 200 10,816
2,899 (2,899) 0
(4,047) 4,047 0

(10,229) 10,229 0
3,959 (3,959) 0
(7,418) 7,418 0
4213 12,388 16,601
3,574 7,110 10,684
7,787 19,498 27,285
13,564 839 14,403
4,430 918 5,348
9,394 (3,000) 6,394
35,799 1,071 36,870
63,555 26,744 90,299
74171 26,944 101,115

Page 344

226



GENERAL (NON-EARMARKED) REVENUE RESERVES

11.The purpose of general revenue reserves is to provide funding for any
unforeseen risks and expenditure which may arise in the year, but only
as the last resort for emergency funding. Reserves also provide
flexibility in managing fluctuations between budgets and actual
expenditure or emergencies: a good example being the Sheffield floods
in 2007, when we had to use reserves to fund spending on the recovery
operation before reclaiming costs from insurance or the Government.
Finally, cash reserves and other working capital generate interest which
is used in the funding of the budget.

12.Non-earmarked General Fund Reserves (the “working balance”) are
estimated to be £10.6m at 31 March 2015, representing only 2.5% of
the 2015/16 budget (at the maximum net budget requirement of
£423m). If this £10.6m were ever used, it would have to be replaced as
soon as possible as the Council would always need a minimum level of
emergency reserves.

13.There is no overall formula that can calculate what the level of reserves
should be; it is a matter of judgement based on the known risks,
budgetary pressures and local factors. The 2012 Audit Commission
report ‘Striking a Balance’ indicated that:

“most Chief Finance Officers in our research regarded an amount
between 3 and 5 per cent of the council’s net spending as a prudent
level for risk-based reserves...”

14.Sheffield’s level of general fund reserves at 2.5% of the 2015/16 net
revenue budget is well below these benchmarks. It is also low in
comparison to most other major cities. The table below shows that
Sheffield has the lowest level of General Fund reserves as a
percentage of their 2014/15 net revenue budgets when compared to
similar councils.

Page 345

227



Estimated Reserves 31 | % of Net Revenue
March 2014 Budget (2014/15)

Liverpool £24 .8million 5.2%

Leeds £27 .2million 4.8%

Manchester £24 Amillion 4.6%

Newcastle £10.1million 3.8%

Nottingham £9.8million 3.5%

Bristol £9.9million 2.7%

Birmingham £25.2million 2.6%

Sheffield £10.6million 2.4%

EARMARKED RESERVES

15.Earmarked reserves are set aside to meet known or predicted liabilities,
but ones that are not certain enough to create an exact provision in the
accounts. The liabilities are, however, likely enough to say that the
earmarked reserves are not normally available to fund the budget or
other measures.

16.A list of earmarked reserves, their purpose and proposed use are set
out below.

Invest to Save Projects (Balanced)

17.The Council’s Modern and Efficient Council programme has started to
deliver a number of core infrastructure and business transformation
projects that are essential to the future success of the Council’s
business operations.

Page 346

228



18.This reserve is budgeted to balance during 2015/16. It had received up-
front investment for various Transformation projects (e.g. procurement
savings and changes in finance including replacement of the council’s
finance system). However, the current surplus of £2.9m will be used to
ensure that the overall deficit on the total Invest-to-Save reserve is fully
repaid in 2015/16.

19.These projects have been funded on an invest-to-save basis with
savings being used in two ways:

e to repay the reserve by 2015/16
e to deliver annual contributions to support the revenue budget, which
is currently £3.5m.

Capita Contract (Balanced)

20.The Capita contract included a significant additional investment in the
early years, principally to update the Council’s ICT infrastructure. This
investment is fully repaid in 2015/16 and hence the balanced position as
at 31 March 2016 in the table above.

Customer First (Balanced)

21.This is the funding from reserves for the Customer First programme.
This reserve is fully repaid as part of the overall repayment of the
invest-to-save reserve in 2015/16.

Investment Fund (Balanced)

22.This reserve reflects an annual contribution of £1.5m from the revenue
budget to support invest-to-save projects and has contributed to the
planned delivery of a balanced reserves in 2015/16 but ceases from
2016/17 onwards.

Private Finance Initiative (PFI) Reserve (£27.3m)

23.This PFI grant is a good example of why we have earmarked reserves —
Government pays us money in advance to pay future years’ liabilities,
so we set it aside in a reserve until it is needed. If we did not do so,
there would be insufficient funds to cover the cost of contracts in future
years.

24.However, as explained above these reserves have been used
temporarily to cash flow invest-to-save investments but more recently to
cover the early payment of the pension deficit. All of these investments

Page 347

229



will be fully repaid in 2015/16. The PFI reserve balance starts to reduce
from 2017/18.

Major Sporting Facilities (MSF) (£14.4m)
25.This reserve has been available on a temporary basis and has been

used to fund invest-to-save and part of the early pension deficit
payment, both of which are planned to fully repay in 2015/16. The
remaining funds are required for the future costs of the Major Sporting
Facilities debt (re: Ponds Forge, Hillsborough Leisure Centre, etc.). It
was agreed at Cabinet in June 2013 to reschedule the leasing
arrangements with Sheffield City Trust, as a result of which this reserve
has been re-profiled, thus releasing up to £7m of savings to the revenue
budget over the next three years.

New Homes Bonus (£5.3m)

26.The Government is paying all Councils “New Homes Bonus” to
incentivise them to bring empty properties back into use or encourage
new housing to be built. The Council intends to use the payments to
promote housing development but also fund economic growth projects.
This reserve sets aside the payments until required for agreed projects.

Insurance Fund (£6.4m)

27.This reserve was created in 2013/14 following the audit of the 2012/13
accounts. The External Auditor recommended that the difference
between the Council’s best estimate of actual losses and the maximum
potential liability (around £6.4m) should be classified as an earmarked
reserve.

Other Earmarked Reserves (£32.4m)
28.This includes various specific earmarking including:

e equal pay claims

e redundancies

e contingencies for potential budget deficits, including risk of business
rate income shortfalls

e portfolio reserves agreed by Cabinet in previous years for service
specific issues, e.g. Electric Works business plan funds.

29.Government policy requires us to use reserves to fund many one-off
costs such as redundancies and in recent years they have specifically
refused permission for “capitalisation” directives that allow councils to

Page 348

230



spread such one-off costs — they point instead to the need to hold and
use reserves.

ASSESSMENT OF LEVEL OF RESERVES

30.The Section 151 officer has carried out an assessment of the adequacy

31

of the level of reserves held by the Authority in light of the principal risks
it faces. While the maximum total financial impact of these risks far
exceeds the reserve held, the overall likelihood of all these risks being
incurred in any one year is low and therefore, it is not deemed prudent

nor offers best value to hold sufficient reserves to cover all eventualities.

Appendix 5 details the risks and the level of their potential impact.

.The current level of non-earmarked general reserves held is only
£10.6m. However, currently unused earmarked reserves, such as the
PFI and MSF reserves provide an additional level of risk cover on a
short term basis. Currently these are around £21.3m, having allowed
for the aforementioned temporary funding for invest-to-save and the
early pension deficit payment. The current repayment profile for these
commitments replenishes the reserves in time for the required use on
the PFI projects and future MSF liabilities.

32.Given the severely restricted funding outlook for the foreseeable future

and the level of risk in the 2015/16 budget, the level of reserves is low
but not inadequate. The Section 151 Officer therefore recommends that
general reserves:

e be maintained as a minimum at the current levels for 2015/16;
only be used in year to fund the risks identified above, should the
2015/16 budget be unable to absorb any such costs.

Page 349

231



Page 350

232



APPENDIX 5

CORPORATE RISK REGISTER

This Appendix provides a brief overview of the main financial risks facing the
Council in 2015/16. A more detailed schedule of these risks will be monitored
by the Executive Management Team to ensure that the risks are mitigated.

Corporate Risks

2015/16 Budget Savings & Emerging Pressures

1.

There will need to be robust monitoring in order to ensure that the level
of savings required for a balanced budget in 2015/16 are achieved,
especially given the cumulative impact of £300m of savings over the last
five years (2011-16), and furthermore the backdrop of continuing
reductions in Government grant from 2016/17 onwards.

Whilst preparing the budget, officers have identified numerous pressures
which, if left unchecked, could lead to significant overspends in 2015/16
and beyond. The following pressures have been highlighted because
they present the highest degree of uncertainty.

Capital financing costs

Corporate savings of £3.4m from capital financing costs have been
offered up to balance the 2015/16 budget, on the assumption that market
conditions will remain favourable to the Council next year, i.e. interest
rates and borrowing requirements will not exceed those stated in the
Treasury Management Strategy in the 2015/16 revenue budget.

Business Rates

Following the advent of the Government’s Business Rates Retention
Scheme in April 2013, a substantial proportion of risk has been
transferred to local government, particularly in relation to appeals,
charitable relief, tax avoidance, hardship relief and negative growth. The
issue of appeals dating as far back as the 2005 rating list is the greatest
risk causing concern across all authorities. As at the end of December
2014, there were properties with a rateable value of £159m under appeal
in Sheffield, with an allowance for £3.8m of refunds next year. Actual
trends on appeals are monitored in year, and revised estimates of the
impact of appeals have been made as part of the 2015/16 budget
process.

Page 351

233



Implementation of savings proposals

The risk of delivering savings in 2015/16 in specific areas such as adult
social care and waste management is considerable, given that the
Communities and Place portfolios are forecasting overspends of around
£2.7m and £1.6m respectively in 2014/15 (as at Month 8). To mitigate
this, officers are working on the safe and legal implementation of budget
proposals by:

e Ensuring that there is a thorough understanding of the impact of
proposals on different groups and communities, including
undertaking Equality Impact Assessments for budget proposals and
discussed with Cabinet Members

e Carrying out appropriate, meaningful consultation activity with
affected communities and stakeholders, and ensuring that where
the proposal affects a supplier or provider, that they undertake
appropriate consultation and equalities work with service users.

e Discussing budget proposals with affected members of staff in
advance of them being made public, and putting in place MER
processes where required, in consultation with HR.

One-off funding

There is a significant risk about the high level of one-off funding and
reserves to balance the budget, particularly with regard to the Better
Care Fund. At £9.3m, this is the highest level of one-off funding that the
Council has had to use in recent years. However, officers will continue
to work with colleagues at the CCG to find more sustainable ways to
generate the required level of savings or income, by the end of this
financial year and throughout next year so that real savings are identified
to replace the one-off use of resources.

Medium Term Financial Position

7.

The savings target for 2016/17, as indicated in the MTFS in October
2014, is £14.3m, and will increase (by £9.3m) to £23.6m if the Council is
unable to find more sustainable options to replace the one-off use of
BCF reserves. This savings target is predicated on the assumption that
RSG is only cut by a further 10% per annum from 2016/17. A number of
think tanks have come to the conclusion that it is likely that local
authorities can expect to see further reductions in RSG in the order of
20% per annum.

Page 352

234



In the future the Council’s financial position will be significantly
determined by the level of Business Rates and Council Tax income.
Each of these may be subject to considerable volatility and will require
close monitoring and a focus on delivering economic growth to increase
our income and on delivering outcomes jointly with other public sector
bodies and partners.

Pension Fund

9.

Bodies whose Pension liability is backed by the Council are likely to find
the cost of the scheme a significant burden in the current economic
context. If they become insolvent the resulting liability may involve
significant cost to the Council.

Economic Climate

10.

11.

There is potential for current adverse economic conditions to result in
increased costs (e.g. increased homelessness cases) or reduced
revenues.

The Council seeks to maintain adequate financial reserves to mitigate
the impact of unforeseen circumstances.

External Funding

12.

13.

14.

The Council utilises many different grant regimes, for example central
government and EU. Delivering projects that are grant funded involves
an element of risk of grant claw back where agreed terms and conditions
are not stringently adhered to and evidenced by portfolios. In order to
minimise risk strong project management skills and sound financial
controls are required by Project Managers along with adherence to the
Leader’s Scheme of Delegation to approve external funding bids.

As SCC funding reduces, portfolios are increasingly seeking out new
sources of external funding, both capital and revenue. EU funding
contracts have more complex conditions, require greater evidence to
substantiate expenditure claims and are less flexible on timescales and
output delivery targets. This increases the inherent risk in projects which
are EU funded. Furthermore as the Council reduces its staff resources a
combination of fewer staff and less experienced staff increases the risk
of non-compliance with the funding contract conditions and exposes the
authority to potential financial claw back.

Moreover, the pressure on the General Fund means that Service
Managers are forced to seek more external funding such that the general

Page 353

235



level of risk associated with grants is increasing because of the
additional workload this creates amongst reduced and potentially
inexperienced staff.

Treasury Management

15. The Council has been proactively managing counter-party risk since the
credit-crunch of 2008. Counterparty risk arises where we have cash
exposure to bank and financial institutions who may default on their
obligations to repay to us sums invested. Counterparty risk has
somewhat diminished over the last financial year as banks have been
obliged to improve their capital funding positions to mitigate against
future financial shocks. The Council is continuing to mitigate counterparty
risk through a prudent investment strategy, placing the majority of
surplus cash in AAA highly liquid and diversified funds.

16. We will be developing the Treasury Management and Investment
Strategies, as part of the 2015/16 budget process, and this will include
discussing our risk appetite with members and senior officers as part of
this process. This will include a review of our counter-party risk to
ensure it is reflective of the relative risks present in the economy without
being unduly conservative for the improving UK economic position.

17. The Council is also actively managing its longer term need for cash.
Cash flow requirements show that the Council will require new borrowing
in the coming years to finance capital investment. With interest-rates
expected to rise from their current historic lows the Council is remaining
vigilant to interest-rate risk, and will draw down loans in a timely manner
to mitigate against borrowing costs rising above our target rates.

18. The Co-op Bank is withdrawing from the Local Authority banking market
and our relationship will end in March 2015, except for a specific contract
to take payments over counters at Post Offices and Pay Point outlets.
Barclays Bank has been selected to provide the Council’s with its core
banking requirements and the transfer process is well advanced. This
process will give a reasonable period in which to wind down Co-op
banking transactions in the run up to the end of the contract.

Welfare Reforms

19. In April 2013, the government began to introduce changes to the Welfare
system, which have had and will continue to have a profound effect on
Sheffield residents including council taxpayers and council house

Page 354

236



tenants. The cumulative impact of these changes is significant. They
include:

The Abolition of Council Tax Benefit: replaced with a local
scheme of local Council Tax Support from April 2013. The Council
approved the replacement scheme, based on the reduced funding
available from Government, and set up a hardship fund in January
2013, but there are risks to council tax collection levels and
pressures on the hardship fund which are being closely monitored.

Housing Benefit changes: there have been a number of changes,
including the implementation of the ‘bedroom tax’, from April 2013
where the impacts are that a significant number of claimants are now
receiving fewer benefits, thereby impacting on their ability to pay rent.
The government is providing financial assistance to support affected
claimants through the funding of Discretionary Housing Payments
which are administered by the council, however, this funding does
not meet the shortfall in housing benefit created by the bedroom tax
and the level of and commitment to ongoing funding is uncertain.

Introduction of Universal Credit: originally scheduled from
October 2013 but now delayed and awaiting further updates from the
DWP. Along with the impact of reducing amounts to individuals and
the financial issues that it might cause, the one of the biggest
potential impacts of this change is the impact on the HRA and the
collection of rent. Support towards housing costs is currently paid
through housing benefit direct to the HRA,; in future this will be paid
through UC direct to individuals. This will potentially increase the
cost of collection and rent arrears. There will also be an impact on
the current contract with Capita and internal client teams.

Children, Young People and Families Risks

Education Funding

20.

In 2013/14 it is anticipated that 25 of the Council’'s maintained schools
will become independent academies (24 primary / 1 secondary). To date
5 primary schools and 4 secondary schools have converted in 2014/15.

Academies are entitled to receive a proportion of the Council’'s DSG
which schools forum have decided can be de-delegated back to CYPF to
fund central services. Academies can on conversion choose whether to

buy into those services thus creating a potential funding gap. Based on
projected academy conversions it is estimated that:

Page 355

237



21.

e up to £5m has now been deducted from the Council’s DCLG funding,
under the new Education Services Grant (ESG), and given to
academies. Currently around £3.5m is still at risk if all schools
choose to convert with the council retaining only £1.1m for retained
duties only.

e Up to £500k could be at risk to centrally funded services should
Academies choose not to buy back those services funded from de-
delegated DSG from the local authority.

If an academy is a sponsored conversion then the Council will have to
bear the cost of any closing deficit balance that remains in the Council’s
accounts. It is estimated that this may be up to £500k based on current
projected academy conversions during 2014/15.

Communities Risks

NHS Funding Issues 2015/16

22.

23.

24.

The Better Care Fund becomes fully operational from 1 April 2015,
bringing together health and social care expenditure across Sheffield.
This programme aims to shift pressures and resources from the hospital
to community settings over the medium to longer term. This is supported
by a couple of joint initiatives that will help keep people well within the
community, first of all the additional £1.0m funding made available
through the Transformation Challenge Award and the joint tender for the
Independent Living Solutions contract coming into effect from July 2015,
which will pool around £2.5m of equipment budgets.

In 2014/15 monitoring of the £268m shadow budget has taken place to
determine the amounts expended both within the Sheffield Clinical
Commissioning Group (CCG) and the Council. Out of this funding, some
£117m has been included relating to Sheffield City Council budgets,
primarily purchasing budgets. The 2015/16 baseline for the Council is
£113.8m, after pressures and savings. This is offset by CCG funding of
£12.4m. NHS funding to support social care increased from £9.7m in
2013/14 to £12.4m in 2014/15. Of the £2.7m increase, £2m was
allocated directly to Communities whilst the remaining £0.7m was held
as part of the corporate social care contingency budget. It is now
proposed to release the £0.7m held as a contingency to support the
Council’s part of the Better Care Fund.

As part of the overall requirement to balance the Council’s budget for
2015/16, we assumed that £10m would be made available through a

Page 356

238



25.

combination of additional BCF savings and/or funding transfers from the
NHS, to be used to reduce the Council’s overall budget gap. There is
however a significant risk in relation to this and discussions with CCG
are ongoing. It is assumed at this stage that the Council will secure £5m
of funding from the NHS. A key recommendation of the EMT Report was
to match this assumed £5m contribution from the NHS with £5m of one-
off funding principally from the Council’s reserves. This would, on a one
off basis, mean that Adult Social care is held at cash standstill in 2015-16
after savings and pressures have been taking into account.

A 2-year plan is required, however, to ensure that these one-off funds
can be replaced by more sustainable proposals from the Better Care
Fund or Health: this £10m is not sustainable within the SCC budget.

The £10m would therefore be shifted to 2016-17, although clearly there
will have to be a re-assessment of options once the 2016-17 funding cuts
from Government are known.

Place

2015/16 Revenue Budget savings

26.

The Portfolio intends to achieve its target savings in 2015/16 and
2016/17 by reducing the cost of the Streets Ahead Programme and
waste management contracts as well as seeking savings in the South
Yorkshire Passenger Transport Levy. The portfolio faces a significant
challenge in re-negotiating the contract payments which if not achieved
will require compensating savings in other services.

Resources Risks

Electric Works

27.

The running costs of the business centre are not covered by rental and
other income streams. The approved business plan set-aside
contingency monies to cover potential deficits in its early years of
operation. By the close of 2014/15 this contingency will have been fully
utilised as the occupancy of units within Electric Works has been slower
(lower) than that assumed within the business case, such that the call on
the contingency has been greater (earlier) than planned. From 2015/16
onwards, responsibility for Electric Works is being transferred to the
Place portfolio. The risk of covering any potential deficit for 2015/16 has
been addressed as part of Place’s business planning process.

Page 357

239



28. A full review of the options for the future is underway and will be reported
to Members as soon as possible.

Housing Revenue Account Risks

Housing Revenue Account (HRA)

29. There are a number of future risks and uncertainties that could impact on
the 30 year HRA business plan. As well as the introduction of Universal
Credit, outlined in the risk above, the main identified risks to the HRA
are:

e Interest rates: fluctuations in the future levels of interest rates have
always been recognised as a risk to the HRA.

e Repairs and Maintenance: existing and emerging risks within the
revenue repairs budget include unexpected increased demand (for
example due to adverse weather conditions).

Capital Programme Risks

Capital Receipts and Capital Programme

30. Failure to meet significant year on year capital receipts targets due to
reduced land values reflecting the depressed market and the impact of
the Affordable Housing policy. This could result in over-programming /
delay / cancellation of capital schemes.

Housing Regeneration

31. There is arisk to delivering the full scope of major schemes such as
Parkhill because of the severe downturn in the housing market. This
could result in schemes ‘stalling’, leading to increased costs of holding
the sites involved.

Bus Rapid Transit (BRT) North

32. The project is significantly over budget and a year behind schedule due
to the discovery of asbestos on land which was previously thought to
have been decontaminated, and, an unchartered sewer which has had to
be relocated. The result could be that there is less qualifying spend than
planned by the ERDF deadline. ERDF payments are based on an
agreed percentage of costs at a specific time. This could create a gap of
some £6— 8m in the project funding. In conjunction with South Yorkshire
Passenger Transport Executive, the authority is seeking additional
funding and recovering costs from the utility company.

Page 358

240



APPENDIX 7

Treasury Management Strategy Statement

Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and Annual Investment Strategy
2015/16

Introduction

Background

The Council is required to operate a balanced budget, which broadly means that
cash raised during the year will meet cash expenditure. Part of the treasury
management operation is to ensure that this cash flow is adequately planned for,
with cash being available when it is needed. Surplus cash is invested in low risk
counterparties and instruments in alignment with the Council’s risk appetite. The
security and liquidity our our investments are primary concerns before considering
investment return.

The second main function of the treasury management service is the funding of the
Council’s capital programme. These capital plans provide a guide to the borrowing
needs of the Council, informing the longer term cash flow planning to ensure that the
Council can meet its capital spending obligations. This management of longer term
cash may involve arranging long or short term loans, or using longer term cash flow
surpluses. On occasion any loans or credit liabilities previously drawn may be
restructured to meet Council risk or cost objectives.

CIPFA defines treasury management as:

“The management of the local authority’s investments and cash flows, its
banking, money market and capital market transactions; the effective control of
the risks associated with those activities; and the pursuit of optimum
performance consistent with those risks.”

Reporting Requirements
The Council is required to receive and approve a number of reports each year,
incorporating a variety of policies, estimates and actuals.

These reports include the:

Prudential and treasury indicators and treasury strategy (this report) — This
report covers:

. the capital plans (including prudential indicators);

. a minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy (how residual capital expenditure is
charged to revenue over time);

Page 359

241



. the treasury management strategy (how the investments and borrowings are to
be organised) including treasury indicators; and

. an investment strategy (the parameters on how investments are to be
managed).

Annual treasury report — This provides details of a selection of actual prudential
and treasury indicators and actual treasury operations compared to the estimates
within the strategy.

The above reports are required to be adequately scrutinised before being
recommended to the Council. This role is undertaken by the Cabinet Member for

Finance.

Treasury Management Strateqy for 2015/16

The strategy for 2015/16 covers two main areas:

Capital issues

e the capital plans and the prudential indicators;
e the minimum revenue provision (MRP) policy.

Treasury management issues
e the current treasury position;
e treasury indicators which limit the treasury risk and activities of the Council;
e prospects for interest rates;
e the borrowing strategy;
e policy on borrowing in advance of need;
e debt rescheduling;
e the investment strategy;
e creditworthiness policy; and
e policy on use of external service providers.

These elements cover the requirements of the Local Government Act 2003, the
CIPFA Prudential Code, CLG MRP Guidance, the CIPFA Treasury Management
Code and CLG Investment Guidance.

Training
The CIPFA Code requires the responsible officer to ensure that members with
responsibility for treasury management receive adequate training.

Page 360

242



During the course of the year the Cabinet Member for Finance has been provided
with introductory treasury management training from officers. Further internal and
external training will be considered as necessary.

The training needs of treasury management officers are also periodically reviewed.
During the year officers attended workshops and seminars provided by the Council’s
consultants and CIPFA. The Council has also committed to commissioning training
from the Association of Corporate Treasurers for one of its senior Treasury officers.

Treasury Management Consultants
The Council uses Capita Asset Services (formerly known as Sector) as its external
treasury management advisors.

The Council recognises that responsibility for treasury management decisions
remains with the organisation at all times and will ensure that undue reliance is not
placed upon our external service providers.

It also recognises that there is value in employing external providers of treasury
management services in order to acquire access to specialist skills and resources. The
Council will ensure that the terms of their appointment and the methods by which their
value will be assessed are properly agreed and documented, and subjected to regular
review.

The Capital Prudential Indicators: 2015/16 — 2017/18

The Council’s capital expenditure plans are the key driver of treasury management
activity. The output of the capital expenditure plans is reflected in the prudential
indicators, which are designed to assist members’ overview and confirm capital
expenditure plans.

Capital expenditure
This prudential indicator is a summary of the Council’s capital expenditure plans.

The following table shows capital expenditure forecasts:

Page 361

243



2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17  2017.18

Actuals Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
Capital Expenditure £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Resources £7,938 £5,969 £4,569 f0 0
CYp £27,742 £31,745 £30,980 £18,933 168
Communities £1,173 £1,893 £0 £0 0
Place £20,207 £49,791 £72,288 £6,501 164.5
Housing £41,022 £40,740 £92,165  £103,567 89041
Highways General £11,221 £29,338 £4,706 £468 194.5
Highways Capital Contribution £7,218 £32,883 £27,946 £26,803 £38,350
Total £116,521 £192,360 £232,653 £156,271 £127,918

The above financing need does not include other long term liabilities, such as PFI
arrangements. Assets will be acquired through PFI arrangements according to the

following profile:

2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17  2017.18
Actuals Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Assets acquired through PFI
Highways £55,552 £39,528 £47,206 £47,059 £11,113
Schools £567 £0 £0 f0 £0
Total £56,119 £39,528 £47,206 £47,059 £11,113

The above tables show that Council will invest significantly in the city in coming
years. The large amounts of money to be invested in highways through PFI
arrangements and more traditional financing represents the Council’s prioritisation of
the city-wide Streets Ahead programme that will transform the city’s road and
pathway network.

The table below summarises our capital expenditure plans, and shows how these
plans are being financed by capital or revenue resources. Any capital expenditure
not funded by grants, receipts, or revenue contributions, results in a need for
borrowing.

Page 362

244



2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate  Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital expenditure:
General Fund £75,499  £151,619 £140,488 £52,705 £38,877
HRA £41,022 £40,740 £92,165  £103,567 £89,041
Total £116,521 £192,360 £232,653 £156,271 £127,918
Financed by:
Capital Receipts £7,290 £13,183 £24,433 £10,128 £7,783
Capital Grants & Contributions £40,455 £80,121 £60,929 £30,013 £2,635
Revenue Contributions £31,002 £27,903 £74,260 £89,204 £67,618
Net borrowing need for the year £37,774 £71,153 £73,030 £26,927 £49,882
Fund Split:
General Fund £37,593 £68,243 £71,197 £26,927 £38,368
HRA £181 £2,910 £1,833 £0 £11,514
Total £37,774 £71,153 £73,030 £26,927 £49,882

Continued investment in the city is essential to ensure Sheffield remains an attractive
place to live and do business. Investment does not simply mean development of our
built environment, but also investment in our services to ensure we go about our
business in an efficient and cost effective manner.

Judicious use of borrowing to support that investment remains a prudent financing
option when borrowing costs remain low, and will be supported by the increased
income generation we can expect to flow from our investments by way of increases
in rates and savings generated by efficiencies generated in the way we conduct our
business.

The majority of the Council’'s borrowing need over this period relates to the capital
contributions to the Highways Streets Ahead project. This project is essential to
enable the Council to maintain its road and pathway network in a cost effective
manner, moving away from comparatively expensive and inefficient remedial repair
work.

Using historically cheap borrowing for the Streets Ahead project has further enabled
the Council to make significant savings on what we would have otherwise paid to a
contractor under a PFI contract.

The Council also plans to use borrowing to support the development of the New
Retail Quarter. This is a flagship scheme aimed at kick-starting the regeneration of
the city centre.

Using borrowing to fund this scheme will allow us to press ahead with essential
redevelopment at a time when the costs of borrowing are near all-time lows. The

Page 363

245



costs of this borrowing will, in time, be offset by increased income generated from
business rates.

The significant use of revenue to fund capital expenditure relates to the use of rental
income raised in the HRA to fund capital works on the Council’s housing stock.

The Council’s need for borrowing (the Capital Finance Requirement)

The second prudential indicator is the Council’'s Capital Financing Requirement
(CFR). The CFR is simply the total historic outstanding capital expenditure which
has not yet been paid for from either revenue or capital resources. It is essentially a
measure of the Council’s underlying need for borrowing that has been built up over
time and will be repaid in accordance with statutory rules.

Any capital expenditure which has not immediately been paid for from grants,
receipts, or contributions, during the year will increase the CFR.

Most of the increase in CFR relates to General Fund expenditure. The HRA finances
the significant amount of its capital expenditure through the income it raises from
housing rents. Financing expenditure in this way means the HRA has less need for
credit.

The CFR does not increase indefinitely. Statute requires the Council to charge an
amount each year to the budget known as the minimum revenue provision (MRP).
This charge mimics depreciation, reduces the CFR, and ensures the Council has
enough cash to repay its debts.

The CFR also includes other long term liabilities such as PFI arrangements. Whilst
these increase the CFR, and therefore the Council’s borrowing requirement, these
types of arrangements include a borrowing facility which means the Council is not
required to separately borrow for these schemes. The Council currently has £363m
of such arrangements within the CFR.

The following table shows CFR projections:

Page 364

246



2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Capital Financing Requirement
CFR General Fund £819,406  £893,329 £976,523 £1,014,008 £1,032,247
CFR HRA £346,336  £349,218 £351,023 £350,996 £362,483
Total CFR £1,165,741 £1,242,547 £1,327,546 £1,365,004 £1,394,730
Movement in CFR £69,015 £76,806 £84,999 £37,457 £29,726
Movement in CFR represented by:
Expenditure not funded by grants, £41,019 £67,524 £73,435 £29,114 £53,110
receipts, or contributions
Additional PFl liabilities £56,119 £39,528 £47,206 £47,059 £11,113
- MRP/VMRP and other movements -£28,122  -£30,246  -£35,641 -£38,716 -£34,496
Movement in CFR £69,015 £76,806 £84,999 £37,457 £29,726
Movement by Fund:
General Fund £68,266 £73,923 £83,194 £37,485 £18,239
HRA £749 £2,882 £1,805 -£27 £11,487
Total Movement £69,015 £76,806 £84,999 £37,457 £29,726

The table above shows that although the Council is taking on additional borrowing
and PFI liabilities to create assets through capital expenditure, it is also charging
prudent amounts of MRP to the budget to ensure it has enough cash to pay down its
debts.

The costs of this debt will be funded through the revenue flows generated from the
investment it enabled. These flows will arise from increased rates as new businesses
set up in the city, and from cost reductions generated from investment that allows us
to conduct our business in a more cost effective and efficient manner.

Minimum Revenue Provision (MRP) policy statement

Each year statute requires the Council to charge an amount to its General Fund
revenue budget to raise cash to reduce the General Fund element of its CFR. This
cash then ensures that the Council can pay down its debts.

The statute requires a minimum amount to be charged, but also allows the Council to
charge more if it feels it prudent to do so. This is known as a Voluntary Minimum
Revenue Provision (VMRP).

Regulations have been issued by the Department for Communities and Local
Government that require the full Council to approve an MRP statement in advance
each year. This statement sets out how the Council determines how the MRP will be

Page 365

247



calculated. Guidance affords a variety of options to Councils, so long as the
calculation results in a prudent provision.

The Council is recommended to approve the following MRP statement:

For capital expenditure incurred before 1% April 2008, or which in the future will be
Supported Capital Expenditure (expenditure which receives income support from
government), MRP will be charged on a flat line basis over fifty years. This will
ensure that all debt associated with Supported Capital Expenditure is fully provided
for up to the Adjustment A level that is required of us by government within fifty
years.

This approach better aligns the charges we make to the General Fund with the
funding we receive from government and, importantly, accelerates the rate at which
the Council will provide for this debt over the Council’s previous policy of using the
‘regulatory method’. This approach does, therefore, represent a more prudent way of
ensuring the Council can pay down debt in good time.

The Council will review the efficacy of this approach with its auditors and other
stakeholders during financial year 2015/16, and will apply voluntary minimum
revenue provisions to realign overall charges to the ‘regulatory method’ where it is
considered prudent to do so.

From 1% April 2008, the MRP on all unsupported borrowing will be based on the
‘asset life method’. This means that MRP will be based on the estimated useful life of
the assets created.

Where it is considered prudent to do so, the Council will adopt an annuity profile for
MRP charges under the asset life methodology. Adoption of this approach will be
considered on a scheme-by-scheme basis, and will only be used where adoption will
result in costs being better aligned to the benefit flows that will accrue from the
investment.

There is no requirement on the HRA to make a minimum revenue provision but there
is a requirement for a charge for depreciation to be made. The HRA may opt to make
voluntary revenue provisions where it is prudent to do so.

Where appropriate, the Council will defer the MRP related to specific projects until
the asset(s) for the project become(s) operational. This is known as an MRP holiday
and will allow the Council to align borrowing repayments to the economic benefit
generated from those assets.

Page 366

248



The Council will also withhold MRP payments related to the acquisition of assets
purchased under compulsory purchase orders (CPO) where there is a commitment
to pass these assets and their costs onto a development vehicle.

Where capital loans are provided by the Council under section 25 of the The Local
Authorities (Capital Finance and Accounting) (England) Regulations 2003, the
Council will, where it is prudent to do so, align MRP profiles to loan repayments. This
will ensure the Council does not unnecessarily charge amounts to its revenue
budget.

The Council can at times receive capitalisation directives from the Secretary of State.
Where this is the case, the Council’s policy will be to provide for MRP as the
capitalisation is defrayed, rather than on initial recognition. The ‘asset-life’ approach
will be taken to providing for MRP on capitalisations, but where there is no
discernible asset-life the Council will opt for a 20 year life.

Repayments included in annual PFI or finance leases are applied as MRP.

Core Funds and Expected Investment Balances

The application of resources (capital receipts, grants, revenue reserves) to finance
capital expenditure will have an associated impact on investment balances, unless
resources are supplemented each year from new sources such as asset sales or the
receipt of other grants. This is simply because as receipts, reserves, and grants are
spent, there is less cash available to place on deposit.

Detailed below are estimates of the year end balances for each resource and
anticipated day to day cash flow balances.

2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18
Actual Current Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Year End Resources:
Cash backed reserves* £212,450 £160,817 £167,067 £150,745 £140,224
Capital Receipts £34,452 £21,000 £10,000 £10,000 £10,000
Provisions £48,378 £48,229 £43,229 £38,229 £36,229
Total Core Funds £295,280 £230,046 £220,296 £198,974 £186,453
Working Capital -£60,341 £40,743 -£26,511 -£40,111 -£40,911
(Under)/over Borrowing -£142,137 -£179,041 -£155,952 -£125,283 -£117,209
Expected Investments £92,802 £91,748 £37,833 £33,580 £28,333

*The majority of these reserves are earmarked for future spend, and do not represent
available surplus for the budget

The table above shows that the Council’s investment balances are expected to fall in
the coming years from the high seen in 2013/14. This is consistent with the Council’s

Page 367

249



approach to using its surplus cash to repay or restructure existing financial
obligations in order to create revenue savings.

This approach makes financial sense when investment returns from cash held on
deposit are particularly poor and there is still a relatively high risk in placing cash on
deposit with financial institutions.

As an example, during 2014/15 the Council used surplus cash balances (that is,
cash we don’t need right now) to prepay its pension deficit contributions due to the
South Yorkshire Pensions Authority. In return for paying early, the Pensions
Authority awarded the Council a significant discount. In total, this transaction is
expected to save the Council around £2.6m which can be used to support under-
pressure services.

The table also highlights that our cash balances are likely to fall due to the reduction
in our reserves. With ongoing pressure on our budget, the Council plans to use
reserves to support service provision. As these reserves are spent our cash
balances will fall.

The above table also indicates that the Council will continue to operate an under-
borrowed position. This means that instead of using external borrowing to fund
capital expenditure the Council will use its surplus cash. Surplus cash arises from
timing differences between when the money comes into the Council and when we
expect to spend it. Surplus cash rarely means that this is resource available to invest
in services, as more often than not it has already been earmarked to support future
expenditure.

Operating an under-borrowed position using this surplus cash is a prudent approach
since it temporarily removes the need for external loans that incur interest charges,
and reduces investment balances that are otherwise exposed to default risk for only
minimal returns.

However, this approach involves a different form of risk around interest rates. Should
the Council’s plans change in the future it may need additional cash that is no longer
available to support the under-borrowed position. If this occurred the Council would
be required to go to the markets to raise cash through loans. The risk is, therefore,
that should we need to raise loans they will be more expensive than they are now.

To mitigate this risk, and reduce the under-borrowed position from the 2014/15
highs, the Council intends to take new loans in 2015/16 whilst rates remain
historically low. These loans will bring cash into the Council to offset the outflows
principally associated with our investments in the NRQ and Streets Ahead schemes.

Page 368

250



Treasury officers will continue to monitor the financial markets to ensure our cash
management plans are properly aligned to the Council’s investment decisions and
the ongoing risks in the wider economy.

The Council’'s expected investment balances are likely to fluctuate considerably
during the year due to the irregular nature of cash flows, in particular grant income
received from government.

Affordability Prudential Indicators

The previous sections cover the overall capital and control of borrowing prudential
indicators. Prudential indicators are also required to assess the affordability of the
capital investment plans. These indicators highlight the impact of the capital
investment plans on the Council’s overall finances.

The Council is asked to approve the following indicators:

Ratio of Financing Costs to Net Revenue Stream

This indicator identifies the trend in the cost of capital (principally borrowing and PFlI
arrangements) against the net revenue stream. The net revenue stream consists of
the money we have available from grant, Council Tax, and other sources that is
without restriction and can be spent as the Council sees fit.

The indicator below highlights a rise in the amount of the General Fund net revenue
stream that is being spent on financing costs:

2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Ratio of financing costs to Actual Estimate  Estimate  Estimate  Estimate
net revenue stream: £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000

Non-HRA 14% 16% 18% 20% 19%

HRA 10% 10% 9% 10% 10%

However, this ratio should not be viewed entirely in isolation from other sources of
information.

The increase in financing costs relates largely to the Council’s investment in the
Streets Ahead project and the New Retail Quarter.

The Streets Ahead project is a huge city-wide investment scheme that will bring up
to standard the condition of the city’s roads, bridges, pavements, lights, and street
scene.

This project not only addresses one of the public’'s and businesses’ principal
concerns, but also allows the Council to move away from expensive remedial repair
work to a managed affordable maintenance approach based on the up-front
investment.

Page 369

251



This approach sees costs saved on service budgets which are not reflected in the
above prescribed ratios.

The Council also plans to invest significantly in the city centre to kick-start the
regeneration of the area known as the New Retail Quarter. This investment will not
only help to deliver a revived retail area to enable the city centre to compete with out-
of-town alternatives and regional competition, but will also attract rate paying
businesses to the city.

The increased rates this investment will generate will help to service the costs
associated with the investment.

The HRA'’s static ratio reflects that costs are currently largely being funded through
housing rents, restricting the need for additional borrowing. Although the HRA has a
significant investment programme from 2016 onwards it is anticipated that the initial
costs of servicing any borrowing required will be largely offset from the expected
increase in its housing rents income base.

Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on Council Tax

The Council operates a policy of striving to ensure that all new unsupported
borrowing funded projects are self-financing. This means that existing budgets are
found to fund new borrowing costs, or that the projects operate on an ‘invest-to-save’
basis whereby investment in a project enables savings to, at a minimum, service the
borrowing costs incurred on that project. As a result of this policy, capital projects
funded by borrowing should not, in normal circumstances, add additional costs to the
Council’s budget.

The Council considers a variety of options when considering how to fund capital
projects. Currently, and due to global economic conditions, the Council can borrow
money at historically low rates. This has enabled the Council to use borrowing to
fund capital projects that will in turn generate revenue savings whilst helping us meet
our wider objectives.

As an example, the Council will be using cash raised from borrowing to part finance
the Streets Ahead project. By putting our own cash into the project the Council has
been able to secure significant savings on the contract cost the PFI provider would
otherwise have charged us. This saving arises because borrowing costs are
significantly cheaper for the Council than the provider.

Equally, the Council is using cash raised from borrowing to enable us to invest in
innovative new processes and ways of working. By paying for extensions to foster
carers’ houses the Council is enabling carers to take additional children into their
homes where they would have otherwise been restricted from doing so simply due to
available space. This provides the dual benefit of allowing siblings entering foster

Page 370

252



care to be cared for together, and allows us to avoid arranging for children to be
cared for outside of the city, or in other establishments, at significant additional cost.

The Council is also using borrowing as a means of delivering a more efficient, less
expensive service. This is particularly evident through our approach to rationalising
our city-wide office accommodation. By investing in a central hub at Moorfoot, the
Council has been able to move out of expensively leased private accommodation
around the city, whilst also securing procurement efficiencies by having staff
concentrated in one building.

Accordingly the following indicator should not be viewed in isolation from the fact that
our capital investments are generating revenue savings that are not represented
within the figures shown. These saving have, though, contributed towards the
Council managing the significant cuts imposed upon it without recourse to large
Council Tax rises.

The indicator does, however, show what the cost to an average Band A council tax
bill would be if we did not follow the policy and all new borrowing costs had to be met
by an increase on council tax:

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Council Tax Band A £2.95 £20.59 £38.33 £50.61 £57.24

The average impact upon a Band D council tax bill would be:

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Council Tax Band D £4.42 £30.89 £57.50 £75.92 £85.86

Estimates of the Incremental Impact of Capital Investment Decisions on
Housing Rent Levels

Following the end of the subsidy system and the move to self-financing HRAs, costs
incurred in the HRA are principally funded from housing rents.

This indicator shows the impact of HRA capital investment decisions outlined in this
report on weekly housing rent levels.

2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Weekly housing rents £0.00 £0.03 £0.06 £0.07 £0.16

Page 371

253



The table shows a minimal impact on rent levels. This is consistent with the fact that
the HRA’s plans to fund capital investment through borrowing are currently small,
with most investment being directly funded through rents or receipts. However, the
small charge is also symptomatic of the fact that the HRA is not obliged to charge
MRP to its budget as the General Fund does.

However, the HRA does have a significant housing stock investment programme
from 2016 onwards that will be supported by borrowing. This is reflected by the
increase in the incremental impact on rents from 2016/17.

It should be further noted that the government largely controls housing rent levels
through a prescribed formula. Accordingly, any increase in financing costs would
primarily need to be offset by cost reductions in other areas to ensure rents stayed
within the given parameters.

Borrowing

The capital expenditure plans set out previously provide details of the Council's
investment plans. The treasury management function ensures that the Council’s
cash is organised in accordance with relevant professional codes, so that sufficient
cash is available to meet these plans. This will involve both the organisation of the
cash flow, and where required, the organisation of appropriate borrowing facilities.

This section of the strategy covers the relevant treasury and prudential indicators,
the current and projected debt position, and the annual investment strategy.

Current Portfolio Position

The Council’s debt portfolio position is outlined below. The table below shows actual
external debt against the CFR which represents the Council’s need to borrow for
capital purposes.

Comparing actual debt to the CFR highlights any under or over borrowing. Under
borrowing represents the Council’'s use of its own cash surpluses rather than
external debt, whilst over borrowing represents the Council taking on more debt than
it needs at that point in time.

Page 372

254



2013.14 2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
External Debt
Loans at 1st April £698,388 £687,999 £679,003 £757,747 £797,997
Expected change in Loans -£10,389" -£8,996  £78,744 £40,2497  £40,964
PFI liabilities at 1st April £290,803 £335,603 £363,111 £395,228 £426,155
Expected change in PFI liabilities £44,800" £27,508"  £32,117" £30,927" £190
Transferred Debt at 1st April £26,204 £23,912 £21,392 £18,619 £15,570
Expected Change in Transferred Debt -£2,291 -£2,521 -£2,773 -£3,050 -£3,355
Actual Gross Debt at 31st March £1,047,515 £1,063,506 £1,171,594 £1,239,721 £1,277,521
The Capital Financing Requirement £1,165,741 £1,242,547 £1,327,546 £1,365,004 £1,394,730
Authority Under/(Over) Borrowing £118,226 £179,041  £155,952 £125,283 £117,209
By Fund:
GF Under / (Over) Borrowing £123,983  £100,000 £100,000 £100,000
HRA under/(Over) Borrowing £55,058 £55,952 £25,283 £17,209
Total £179,041  £155,952 £125,283 £117,209

The rise in external loans and PFI liabilities is consistent with the Council’s significant
investment in the Streets Ahead project. The Council has committed to making MRP
charges to eliminate the debt associated with this project by 2038.

The table also highlights that the Council plans to continue to operate an under
borrowed position. This means that in the near term the Council will opt to use some
of its surplus cash to fund capital expenditure rather than take out new loans.

This policy is helping the Council to meet its budget challenges by allowing us to
avoid the interest charges that come with external loans. It does, however, mean that
the Council loses investment income from cash that would otherwise be on deposit.
As investment returns are currently poor, and default risk from financial institutions
still elevated, this represents a prudent use of our cash.

The table does show, however, that the Council intends to reduce its under borrowed
position to more manageable levels. This is a deliberate move to mitigate the
Council’'s exposure to interest rate risk. Whilst using our surplus cash in the short
term is beneficial, in the longer term we are likely to have to replenish that cash with
loans in order for it to be spent as originally planned for. Interest rate risk is the risk
that when we come to find to raise those loans the cost of servicing them is
prohibitively high. This is an issue the Council is monitoring closely, as interest rates
are likely to rise in the coming years.

This indicator also serves as a test at to whether the Council complies with the
requirement to ensure that its gross debt does not, except in the short term, exceed
the total of the CFR in the preceding year plus the estimates of any additional CFR
for 2015/16 and the following two financial years.

Page 373

255



The Director of Finance reports that the Council complied with this prudential
indicator in the current year and does not envisage difficulties for the future. This
view takes into account current commitment, existing plans, and the proposals in this
budget report.

Treasury Indicators: Limits to Borrowing Activity

The operational boundary is the limit beyond which external debt is not normally
expected to exceed. In most cases, this would be similar figure to the CFR but
sometimes due to cash flow issues debt can be above or below the CFR.

The operational boundary can be exceeded, but it does serve as a useful indicator to
assessing the Council’s external debt levels.

The following table shows the Council’s estimates for its operational boundary:

2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate  Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Operational Boundary
Loans £840,000 £850,000 £900,000  £950,000
Other Long Term Liabilities ~ £390,000 £420,000 £450,000 £450,000
Total £1,230,000 £1,270,000 £1,350,000 £1,400,000

The authorised limit on external debt represents a control on the maximum
amount of debt the Council can legally hold. Under Section 3 of the Local
Government Act 2003 this limit is agreed by full Council and cannot be revised
without that body’s agreement.

The authorised limit reflects the level of external debt which, while not desired, could
be afforded in the short term, but is not sustainable in the long term.

The Council is asked to approve the following limit:

2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

Actual Estimate Estimate  Estimate
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Authorised Limit
Loans £940,000 £1,100,000 £1,100,000 £1,100,000
Other Long Term Liabilities £407,000 £420,000  £450,000  £450,000
Total £1,347,000 £1,520,000 £1,550,000 £1,550,000

Separately, the government also limits the amount of debt the HRA can hold through
a cap that was set in 2013. This debt-cap arose as a result of the HRA'’s transition
from a government supported subsidy system to a self-financing approach.

Page 374

256



The HRA'’s debt (CFR position) is currently under the cap. The difference between
the cap and the HRA’s CFR represents the headroom it has to use credit to fund
capital investment.

The debt cap and the HRA’s headroom position are currently:

2014.15 2015.16 2016.17 2017.18
Estimate Estimate Estimate Estimate

£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
HRA Debt Limit
HRA Debt Cap £388,311 £388,311 £388,311  £388,311
HRA CFR £346,336  £349,218 £351,023  £350,996
HRA Headroom £41,975 £39,093 £37,288 £37,315

Prospects for Interest Rates

Until 2013, the economic recovery in the UK since 2008 had been the worst and
slowest recovery in recent history. However, growth rebounded during 2013 and
2014, due largely to a recovery in consumer spending and continued growth in the
housing market.

Forward surveys are currently positive in indicating that growth prospects are strong
for 2015, particularly in the services and construction sectors. However, growth in
the manufacturing sector and in exports has weakened during 2014 due to poor
growth in the Eurozone. For a more sustained recovery the economy will need to see
a move away from short-term consumer spending led bubbles, to export driven
growth centred on manufacturing and business investment.

Wage inflation continues to drag on the economy. Growth has consistently been
lower than CPI inflation, so eroding disposable income and living standards,
although income tax cuts have ameliorated this to some extent. This therefore
means that labour productivity must improve significantly for this situation to be
corrected by warranting increases in pay rates. In addition, the encouraging rate at
which unemployment has been falling must eventually feed through into pressure for
wage increases, though current views on the amount of hidden slack in the labour
market probably means that this is unlikely to happen in the near future.

The US, the main world economy, faces similar debt problems to the UK, but thanks
to reasonable growth, cuts in government expenditure and tax rises, the annual
government deficit has been halved from its peak without appearing to do too much
damage to growth.

The current economic outlook and structure of market interest rates and government
debt yields have several key treasury management implications:

Page 375

257



o Within the Eurozone, concerns in respect of a major crisis subsided considerably in
2013. However, the downturn in growth and inflation during the second half of 2014,
coupled with worries over the Ukraine situation, the ongoing violence in the Middle
East, and Ebola, have led to a resurgence of those concerns as risks increase that it
could be heading into deflation and a triple dip recession. Sovereign debt difficulties
have not gone away and major concerns could return in respect of individual
countries that do not dynamically address fundamental issues of low growth,
international uncompetitiveness and the need for overdue reforms of the economy. It
is, therefore, possible over the coming years that levels of government debt to GDP
ratios could continue to rise to levels that could result in a loss of investor confidence
in the financial viability of such countries. Counterparty risks therefore remain
elevated. This continues to suggest the use of higher quality counterparties for
shorter time periods;

e Investment returns are likely to remain relatively low during 2015/16 and beyond;

e Borrowing interest rates have been volatile during 2014 as alternating bouts of good
and bad news have prompted optimism, and then pessimism, in financial markets.
During July to October 2014, a building accumulation of negative news has led to an
overall trend of falling rates. The policy of avoiding new borrowing by running down
spare cash balances has served well over the last few years and supported our
revenue budget, however we remain vigilant to the prospect of interest rate risk and
have plans to mitigate that risk in the forthcoming financial year;

e There will remain a cost of carry to any new borrowing which causes an increase in
investments as this will incur a revenue loss between borrowing costs and investment
returns.

Borrowing strategy

The Council is currently maintaining an under-borrowed position, and plans to do so
for the coming years. This means that the capital borrowing need (the Capital
Financing Requirement), has not been fully funded with loans and other credit
arrangements such as PFI. Instead cash supporting the Council’s reserves, balances
and working capital has been used as a temporary measure. This strategy is
prudent as investment returns are low and counterparty risk is relatively high, whilst
the approach has allowed us to avoid interest costs and thus support the revenue
budget.

However, the Council recognises the inherent risk in operating to this strategy and
has plans to mitigate its position through a draw down of loans in 2015/16 to
replenish cash balances and finance the Council’s investment plans.

Page 376

258



Against this background and the risks within the economic forecast, caution will be
adopted. The Director of Finance will monitor interest rates in financial markets and
adopt a pragmatic approach to changing circumstances.

The Council’s under borrowed position is currently supported by reasonable cash
balances from reserves, grants unapplied, receipts and other sources. However,
these balances are expected to fall, which increases our exposure to interest rate
risk.

The Director of Finance will continue to monitor the interest rate environment and
market borrowing rates.

If it is felt that there is likely to be a fall in the cost of borrowing, or an extension to
the current low cost period, then the Council’s plans for its reduction of the internal
borrowing position will be reviewed, with consideration being given to maintaining the
position at its current levels, or increasing it.

However, if it was felt that there was a significant risk that the cost of borrowing was
likely to increase beyond that currently being forecast, the Director of Finance will
give consideration to taking on more fixed-rate loans whilst interest rates are still
lower than they would be in future years.

The cost of borrowing is likely to be effected by global events. Financial year
2014/15 has seen ‘event-risk’ consistently effect both borrowing and investment
rates as global instability has intermittently pushed investors back into safe-haven
assets. Decisions taken on how to manage quantitative easing in the US, and
whether to implement it in the Eurozone, will help determine market sentiment
towards asset classes such as UK gilts. The pace of recovery in the global economy
will also weigh heavily on demand for sovereign debt.

Any decisions on the drawdown of loans will be reported to the Cabinet Member for
Finance at the next available opportunity.

Treasury management limits on activity
There are three debt related treasury activity limits. The purpose of these are to
restrain the activity of the treasury function within certain limits, thereby managing
risk and reducing the impact of any adverse movement in interest rates. However, if
these are set to be too restrictive they will impair the opportunities to reduce costs /
improve performance. The indicators are:

° Upper limits on variable interest rate exposure. This identifies a
maximum limit for variable interest rates based upon the debt position
net of investments

Page 377

259



° Upper limits on fixed interest rate exposure. This is similar to the
previous indicator and covers a maximum limit on fixed interest rates;

o Maturity structure of borrowing. These gross limits are set to reduce the
Council’'s exposure to large fixed rate sums falling due for refinancing,
and are required for upper and lower limits.

The Council is asked to approve the following treasury indicators and limits:

2015.16 2016.17 2017.18

£'000 £'000 £'000
interest rate exposure Upper Upper Upper
Limits on fixed interest rates based on net debt 100% 100% 100%
Limits on variable interest rates based on netdebt  £178,000 £178,000 £178,000

This table indicates our desire not to increase the number of variable rate loans we
have beyond our current floating-rate lender option buyer option (LOBO) bank loans.

2014/15
Lower Upper
Maturity structure of fixed interest rate borrowing:

Under 12 months 0% 20%
12 months to 2 years 0% 20%
2 years to five years 0% 20%
5years to 10years 0% 40%
10years to 20 years 0% 40%
20years to 30years 0% 20%
30years to 40years 0% 15%
40 years to 50 years 0% 15%

This table shows the Council’s desire to avoid having to many loans maturing in any
one period. The Council currently expects the majority of its loans to mature in the
medium term, supporting the HRA business plan and aligning maturities to our CFR
profiles to avoid over-borrowing situations.

Page 378

260



2014/15
Lower Upper
Maturity structure of variable interest rate borrowing:

Under 12 months 0% 100%
12 months to 2 years 0% 0%
2 years to five years 0% 0%
5yearsto 10years 0% 0%
10years to 20 years 0% 0%
20vyears to 30 years 0% 0%
30years to 40 years 0% 0%
40 years to 50 years 0% 0%

This table is reflective of our floating-rate LOBO bank loans. The bank has the option
to re-set the interest rate on these loans every six months. As the Council then has
the option to accept the rate or repay these loans, we are required to show them as
maturing within 12 months for the purposes of this indicator.

The Council monitors the potential for the rates on these loans to re-set, but does not
believe this is likely in 2014/15. Accordingly, and despite this indicator, we do not
expect to repay these loans in 2014/15.

Policy on Borrowing in Advance of Need

The Council will not borrow more than, or in advance of, its needs purely in order to
profit from the investment of the extra sums borrowed. Any decision to borrow in
advance will be within forward approved Capital Financing Requirement estimates,
and will be considered carefully to ensure that value for money can be demonstrated
and that the Council can ensure the security of such funds.

Debt Rescheduling

As short term borrowing rates will be considerably cheaper than longer term fixed
interest rates, there may be potential opportunities to generate savings by switching
from long term debt to short term debt. However, these savings will need to be
considered in the light of the current treasury position and the size of the cost of debt
repayment (premiums incurred).

The reasons for any rescheduling to take place will include:
* the generation of cash savings and / or discounted cash flow savings;
* helping to fulfil the treasury strategy;

* enhance the balance of the portfolio (amend the maturity profile and/or the
balance of volatility).

Page 379

261



Consideration will also be given to identify if there is any residual potential for making
savings by running down investment balances to repay debt prematurely as short
term rates on investments are likely to be lower than rates paid on current debt.

Consideration was given to rescheduling opportunities during 2014/15, but the costs
of terminating loans early outweighed any potential gain.

Any rescheduling will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Finance, at the earliest
meeting following its action.

Municipal Bond Agency

It is likely that the Municipal Bond Agency, currently in the process of being set up,
will be offering loans to local authorities in the near future. It is also hoped that the
borrowing rates will be lower than those offered by the Public Works Loan Board
(PWLB). The Council will review the efficacy of lending from the Agency in the
forthcoming year.

Page 380

262



Annual Investment Strategy

Investment Policy

The Council’s investment policy has regard to the government’s Guidance on Local
Government Investments (“the Guidance”) and the 2011 revised CIPFA Treasury
Management in Public Services Code of Practice and Cross Sectoral Guidance
Notes (“the CIPFA TM Code”).

The Council’s investment priorities will be security first, liquidity second and then
return. This ensures we do not chase yield at the expense of the security of our
investment.

In accordance with guidance from government and CIPFA, and in order to minimise
the risk to investments, the Council clearly stipulates the minimum acceptable credit
quality of counterparties for inclusion on the lending list.

The creditworthiness methodology used to create the counterparty list fully accounts
for the ratings, watches, and outlooks, published by all three ratings agencies with a
full understanding of what these reflect in the eyes of each agency. Using these
ratings services, potential counterparty ratings are monitored on a real time basis
with knowledge of any changes notified electronically.

Furthermore, officers recognise that ratings should not be the sole determinant of the
quality of an institution and that it is important to continually assess and monitor the
financial sector on both a micro and macro basis and in relation to the economic and
political environments in which institutions operate.

The assessment will also take account of information that reflects the opinion of the
markets. To this end the Council engages with its advisors to maintain a monitor on
market pricing such as ‘credit default swaps’, and overlay that information on top of
the credit ratings. This is fully integrated into the credit methodology provided by our
advisors, Capita Asset Services, in producing its colour codings which show the
varying degrees of suggested creditworthiness.

Other information sources used will include the financial press, share price and other
such information pertaining to the banking sector, in order to establish the most
robust scrutiny process on the suitability of potential investment counterparties.

The intention of the strategy is to provide security of investment and minimisation of
risk. The strategy also enables the Council to operate a diversified investment
portfolio to avoid an over concentration of risk.

Page 381

263



Investment instruments identified for use in the financial year are listed under the
‘specified’” and ‘non-specified’ investments categories. Counterparty limits will be as
set through the Council’s treasury management practices.

Creditworthiness Approach

This Council applies the creditworthiness service provided by Capita Asset Services.
This service employs a sophisticated modelling approach utilising credit ratings from
the three main credit rating agencies - Fitch, Moody’s and Standard and Poor’s. The
credit ratings of counterparties are supplemented with the following overlays:

. credit watches and credit outlooks from credit rating agencies;
. CDS spreads to give early warning of likely changes in credit ratings;

« sovereign ratings to select counterparties from only the most creditworthy
countries.

This modelling approach combines credit ratings, credit watches and credit outlooks
in a weighted scoring system which is then combined with an overlay of CDS
spreads. The end product is a series of colour coded bands which indicate the
relative creditworthiness of counterparties. These colour codes are used by the
Council to determine the suggested duration for investments. The Council will
therefore use counterparties within the following durational bands :

Colour Band | Duration

Yellow 5 years *

Dark pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit
score of 1.25

Light pink 5 years for Enhanced money market funds (EMMFs) with a credit

score of 1.5

Purple 2 years
Blue 1 year (only applies to nationalised or semi nationalised UK Banks)
Orange 1 year
Red 6 months
Green 100 days
No colour not to be used

y Pil Pi2 P B 0 R G N/C

T T I

UptoSyrs  UptoSyrs  UptoSyrs  Upto2yrs  Uptolyr Uptolyr  Uptobmths Upto 100days No Colour

Page 382

264



Colour (and long | Money and/or
term rating where %

applicable) Limit

5 years
2 years
1 year
1 year
6 months
100 days
Council’s banker (Barclays) in the 3 davs
event of the bank being ‘no colour’ y
DMADF 6 months
Local authorities Syrs
Money market funds liquid
Enhanced money market funds . AAA o —_—
with a credit score of 1.25 Dark pink / 100% liquid
Enhanced money market funds . . o —_—
with a credit score of 1.5 Light pink / AAA 100 % liquid

* Please note: the yellow colour category is for UK Government debt, or its
equivalent, constant net asset value money market funds and collateralised deposits
where the collateral is UK Government debt.

** When placing deposits with part nationalised banks the Council will take care to
review when it expects the UK Government to divest its interest in the institution, and
the impact this move would have on the Council’s view of the institutions security.
The Council does not expect to place deposits for maturities greater than 12 months
during 2014/15. Should it choose to do so, the action will be reported to the Cabinet
Member for Finance at the earliest available opportunity.

Page 383

265



Our creditworthiness service uses a wider array of information than just primary
ratings and, by using a risk weighted scoring system, does not give undue
preponderance to just one agency’s ratings.

Typically the minimum credit ratings criteria the Council use will be a short term
rating (Fitch or equivalents) of short term rating F1, and a long term rating A. There
may be occasions when the counterparty ratings from one rating agency are
marginally lower than these ratings but may still be used. In these instances
consideration will be given to the whole range of ratings available, or other topical
market information, to support their use.

All credit ratings will be monitored daily. The Council is alerted to changes to ratings
of all three agencies through its use of the Capital Asset Services creditworthiness
service.

. if a downgrade results in the counterparty / investment scheme no longer
meeting the Council’s minimum criteria, its further use as a new investment
will be withdrawn immediately.

« in addition to the use of credit ratings, the Council will be advised of
information in movements in credit default swap spreads against the iTraxx
benchmark and other market data on a weekly basis. Extreme market
movements may result in downgrade of an institution or removal from the
Council’s lending list.

Sole reliance will not be placed on the use of this external service. The Council will
also use market data and market information, information on government support for
banks, and the credit ratings of that supporting government.

Country limits

The Council has determined that it will only use approved counterparties from
countries with a minimum sovereign credit rating of AA- from Fitch. The list of
countries that qualify using this credit criteria as at the date of this report are shown
in an appendix. This list will be added to, or deducted from, by officers should
ratings change in accordance with this policy.

Investment strategy
When considering its investments the Council will consider:

e lts longer term cash balances. This is cash available for use in the medium to
long term, and comes from reserves, grants and receipts that are yet to be
spent;

e Short term cash flow requirements that arise on a daily basis; and,

e Expectations on interest rates. This is important for the Council when
determining a required rate of return on our investments.

Page 384

266



The Bank of England base rate is forecast to remain unchanged at 0.5% before
starting to rise from quarter 2 2016. Base rate forecasts for financial year ends
(March) are as follows:

Year Base Rate Forecast
2015/16 0.5% -1%

2016/17 1% - 1.50%

2017/18 1.50% -1.75%

There are upside risks to these forecasts (i.e. start of increases in base rate occurs
sooner) if economic growth remains strong and unemployment falls faster than
expected. However, should the pace of growth fall back, there could be downside
risk, particularly if Bank of England inflation forecasts for the rate of fall of
unemployment were to prove to be too optimistic.

The suggested budgeted investment earnings rates for returns on investments
placed for periods up to 100 days during each financial year for the next four years
are as follows:

Year Proposed Returns
2015/16 0.90%
2016/17 1.50%
2017/18 2.00%
2018/19 2.50%

The Council also offers an indicator for the forecast total funds invested for greater
than 364 days. These limits are set with regard to the Council’s cash requirements
and to reduce the need for early sale of an investment.

The Council does not expect to place deposits with maturity dates in excess of 12
months, but should it do so the monetary value of those deposits will not exceed:

2015.16 2016.17 2017.18
Invested greater than 365 days £'000 £'000 £'000
Maximum sums £30,000 £30,000 £30,000

Page 385

267



Appendix 1

Treasury Management Practice (TMP1) - Credit and Counterparty Risk

Management

SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:

All such investments will be sterling denominated, with maturities up to maximum
of 1 year, meeting the minimum ‘high’ quality criteria where applicable.

The following specified investment instruments, along with their minimum credit

rating, have been outlined below:

* Minimum credit
criteria / colour

** Max % of total
investments / £ limit

band per institution
DMADF — UK Government UK sovereign rating 100%
Bonds issued by multilateral
development banks AM 100%
Money market funds AAA 100%
Enhan.ced money market funds with AAA 100%
a credit score of 1.25
Enhan.ced money market funds with AAA 100%
a credit score of 1.5
Local authorities N/A 100%
Te.rm. depOS.ItS.WIth banks and Green £10m
building societies
CDs or. C(.)rporate; bpnds with banks Green £10m
and building societies
Gilt funds UK sovereign rating 100%

Page 386

268




NON-SPECIFIED INVESTMENTS:
These are any investments which do not meet the specified investment criteria. Non-

specified investments are typically viewed as being

investments.

riskier than specified

A maximum of £30m will be held in aggregate in non-specified investment.

A variety of investment instruments are outlined below. The Council has selected
these instruments based on their high credit quality.

The criteria, time limits and monetary limits applying to institutions or investment

vehicles are:

** Max % of total

crel\clil;:::rer:a investments/ £ Max. maturity
/ colour band limit per period
institution
. UK sovereign
UK Government gilts rating 100% 5 years
UK Government UK sovereign 100% 5 vears
Treasury blls rating y
Local authorities N/A 100% 5 years
Gilt funds zt;ns;verelgn 100% 5 years
Purple 100% 2 years
Banks Yellow 100% 5 years

Page 387

269




Appendix 2

Approved countries for investments:

Australia
Canada
Denmark
Finland
Germany
Luxembourg
Netherlands
Norway
Singapore
Sweden
Switzerland
U.S.A

Hong Kong
U.K.

Abu Dhabi (UAE)

Belgium
France
Qatar

Saudi Arabia

Page 388

270



Appendix 8

PAY POLICY STATEMENT

March 2015

1.0

1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

2.0
21

Background

Sheffield City Council is required under Sections 38 — 43 of the Localism Act 2011
to publish its pay policy; Sheffield City Council has routinely, on an annual basis,
published data on all posts which have remuneration above £50,000.

Much of the information contained in this report has been placed in the public
domain by Sheffield City Council over a number of years; this report pulls this
information together in one Council report.

Sheffield City Council undertakes quarterly monitoring of posts which have a
remuneration of over £50,000, and over the past two years there has been active
management of the number of these posts resulting in a total reduction of 27 posts
in Sheffield City Council since January 2009. However due to Sheffield Homes and
Public Health Services being transferred in to Sheffield City Council there were an
additional 14 posts over £50,000 making the actual overall reduction to 41.

The Council continues to monitor closely its senior management posts and keeps
the structure under review to ensure it continues to be fit for purpose.

This policy statement does not cover or include staff employed by schools and is
not required to do so.

This policy statement is required to be considered and approved by full Council at
the Council meeting on 6 March 2015.

Definition of Officers Covered by this Policy Statement

This policy statement covers the following posts, full details of these posts is
attached at Annex A.

a) Head of the Paid Service, which in Sheffield City Council is the post of:
i) Chief Executive

b) Statutory Chief Officers, which in Sheffield City Council are the posts of:
i) Director of Adult Services (under LASSA 1970) (pending recruitment)

ii) Executive Director CYPF (Director of Children's Services under Children's
Act)

iii) Director of Legal and Governance (Monitoring Officer)

iv) Executive Director of Resources (Chief Finance Officer under Sec 151 of
LGA1972)

v) Director of Public Health

Page 389

271



3.0

4.0

41

4.2

4.3

4.4

C) Non-statutory Chief Officers (those who report to the Head of Paid Service
or Statutory Officer)

d) Chief Officers (those who report to Non Statutory Chief Officers)

Pay Policy Statement

Sheffield City Council’'s aim on matters of remuneration is to have in place an
approach that enables the authority to:

e Recruit and retain people with the skills and expertise to deliver high quality
services to the citizens of Sheffield City Council;

e Manage employee remuneration in a manner that is fair, transparent and
reasonable;

e Take account of national and regional pay policy and market trends in the
context of local government;

e Have a framework for managing the range of pay across the Council’s
workforce, this is known as pay ratios;

e Have simple uniform packages across all employment groups and to manage
pay matters within national guidelines and agreements;

e Protect and remunerate low paid employees at appropriate levels and this
includes the Council’s commitment to the Living Wage, and;

e Protect jobs and services for as long as reasonably possible and this includes
a prudent, affordable and fair approach to pay.

Policy on Remunerating Chief Officers

Sheffield City Council’s policy is to pay Chief Officers’ basic annual salary; Chief
Officers’ salaries do not attract enhancements or bonus of any kind. There are no
additional enhancements to redundancy payments, pension contributions or
pension payments outside of the Council’s normal arrangements for all Sheffield
City Council employees. Travel and other expenses are paid through the normal
authority procedures.

The exception to this is the post of Director of Public Health whose pay
arrangements are protected by legislation post transfer into Sheffield City Council of
the Public Health service. The additional payments paid to this post are outlined in
Annex A.

It is the policy of this authority to establish a remuneration package for each Chief
Officer post that is sufficient to attract and retain staff of the appropriate skills,
knowledge, experience, abilities and qualities that is consistent with the authority’s
requirements of the post in question at the relevant time. The Chief Officer Grading
Structure is attached as Annex B.

Recruitment to posts at Chief Officer Level is undertaken by the Senior Officers
Employment Committee which is a sub committee of the Council; membership is
agreed by Council on an annual basis. All recommendations for appointment at this
level are signed off by Cabinet.

Page 390

272



4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.1

5.0

5.1

Remuneration and recruitment — all posts will be advertised and appointed to at the
appropriate approved salary for the post in question, unless there is good evidence
that a successful appointment of a person with the required skills, knowledge,
experience, abilities and qualities cannot be made without varying the remuneration
package. In such circumstances a variation to the remuneration package may be
appropriate under the authority’s policy and any variation will be approved through
the appropriate authority decision making process.

Pay Increases - the authority will apply any pay increases that are agreed by
relevant national negotiating bodies and/or any pay increases that are agreed
through local negotiations. The authority will also apply any pay increases that are
as a result of authority decisions to significantly increase the duties and
responsibilities of the post in question beyond the normal flexing of duties and
responsibilities that are expected in senior posts.

Additions To Pay - the authority will not make additional payments beyond those
specified in the contract of employment unless varied by the appropriate authority
decision making process.

Local Election Fees- the Council sets and makes payment to the Returning Officer
for the management and administration of local elections. The Returning Officer will
make payments to those officers who undertake specific duties in relation to the
elections (including Chief Officers) dependant on their role.

It should be noted that any fees payable for duties in connection with Parliamentary
and European elections, election for Police Commissioners or referenda are
recouped from Central Government subject to a prescribed aggregate maximum
amount, and are not funded by the Council.

Performance Related Pay - the authority does not operate a performance related
pay system as it believes that it has sufficiently strong performance management
arrangements in place to ensure high performance from its senior officers. Any
areas of under-performance are addressed rigorously.

Earn-Back (Withholding an element of base pay related to performance) - the
authority does not operate an earn-back pay system as it believes that it has
sufficiently strong performance management arrangements in place to ensure high
performance from its senior officers. Any areas of under-performance are
addressed rigorously.

Severance Payments - The authority’s normal policies regarding redundancy and

retirement apply to Chief Officer Posts. From 1 April 2013 to 31 December 2014 5
Chief Officers were released from the authority on Voluntary Early Retirement and
one on Voluntary Severance.

Policy on Remunerating the Lowest Paid in the Workforce

The authority applies terms and conditions of employment that have been
negotiated and agreed through appropriate collective bargaining mechanisms
(national or local) or as a consequence of authority decisions, these are
incorporated into contracts of employment. The lowest pay point in this authority is
Scale 1, point 5; this relates to an annual salary of £12,435 and can be expressed
as an hourly rate of pay of £6.45 (,IA:\jprll 2013 to March 2014).

age 391

273



6.0

6.1

6.2

7.0

7.1

8.0

8.1

9.0

9.1

A decision was taken at Cabinet on 16 January 2013 to uplift the pay of employees
earning less than the nationally recognised Living Wage.

From April 2015 this will increase to £7.85 per hour. The payment will be made as a
supplement which will be reviewed on an annual basis.

Pay rates are increased in accordance with any pay settlements which are reached
through the National Joint Council for Local Government Services.

Policy on the Remuneration ratios

Currently in this authority the ratio between the highest salary (£184,588) and the
average median salary (£19,817) is 9.31. This demonstrates the authority’s
commitment to a fair approach to pay. Sheffield City Council is keen to maintain this
ratio going forward and continues to commit to a maximum ratio of 10:1 based on
December 2014 values, amended for inflation.

The authority is conscious of the need to ensure that salaries are kept under review
and consistent with the needs of the authority as expressed in this policy statement.
The authority’s approach to the payment of staff is to pay that which the authority
needs to pay to recruit and retain staff with the skills, knowledge, experience,
abilities and qualities needed for the post in question at the relevant time, and to
ensure that the authority meets any contractual requirements for staff including the
application of any local or national collective agreements, or authority decisions
regarding pay.

Approval of Salary Packages in Excess of £100k

The authority will ensure that, at the latest before an offer of appointment is made,
any salary package for any post (not including schools) that is in excess of £100k
will be considered by full Council. The salary package will be defined as base
salary, any fees, routinely payable allowances and benefits in kind that are due
under the contract.

Flexibility to Address Recruitment Issues for Vacant Posts

In the vast majority of circumstances the provisions of this policy will enable the
authority to ensure that it can recruit effectively to any vacant post. There may be
exceptional circumstances when there are recruitment difficulties for a particular
post and where there is evidence that an element or elements of the remuneration
package are not sufficient to secure an effective appointment. This policy statement
recognises that this situation may arise in exceptional circumstances and therefore
a departure from this policy can be implemented without having to seek full Council
approval for a change of the policy statement. Such a departure from this policy will
be expressly justified in each case and will be approved through an appropriate
authority decision making route.

Amendments to the Policy

As the policy covers the period April 2015 — end of March 2016, amendments may
need to be made to the policy throughout the relevant period. As the Localism Act
2011 requires that any amendments are approved by the Council by resolution,

Page 392

274



proposed amendments will be reported to the Cabinet Member for Finance and
Resources for recommendation to the Council.

10.0 Policy for Future Years
10.1 This policy statement will be reviewed each year and will be presented to full

Council each year for consideration in order to ensure that a policy is in place for
the authority prior to the start of each financial year.

Julie Toner
Director of Human Resources

Page 393

275



None of the Post holders list below receives an honorarium payment for increased duties and

responsibilities. Nor do any receive a payment related to joint authority duties

Annex A

Status

Post

Base Salary (£)

Other
Payments

Head of Paid Service

Chief Executive

184,588

The Returning
Officer’s fee is based
upon that payable at a
national election and
is variable dependent
upon the type of
election taking place.
The Chief Executive
will not be taking fees
for local elections.

Statutory Chief
Officers which in
Sheffield City
council are the posts
of

Executive Director CYP
(Director of Children's
Services under Children's
Act)

119,984

Director of Adult Services
under LASSA 1970

93,225(minimum
point — pending
recruitment — DG2)

Director of Legal and
Governance (Monitoring
Officer)

79,674

Election duty fees are
in accordance with
normal authority

procedures.
Executive Director 132,293
Resources
(Chief Finance Officer
under Sec 151 of
LGA1972)
Non Statutory Chief | Executive Director 132,293
Officers (those who | Communities
report to the Head of
the Paid Service or a
Statutory Officer)
which in Sheffield
City Council are the
posts of
Executive Director Place | 126,142
Director of Public Health 101,451 e Additional units of

(under review)

programmed
activity (PAs)

e Director of Public
Health (or chief
officer) supplement

e Clinical Excellence
Award (level

e On call supplement
(included in the

276




salary shown)

Director of Policy and 79,674
Performance

Director of Sheffield First | 81,118
Partnership

Director of Children and 99,154
Families (CYPF)

Director of Business 79,674
Strategy and

Commissioning (CYPF)

Director of Lifelong 76,922
Learning and Skills

(CYPF)

Director of Human 81,118

Resources (Resources)

Director of Commercial
Services (Resources)

79,674(minimum
point, pending
recruitment — DG4)

Director of Finance
(Resources)

81,645

Director of Customer 68,484
Services (Resources)

Director of Transport and | 74,167
Facilities Management
(Resources)

Director of 79,674

Commissioning
(Communities)

Director of Adult Services

93,225 (minimum
point - pending
recruitment — DG2)

Director of Business
Strategy and
Safeguarding
(Communities)

81,118

Director of Housing
(Communities)

84,713 (minimum
point - pending
recruitment — DG3)

Chief Officers (those
who report to Non
Statutory Chief
Officers) which in
this authority are the
posts of

Director of Regeneration | 84,713

and Development

Services (Place)

Director of Creative 76,004

Sheffield (Place)

Director of Culture and 81,118

Environment (Place)

Director of Marketing 76,922

Sheffield (Placey . o n ~nchE
ragt—oJo

277




Director of Business 81,118
Strategy and Regulation
(Place)

Director of Capital and 89,831
Major Projects (Place)

Assistant Director of 54,914
Legal & Governance
(Deputy Monitoring
Officer)

Children’s Commissioner | 74,167

Page 396

278




Chief Officer Grading Structure

1/2 Increment
Crade Desc Spinal Pt Salary without 2%
01/04/2008 01/04/2015
1 54250
15 54914
> 55577
DG7 25 56240
3 56903
35 57564
4 58225
1 63822
15 54599
> 65375
DG 6 55 656151
3 66928
35 67706
4 65484
1 73249
15 74167
DG 5 > 75086
55 76004
3 76922
1 78757
15 79674
DG4 2 80590
55 51118
3 51645
1 53689
15 54713
> 85737
DG3 55 36761
3 57784
35 58808
4 59531
1 92074
15 03225
> 04376
DG2 25 905556
3 96735
35 97945
4 09154
1 105495
15 106735
2 107976
5 £ 109360
DG 1 3 110744
35 112075
4 113406
A5 114767
5 116127
1 116902
15 119984
> 123066
EXECUTIVE 25 126142
DIRECTOR 3 129217
35 132293
4 135368
a5 138442
5 141516

Page 397

Annex B

279



S £38,299
6.5 £38,885
7 £39,470
SOULBURY EIP 6 -9 7.5 £40,032
8 £40,594
8.5 £41,250
o £41,906
SOULBURY E.I.P. 8- 11 9.5 £42,491
10 £43,075
10.5 | £43,653
11 £44,230
SOULBURY E.I.P. 10- 13 11.5 | £44,789
12 £45,348
12.5 | £45,981
13 £46,614
SOULBURY E.I.P. 12 - 15 13.5 | £47,178
14 £47,742
14.5 | £48,365
15 £48,988
15.5 | £49,553
16 £50,116
SOULBURY E.I.P. 15 - 18 16.5 | £50,682
17 £51,246
17.5 | £51,801
18 £52,355
18.5 | £52,927
19 £53,499
SOULBURY E.I.P. 18 - 21 19.5 | £53,795
20 £54,090
20.5 | £54,658
21 £55,226
21.5 | £565,721
22 £56,215
SOULBURY E.I.P. 21 -
>a 22.5 | £56,760
23 £57,305
23.5 | £57,794
24 £58,282
SOULBURY E.I.P. 23 - 26 24.5 | £58,805
25 £59,328
SOULBURY EIP 24 - 27 25.5 | £59,837
26 £60,346
26.5 | £60,868
27 £61,389
27.5 | £61,917
28 £62,445
28.5 | £62,976
29 £63,505
29.5 | £64,034
30 £64,563
30.5 | £65,087
31 £65,611
31.5 | £66,144
32 £66,676
32.5 | £67,209
33 £67,742
33.5 | £68,287
34 £68,833
34.5 | £69,377
35 £69,920
35.5 | £70,481
36 £71,040
36.5 | £71,591
37 £72,141
SOULBURY E.I.P. 36 - 39 37.5 | £72,698
38 £73,254
38.5 | £73,804
39 £74,352
39.5 | £74,901
40 £75,449
SOULBURY E.I.P. 39 - 42 40.5 | £76,001
41 £76,553
41.5 | £77,103
42 £77,654

Page 398

280



SCP [Salary
EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS - SCALE A

1 £34,273
2 £36,013
2.5 | £36,882
S £37,752
3.5 | £38,621
4 £39,491
EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTASCP 2-7 Main Grade 4.5 | £40,361
5 £41,230
5.5 | £42,100
6 £42,969
6.5 | £43,789
7 £44,607
8 £46,244
8.5 | £47,011
SPA Points 9 £47,778
9.5 | £48,546
10 | £49,313
11 | £50,745

SENIOR & PRINCIPAL EDUCATIONAL PSYCHOLOGISTS - SCALEB SCP |Salary
1 £42,969
2 £44,607
S £46,244
4 £47,778
5 £49,313
6 £50,745
7 £51,333
8 £52,431
8.5 | £52,975
9 £53,519
ED PSYCHOLOGIST B TEAM MANAGER Team Manager 9.5 | £54,072
10 | £54,626
10.5 | £55,168
11 | £55,711
12 | £56,818
12.5 | £57,381
13 | £57,944
13.5 | £58,488
14 | £59,031
14.5 | £59,601
ED PSYCHOLOGIST B SERVICE MANAGER Service Manager 15 [ £60,171
15.5 | £60,735
16 | £61,300
16.5 | £61,868
17 | £62,436
17.5 | £63,004
18 | £63,571

Page 399

281



Page 400

282



Appendix 9

Sheffield

City Council

Sheffield City Council
Equality Impact Assessment

Name of policy/proposal: 2015/16 Revenue Budget

Status of proposal: New Name of person(s) writing EIA: Adele Robinson
Date: 02/02/2015 Service: Finance Portfolio: Resources

What are the brief aims of the Proposal?
The purpose of the Revenue Budget report is to:

e To approve the City Council’s revenue budget for 2015/16, including the position on reserves
and balances;

e To approve a 2015/16 Council Tax for the City Council; and

e To note the levies and precepts made on the City Council by other authorities

Background

Section 149, of the Equality Act 2010, the Public Sector Equality Duty says a Public Authority must, in
the exercise of its functions, have due regard to:

e Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation
e Advance equality of opportunity
e Foster good relations

Having due regard to these involves:

e Removing or minimising disadvantage suffered by persons

e Taking steps to meet the needs of persons with different characteristics
e Encouraging people to participate in public life

e Tackling prejudice and promote understanding.

e Taking steps to take account of disabled persons’ disabilities

This is with regard to people who share Protected Characteristics under the Act and those who don’t.
This means we need to understand the effect of our policies and practices on equality, which will
involve looking at evidence, engaging with people, staff, service users and others and considering the
effect of what we do on the whole community. One of the ways in which we do this as a Council is
through conducting Equality Impact Assessments (EIAs).

The Council-wide EIA and the individual service EIAs on budget proposals that underpin it are
focussed on the impact on the protected characteristics in the Equality Act 2010. These include age,
disability, race, sex, sexual orientation, religion/belief, gender reassignment, pregnancy & maternity.

In Sheffield, we have decided to go beyond our statutory duty under the Equality Act 2010. We also
assess the impact on the Voluntary and Community Sector (VCS), financial exclusion, carers, armed
forces and cohesion. We believe that this gives us a wider understanding than the statutory
framework would without these additions.

Page 401

283




Appendix 9

Decisions will affect different people in different ways. It is possible that decisions will have a
disproportionate impact on some groups in comparison to others, even if this is not the intention.
We use the impact assessments to help us identify and to avoid any negative unintended
consequences of the proposals developed. These could, for example, be disproportionate impacts on
different geographic locations, different communities such as younger or older people, women or
men, disabled people or BME (Black & Minority Ethnic) communities as well as the cumulative effect
of any decisions made

A commitment to tackling inequality, ensuring fairness and increasing social justice is at the heart of
the Council’s values. We have supported the city’s independently chaired Fairness Commission and
are currently producing a new Tackling Household Poverty Strategy. The Commission report
contained a set of Fairness Principles and these, as well as our emerging Tackling Poverty Strategy
have influenced our priorities and decision making across the Council.

The savings we are required to make this year amount to £63million, which is on top of £240 million
of savings already made over the past 4 years and this means we are less able to protect frontline
services than before. This is particularly relevant in the Communities Portfolio where Adult Social
Care was substantially protected in the first 3 years by having to make fewer savings than other
areas. However this year we expect to reduce our Adult Social Care spending by over £9.2m, which is
in line with the proportion of savings required in other areas of the Council. This means significant
reductions in spending over a short period of time. At the same time, there are changes underway
which affect how people will pay for their care in future, and demand for some services is increasing.
This means that adult social care will be a challenging area and that we will have to continue to make
changes to the way we do things to ensure that services are as effective and efficient as they can be.
However protecting those in greatest need still remains one of our top priorities this year.

Also national policies such as welfare reform are adding to the financial pressures facing some
communities and are widening existing inequalities. Overall we estimate that over £169m has been
removed from the local economy as a result of these welfare reform changes. This equates to £460
per year per every working adult in the city, although this reduction is not spread evenly, with some
people seeing a much larger reduction and others seeing a smaller (or zero) reduction. These changes
will be likely to impact on specific groups who already experience inequality such as people on a low
income, disabled people and women. For example households with dependent children across the
city will experience an average loss of £1,690 per year. This increases for lone parents to an average
of just over £2,000 per year.

These substantial reductions in funding mean that progress on work on tackling inequality is much
more focused on ensuring we do not slide backwards and lose ground in existing areas of inequality
and ensuring we are doing things fairly and more efficiently, not necessarily about just meeting new
demands.

However it is inevitable when funding levels are reduced year on year that there will be an impact on
the services we deliver, including some of the work we do with people who are most vulnerable. As
far as practically possible within the confines of a cumulatively reduced financial settlement, we have
tried to minimise the impact on those in greatest need and most at risk. However, these are
extremely challenging choices and difficult decisions are proposed.

Impact analysis is started early in the process of considering service changes to ensure we involve
relevant individuals and groups and understand any negative impact. The action plans for individual

Page 402

284



Appendix 9

ElAs are designed to ensure that the services concerned implement reductions with as little negative
impact as possible for the customers involved. There will be careful management control of each
reduction. The impact analysis process helps to shape proposals which do not make it forward into
the budget as well as those that do.

Impact assessments are made available to all Council Members in advance of any decision being
taken at Cabinet or Full Council, including briefing all relevant Cabinet Members on impact
assessments related to proposals in their area of responsibility.

The size and pace of the financial challenge means that efficiency savings alone will not enable us to
balance our budgets so we will be continuing to reduce the Council’s investment in services next year
and in future years. Many of these reductions or changes in provision started in previous years and
will continue - therefore the impacts on individuals and groups will be monitored to ensure that any
potential negative impact is reduced as far as possible. EIAs are ‘live’ documents and will be subject
to change, as proposals or evidence of impact changes.

We are confident that our budget proposals will mean services for those that most need our help and
support will see lesser reductions. We have tried as far as possible to target the savings through
changes to the way we work, including regionally and with other partners, redesigning and
restructuring our services and support teams, restructuring our contracts and commissioning and
increasing trading of our services, but it is inevitable that there will be some negative impact on
service delivery and on those who share protected characteristics under the Equality Act.

Consultation and evidence to support ElAs

Tackling inequality is crucial to increasing fairness and social cohesion, reducing health problems,
improving wellbeing and helping people to have independence and control over their lives. It
underpins all that we do. The Fairness Commission findings and principles have guided the approach
we have taken in developing these proposals such as:

e Those in greatest need should take priority.

e Those with the most resources should make the biggest contributions.

e The commitment to fairness must be a long-term one.

e The commitment to fairness must be city-wide.

e Prevention is better than cure.

e Beseento actin a fair way as well as acting fairly.

e Civic responsibilities among residents contribute to the maximum of their abilities and
ensuring all citizens have a voice.

e Open a continuous campaign for fairness in the city.

e Fairness must be a matter of balance between different groups, communities & generations.

e The city’s commitment to fairness must be both demonstrated and monitored annually.

As part of the development of options for the 2015/16 budget, the Council ran a budget conversation
between October and January that included a range of consultation activity with local people and
partner organisations. This has helped us to ensure that the proposals that we are putting forward
have been shaped by people who may be affected by them, and to ensure that they have had an
opportunity to put forward other ideas for consideration.

Page 403

285




Appendix 9

In line with our values as an organisation, we have used consultation to inform people about our
proposals, provide the opportunity to give feedback, make suggestions and let people know how
their feedback has helped to influence our thinking. In this way we have attempted to ensure that
our consultation activity is meaningful and appropriate at all times. Our budget consultation activity
has had two main strands this year:

e Two large corporate budget conversation events in the Town Hall, supplemented by
additional activity, including a survey
e Detailed consultation on particular topics and specific proposals

Corporate Consultation

Budget priorities have also been heavily shaped by consultation activity undertaken over recent years
that has consistently confirmed public support for protecting services for the most vulnerable. This
year public feedback on our guiding principles has supported our approach to:

e operate efficiently as an organisation

e develop solutions for the longer term

e take early preventative action

o focus on people with the greatest need

e work with our communities to deliver services in a different way

These findings have been developed through both budget and non-budget related activity. This
includes consultation that informed proposals in last year’s budget and where implementation is
being phased over two years in areas such as libraries, reviews and assessments in Adult Social Care,
and changes to supported housing funding. The first of this year’s large budget conversation events
in the Town Hall was held in October 2014 and gave an opportunity for the Council to explain the
scale of reductions we are facing to members of the public and our partners, to set out our approach
to making the reductions, and to invite initial feedback on our approach. The open event was
attended by over 140 people from partner agencies, representatives of community groups and
voluntary organisations, as well as members of the public.

The second event, held in January 2015, gave us an opportunity to describe our budget proposals in
more detail, and included workshops led by each of the Cabinet Members to discuss some of the
most significant proposals in their areas of responsibility. To supplement the public events, we also
invited feedback on our proposals through the Council’s website. We also produced a short animated
video (www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget) designed to broaden understanding of the budget challenge,
and our approach and we used this alongside social media to signpost people to the consultation and
website.

The public events and the survey elicited an extensive range of comments which helped to inform
our overall thinking on the budget. These included requests for further information and explanations,
along with people’s views on financial and resource issues covering capital and revenue budgets and
how they are spent; the Government’s approach to cuts; flexibility over charging and contracts;
public sector collaboration and shared services; the importance of prevention work in housing &
social care; support for addressing health inequalities with and for local people; focussing on
providing the infrastructure and environment to encourage growth and investment; make the
Council’s assets more productive and more resilient to provide financial relief in the short-term and
reduce a reliance on fossil fuels in the long term; using existing assets to encourage enterprise and
wealth creation in Sheffield; supporting residents to become less dependent and more independent

Page 404

286



Appendix 9

of grants and support; reducing the numbers of councillors and their remuneration; recovery of
monies owed to the council and further efficiencies; staff pay, sickness and pensions; and Council tax
levels.

People asked about the extent to which the most vulnerable can be protected; how communities
could be helped to support themselves; and the role of the voluntary and community sector. There
were also discussions in relation to the impact of devolution, retention of business rates, and the
potential creation of investment funds; the balance between longer term prevention and reactive
work; what delivering services in a different way might mean for fair access, and distribution and
quality of services; and the cumulative impact of savings over the last four years and the
consequences of these.

We also invited people to provide ideas on ways to reduce spend, generate income, or do things
differently to allow us to continue to provide services whilst maintaining a balanced budget.
Suggestions ranged from brief comments to extensive commentaries covering a range of possible
approaches. Some mirrored comments raised in the public events such as suggestions for reducing
spend through cutting management and staffing costs, more efficiency reviews and greater use of
digital communications. Others included stopping road alterations, further reducing libraries and
encouraging greater recycling and fewer collections.

Views on doing things differently included more local procurement; using better products for repairs
so reducing perceived false economies; getting better value from contractors and reducing
outsourcing; reducing dependency on benefits; exploring community sector delivery of services;
better partnership working e.g. health and social care; improving Special Educational Needs (SEN)
provision; and increasing the use of technology. People also gave their views on the draft proposals
presented by Members at the second public event. These comments, and the responses to them, are
available on the Council’s budget webpages.

More detail on the points raised by people during this consultation event is available on the Council’s
website at www.sheffield.gov.uk/budget. This information has been carefully considered by officers
and Members in developing and refining the budget proposals.

Topic and service-based consultation

Alongside our corporate budget conversation, we have also consulted with people about proposals
on particular themes or in specific areas. This consultation has taken many forms, depending both on
the nature of the proposal and which service users and communities are likely to be affected. In
general terms, proposals that were assessed as having a higher impact were subject to more detailed
consultation. This has ranged from public meetings, to individual discussions with providers and
customers, to surveys and questionnaires. Three areas of significant consultation activity are
highlighted below.

We have in the past been able to protect spend, in relative terms, on areas like adult social care.
Although we continue to prioritise support to the most vulnerable and those at risk, the continued
reductions in government funding and continuing demand pressures have meant that this is no
longer possible as the reductions needed in other areas would be likely to lead to these services
becoming unsustainable. We have therefore spent a great deal of time talking to service users and
providers about our proposals in adult social care, as this represents a significant area of change from
current service provision. For example, consultation on the Learning Disabilities Commissioning
Strategy has taken place with service users, providers and stakeholders to establish principles and
overarching commissioning intentions, in order to enable the development of future specific leaning
disability budget proposals.

Page 405

287



Appendix 9

In Children’s and Young Peoples’ and Families’ Services, significant initial consultation and discussion
with service users as part of the review of short break and respite services took place over April-
September 2014. Consultation also included staff, providers and children and young people. A second
stage consultation will commence on 27 January as proposals are developed.

Similarly, consultation with Sheffield Futures on the Youth Service contract started in August 2014,
with staff consultation starting in October 2014 for both Sheffield Futures and Council employees.
Final consultation with young people, parents and communities is anticipated to complete in January
2015. The consultation outcomes are being used to update the Equalities Impact Assessment, and
will be communicated to Members ahead of final decisions being taken.

More broadly, the following examples illustrate the breadth of other consultation activity across all
areas of the Council with consultation taking place with Friends of Parks Groups and local residents
on the future of urban nature parks; and with business and organisations such as the Chamber of
Commerce on an alternative delivery model for Marketing Sheffield. We have consulted with
voluntary and community groups to establish the likely impact of funding reductions in grants; and
with providers about reductions to the Community Wellbeing Programme.

Consultation on proposals will not stop once the budget has been agreed by Members. Further
consultation with those affected individuals, groups, organisations and staff will take place
throughout the year as decisions are implemented through the Council’s usual governance processes
— this will include, for example, consultation on changes to waste management following
negotiations with Veolia; highways maintenance provision following negotiations on our contract
with Amey; with residents and businesses on the Council’s approach to online self-service as the
primary channel for customer enquiries; and on a range of proposals in adult social care provision
e.g. community support service, home support, small adaptations and independent living solutions;
and the proposed review of the Public Health Grant contribution to mental health provision in line
with the Council’s wider re-commissioning of mental health services. We remain committed to
making sure that people have the opportunity to comment on and influence proposals, particularly
where services may change or reduce.

All the results of consultation activity will be taken into account when making individual decisions on
the proposals. In some cases this consultation activity is not yet complete and therefore firm
proposals will be subject to further decision making in line with the Council’s usual governance
processes. More information about our approach to consulting on the various budget proposals can
be found in individual service ElAs.

Evidence - What do we already know — Sheffield Demographics

As well as consultation evidence, we have used monitoring information we already hold in services to
help us identify possible impacts and to help shape and inform the EIA process. To help us identify
possible impacts requires an understanding of how the city is made up and the issues people face.
The 2011 Census, Sheffield Facts and Figures , State of Sheffield, & Community Knowledge Profiles
show:

e Sheffield’s population has grown above the national average and the City Region, rising from
513,000 in 2001 to 552,698 at the time of the 2011 census. This is currently projected to
increase to around 600,000 by 2020. This has resulted from increases in births, net inward
migration and longer life expectancy.

Page 406

288




Appendix 9

We are a diverse city and the ethnic profile continues to change, with the proportion of
residents classifying themselves as non-white British growing from 11% in 2001 to 19 % in
2011. BME adults make up 16% of the population and BME children 29%. Sheffield’s BME
population is increasingly dispersed across the city, although there remain geographical areas
with high proportions of BME people. These areas tend to correlate with areas of deprivation.

Sheffield has a higher proportion of its population aged 65 years or over (16.7 % or 85,700
people) than the other English Core Cities. This is projected to increase, with the largest
increase in the number of people aged over 85.

The age group that has increased the most from 2001 to 2011 is the 16—24 group - we now
have 16.7% of our population in this group and a further 18.2% under 16.

Sheffield has a geographical pattern of communities that experience differing levels of
deprivation and affluence. Generally, the most deprived communities are concentrated in the
north and east of the city whilst the most affluent are located in the south and west.

Around 12 % of all households, 28% of over 60’s and 24% of dependent children live in
households reliant on Housing and/or Council Tax Support. The Council has 31,552 working
age taxpayers who receive council tax support and although fluctuating in December 2014
there were 3,903 Council tenants affected by under occupancy.

Residents’ incomes are around 10-15% lower than the national average. In addition Sheffield
is ranked 6th out of 326 against other Local Authorities for low income.

Around 20% of people in Sheffield live in relative poverty at any one time. In 2012 this
included 23% of all Sheffield children and almost a third of all Sheffield children under 10.

Life Expectancy in the city is 78.4 years for men and 82.1 years for women and there are
greater numbers of women than men in the city, due to higher life expectancy for women.

While the pay gap between men and women has been reducing, there is still evidence that, in
general, men are paid more than women. Women working full-time are paid an average of
15.5% less an hour than men for doing work of equivalent value. Women pensioners
therefore tend to be poorer than male pensioners. Other issues, which cannot be separated
from experiences of financial exclusion and poverty, include age, ethnicity, sexuality, disability
and domestic abuse etc.

There are over 105,000 adults with a long term limiting illness, equivalent to around 20% of
the population, with 9% saying this limits their activity a lot.

Although the city is becoming healthier for most people, health inequalities across the city
remain and are in some cases widening, with particular individuals and groups remaining or
increasingly vulnerable, in particular older people, the young and some women and some
ethnic minority groups. People in the most deprived parts of the city still experience poorer
health and die earlier than people living in the rest of the city.

We have high levels of financial exclusion in almost half of Council wards (affecting
approximately 218,743 people in 48% of wards). Rates of unemployment are highest among

Page 407

289



Appendix 9

those with no or few qualifications and skills, those with caring responsibilities, lone parents,
those from some ethnic minority groups, older workers and, in particular, young people.

e People within some groups can be disproportionally affected by disadvantage and inequality.
For example, children are more likely to live in poverty if they are from Black and minority
ethnic (BME) family: 77% of Somali and 61% of Yemeni children in Sheffield are eligible for
Free School Meals compared to 18.5% of all children in poverty in Sheffield' and 29% of
children with Special Educational Needs (SEN) in Sheffield are eligible for Free School Meals
compared with 18.5% of all children in Sheffield.

Impact Analysis

Areas and detail of impact

Overall

Inevitably when funding is reducing year on year at the scale and pace that we are experiencing, there
will be an impact on the front-line services we deliver and on some of the work we do with groups who
share a protected equality characteristic under the Equality Act 2010. We have tried to minimise the
impact on the most vulnerable and these groups as far as possible, however we have to make some
really difficult choices. This year the savings and pressures we are required this year means we are less
able to protect frontline services than before.

These substantial reductions in funding mean that progress on work on equality and fairness is much
more focused on ensuring we do not slide backwards and lose ground in existing areas of inequality and
ensure we are doing things fairly, and is not necessarily about meeting new demands.

We have tried to minimise the impact on front line services to customers as far as possible by finding
more efficient ways to deliver services by including by reducing costs of management, offices,
technology and other corporate services, however we have had to make some really difficult choices.
We are being guided in these choices by our values, commitment to fairness, tackling inequality, and by
our priorities as outlined and supported by our consultation.

Our approach to the budget is in Portfolio Areas which correspond to the way Council is structured

e Children, Young People and Families
e Place

e Resources

e Communities

There is also a small corporate services function Policy, Performance and Communications (PPC).

Each Portfolio was initially asked to make up to 15% savings on top of any cost or demand pressures in
their area. We subsequently reviewed all options across Portfolios to come up the proposals contained
in the budget report. Within each portfolio, some areas of spend have been protected, whilst other
areas of spend within outcomes have seen larger reductions.

In line with their longer term plans Portfolios have undertaken initial impact analysis on all budget
proposals. Where the risk of disproportionate impact has been identified an in-depth impact

'scc, January School Census 2010 Page 408
290




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

assessment has been undertaken and mitigations sought. The impact analysis shapes proposals which
do not make it forward into the budget proposals as well as those that do.

Overview of Portfolios Areas
Place Portfolio has completed 35 Budget EIAs on savings totalling £10,172,000 identified for 2015/16.
We have asked our partners Amey, Veolia and South Yorkshire Passenger Transport Executive (SYPTE)
to identify and deliver potential savings of 15% on each contract; this will total 71% of our reductions.
The budget proposals are a mix of:

e Finding new ways to deliver the services that support the priorities for the Great Place to Live,
Competitive City and Health & Wellbeing strategic outcomes.

e Making sure that all of our services are operating as efficiently as possible

e Reviewing existing charges and introducing new ways of generating income

e Changing or reducing service standards and as a last resort, stopping some activities altogether

We have used a range of evidence, such as consultation and data, to identify if there are any
differential impacts and the key areas are:

e There is a cumulative impact of year on year reduced subsidies on our charitable partners,
Museums Sheffield, Sheffield International Venues and Industrial Museums. Although the
services continue to be delivered this is with staffing levels at reduced levels. Any potential
leisure or theatre price increases will be minimised for low income users via discount schemes.

e The Place Public Health budget savings will have a low level impact on health inequalities for
those people living in the more deprived areas of Sheffield, where the work tends to be
concentrated. The savings also have the potential to impact on some of our Voluntary,
Community and Faith partners due to reduced funding.

e Given changes to ways that schools are funded we are increasing the number of school crossing
patrols funded by schools; this may be a negative impact for children should the school not fund
a replacement vacancy. This would be mitigated through the council proactively implementing
measures to improve safety outside schools e.g. 20 mph speed limits.

e Dependent on the savings identified through working with our partners Amey, Veolia and SYPTE
there potentially could be a negative impact on young/old, disabled people, carers, new mums
and mum-to-be and the less well-off. This will be identified in the service EIAs on each proposal.

Last year the key impacts related to socio economic issues, impacts on partners and staffing. Most of
the budget savings have been implemented with no significant impact due to, for example, ongoing
subsidies mitigating any potential barriers to increased charging. Key to this process was well planned
quality consultation to inform the decisions and also gain the public and partner’s input and
understanding of the changes required.

The Children and Young People and Families Portfolio have completed 28 Budget ElAs for savings of
£8,027,000 identified for 2015/16. We will spend in the region of £82m, which includes £11m of Public
Health investment, on delivering services for our children, young people and their families. A further
£421m of funding was allocated separately by government for schools and academies. Education is our

Page 409

291




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

biggest area of spending.

The CYPF Business Strategy proposals are changes to support services which are based around
continuing to provide current level of services to schools. The proposals include a reduction in the
marketing of Services to Schools, hosting changes to the School Information Centre, reduction of cash
collections by schools and introduction of an administration charge for joining the central catering
contract.

The Inclusion and Learning Services proposals enable us to continue providing essential support
services to schools and academies that support the successful children and young people outcome and
respond changes in funding following the conversion of schools to academies. The savings proposed
help us to protect those statutory and regulatory functions such as the statutory duty to provide
independent educational psychology input into Education, Health and Care Plans; the statutory duty to
act as the champion for children and families for the quality and effectiveness of education and the
statutory duty to ensure the availability of sufficient school places.

A further proposal is to start trading the Inclusion and Targeted Support Service which supports
capacity development and to improve outcomes for pupils, in particular new arrivals.

Within Lifelong Learning Skills and Communities, the proposed savings are concentrated in youth
services and further savings from proposals agreed in 2014/15. These savings help protect other areas
of targeted support to children and young people and employment projects. This means that we can
continue to provide support to those young people Not in Education Employment or Training (NEET),
diverting young people from offending, maintaining individual support for 16-24 year olds with learning
difficulties and disabilities, supporting young people who are at risk of sexual exploitation, protecting
apprenticeships and employment programmes and external investment.

Whilst significant, the youth service savings are part of a strategy over several budget rounds of

planned reductions in buildings and administrative costs and have helped protect frontline delivery. In
2015-16, there will be some reduction in staffing across the council and in Sheffield Futures, and some
changes proposed to youth open access delivery. The strategy has protected provision to the neediest.

The CYPF Public Health changes to Sexual Health Sheffield will be delivered through a redesign,
transformation of services and improved partnership working and potentially reallocating investment
across the sexual health system in order to better meet outcomes. There will be some funding
reduction to Young People’s Substance Misuse pooled budget.

The Children and Families savings proposals include reviewing all Independent Fostering Agency
placements and long term fostering placements aiming to secure permanency or local authority
fostering placements; developing regional approaches to youth justice services and fostering and
adoption; improved coordination of SEN placements; changes to the out of hours social work provision;
improved choice and flexibility on short breaks and integrated provision.

In addition, there is planned investment in Strengthening Families to provide an incremental
transformation of all services to children and young people into a jointly funded, commissioned and
delivered multi agency family service. There is a public health investment in Best Start early years
programme which supports the children and families most in need.

Page 410

292




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

The savings enable high quality essential intervention and prevention services for the most vulnerable
children and families to continue. The impact analysis process helps to shape proposals which do not
make it forward into the budget as well as those that do.

Last year although we had difficult choices to make, our mitigations and monitoring of impact were
effective. Wherever possible we have minimised the impact that the proposed changes on young
people’s services will have on young people and their parents/carers. We recognise that some of the
children, young people and their families will be using more than one of the services where there are
changes proposed, and there may therefore be a cumulative impact of some of these changes.

We recognise that there have been year on year reductions since 2010, for example to youth services.
These have been mitigated and usage data since the start of reductions in 2010-11 highlights improved
take up of youth provision. Equally, other reductions, for example those to the Integrated Sexual Health
Service, affect multiple characteristics and the consultation with the provider, including the
development of a provider led EIA, is a critical part of the mitigation. Some people may receive a
changed or a reduced service as we focus on the most in need and at risk and wherever possible we
have sought to mitigate this by focusing reductions, where possible, on restructuring and internal
changes to protect front line services. This will however not mean that front line services will not be
reduced.

Our transformational changes, for example the Early Years Best Start investments, will have positive
impacts for those in the greatest need, which includes some BME groups and women and militates
against future impacts.

In the Communities Portfolio there are 31 ElAs, of which most are full EIAs as many of the services in
this Portfolio, such as Adult Social Care, are by definition providing services to vulnerable, disabled and
older people. This area represents the single largest controllable area of the Council’s budget, and we
spend around £146 million each year helping adults across Sheffield stay healthy and well, supporting
14,000 people though our services. This area has also seen an increasing level of demand and of costs
of services.

Savings in this area have the potential to impact negatively upon those protected groups. However,
some of the proposals involve more cost effective solutions to individuals, earlier intervention leading
to prevention, retendering contracts or service internal restructuring that will have fewer equality
impacts.

We are continuing to implement last year’s changes in a number of areas, such as to library services,
adult social care reviews and reassessments and housing related support. We are implementing a
programme of change to move focus to short term preventative and re-enablement services. We are
working with providers around the changes to mitigate direct impact.

We are taking steps to ensure we get the best value for money and quality in our contracts in a number
of areas; e.g. value for money in provision of short breaks for people with learning disabilities, moving
to Supported Living Frameworks in mental health and learning disability services, and re-tender of the
community equipment store, small adaptations and independent living preventative solutions. We are
supporting individuals with any transitions between providers where appropriate.

We are also proposing to review the Community Support Service, and will undertake a full EIA to
determine the future direction of the service.

Page 411

293




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

We are investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the local voluntary sector, although this reduction is
less than the Council’s overall budget cut. Some negative equality impacts have been identified
resulting from the reductions in overall grant aid funding available, and the fact that some projects that
the Council previously supported will no longer receive funding in future. However the funding will be
targeted at those in greatest need of support. We are also restructuring teams such as Grant Aid and
Locality Management to ensure greater efficiency. The current local area working model includes
providing Councillors with a ward pot to fund community groups, projects or additional services to
tackle the issues and priorities within their ward. We will review existing arrangements across the
Council in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support.

The funding for the Local Welfare Provision Grant is being removed by Government in April 2015. This
currently funds the Council’s Local Assistance Scheme based in Communities Portfolio. As a Council we
have decided to continue to invest £1.5 million in this area to match current demand and to seek to
reduce financial hardship for those in greatest need. We will continue to monitor and review its use.

Public Health in Communities will see a reduction in the community well-being and community health
champions programmes but investment in other areas such as support to advice centres to tackle the
root causes of ill health in communities. We are also starting to review the public health contribution to
mental health provision in line with the Councils re commissioning of mental health services strategy
overall. EIAs and consultation will be undertaken as this work progresses.

There will be some staff reductions (for example in internal services such as Business Support and
Business Strategy) and we have worked towards minimising the impact of this on front line services.

The Better Care Fund partnership with the NHS CCG will continue to develop during 2015/16 with the
aim to deliver better joint commissioning, to ensure people get the right care when and where they
need it. This should also lead to more effective and efficient services to release savings in this area.

In the Resources Portfolio there are 18 EIA’s which cover all budget proposals for 15/16. There are 5
EIA’s pending Managing Employee Reduction (MER) processes within the Finance, HR, Commercial
Services and Transport & Facilities Management services. EIAs on past MER’s have not shown
disproportionate impacts on staff within the portfolio. Of the other ElAs, a few have the potential to
impact on our customers. By reducing staff in our corporate services, this has meant that we have been
able to protect frontline services.

There is a Customer Services proposal which covers the restructure of the service, implementation of
contact centre technology to deliver efficiencies alongside implementation of channel shift strategy and
tools. There are no expected negative impacts from this strategy and in some cases positive impacts on
certain groups.

There are other EIAs which cover Council Tax and its support schemes; we are proposing this year to
continue to keep the same Council Tax Support (CTS) scheme. The CTS scheme continues to be based
on the principles of the old Council Tax Benefit regulations and provides for the maximum financial
support being made available to those with the greatest financial need. They protect some of the
income of disabled people and of families whilst providing assistance to those people who move off
benefits into paid employment. The Council recognises however that requiring all working age
customers to pay a minimum of 23% of their Council Tax may cause financial hardship amongst some

Page 412

294




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

households. Therefore the Council is also proposing to continue to operate and increase the value of
the Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) in 2015/16 in order to continue to offer assistance to the most
financially vulnerable households.

This year we are also proposing an increase in Council Tax for the first time in 4 years, again we are
aware that any increase in Council Tax could have a negative impact on those households who are
already struggling financially. However, the provision of Council Tax Support (CTS) backed up by the
enhanced CTHS will ensure that such an impact is minimised. The impacts will continue to be
monitored through the EIA process and action plans developed to mitigate impacts where appropriate.

In Policy, Performance and Communications there are 7 EIAs and they relate mainly to internal
restructuring and cost savings and are not likely to have any customer impact.

The Council’s Public Health spending for 2015/16 is approx. £30 million and is integrated throughout
the Portfolios. More detail on the use of our Public Health grant is given in the portfolio sections above.
There are also 5 ElAs for the Director of Public Health Office which mainly cover internal structures and
have lower impact. Overall there will not be any reduction in investment in this area, but in line with
what was agreed last year we are reviewing how and where the funding is spent to ensure that it is
targeted to tackle the root causes of ill health and to have the maximum impact on reducing
inequalities. This means that we will save £2.5million on existing activities in order to reinvest this sum
in other areas. Some of the proposals involve more cost effective delivery and retendering contracts,
earlier intervention leading to prevention, or internal restructuring that will have fewer equality
impacts. Some of the changes have the potential to impact negatively upon some people who share
protected characteristics. However, two of the main areas the changes will support are early years and
advice and information so impact of the overall investment will be positive on the groups within the
EIA.

In summary there are a number of key themes relating to equality that run through the proposals:

e Restructuring and integrating services and teams to increase efficiency and effectiveness
e ‘Managing Employee Reductions’ processes to reduce the number of staff employed

e Targeting of resources to target those in greatest need and at risk

e Helping people to be independent, safe and well and to make their own choices

e Intervening early and doing more preventative work

e Working with other agencies to avoid duplication and to help coordinate help and support
e Better value for money in the services we commission or purchase

e Fairer contributions and charges to ensure full cost recovery and as a way to maintain services
e Increasing traded services in non-core areas (such as with schools)

e Reductions in funding to the VCS in line with reductions to the rest of the Council’s budget
e Shifting the focus of public health spend to addressing the root causes of ill health

e Continuing with changes made in the past year to have full year effect on savings

e Continuing to monitor the impact of changes over the coming year.

Overall, the proposals have the potential to impact negatively in some areas and service EIAs have
sought to mitigate this negative impact; however there are also positive impacts identified in impact

assessments which are also highlighted.

Our impact assessments identify and provide mitigations for potential impact in services for younger

Page 413
295




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

people, older people, disabled people, BME, women and men, religion and belief, sexual orientation,
voluntary community and faith sector, cohesion and financial inclusion/ poverty (there is over
representation within this last group of disabled people, some women and some BME communities).

As noted earlier although not within the scope of our budget proposals it is important in the EIA to
highlight some relevant other factors which are impacting on people in the city. For example national
policy, such as the welfare reforms are adding to the financial pressures facing some people and
communities and are widening existing inequalities.

Further details of the impacts are contained in individual service EIAs which are listed at the end

Multiple and cumulative Impacts

Groups highlighted as impacted most across EIAs and all Portfolios are disabled people, older and
younger people, women, carer’s and people on low incomes. Disabled people, some women such as
lone parents and women pensioners, carers, young people and some BME communities who tend to
have a lower income may be cumulatively impacted.

By definition, older people, disabled people, carers and women will be the most impacted by the
changes in Adult Social Care. Young people and parents will be impacted by changes in services
specifically for these groups. Some people who have been previously receiving a service will receive a
changed, reduced or no service, as we focus on the most in need.

As noted earlier these proposals represent the full extent of changes to adult social care provision that
we are able to achieve in 2015/16, while still meeting our statutory obligations and providing essential
services for the most vulnerable people in the city.

We are continuing to work with partners to be more efficient and joined up such as with the NHS
Clinical Commissioning Group towards developing a single budget for Health and Social Care, including
through the Better Care Fund process. The changes begin to come into effect in April 2015 and could
help mitigate both demand pressures and cumulative impact.

Our subsidies to our charitable partners have reduced year on year. We recognise that this may result
in charges for services provided by these partners (such as leisure or cultural services) to increase.
Where this does happen it has the potential to increase barriers to participation to people on a low
income, therefore affecting the groups noted above. Any potential leisure or theatre price increases
will be minimised for low income users via discount schemes.

A further impact across a range of proposals will be the transition from one provider to another, which
may include moving from one location to another and these changes have the potential for significant
impact on those individuals transitioning. We will take this into account in any changes, undertake risk
assessments where necessary and provide support for users and carers.

There are again a number of changes to our strategic contract arrangements (e.g. for waste
management and highways). Our providers where relevant have undertaken consultation and
evaluated impact and we have tried where possible to limit impact on front line services. Details can be
found in individual service ElAs.

Page 414

296




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

There will be an impact on the workforce across all areas given the amount of internal restructuring as
a result of the budget proposals and possible staff reductions of a further 200 posts in 2015/16, a
significant number of workforce EIAs are ongoing and a Council wide Managing Employee Reductions
(MER) EIA has been completed.

Because external factors such as welfare reform are also impacting negatively on some of the same
groups for example, disabled people, carers, young people and women, it is difficult to quantify the
cumulative level of impact although mitigations have been highlighted in all EIAs.

In summary then, we will not invest or provide services in as many areas as we did before the
reductions started 4 years ago. Services are targeting those in greatest need and those at risk but that
does mean that there is reduced universal provision. We are still providing statutory services and we
are focusing on the most vulnerable with the resource we have to invest.

Age Older people

In 2011 Sheffield had a higher proportion of its population aged 65 years or over (16.7 % or 85,700
people) than the other English Core Cities (the 8 biggest cities in England). The proportion of Sheffield’s
population aged over 65 is also projected to increase, with the largest increases in the number of
people aged over 85.

Across all Portfolios impacts on age have been identified; however for older people the impacts are
largely in the Communities. There are currently approx. 14,000 people currently receiving support
including paying for 1 million hours of home care.

Where proposals are about taking steps to get the best value for money and quality in our contracts,
we have assessed equality implications to ensure that there isn’t a disproportionate or negative impact
on customers with protected characteristics (e.g. moving mental health and learning disability contracts
onto providers on supported living frameworks; retender of the Community Equipment Store and small
adaptations and independent living solutions Preventative services; alternative provision for short
breaks for people with learning disabilities). Any customers who will change providers will be fully
supported in the transition. We have also used ElAs to identify opportunities to strengthen equality
monitoring for contracts.

We will also ensure that where eligible, people get the financial and health care support they are
entitled to, such as continuing health care and ensuring appropriate financial inclusion support is put in
place so that service users and carers are maximising their existing income.

There are some proposals which were implemented following last years’ budget, where the reductions
did not fully take effect until this year (for example adult social care review and reassessment
programme; changes to housing related support contractual arrangements). We have reviewed and
updated EIAs from last year, to make sure that we have implemented EIA action plans and identify
what needs to happen next. For example —

e We have continued to take a fair and consistent approach taken to the adult social care reviews and
reassessments to enable resources to be fairly distributed across the entire city and across all
groups rather than being disproportionately provisioned. We value our customers’ feedback, and
survey results have highlighted some areas for improving customer experience (for example
improved communication about assessment Qutcomes. ,\\e will carry out EIAs on new aspects of

Fage 41o
297




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

the programme, such as reviewing our approach to Double Handed care.

e Where possible, the full impacts of reductions to extra care and sheltered housing have been
mitigated by remodelling, so some of the services will be eligible for Housing Benefit. This has left a
variable reduction of on-site support but has covered risks and priorities and full impacts of
reductions of services to other vulnerable groups have been mitigated by better prioritising who
support is directed to.

e Where proposals are about making our organisational structures more effective (for example
reducing posts) we have worked towards minimising the impact on front line services and applied
good human resources practice to make sure that employees with ‘protected’ equality
characteristics aren’t unfairly affected.

e For proposals to review services, full EIAs will be integral to finalising recommendations (for
example, the Options Appraisal to determine the future direction of the Community Support
service; the development of the Adult Placements Shared Lives service for long term care
placements).

e Fairer Contributions —proposal to remove the upper limit on contributions. Initial analysis suggests
low numbers of people affected, but this is being confirmed. Capping of charging from 2016
introduced by the Care Act will provide some, longer-term mitigation. Where appropriate we will
identify mitigations, e.g. phasing in changes for current customers.

As part of the continuation of the Adult Social Care recovery programme, proposals will try to ensure
we have consistent assessment processes, and that we only fund services that clearly meet unmet
eligible social care needs and that are provided as cost effectively as possible. There may however be
conflicting views from service users as to whether this work has a positive or negative impact on their
lives. Some will see the opportunity to utilise Council and community-based support to live more
independent lives to be highly positive. There may be other people unhappy that the cost of their care
package is reducing, or concerned about the fact that a more cost-effect service has to be put in place
to meet their eligible needs. However, the overall approach to reassessments is not changing; eligible
needs will be identified and appropriate support put in place to meet those unmet needs. People will
not be subject to a different approach based on their age. Every person’s eligible needs will be
identified and met through appropriate support arrangements.

The Better Care Fund partnership with the NHS CCG will continue to develop with the aim to deliver
better joint commissioning, to ensure people get the right care when and where they need it. This
should also lead to more effective and efficient services to release savings in this area. This will lead to
positive impacts for older people.

We are investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the local voluntary sector, although this reduction is
less than the Council’s overall budget cut. As part of this we are continuing to support lunch clubs to
reduce isolation of older people. We are also reviewing existing arrangements across the Council in the
next year to ensure we are prioritising support available. The main beneficiaries of grant funded
services are BME people, older people, women and people on a low income.

In Place there may be some negative impacts on older people dependent on the savings identified
through working with our partners Amey, Veolia and SYPTE, but wherever possible, we will try to
mitigate by reduced impact on frontline services. For example where services are reducing we will still
be providing reasonable adjustments for disabled pegple.and we will continue make sure the most

Page 410
298




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

vulnerable customers can access services.

There are only none to low impacts on older people in CYPF, Resources and PPC. In Resources the
changes to council tax support scheme are likely to only have a low impact in this area as regulations
prescribe that current, and the vast majority, of future claimants of a pensionable age are protected.
This means that if they are eligible for support, the amount of support that they receive is based on
100% of their net Council Tax liability. Those who receive Pension Guarantee Tax Credit will currently
have their full council tax charge covered by CTS, and this will still be the case if council tax increases.

Young People

The age group that has increased the most from 2001 to 2011 is the 16 — 24 age groups. We now have
16.7% of our population in this group and a further 18.2% of the city’s population is under 16. BME
children make up 29% of the population.

Around 20% of people in Sheffield live in relative poverty at any one time. In 2012 this included 23% of
all Sheffield children and almost a third of all Sheffield children under 10.

In Children, Young People and Families Services many of the proposals and subsequent EIA’s relate to
internal changes or small employee reductions. The proposals with the main differential impact are
summarised below.

The ongoing reshaping of Youth Services, is a continuation of changes underway to restructure services
which includes a reduction of the ‘Sheffield Futures’ contract. Youth services are by definition delivered
to young people, so there is always a possibility that any budget reduction if not carefully managed or
mitigated will have an adverse impact on young people.

The strategy started in 2012 was to have shared and more effective management as well as savings on
overheads such as buildings. This approach protects services to young people as much as possible. The
majority of these savings are being therefore achieved through reductions in the council contract with
Sheffield Futures, and the council resources that form part of the Community Youth Teams. Some
street based sessions which are poorly attended or where there is other nearby provision will be
replaced with alternatives to give full mitigation for the change.

There will be increased trading of our services to schools who are increasingly independent from us,
including financial independence. We will still continue to provide statutory provision in these areas.

Following on from the successful partial trading of the non-statutory services provided by the
Educational Psychology Service piloted during 2014/15, there is more trading proposed in this area. In
addition, other areas of trading proposed include Pupil Admission and supporting schools with new
arrivals.

There is a reduction proposed to the Public Health Young Person’s Substance Misuse Contract which
works to provide specifically with 11-18 and there are mitigations to reduce impact detailed in the
service EIA.

We are proposing to use the Public Health Grant to invest in the Early Years Best Start service redesign
to improve outcomes for 0-5 and their families as a part of the approach of targeting services to those

Page 417

299




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

in greatest need in order to improve outcomes.

The Sheffield Integrated Sexual Health Service (ISHS) is commissioned using the Public Health Grant to
deliver open access demand led sexual health services for all ages including under 16s as well as
Chlamydia Screening which targets the 16-25 age range. Young people are more at risk of poor sexual
health due to increased exposure to risk taking behaviours. The ongoing work on the EIA with the
provider is part of identifying mitigations, which include reducing elements of the service in relation to
training and communications.

A significant number of proposals focus on the internal restructuring of teams which means reduced
numbers of posts. We do not expect the changes to have an impact on service provision and details of
these changes can be found in service ElAs.

The review of Independent Fostering Agency placements and long term fostering placements with a
view to securing either permanency or Local Authority fostering placements will have a positive impact
on children in care. Where a permanency solution is achieved, the child’s long term prospects and
outcomes are improved.

In Resources and PPC, there are mainly none to low impacts, most of the ElAs relate to internal
restructuring. The two areas of customer impact are Council Tax and customer services. In relation to
Council Tax it is clear from the respective collection rates that under the CTS Scheme some working age
households have found (and will continue to find) it harder to meet their Council Tax liability than
others. In anticipation of this the Council introduced a Council Tax Hardship Scheme (CTHS) to offer
additional support. However Analysis of awards made under the CTHS scheme show that only 8% have
been made to customers aged 18- 25. The changes in the Customer Service covers contact centre
technology and implementation of channel shift strategy which means in some cases positive impacts
such as better access to services online.

In Place given the changes to ways that schools are funded, (increasingly independent from us,
including financial independence) we are increasing the number of school crossing patrols funded by
schools; however there may be a negative impact for children/young people travelling to/from school
should the school not fund a replacement vacancy. This would be mitigated through the council
proactively implementing measures to improve safety outside schools e.g. 20 mph speed limits. Also
there potentially may be impacts dependent upon the savings identified through working with our
partners Amey, Veolia and SYPTE on young people, although this is more likely to be low. This will be
identified in the individual EIAs on proposal.

Although the overall investment from the Public Health Grant will not reduce it will be directed in
different ways so there is a focus on the root causes of ill health and health inequalities. Therefore
there may be some contract and services which change, that may impact on young people, such as
funding for cycling opportunities through Skyride, changes to tobacco control, trading standards
healthy takeaways work or cooking skills. The impacts will be noted in the individual proposal ElAs.

Disability

There are over 105,000 adults with a long term limiting illness in Sheffield, equivalent to around 20% of
the population, with 9% saying this limits their activity a lot. Service EIAs have identified a potential risk
of negative impact on disabled people, both directly and indirectly, through impacts on people on a low

Page 418

300




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

income and noted mitigations to be put in place.

Most users of Adult Social Care are disabled by virtue of the eligibility criteria for services. This means
that some of the changes within Adult Social Care will have a larger impact upon disabled people.

Across all Portfolios impacts on disability have been identified; however for disabled people the
impacts are largely in the Communities Portfolio. There are currently approx. 14,000 people currently
receiving support including paying for 1 million hours of home care. A lot of the same impacts as were
identified for older people are also outlined below for disabled people, due to the nature of the
services.

Where proposals are about taking steps to get the best value for money and quality in our contracts,
we have assessed equality implications to ensure that there isn’t a disproportionate or negative impact
on customers with protected characteristics (e.g. moving mental health and learning disability contracts
onto providers on supported living frameworks; retender of the Community Equipment Store and small
adaptations and independent living solutions Preventative services; alternative provision for short
breaks for people with learning disabilities). Any customers who will change providers will be fully
supported in the transition. We have also used ElAs to identify opportunities to strengthen equality
monitoring for contracts.

We will also ensure that where eligible, people get the financial and health care support they are
entitled to, such as continuing health care and ensuring appropriate financial inclusion support is put in
place so that service users and carers are maximising their existing income.

There are some proposals, which were implemented following last years’ budget, where the reductions
did not fully take effect until this year (for example adult social care review and reassessment
programme; changes to housing related support contractual arrangements). We have reviewed and
updated EIAs from last year, to make sure that we have implemented EIA action plans and identified
what needs to happen next. For example —

e We have continued to take a fair and consistent approach to the adult social care reviews and
reassessments to enable resources to be fairly distributed across the entire city and across all
groups rather than being disproportionately provisioned. We value our customers’ feedback, and
survey results have highlighted some areas for improving customer experience (for example
improved communication about assessment outcomes). We will carry out EIAs on new aspects of
the programme, such as reviewing our approach to Double Handed care.

e Where possible, the full impacts of reductions to extra care and sheltered housing have been
mitigated by remodelling some of the funding into Housing Benefit, which has left a variable
reduction of on-site support but has covered risks and priorities and full impacts of reductions of
services to other vulnerable groups have been mitigated by better prioritising who support is
directed to.

e For proposals to review services, full EIAs will be integral to finalising recommendations (for
example, the Options Appraisal to determine the future direction of the Community Support
service; the development of the Adult Placements Shared Lives service for long term care
placements).

e Fairer Contributions —proposal to remove the upper limit on contributions. Initial analysis suggests

low numbers of people will be affected, but,thﬁig‘tgeipic;qnfirmed. Capping of charging from 2016
Fayc 419 201




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

introduced by the Care Act will provide some, longer-term mitigation. Where appropriate we will
identify mitigations, e.g. phasing in changes for current customers.

As part of the continuation of the recovery programme, proposals will try to ensure we have consistent
assessment processes, but that we only fund services that clearly meet unmet eligible social care needs
and are provided as cost effectively as possible. There may however be conflicting views from service
users as to whether this work has a positive or negative impact on their lives. Some will see the
opportunity to utilise Council and community-based support to live more independent lives to be highly
positive. There may be other people unhappy that the cost of their care package is reducing, or
concerned about the fact that a more cost-effect service has to be put in place to meet their eligible
needs. However, the overall approach to reassessments is not changing; eligible needs will be identified
and appropriate support put in place to meet those unmet needs. People will not be subject to a
different approach based on their age. Every person’s eligible needs will be identified and met through
appropriate support arrangements.

The Better Care Fund partnership with the NHS CCG will continue to develop during 2015/16, with the
aim to deliver better joint commissioning, to ensure people get the right care when and where they
need it. This should also lead to more effective and efficient services to release savings in this area. This
will lead to positive impacts for disabled people.

Given the changes we have therefore spent a great deal of time talking to service users and providers
about our proposals in adult social care, as this represents a significant area of change from current
service provision. Consultation on the Learning Disabilities Commissioning Strategy has taken place
with service users, providers and stakeholders to establish principles and overarching commissioning
intentions, in order to enable the development of future specific learning disability budget proposals.

In Place there may be some negative impacts on disabled people dependent on the savings identified
through working with our partners Amey, Veolia and SYPTE but wherever possible we will try to
mitigate by reducing our impact on frontline services and continuing to make reasonable adjustments
in our provision for disabled customers, for example in kerb side collection. Mitigations have been
identified and put in place in individual service EIAs

In Children, Young People and Families, it is recognised that although there are no specific reductions
proposed for services for disabled children and young people, changes to the Integrated Sexual Health
Service, specifically around reductions to clinics and outreach work may reduce access for some
disabled people.

There is likely to be a positive impact for disabled people through the Successful Families
Transformation Project as there will be improved and more personalised local provision.

The Choice and Flexibility proposals have three stands which will have a positive impact for families
with disabled children by improving choice and increasing the flexibility of delivery.

There are mainly none to low impacts on disabled people in Resources and PPC. The changes in the
Customer Service proposal which covers contact centre technology and implementation of channel

shift strategy and tools means in some cases positive impacts such as better access to services online.

Also changes to council tax schemes are likely to only have a low impact to disabled people. Council Tax

Page 420

302




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

regulations provide for exemptions or discounts to be applied in relation to the specific circumstances
of certain disabled taxpayers. These exemptions or discounts are separate to reductions allowed under
Council Tax Support. There are also households in the city whose Council Tax is reduced due to
disability. Any Council Tax increase will affect these taxpayers and will also affect those disabled
taxpayers who do not receive a reduction due to disability. The provision of CTS and access to the
enhanced CTHS will help in mitigating any negative impact that a Council Tax increase will have on
taxpayers with a disability.

In excess of 12,000 of taxpayers with a disability are in receipt of CTS which reduces the amount they
have to pay. The Council's CTS scheme, which has a system of allowances and premiums, ensured that
those in receipt of disability benefits received the highest possible level of CTB. If not covered by this
and in recognition of the limited ability that taxpayers with a disability may have to improve their
financial circumstances, applicants with a disability have been identified as a specific group for whom
support under the CTHS is prioritised. In 2013/14 22% of all applicants to the CTHS had a disability.
Disabled customers received on average 11% more in financial support than those who are not disabled
and also received support for longer periods than those who were not disabled, with the average
period of support being 42% longer.

Should Council Tax increase, the Council will assess the demand that this may place on the CTHS and if
appropriate will increase the funding for the CTHS. It is important to note that any increased revenue
from a council tax increase could be used to continue to provide services that are accessed by people
with the greatest need including a disability.

Race

Sheffield is a diverse city and the ethnic profile continues to change, with the proportion of residents of
working age classifying themselves as non-British white growing from 11% in 2001 to 19.2 % in 2011.
BME adults make up 16% of the population and BME children 29%. The largest proportional increases
are occurring in the Arabic, East European, Indian and Chinese communities. Sheffield’s BME
population is increasingly dispersed across the city, although there remain geographical areas of the
city with high proportions of BME people, these tend to correlate with areas of higher deprivation.

There were very few impact assessments which highlight a medium/high impact on race. There are
more indirect impacts on race identified; this is mainly in the areas of impacts on young people and
people on low incomes. Mitigations have been identified and put in place in individual service ElAs.

In Children, Young People and Families the change to the Integrated Sexual Health Services may
negatively impact on some ethnic groups who are at a higher risk of contracting sexually transmitted
infections. This is partially due to cultural differences around sexual health and the often strongly
resistant approach of some BME communities to engage with sexual health services or in encouraging
young people to access contraception.

There are no changes proposed to youth provision to BME groups who continue be a priority and
monitoring data highlights the high proportion of users from BME groups. The change to the Public
Health Young People Substance Misuse contract highlights a potential negative impact across a number
of BME groups where there are increasing levels of substance misuse.

The proposed trading of the Inclusion and Targeted Support Service has the potential for a positive
impact on different ethnic groups and schools will continue to be equipped to meet the needs and be

Page 421

303




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

inclusive to support pupils who are from the wide range of ethnic backgrounds that new arrivals
comprise. The continuation of this work would help schools fulfill their legal duties and, given the city's
changing pupil profile demographics, there is scope for a greater number of schools accessing the
service.

The Early Years Best Start investment by Public Health will have a positive impact on BME groups who
have a higher birth rate and include some of the most deprived sections of the population.

The Communities portfolio is investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the local voluntary sector,
although this reduction is less than the Council’s overall budget cut. Some negative equality impacts
have been identified resulting from the reductions in overall grant aid funding available, and the fact
that some projects that the Council previously supported will no longer receive funding in future
however the funding will be targeted at those in greatest need of support. We are also restructuring
teams such as Grant Aid and Locality Management to ensure greater efficiency. The current local area
working model includes providing Councillors with a ward pot to fund community groups, projects or
additional services to tackle the issues and priorities within their ward. We will also review existing
arrangements across the Council in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support available. The
main beneficiaries of grant funded services are BME people, older people, women and people on a low
income.

There is no evidence to suggest that BME people will be disproportionately affected by the reductions
in adult social care.

In Resources the proposal to increase Council Tax will affect all taxpayers irrespective of race. However,
there is no evidence available which would suggest that taxpayers from differing ethnic backgrounds
will be disproportionately affected by an increase.

However, it is clear from analysing overall Council Tax collection rates that some households from
across the City have found (and will continue to find) it more difficult to meet their council tax liability.
As the CTS caseload is representative of the City's differing ethnic diversity, it is reasonable to assume
households from different ethnic backgrounds will form part of the overall group of CTS taxpayers who
are struggling financially. The mitigation for the financial impact of a Council Tax increase is the
provision of CTS and access to the CTHS.

Our latest data shows that around 28% of the CTS caseload are from a BME background whilst around
17% of applications to the CTHS have been received from taxpayers from a BME background. In
2013/14, under the CTHS, 80% of applicants from a BME background were awarded assistance under
the scheme, compared to 55% of customers from a White British/ White English background.

The ongoing provision of the CTS scheme in its present format, allied to the ongoing provision of the
CTHS, should continue to offer similar levels of financial assistance to taxpayers from different racial
backgrounds.

Religion/ Belief

According to the Census 2011 the largest religion/belief held in the city is Christian 52.5 %, followed no
religion 31%, Muslim 7.7% and no religion stated 6.8% etc. Few service impact assessments have
detailed any disproportionate impacts in this area.

mrayc =44
304




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

In Children, Young People and Families the proposed trading of the Inclusion and Targeted Support
Service, who work within key schools to develop resources around cultural awareness and practices
when working with newly arrived pupils and their families, will have a potential positive impact on faith
issues.

The reduction to the Integrated Sexual Health Service contract highlights the difficulties of sexual health
services engaging with some communities which may increase. Further monitoring of the impact is
being undertaken as part of the EIA being developed in collaboration with the provider.

Sex — including men, women, pregnancy and maternity

Few impact assessments have noted clear direct disproportionate impacts on gender. However as
women overall have lower incomes, are a larger proportion of adult social care service users, carers and
lone parents, there will therefore be an indirect impact from multiple proposals such as increasing in
charging and changes in adult social care. See the sections on older people and disability for potential
of indirect impact due to multiple disadvantages in Communities Portfolio.

The Communities portfolio is investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the local voluntary sector,
although this reduction is less than the Council’s overall budget cut. As part of this we are continuing to
support lunch clubs to reduce isolation of older people. We are also reviewing existing arrangements
across the Council in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support available. The main
beneficiaries of grant funded services are BME people, older people, women and people on a low
income.

In Children, Young People and Families Portfolio a change to the Integrated Sexual Health Services
may negatively impact on women who are more likely to access sexual health services. Treating and
preventing sexually transmitted infections is critical in both sexes. A reduction in levels of outreach with
men will also negatively impact.

However the Early Years Best Start investment will result in improved antenatal and postnatal support
with improved pregnancy and maternity services provision. There is also likely to be a positive impact
for mothers through the Successful Families Transformation Project as there will be improved and more
personalised local provision.

The savings in CYPF will enable high quality essential intervention and prevention services for the most
vulnerable children and families to continue.

Sexual Orientation

The Community Knowledge Profiles note that approximately 5 to 7% of people identify nationally as
LGB, although we do not have more local information. We think though that Sheffield is likely to have a
similar proportion of people who identify as LGB as the national average so approximately 28, 000 to
38,000 people. This percentage is usually larger for younger people. Few service impact assessments
have detailed negative impacts in this area except the Children, Young People, and Families portfolio.

The Sheffield Integrated Sexual Health Service (ISHS) is commissioned by Public Health to deliver open
access demand led sexual health services. The universal service has a range of functions. This has been
an ongoing reduction since 2013 and the ISHS works across several protected characteristics

Page 423

305




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

particularly in age, race, religion/beliefs, maternity, sexual orientation, disability, and poverty.
Reductions are proposed to this service for 2015/16.

Mitigations include reducing training, communications and rationalising the development of sexual
health outreach work, which will all impact on access and delivery of services. Further monitoring of the
impact is being undertaken as part of the EIA being developed in collaboration with the provider.

Within the Youth Service budget savings, Lesbian, Gay and Bisexual young people are seen as a
particular priority vulnerable group and therefore there are no planned reductions of current levels of
support to this group despite the changes to the overall Youth Services budget.

Overall across the Council, we do not think there will be a negative disproportionate impact for LGB
people, but information on our service users in this area is limited, although in the past year we have
integrated appropriate monitoring into key areas like social care. Further monitoring will be undertaken
as part of individual EIAs to assess this as relevant and appropriate.

Transgender

There are nationally approximately 0.6% of the population that are trans, we would expect there to
similar numbers in Sheffield, so 3,300 people. Few service impact assessments have detailed any
disproportionate or negative impacts in this area except in the Children, Young People and Families
Portfolio. Within CYPF the public health contract changes to the Integrated Sexual Health Service (ISHS)
may negatively impact support for transgender issues, for example tackling transphobia, awareness
raising, building self-esteem etc. as it is a non-core activity and could be compromised if funding is
reduced, carrying the risk that trans people, already one of the most marginalised groups, will be
further marginalised.

Further monitoring of the impact is being undertaken as part of the EIA being developed in
collaboration with the provider. Within the Youth Service Budget savings, transgender young people
are seen as a particular priority vulnerable group and therefore there are no planned reductions of
current levels of support.

We do not think overall, across all proposals, there will be negative disproportionate impact. However
we do not have a sufficient amount of monitoring information about our service users in a lot of
services so further monitoring will be undertaken as part of individual EIAs to assess this as relevant
and appropriate.

Financial Exclusion, Poverty and Social Justice

Sheffield residents’ incomes are around 10-15% lower than the national average. In addition Sheffield
is ranked 6th out of 326 against other Local Authorities for low income. Around 20% of people in
Sheffield live in relative poverty (below 60% of median income) at any one time. In 2012 this included
23% of all Sheffield children and almost a third of all Sheffield children under 10.

e A greater number of people experience poverty over the course of ten years, potentially 40%.

e Despite efforts to reduce poverty, the proportion of people living in relative poverty is stable and
reducing slightly, but at the same time the poor are getting poorer: nationally, income for the
bottom fifth of people in 2011/12 was 5% lower in real terms than it was ten years before.

Page 424

306




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

There are geographic variations in poverty in Sheffield. 125,000 [22%] Sheffield people live within areas
ranked as the most deprived tenth nationally, and 47,000 [8%] live within the least deprived tenth
nationally.

The face of poverty has changed and some of the characteristics overlap to cause multiple deprivations

e Pensioners are now less likely to be in poverty than previously, but other groups are more likely
to be in poverty. Poverty amongst pensioners is directly linked to their experience in earlier life.

e Previously, falling poverty rates for disabled people have reversed, with poverty increasing.

e People from minority ethnic backgrounds are more likely to be poor than white British people.

e Care leavers, and carers (both young carers and adult carers) are at increased risk of poverty.

e Children in large or single parent families are at greater risk of poverty. Almost two thirds of
children living in single parent families live in poverty.

Although not within the scope of our budget proposals, it is important to highlight some other relevant
factors which are impacting on people in the city. For example national policy, such as the welfare
reforms, are adding to the financial pressures facing some communities and are widening existing
inequalities. These changes are likely to impact on specific groups who already experience inequality
such as people on a low income, disabled people and women. Households with dependent children
across the city will experience an average loss of £1,690 per year. This increases for lone parents to an
average of just over £2,000 per year. The changes are affecting around one in seven people in the city
and again the full extent of these changes has not yet been felt.

Central Government has cut funding to Local Authorities over the last 4 years as part of its deficit
reduction programme. At the same time, we have had to deal with rising costs and increasing demand
for our services. As noted earlier, inevitably when funding is reducing year on year, the large scale that
we are experiencing, there has been impact on the front-line services. The budget reductions coupled
with welfare reform and the impact of the recession, mean that preventing things from worsening is
one of the main aims of the impact assessments.

Across all Portfolios we have tried to minimise the impact as far as possible especially on those that are
in greatest need or at risk, such as those that face financial exclusion and poverty and to ensure the
budget proposals are in line with the Fairness Commission Principles and our values.

We have considered the key drivers of poverty and its effects short medium and long term. Our
proposals therefore reflect the Councils intentions to tackle poverty and reduce inequality. We are
also currently developing the new Tackling Child and Household Poverty Strategy and following the
consultation and evidence gathering will be launched in 2015.

In Place we are reducing the subsidies we are providing to culture and environment, for example to
Sheffield International Venues, Sheffield Theatres Trust, Museums Sheffield, city centre management
and to events. This may result in increased charging/ ticket prices for cultural and sporting events and
so impact more on people on a low income. This may increase barriers to participation for people on a
low income. However price increases will be minimised for low income users via discount schemes.

In Children, Young People and Families, the reduction to the Young People Substance Misuse contract
could have a negative impact as the intervention and support provided by the provider, Crime
Reduction Initiatives (CRI), the Corner helps prevent the longer term negative effects on financial
inclusion and tackling poverty. The Best Start Public Health Investment in early years from antenatal
care through to preschool will help support impgoved life chances and social inclusion for children and

Page 425
307




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

families needing support.

Within the Successful Families Transformation, by allocating resources on a much more local level,
areas of greatest need will be receiving support more aligned with local need which will help improve
tackle exclusion and poverty.

The Early Years Best Start investment by Public Health will have a positive impact and support improved
life chances of children and families in the greatest need. Within the proposed reduction to the
Integrated Sexual Health Service, the impact between poor sexual health and health inequalities is
highlighted.

We will continue to provide support to those young people Not in Education Employment or Training
(NEET), diverting young people from offending, maintaining individual support for 16-24 year olds with
learning difficulties and disabilities, supporting young people who are at risk of sexual exploitation,
protecting apprenticeships and employment programmes and external investment. For example we’re
putting much more power in the hands of employers and local businesses, and with other local
authorities, agreed to deliver 4,000 new apprenticeships and 2,000 upskilled employees by 2016.

In Resources we will continue to fund a Local Assistance Scheme and to have a Council Tax Support
scheme at 23% despite Government cuts in these areas. However we will increase Council Tax for the
first time in 4 years by 1.99% or approx. 38p per week for most households to enable us to continue to
protect services to those who are in greatest need and at risk. We will mitigate the impact of this by
increasing the Council Tax Hardship Fund by £100k in 2015/16.

In Public Health across the Council we have continued to invest the same amount of money £30 million
however savings of £2.5m have been targeted from existing Public Health activities in order to avoid
disinvestment in other Council services which promote health and wellbeing outcomes, for which
revenue funding is no longer available. This investment will

° Address the root causes of ill health by supporting community groups that help people
improve their health and wellbeing.

° Work to improve the quality of housing.

° Promote healthier lifestyles through encouraging physical activity.

The outcomes expected of the public health grant will continue to be assessed under the Public Health
Outcomes Framework (PHOF), and broadly fall into the following categories:

o Improving significantly the health and wellbeing of local populations.
° Carrying out health protection functions delegated from the Secretary of State.
° Reducing health inequalities across the life course, including within hard to reach groups

° Ensuring the provision of population healthcare advice.

Carers

According to the Census 2011 there are 57,373 residents who provide unpaid care, including 4,559
young people under age 25 and 58% of carers are women. Few impact assessments have noted clear
direct negative impacts on carers however as carers overall have lower incomes and by definition care
for a large proportion of adult social care service users, there will be an indirect impact from multiple
proposals. See the sections on older people and disability for potential of indirect impact due to

Page 426

308




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

multiple disadvantages in Communities Portfolio.

In particular there are some proposals which were implemented following last years’ budget, where the
reductions did not fully take effect until this year (for example adult social care review and
reassessment programme; changes to housing related support contractual arrangements). These will
impact mainly on older and disabled people but are also likely to impact on carers directly and
indirectly as a result. We have reviewed and updated EIAs from last year to make sure that we have
implemented EIA action plans and identify what needs to happen next. For example, we have
continued to take a fair and consistent approach to the adult social care reviews and reassessments to
enable resources to be fairly distributed across the entire city and across all groups rather than being
disproportionately provisioned. However anyone identified as providing care for another adult, who
appears to have a level of need for support, will also be entitled to receive a carers assessment
themselves.

We are taking steps to ensure we get the best value for money and quality in our contracts in a number
of areas; e.g. value for money in provision of short breaks for people with learning disabilities, moving
to Supported Living Frameworks in mental health and learning disability services, and re-tender of the
community equipment store, small adaptations and independent living preventative solutions. . We are
supporting individuals with any transitions between providers where necessary.

A further impact across a range of proposals will be the transition from one provider to another, which
may include moving from one location to another and these changes have the potential for significant
impact on those individuals transitioning. We will take this into account in any changes, undertake risk
assessments where necessary and provide support for users and carers.

To help mitigate against these impacts, further work and monitoring will take place. (See the older
persons and disabled people section as well for other proposals which impacts on both groups).

In Children, Young People and Families, the Choice and Flexibility proposals will give more families and
carers of children with profound or multiple disabilities more flexible respite services, short break
provision and short break grants. Last year although we had difficult choices to make, our mitigations
and monitoring of impact were effective. Wherever possible we have minimised the impact that the
proposed changes on young people’s services will have on young people and their parents/carers. We
recognise that some of the children, young people and their families will be using more than one of the
services where there are changes proposed and may therefore be affected by this

Voluntary and Community Sector

When considering the impact on the VCS the importance of ‘social value’ is recognised by the ‘Best
Value’ guidance?, which was published by the Government in September 2011. This states that
authorities have a duty® to consider the impact of budget reductions on VCF or other organisations that

? https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/best-value-statutory-guidance--4

? The Best Value Statutory Guidance has statutory force and must therefore be taken into account in the exercise of funding
decisions. It is issued under section 3(4) Local Government Act 1999 which states that, in deciding how to fulfil its Best
Value duty (section 3(1) LGA 1999), local authorities have to take into account guidance issued by the Secretary of State
which may cover the form, content and timing of consultations http://www.ncvo-vol.org.uk/news/civil-society/helping-

you-understand-new-best-value-guidance , Page 427

309




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

have a ‘social value’. The Public Services (Social Value) Act® requires us to take social value into
consideration when we commission services. In order to do this effectively we will continue to monitor
the impact of changes over the next year, on service changes as well as the knock on effects of
reductions on other providers, and continue detailed consultation with customers and other
stakeholders as specific activities are implemented.

The Communities portfolio is investing a reduced amount in Grant Aid to the local voluntary sector.
Some negative equality impacts have been identified resulting from the reductions in overall grant aid
funding available, and the fact that some projects that the Council previously supported will no longer
receive funding in future. However the funding will be targeted at those in greatest need of support.

We are also restructuring teams such as Grant Aid and Locality Management to ensure greater
efficiency. The current local area working model includes providing Councillors with a ward pot to fund
community groups, projects or additional services to tackle the issues and priorities within their ward.
We propose a 15% reduction in ward pots. We will also review existing arrangements across the
Council in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support available. The main beneficiaries of grant
funded services are BME people, older people, women and people on a low income.

In Children, Young People and Families, Sheffield Futures — a voluntary and community sector provider
- is the largest contractor of youth services and has a key role in the current redesign of youth services
in growing and supporting community capacity to deliver youth activities, through volunteers, help with
grant applications, loan of equipment and use of rooms etc.

However, the programme does not provide, nor has it been designed to provide any direct cash funding
for organisations on an ongoing basis. Therefore, no organisation or group will lose funding. Savings on
youth buildings will be achieved through proposals to transfer the running of some buildings to
community organisations to run.

Though the current impact is neutral, within the Successful Families Transformation Project there is the
potential for greater involvement and a possible greater role in long term locality based delivery for the
VCF sector.

In Public Health we are continuing to address the root causes of ill health by supporting community
groups that help people improve their health and wellbeing, although these contracts are being
reviewed to ensure value for money and may result in reduced contract values for some organisations.

Within the Public Health Young People Substance Misuse contract change, there will be a small
negative impact through the decrease of staff for Crime Reduction Initiatives (CRI) within the Corner
project, which is the young people substance misuse provider. However, we are able to mitigate the
NHS England reduction as the local authority loses the responsibility to provide substance misuse
services into Aldine House and staffing issues have been mitigated through TUPE.

It is possible that the combination of cumulative budget reductions over the last few years may have
the unintended effect of destabilising some organisations that the Council and communities value, we
are however working to mitigate this. Although the impact on the VCF sector is large, overall we do not
think that it is disproportionate.

4 http://www.legislation.gov.uk/ukpga/2012/3 Page 428
310




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

Council staffing implications, including workforce diversity

Workforce diversity summary in Sheffield City Council 2014 by Portfolio

Workforce Diversity in Sheffield City Council Portfolios
20.00%
g
80.00%
H
£ 70.00%
-
o
& £0.00%
&
=
g 50.00%
-4
£0.00%
30.00%
20.00%
10.00%
- e _I_l il l Bl slomum
Proportion of Women Proportion of BME Proportion of Disabled Proportion of LGB Staff
staff staff staff
B Sheffield City Council 66.42% 11.89% 8.74% 3.50%
Sheffield City Council 4851 202 444 178
B Chief Excecutives Office 66.00% 8.43% 4.55% 6.70%
Chief Excecutives Office 66 7 3 5
B Children, Young People and Families 79.33% 16.29% 7.07% 4.00%
Children, Young People and Families 1547 290 99 52
B Communities 71.56% 11.20% 12.40% 3.40%
Communities 2078 307 238 69
B Place 39.50% 7.99% 5.16% 3.00%
Place 476 85 43 26
W Resources 59.62% 10.51% 7.14% 3.00%
Resources 682 113 61 26

In all Portfolio areas many of the budget proposals involve staff efficiency savings including; service
restructuring, a reduction in management costs by deleting vacancies, reviewing agency staff and
managing employee reductions though voluntary early retirement and severance schemes. We have
across the Council reduced management costs, minimised redundancies by using the talent pool, and
reduced the impact on frontline staff where appropriate. Unfortunately there may still also be
compulsory redundancies in some areas.

We have also promoted employee led measures such as voluntary reductions in hours, career breaks
and annual leave purchase schemes to deliver savings but also promote work / life balance. The council
is also committed to continuing to pay a ‘Living Wage’ to employees.

The Council believes that the composition, skills, and commitment of the workforce are vital factors in
our ability to deliver effective, efficient responsive and personalised services. We continue to monitor
workforce issues, and are aware of the need to address:

e The degree of occupational segregation within the workforce such as a high proportion of
women in the Communities and Children and Young People and Families workforces and a high
percentage of men in the Place portfoliony_. . 21~A

raget 4z9
311




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

e Under-representation of disabled, BME and lesbian, gay, bisexual and trans (LGBT) people in the
workforce and especially for women, disabled and BME staff at Chief Officer level.

Given the amount of internal restructuring as a result of the budget proposals, other drivers and
possible staff reductions of a further 200 posts in 2015/16, a significant number of workforce EIAs
within Portfolios have been done and a Council wide Managing Employee Reductions (MER) EIA has
been completed.

These show possible changes to the diversity of the workforce as a result of staff restructuring and
MERs required from some of the budget proposals. It is not yet possible at this stage to predict the
precise impact of these processes upon workforce diversity as this can only be known later in the year
as the schemes are all worked through. Last year’s monitoring of the MER and VER/VS schemes
showed no negative disproportionate impact on people who share a protected characteristic and had
positive impacts in line with our workforce diversity strategy. See the corporate MER EIA for full details.

We will continue to work within our current policies and procedures, which promote workforce
diversity to reflect the demographics of the city. We are also working with managers, staff and trade
unions to ensure the workforce is viable and appropriate to the council’s future operating and service
needs, with a balance of skills and experience.

Workforce related Impact Assessments are periodically updated and have for example been
undertaken as part of MER’s including Voluntary Early Retirement (VER) and Voluntary Severance (VS),
and the Pay Strategy.

Headline Features

All budget proposals have undergone an initial impact analysis to decide whether there was likely to be
disproportionate negative impact on different groups of people. Where this was identified as having
medium or high impact, in-depth (full) EIAs were carried out.

e Our overall approach is to protect services for those in greatest need and at risk where possible
and to change how we manage and deliver services to make savings. This will have an impact on
what the Council can continue to deliver.

e Groups highlighted as impacted across ElAs and all Portfolios, are disabled people, older and
younger people, women, carer’s and people on low incomes. Disabled people, some women
such as lone parents and women pensioners, young people and some BME groups tend to have
a lower income may be cumulatively impacted.

e Many services are continuing to comprehensively restructure services and teams and as a result
staffing levels across the council have reduced. Last year the majority of changes were managed
through voluntary severance schemes. In 2015/16 we will be reducing the workforce by
approximately 200 further posts. Monitoring from the past year indicates that there has been
no disproportionate impact on those who share protected characteristics. See workforce
implications section below.

e Services will be looking to increase gharges to,ensure full cost recovery and will continue to
U

312




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

apply costs fairly through or Fairer Contributions Policy. However, the changes will impact more
on people experiencing financial exclusion.

e We are investing in the VCF sector including through Grant Aid and Public Health albeit at
reduced level. Some negative equality impacts have been identified resulting from the
reductions in overall grant aid funding available. Some projects that the Council previously
supported will no longer receive funding in future; however the funding will be targeted at
those in greatest need of support. We will also review existing arrangements across the Council
in the next year to ensure we are prioritising support available.

= We will continue to fund a Local Assistance Scheme and to have a Council Tax Support scheme
at 23% despite Government cuts in these areas. However we will increase Council Tax for the
first time in 4 years by 1.99% or approx. 38p per week for most households to enable us to
continue to protect services to those in greatest need and at risk.

= Public Health spending is integrated throughout the Portfolios. Overall there will not be any
reduction in investment in this area but in line with what was agreed last year we are reviewing
how and where the funding is spent to ensure that it is targeted to tackle the root causes of ill
health and to have the maximum impact on reducing inequalities. This means that we will save
£2.5million on existing activities in order to reinvest in other areas.

= This year will see the start of the new integrated Commissioning Programme between the
Council and the Clinical Commissioning Group to create a combined budget to develop joined
up services. This new approach aims to ensure people get the right care when and where they
need it but will also create efficiencies in processes. It focuses on supporting people at home to
help increase independence and delay access to Health and Social Care services.

= We will continue to target resources to those in greatest need and at risk; help people to
become more independent; where possible intervene earlier and do more preventative work;
get even better value for money in the services we purchase; and pursue innovative approaches
in service commissioning and design. This relates to both internal and external services.

= We are proposing to continue with restructures of Council services and are considering both
internalising and externalising services where appropriate (such as the contract for Revenues
and Benefits customer services function being brought back in house and some care and
support services being externalised).

= We will continue to work on getting greater value for money from our contracts; this is with our
major strategic providers such as Capita, Veolia, Amey and Kier but also in Communities where
we have issued a new Framework for Supported Living to ensure we have a choice of providers
at competitive prices and retendering of existing services.

=  The Impact Assessment also highlights some positive implications of budget proposals.
Examples include improving the process of assessment and support planning for existing and
future social care customers whilst ensuring choice and control over support to meet their
eligible needs, and reshaping transport to provide services which promote independence. The
Better Care fund partnership should continue to develop and mean more joined up pathways
and services. Also as we restructure services both internally and with external providers there

Page 431

313




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

should be clearer and more efficient ways to contact services.

Managing Impact: Mitigation

Our overall approach is to protect services for those in greatest need and at risk where possible and to
change how we manage and deliver services to make savings. This will have an impact on what the
Council can continue to deliver.

The year on year reductions and the scale of the savings required mean there will be impacts upon
vulnerable groups that share protected characteristics. Most impacts relate to both younger and older
people, disabled people, women and people on low incomes. In all these areas some mitigating actions
have been identified and will be implemented as part of EIA action plans. For example

e All proposals have been assessed in line with the Fairness Commission Principles and take into
account the Tackling Poverty and Increasing Social Justice outcome area

e Working with external providers to achieve savings in our large contracts and to achieve this as
much as possible through non front line service functions.

e Working with partners to encourage private sector to support activities and events and
encouraging commercial activity to promote Sheffield.

e Working to increase our income though fees and charges, full cost recovery, and increased
trading of our services, for example with schools to help keep non- core services.

e Continuing where possible with successful schemes from last year that impacted positively such
as the apprenticeship schemes and employability programmes.

e Investing in prevention and delivering targeted support for those most vulnerable or at risk such
as in our Best Start programmes.

e Following the library review investing in local community groups to maintain the viability of non
council run libraries.

e Continuing to encourage people to be independent, safe and well in both children and adult
care such as through direct payments and continuing to reduce reliance on expensive provision
outside of Sheffield.

e Reviewing care and support arrangements and re tendering services where applicable to ensure
fair contributions and value for money.

e Working in partnership with the NHS Clinical Commissioning Group towards developing a single
pooled budget for health and social care under the Better Care Fund

e Restructuring management and services to increase efficiencies and create simpler routes of
public access. For example through our safer neighbourhood team and community safety
function creating a single street based response team.

Page 432

314




Appendix 9

Areas and detail of impact

e Regionalisation of services where appropriate such as adoption and youth justice.

e Continuing to invest £30 million in Public Health but shifting the focus to address the root
causes of ill health to help to help reduce health inequalities.

e Continuing to invest in the Voluntary and Community Sector through grant aid, including
building on the successful integration of the Sheffield Advice and Law Centre.

These continued substantial reductions in funding mean that progress on work on tackling poverty,
inequality and increasing social justice is much more focused on ensuring we do not slide backwards
and lose ground in existing areas of inequality and to ensure we are doing things fairly and more
efficiently, not necessarily about just meeting new demands.

Although there are very difficult choices, our impact assessments illustrate our approach to consider
the Fairness Commission Principles and to mitigate negative impacts where possible. Through our ‘live’
EIA process we will be monitoring closely any adverse equality impacts as reductions and changes in
provision occur during the next year. The impact analysis shapes proposals which do not make it
forward into the budget as well as those that do.

EIA Action plan

Area of impact

Action and mitigation

Lead, timescale and how it will
be monitored/reviewed

Overall and for
specific issues
relating to
communities sharing
protected
characteristics under
the Equality Act 2010

Individual proposals have had detailed EIAs
and specific mitigation has been devised
wherever possible. These will contain the
detail of the actions required be monitored as
appropriate.

In some cases as proposals are developed
further and implemented, alongside
consultation, some impact assessments will
be revisited or updated.

Continued focus on applying corporate
priorities, the Fairness Commission Principles
and the Equality and Fairness Objectives

Service Managers within
Portfolios as noted in EIAs

Performance monitoring within
Portfolios - Directors of Business
Strategy

Strategic Equality and Inclusion
Board to examine in more detail
the cumulative impact of the
budget cuts made on Sheffield
over the last 4 years.

Poverty and financial
exclusion

The tackling poverty and Increasing social
Justice Board to examine the impact of the
fairness principles, and equality on the
budget in line with the Equality and Fairness
Objectives

Poverty proofing to be further developed as

Develop monitoring
arrangements within the year
which seek to assess cumulative
impact

Outcome boards to feed into
the review

Page 433

315




Appendix 9

Area of impact

Action and mitigation

Lead, timescale and how it will
be monitored/reviewed

part of the EIA process in line with

Workforce

The corporate workforce EIAs will be
monitored six monthly

Director of HR, 6 monthly at the
Strategic Equality and Inclusion
Board

Approved (Lead Officer): John Mothersole: February 1st 2015
Approved (EIA Lead Officer): Adele Robinson: February 1st 2015

Page 434

316




FARS

T-Z9€0HT 8 T-TIE0HT $921N0SaY SUOI12NP3J JJeIS - $S92JN0SAY UewnH 443
T-19€04T $32JN0sS3ay suononpay Tce
}JB1S - SUOIIN|0S uolewJoyu| 1@ aduey) ssauisng
z-€d€0dl ‘T-cd€0dl ‘T-1d€04T $32IN0Say ainyipuadxa jjeis oce
uou ‘waisAs |esiesdde ‘suoildnpau Jjeis-soueul
¢1avidy saljlunwwo) Y40m/4 SUIA 8T¢
pauoddng-juswdo|anaq 19)4eN Hoddngg aue)
T-T1avedv saljiunwwo) 31vadn 9T/ST 86¢
—Jo0ddns spasN x3|dwo) :uojsinoid ay
T-Td¥av9 4dAD (SHSI) @31n18S L9C
YieaH |enxas paiel3aiu| p|aly4ays syl jo Alaniap
J0J 10BJIUOD BY] JO 3N|eA [B]DUBUL Y] 9dNpaJ O] To)
T-7avv0oP sailunwwon 9T/STOT paiepdn ovm
- dwwea304d AI9N02Y Y1eaH [BIUSIAl JO MIIADY )
T-0Tav1d¥ saljlunwwo) STNVI 31vddn DRV saljigesiq [424®)]
Suiuiea (Y3IN) suondnpay aaAojdw3 SuiSeuey Dnm
SalIUNWWo) S9IIAIDS Y1|eaH |eIUD|A 1502 ySiy uolleino3auay ove
1-29vSdy sauNWIWo) pajepdn - (ST0T 44
JAd) ¥TOT YA S2IAISS SIUNODY e |e1d0S
T-vavHVE 4dAD isnJ] wJed |[eH MOJJIYAA - SSOIAISS YINOA LB8T
T-19¥1Z€ B T-19PIVE B T-vVYHVE B T-CdVYHVE B T-TdVHVE 4dAD A3ojoyoAsd |euoiyeonpy 981
T-Tavbre 4dAD s3ulnes 193png $9IAI9S YINOA 0LT
T-19€09¢ 90€|d 1ejuo) peayy 09T
5199415 0} Pa1edOo||e SpUN) SNOLIBA MIIADY (1)
T-T19v1dV ‘T-2avvOv ‘T-cavedy saljiunwwo) payoeine 31v¥adn 91/S10¢ 8TT

- SJUDSWISSOSSERY 3 MOINDY

49y aur7 198png oljojiod 3|31L Juawissassy 1edw) Ayjenby  oN a1 VI3

91/ST0Z 139ang 1SI1 1DVdINI ALITYND3 T1N4

6 Xipuaddy



8lL€

T-¥4E0MC
T-€dE0MC
T-¢d4E0MC

T-TdE0MC

T-¢4€00¢

¥19€08¢ B 1-019€09¢
T-ST9€049¢ B T-69€04¢
T-91d€048¢

T-79€0d¢
T-1avcdT
S-Tav4VE B ¢-¢91rS0€

€-9avHVE
T-TAE0UT

T-¢9EBIT B T-€4E8IT
T-€9€00T ‘2-19€0aT

T-99€TD0C 8 ¢-€9ETIC
T-#4€TOC 8 T-TAETIC

T-19€0IS
T-€9€0dT B T-¢9€0dT

T-T9€0dT
T-TAE8IT

T-€av8AY 8 T-CAV8AY B T-T9V8AY B T-1avTdP

6 x1puaddy

aoe|d
aoe|d
2oe|d

aoe|d
2oe|d
aoe|d
2oe|d
aoe|d

aoe|d
aoe|d

4dAD

4dAD
$924n0SaY

$92JN0SaY
$92JN0SaY

$92JN0SaY
$92JN0SaY

$92JN0SaY
$92JN0SaY

$92JN0SaY
$92JN0SaY

saIUNWWO)

1ueJd 1SnJ] aJ1eay] P|a14ayYs ul uoidnpay
S312UIIDI4}T DIUBUIJUIBIA WEdY dl|gNnd

(17 03 22E|d 1E2JD) SWwesSoud

AduB101443 SaNUI/\ |BUOIIBUIBLU| P|DIHBYS

Syded ainieN ueqdn

s934eyd/s99) UO dSeaJdUl Uolleju|

S910UdId1443 JuswWwa3eue|A dlomidN AemysiH
S912uUdIDIYD Suluue|d Modsued |

S9IINIDS

Supjied pue diyjed] ‘yodsued] ul SaPUBIIHT
sjoJied Suissoud - Alajes peoy

puny [esauagd ou - p[aiyays Sunaylen

Sl lUNWWo)

3 S3l|lWe4 JO 94N1ONJISDS WOJ) SSUIAES ¢ JBDA
S9IIAJIDS suoIssIwpy |idnd jo Suipea)
1uswadeue|n

9AI1N23XJ 4O 3SOD U] UOIINPY - S24N0SAY
$91kJ 1IN0 93JeYd SWO0IU| PISIASJ - SIIAISS |37
sawi} asuodsal

pue S1U3WIA0JIdWI $S3204d - SIIIAIDS JOWO0ISND)
S912U3ID1Y4T - JUSWDSeuURA S313[1De4 73 Jodsued |
sadiey) uolEpPOWWOIDY

- Juswadeue| Sa1M|I0e4 g 14odsued |

S3uUIABS JUBWDINI0U - SIIIAIIS |BIIDWWO)
QWOodU| paseaJoul

2 SUOIIONPAJ 1SOI - SIDINIDS |BIIIBWWOD)
SUOIIONPaJ JJB1S - SIIIAIIS |BIDIDWWIOD

$1500

uolsuad SI9qIIAl Ul UoI3NPaY- SADIAIDS |3
Y3 - ASa1e41S SSauisng salunWwo)

143
143
174743

eve
e
1443
ove
8€E

LEE
9€€
1433

gem4§6

1€60

ommD:

743
8¢¢E

LT
9¢¢e

143
vee

Y43



6lL€

6 x1puaddy

-eavsie
-carsie
e-cartie

Savedy

T-84EVVI

T-LAEVVT

T-99€EVVI
T-VaEVVT
T-€4EVVI
T-TAEVVI
T-9479v9

1-8av1d¥

T-14€00¢
T-¢a€e0dc

T-19d€09¢

11d€04¢
T-89€E0MC 8 T-6dE0MC

T-¢dE0MC

T-£LdE0MC
T-99€0MC

T-99€E0MC

4dAD
4dAD

4dAD
Sa1IUNWWO)

SUOI1EDIUNWWO) pPUE 3dUeW.IOMS ‘Ad1jod

SUOI1EDIUNWWOD) PUB 3JUBWIOMS ‘Adljod

SUOI1EDIUNWIWOD pUE 3dUBW.IOMS ‘Adljod
SUOI1EDIUNWWOD pUE ddUeWIONS( ‘Adljod
SUOI1EIIUNWWOD) PUB 3dUBWIOMS( ‘AdIjod
SUOI1EDIUNWWOD) PUB 3JUBWIOMS ‘Adljod

4dAD

Sa1IUNWWOo)

aoe|d
2oe|d

2e|d

aoe|d
aoe|d

aoe|d

aoe|d
2oe|d

aoe|d

9213SN[ YInoA 03 yoeoudde |euoidas
uoindopy o1 yoeoudde [euoidal

SINOH J0 INO

$921AI9S Hoddng AlJlunwiwo) JO MIIADY

W] Juawadeue|A SUOIIEIIUNWIWOD) 10}
padieyd aq 03 198png 1UN0IJY SNUAAIY SuISNOH
4915189y |e40199|3

|enpiAlpu| Suipuny suaping MaN |BUOIHPPY
$3921AI3S pue saljddns uj suoionpay

1un juld

SUOI}B2IUNWIWOD) S|O0YdS

awodul SuiSIlIdApPe paseaJdu|

(1e3A ¥ 4O € Jed))

sNnS|A @dueisqns a)doad 3uno, - Yy3eaH 21qnd
s)ea4q Hoys poddns Ajunwwo) AjlweS

sSulnes SaIA3|/10eJ1U0D JUBWaSeue|Al 91SeM

s3uines Ang|
9se3|aJ 0} SI9A9| Ayauapl - AAS| L |/31odsued ]

sguines 10eJ1U0d

95e3|3J 0} SJaA3| AJ1IUapI - peayy S193J1S
94Nn30NJ3s9Y udISaQ |BIUBWUOIIAUT R UBQJN
SJuaAg Jole|N 1§ juswa3eue|p

9J1U3) A11D JOJ BWOJUI |BIDISWWOD [BUOILPPY
(A3 aAnnadwo)) swwesdoud

Adua1o1}49 SaNUIA |BUOIIBUIDIU| PIDIHBYS
$994 309(0.d pue diyssaulied uj uoidNpay
Swnasn|A

[e143SNPU| P|31443YS 03 JUes3 Ul uo1dNPayY
PI=1}3ys swnasnip

03 Suipuny Jusawa348y 321AISS Ul UOIIINPAY

[48)7
Tov
00v
66¢

86¢€
L6€

96€
G6€
v6€
cod-
™

065F

79¢D)
cofl

29¢
T9¢

09¢
1313

0S¢

5143
15143

L€



0ce

T-0T9ETIC

T-19vv0v

T-£9vvdP

T-Savvdv

T-1avedy

T-€av8AY

€-T1av1Ze ® E-TAMIVE B €-CAVHVE B E-TAVHVE
c-1avvre

€-1avSd€ B €-LdVHVE
T-€avedy

T-£4€TDC

T-€avTic

LaVidy

¢-1avede
9avedy
ceavize

T-¢avINSY
C-SavHVE

T-T1avevy

T-1avTIE
7-18¥Vvv9
€-¢arvv9
T-¢avdve

€-vavSl ‘v-1avSIE ‘T-1avSIE

T-1avvie

6 x1puaddy

$92JN0SaY

SallluUNWWo)

Sal3IuNWWo)
Sallunwwo)
SalIuUNWWOo)
Salllunwwo)
4dAD
4dAD

4dAD
Sal1uNWWo)

$92JN0SaY

4dAD
SaiIuUNWWo)

4dAD
SalIuNWWo)

4dAD

Sa1IUNWWO)
4dAD

Sa1IUNWWOo)

4dAD
4dAD
4dAD
4dAD
4dAD
4dAD

sol|oj1i0d

WwoJ} dWO0dUl PJNPaJ JOA0I 03 USISaPaJ DIIAIDS
j1uswadeue|n

9J1UDD) 924N0S3Y MBI P|3IYANH Jopual-9y
s3uines puny [e4aua3 - s921AJ3s Suisnoy apimALD
9JINAJIDS SYHd S1502 uluuna ayl adnpay

(synpy) uonesijeuosiad Sululyad JO UOIIENUIIUOD
poddns yd pue Jyoddns ssauisng JO MaIAdY
s8ulnes GT/pT JO 109} JeaA puodas Jo/pue ||n4
s3ulnes 193png SIJIAISS YINOA

piemy Aed

uoI1e13083U-2Y JUBID) SUBPJIED) YIIMSunJg
s3ulnes Jjeis podsued] YIN

MIINSY Juswadeuely pue Joddng ssauisng

suolleidepe ||ewsS) S3DIAIDS SAIIRIUSADI( Bamm_.\_/_wm
sjuswanosdw| IIAISS pue YIIN

94015 1uawdinb3y Aylunwwo) Japua |

|9pow papeJ

e 8ulysi|ge1s3 — 3d21A13S pa1adie] pue uoisn|ou|
sjod pJem - Jusawadeuew Ayed07

swea| 9JIAIDS

140ddng 921AJ9S SulUJEST UOISN|DU| JO MBIADY
103))9

JedA ||n4 -S921AJBS SaLIeIqIT PIR1HBYS JO MIIADY
(LSIN) Adeaay] o1wa1sAs inIA

1un Suruoissiwwo) s,uaipjiyd

SqnH 2ISNIA

saljlwe4 Sujuayidua.is

Angixs4 pue a2104d

M3IADY JUBWe|d

151747

ovv

17494
14474

0Ty

601
80%
L0V
901
Sov
eov



Lce

6 x1puaddy

T-¢19v1dby

T-T4€0dS

T-£4€0)S

T-94€0)9

T-94€0)S

T-€avNOY
T-¢avdve

T-74E0MS

T-74€0dS

T-¢4€0dS
81d€04d¢
£19€09¢
€19€04¢
[4%:10): 14
T-69v1d¥y
T-19vSadv

19vTOY

T-99€12¢

T-¢T9E€TIC

salIuNWWo)

SUOI1EDIUNWIWOD) PUB 3JUBWIOMS( ‘Adljod

aoe|d

2e|d

2oe|d

saIUNWWO)
4dAD

23e|d
Y3eaH d1qnd 4030311Q

Yi|eaH d1jqnd 40303110
2e|d
ade|d
2e|d
?oe|d

SalIuUNWWo)
SaIUNWWO)
saluNWWo)

SaluNWWo)
$924N0SaY

$92JN0SaY

uoneJisidau
-9p -1uswdo|aAa( 1JelN Hoddnsy aue)
32940 YyijesH

90INIDS Y319

AyyeaH siea Ajue3 01 Suipuny ul uoPNPaY
3}I0M

1uawdolaaag Allunwwo) pood |9 1e3, dois

92INJIDS S||1)S
3upjoo) pue poo4 Aylunwwo) 404 Suipuny dois
9T-GT0C 393png ply 1ueJD 103035 Alejun|op
SIB9A

AlJe3 1e1s 1599 -JUBWISaAU| YijeaH 211gnd 4dAD
Suipuny

shemeaye] AyijesH spJepuels uiped] 03 puj
198pnq

yyeaH pue juswAojdw3 Jo uoiINPaY %ST
10BJ1U0D SYHOS 991430 OHdd

sa1ouaId AN 9|qeuleisns

S912U31d1Y43 ddueuulel\ AemysiH
uonesauaday A 3 Suluue|d - Swodu| aseadu|
jJuswadeue|n uswdojanag

(0S VI3 99s) S9AI7 paJeys Juswiade|d 3NPY JO asn
(suorinqli1uod Jauiey) suorrdo awodu| SulSIWIXe|A
s984eyd pue sjuad Suipn|dpul 9T-GTOT

ue|d ssauisng (YYH) 3uno2dy anuaAay SuisnoH
uoddng

paie|ay SuisnoH sue|d 3ullsixs Juswa|dw|
Ayoedes

yoeaJ 100100\ P|nNoYS - swwes3oud aoe|dy1oM
109[04d uoiiesisiday pueq Asejunjop

70S

€0s

T0S

00S

L6V

96V
S6Y,

13l
€6

[4517
98Y
S8Y
78y
1314

TLy
T9v
0Sv

1747
1747

14744



cce

6 x1puaddy

ETAEOMT B TAEO0NY B CTAEOMT 8 619€09¢
T-94€0dS

T-94€0dS
T-€4€0dS

Tdv1Vv9

T-¢aEeVvIC
T-TdEvic
T-€9EVLC

T-T4¥AV9

T-19vcdy
T-19vdve
¢-Savsie

¢-cavvie

T-¢4€0)9
T-T4€0)S

T-¢4vavo

T-T4¥AV9

T-£4E0NS

23e|d
YieaH d1jgqnd 4030341q
Y3eaH d1|gnd 40303410
Y3esH d1|gqnd J030341g

SaIUNWWO)

2oe|d
2oe|d
2e|d

SalUNWWo)

$921N0S3Y
$921N0S3Y
Sa1IUNWWO)
4dAD

4dAD

4dAD

4dAD
aoe|d

aoe|d

SaIUNWWO)

SalIuUNWWOo)

aoe|d

$984eyd pue Sd34 UO ISEIJDU| UOIIE|U|
Y1|eaH 21|gnd - SPEaYJaA0 Ul UoIIdNPY
150D 3uly4e1S YieaH dlignd

[0J3UOD pUE UOJIUBASIJ UOIIDd4U|

S10841U02

JUBWieaJs] s3nJp JO UOIepPI|OSUO) - Y3|B3H 21jqnd
Y3 201A4S Auaniaqg |ende)

9se) ssauisng pasIAdY - 19)Je|N JOOA

sagiey) pue s994 U0 aseadu| Aleuonefu|

S1934 d3lvddn 39

Ol-suoidwey) yyjeay Alunwwo)d-yijeaH a1qnd
jueJo poddng xe] [1Uno) S|1PUNO) Ysiied
9T0Z/STOT 3SYIYINI XV.L TIDONNOD

2Je) papueH a|gnoq 4O M3IAY

JueJD) S3ljIWeS [NJSSIINS

S3AJIDSIY JO Ised|ay
shemyied uoissasdoud

Slusawade|d N3S JO uolleulpJo-o0)

Suipund 40|\ A0
oply

A)S pue SulpA) ysiaig - sainunuoddo SulpA)

awuwelsgoud

8uraq|iam Aunwiwo) - YijeaH d1jgnd

yijeay |eyusw

01 UOIINQIIIU0I JUeIS YIS 21|qnd Byl M3IASY

Juswadeue|n

Y819\ }NPY € Ja11 01 Suipun4 Ul uoPNPaY

0€S
6¢S

8¢S
LTS

9¢s

s
€¢s
s

HNMU

S
At
91
7150
el
1S
1S
015
605
805

L0S
90S

S0S



Glossary

Appendix 10

Term

Definition

Abbreviations

The symbol ‘k’ following a figure represents £thousand.
The symbol ‘m’ following a figure represents £million.
The symbol ‘bn’ following a figure represents £billion.

Capital
Expenditure

Expenditure that is incurred to acquire, create or add value to a
non-current asset.

Capital Financing
Requirement

It measures an authority’s underlying need to borrow or finance
by other long-term liabilities for a capital purpose.

It represents the amount of capital expenditure that has not yet
been resourced absolutely, whether at the point of spend or
over the longer term. Alternatively, it means capital expenditure
incurred but not yet paid for.

Capital Receipts

The proceeds from the sale of capital assets which, subject to
various limitations (e.g. Pooling Arrangements introduced in
the Local Government Act 2003) can be used to finance capital
expenditure, invested, or to repay outstanding debt on assets
originally financed through borrowing.

Collection Fund

A fund administered by the Council recording receipts from
Council Tax, National Non-Domestic Rates and payments to
the General Fund.

All billing authorities (including the Council), are required by
law to estimate the year-end balanced on the Collection Fund
by 15 January, taking account of various factors, including
reliefs and discounts awarded to date, payments received to
date, the likely level of arrears and provision for bad debts.
Any estimated surplus on the Fund must be distributed to the
billing authority (the Council) and all major precepting
authorities (Police, Fire and DCLG) in the following financial
year. Conversely, any estimated deficit on the Fund must be
reclaimed from the aforementioned parties.

Contingency

A condition which exists at the Balance Sheet date, where the
outcome will be confirmed only on the occurrence of one or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the Council’s
control.

Council Tax

A banded property tax that is levied on domestic properties.
The banding is based on assessed property values at 1 April
1991, and ranges from Band A to Band H. Around 60% of
domestic properties in Sheffield fall into Band A.

Band D has historically been used as the standard for
comparing council tax levels between and across local

Page 441

323




authorities, as this measure is not affected by the varying
distribution of properties in bands that can be found across
authorities.

Council Tax
Freeze Grant

Grant funding provided by national government to support
councils that freeze their Council Tax charges. The grant
scheme is open to all billing and major precepting authorities,
including police and fire authorities, which decide to freeze or
reduce their council tax. If they do, they receive additional
funding in 2015/16 equivalent to raising their council tax by 1
per cent.

Council Tax
Support

Support given by local authorities to low income households as
a discount on the amount of Council Tax they have to pay,
often to nothing. Each local authority is responsible for devising
its own scheme designed to protect the vulnerable. CTS
replaced the nationally administered Council Tax Benefit.

Credit Risk

The possibility that one party to a financial instrument will fail to
meet their contractual obligations, causing a loss to the other

party.

DCLG

Department for Communities & Local Government

Designated Areas

These are specific parts of the city referred to as the New
Development Deal and Enterprise Zone. They are significant
because any growth in business rates above the “baseline”
established in 2013/14 can be retained in full locally, rather
than half being repaid to Government.

Equality Impact
Assessment (EIA)

A process designed to ensure that a policy, project or scheme
does not discriminate against people who are categorised as
being disadvantaged or vulnerable within society.

General Fund

The total services of the Council except for the Housing
Revenue Account and the Collection Fund, the net cost of
which is met by Council Tax, Government grants and National
non-domestic rates.

HR1

Each local authority is required to submit an HR1 form to
inform the Government of potential redundancies in the
organisation. The Redundancy Payments Service then collects
the information and distributes it to the appropriate government
departments and agencies who offer job brokering services
and/or training services. This happens so that the government
can discharge its obligation to these employees.

Minimum
Revenue
Provision (MRP)

The minimum amount which must be charged to an Authority’s
revenue account each year and set aside as provision for
credit liabilities, as required by the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989.

National Non-
Domestic Rates
(NNDR)

These are often referred to as Business Rates, and are a levy
on business properties based on a national rate in the pound
applied to the ‘rateable value’ of the property. The Government
determines the national rate multiplier and the Valuation Office

Page 442

324




Agency determine the rateable value of each business
property. Business Rates are collected by the Local Authority
and paid into their collection fund, this amount is then
distributed 49% to the Local Authorities general fund, 1% to the
South Yorkshire Fire and Rescue Authority and 50% to Central
Government. The Central Government share is then
redistributed nationally, partly back to Local Authorities through
Revenue Support Grant.

LAC

Looked After Children

Precepts

The amount levied by another body such as the South
Yorkshire Police Authority that is collected by the Council on
their behalf.

Private Finance
Initiative (PFI)

A contract in which the private sector is responsible for
supplying services that are linked to the provision of a major
asset and which traditionally have been provided by the
Council. The Council will pay for the provision of this service,
which is linked to availability, performance and levels of usage.

Provisions Amounts charged to revenue during the year for costs with
uncertain timing, though a reliable estimate of the cost involved
can be made.

Public Works A government agency, which provides loans to authorities at

Loan Board favourable rates.

(PWLB)

Remuneration

All sums paid to or receivable by an employee and sums due
by way of expenses allowances (as far as those sums are
chargeable to UK income tax) and the money value of any
other benefits received other than in cash. Pension
contributions payable by either employer or employee are
excluded.

Reserves Result from events that have allowed monies to be set aside,
surpluses, decisions causing anticipated expenditure to have
been postponed or cancelled, or by capital accounting
arrangements.

Revenue Expenditure incurred on the day-to-day running of the Council,

Expenditure

for example, staffing costs, supplies and transport.

Revenue Support

This is a Government grant paid to the Council to finance the

Grant (RSG) Council’s general expenditure. It is based on the Government’s
assessment of how much a Council needs to spend in order to
provide a standard level of service.

Specific These are designed to aid particular services and may be

Government revenue or capital in nature. They typically have specified

Page 443

325




Grants

conditions attached to them such that they may only be used to
fund expenditure which is incurred in pursuit of defined
objectives.

Spending power

DCLG measures the impact of government funding reductions
against local authorities’ combined income from both
government funding and council tax. This combined measure
of income is called revenue spending power.

NB: in a press release from the Chartered Institute of Public
Finance & Accountancy (CIPFA) following the Local
Government Finance Settlement, CIPFA made the following
notable comment:

“CIPFA’s measure of funding used in this analysis is "unfenced
spending power". This is funding that councils have available to
meet their priorities and fund existing staff and commitments
and which is not already ring-fenced for other use. This
includes Revenue Support Grant (RSG), retained business
rates, council tax and a number of special grants that
authorities are free to spend as they wish. In contrast DCLG's
measure also includes Public Health Grant (which can only be
spent on public health matters) and the Better Care Fund
(which is largely NHS money or budgets that local authorities
have pooled with the NHS, and can only be spent on priorities
agreed with local NHS managers).”

Unsupported Borrowing for which no financial support is provided by Central
(Prudential) Government. The borrowing costs are to be met from current
Borrowing revenue budgets.

VCF Voluntary and Community Sector

Page 444

326




	Agenda
	4 Declarations of Interest
	6 Capital Programme and Revenue Budget Approval 2015/16
	Capital (1)
	Capital (2)
	Budget (1)
	Budget (2)


